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Re LAVERS' HEELS PATENT Ltd. CAN.
(Annotated). so—

Ex. C.
Ezchequer Court of Canada, Cassels, J.E.C. October 30, 1918, o

Parents (§ II B—15)—Oup ELEMENTS—PATENTABLE COMBINATION—ELE-
MENTS IN PREVIOUS PATENTS —VALIDITY.

* Bringing together old elements in such a way as to be useful and
produce a combination which has the essentials requisite to a valid
patent entitles an applicant to have patent issue, notwithstanding that
each of such elements can be traced in previous patents.

ArpreaL from a decision of the patent office rejecting an appli- Statement.
cation for a patent. Reversed.

Russel S. Smart, for petitioner.

Cassews, J.E.C.:—Under the Patent Act, R.S.C. (1906), c. 69, Coassels,JEC.

it was provided by ss. 17 and 18 as follows:—

17. The commissioner may object to grant a patent in any of the following
cases:—

(a) When he is of opinion (hat the alleged invention is not patentable in
law.

(b) When it appears to him that the invention is already in the possession
of the public, with the consent or allowance of the inventor.

(¢) When it appears to him that there is no novelty in the invention.

(d) When it appears to him that the invention has been deseribed in a
book or other printed publication before the date of the application, or is
otherwise in the possession of the public.

(¢) When it appears to him that the invention has already been patented
in Canada, unless the commissioner has doubts as to whether the patentee or
the applicant is the first inventor.

(f) When it appears to him that the invention has already been patented
in a foreign country, and the year has not expired within which the foreign
patentee may apply for a patent in Canada, unless the commissioner has
doubts as to whether the Iomlgn patentee or the applicant is the first inventor.

18. Wh the bjects to grant a patent as aforesaid,
he shall notify the applicant to that effect and shall state the ground or reason
therefor, with sufficient detail to enable the applicant to answer if he can the

bjection of the issioner.

By a statute passed by the Dominion Parliament in the

year 1913, ¢. 17, it is provided as follows:—

1. The Exchequer Court Act, ¢. 140 of the R.8.C. (1906), is amended by
adding the following section immediately after s, 23:—

23A. Every applicant for a patent under the Patent Act who has failed
to obtain a patent by reason of the objection of the issioner of y t
a8 in the said Act provided, may, at any time within six months after notice
thereof has been mailed, by registered letter, addressed to him or his agent,
appeal from the decision of the said issi to the Exchequer Court.
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2. The Exchequer Court shall have exclusive jurisdiction to hear and
determine any such appeal.

3. The Exchequer Court shall have exclusive jurisdiction to hear and
determine any now pending appeals to the Governor-in-council under s, 19
of the Patent Aet, and the Governor-in-council shall transfer the said appeals
and all d s and proceedi relating thereto to the Exchequer Court.

The applicant for two patents, (. W. Lavers, petitioned for a
patent which is called serial No. 191227 and the other serial
No. 191228.

After a long and protracted procedure in the patent office the
application was finally rejected by the examiner and his decision
being adopted by the commissioner, the applicant appeals to this
court under the provisions of the statute hereinbefore quoted.

The commissioner was fully notified of the appeal, but did not
appear on the hearing of the appeal.

Myr. Smart appeared for the petitioner, and urged his case from
the point of view of the applicant for the patent. The court
received no assistance from the commissioner, with the result
that an enormous number of alleged anticipations have been waded
through by the judge unaided by any assistance or help from the
patent office.

If applications by way of appeal become numerous in this
court, 8o much time will be required on the part of the judge to
delve into all of these prior patents that practically the time of
one judge would be occupied as an appellate examiner from the
patent office. I do not think it is fair that such a burden should
be cast upon the judiciary.

If the patent office take upon themselves to reject the appli-
cant’s claim for a patent, it seems to me that they should afford
the judge the assistance of counsel to sustain their findings, and
that the matter should not be left to the judge to grope through
a long lengthy file and any number of previous patents unaided.

Under the circumstances of the case, I have done the best |
could. At the same time 1 feel that 1 may not be doing exact
justice. It has to be borne in mind that the mere issuing of a
patent does not make the patent conclusive or binding upon a
litigant who desires to raise the question as to its invalidity; and
therefore, if, in reversing a decision of the commissioner as I intend
to do, 1 feel that if I have erred, nobody is much hurt, as anyone
will have the right to protest the validity of the patent in any
other proceeding.
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It is o matter of common knowledge that a large number of
patents for invention issued by the Department have, in litigated
cases, been declared by the courts to be null and void, cither
Because the so-called patents lacked the essentials of patentability
or on account of the prior state of the art, ete. ¥very judge, 1
think, is familiar with this proposition. I think that the examiner
has erred in not granting the patent in the case before me.

Dealing first with the application for a patent, serial No.
191227, The elaim put forward is for a very strict construction
patent. It is a very narrow patent, but nevertheless 1 cannot
agree with the examiner in his reasons for disallowing the claim.

The first claim of the patent is as follows:

\ detachable heel of flexible, resilient, plastic material, having a plurality
of recesses on its inner face or contact for the purpose of moulding the heel
properly and permitting the entry afterwards of dome-headed pins for
attachment with a plurality of separated locking independent washers, em-

bedded therein at the bottom of said recesses, permitting such heel to slide
laterally into the locking position.

The subsequent claims of the patent are mere structural modi-
fieations. Probably some of them lack patentability. 1 have not
gone into them, as I do not think it is of much consequence if the
patentee is entitled to the main claim.

On April 3, 1918, a letter is written signed by Thomas L. A.
Richard, patent examiner, addressed to Messrs. Fetherstonhaugh
& Co., Ottawa, the attorneys for the applicant. Mr. Richard
states that:

The heel forming the subject-matter of this applieation is built up of

« various separate elements each found in the prior art as disclosed in the

references of record.

e refers to certain patents, and then states:—

All the references previously cited and mentioned in this ease are shewn
to disclose all the features of construetion of applicant’s device, and they are
retained on record for the purpose of anticipations of the general structure
as well as of details thereof.

2. From the foregoing it is seen that none of the features of applicant’s
strueture is novel per se, each and every one is found in one or the other of the
references of record.

All the things united in this heel being old and not performing any joint
function, each doing only what it has formerly done in former heels, their
adaptation to this heel does not constitute a proper combination and amounts
merely to aggregation not involving invention.

I cannot agree with this statement of the law. In nearly all
combination patents the elaim is for a combination of old elements.

It is no answer to a claim for a combination that one element may
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bé¢ found in a prior patent, another element in another patent,
ete. If the elements are brought together in such a way as to be
useful, and a combination is produced entitling the applicant to
a patent | do not see that it is any answer to wade through a series
of patents and to state that each of the elements can be traced in
other previous patents. Unless there has been a disclosure of a
similar combination, the combination would be good, assuming it
to have the essentials requisite to a valid patent. To call it an
aggregation is to my mind incorrect.

For instance, take the dome-headed pins. Unquestionably
these pins perform their ordinary function, but if you remove them
from the combination what happens? The whole thing falls to
pieces.

It may well be that some of the subordinate claims lack the
elements of a proper combination having regard to Mr. Richard's
view and his citations. 1 leave it open to the commissioner to
reject, if so advised, any of these subsequent sub-combinations.
All I direct is that the patent shall issue with the first claim.

I may add my opinion that I do not see that much harm would
be occasioned by allowing it to issue with these subsequent claims.
The patentee would take them at his risk, and, if properly advised,
would not jeopardise by inserting a lot of useless sub-claims.

In regard to the application for patent serial No. 191228,

claim 1 reads as follows:—

1. In combination with a boot or shoe having a permanent heel, a base
plate thereon, and & plurality of domed headed pins extending (hrou;h the
base plate, such pins being formed with should dapted to bear
the base plate and retain the same in position, a detachable heel of flexible,
resilient, plastic material having a plate embedded therein formed wlth slots
to engage slideably the headed pins, and locking means extendi
the permanent heel and the detachable portion.

It is unnecessary to repeat what 1 have stated in regard to
the previous application. Practically the same remarks apply to
Mr. Richard’s letter of April 3, 1918.

I think the patent should issue for the first claim of this patent,
leaving it open to the commissioner whether to grant or reject
the sub-combination claims.

There will be no costs of these applications.

Application granted.
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ANNOTATION.
By Russen 8. SmArt of the Ottawa Bar.

What are termed combinations form an important class of inventions.
The term “combination” has no statutory foundation. Patents are granted
in Canada for any new and useful “art, machine, manufaet ure or composition
of matter.” The hine or facture or composition of matter may be

I 1 of a ber of el ts co-operating together, and when this
is 80 the term “combination” is often applied to it.

Frequently the word “ combination” is used,.especially in the specification
of a patent to describe any invention made up of parts more or less complex.
Technically, however, the word is used to refer to cases where there is some
interaction or functional co-operation of the parts, producing a separate
entity having a result and characteristics different from the sum of the in-
dividual results and characteristics of its elements. Buckley, 1.J., in British
United Shoe Machinery v. Fussell (1908), 25 R.P.C. 631, 657, defined a com-
bination as meaning “a collocation of intercommunicating parts with a view
to arrive at a simple result.””  Proctor v. Bennis (1887), 36 Ch. D. 740; Wood
v. Raphael (1896), 13 R.P.C. 730; Crane v. Price (1840), 1 W.P.C". 377, 383,
409; Murray v. Clayton (1872), L.R. 7 Ch. App. 570.

Combinations when they produce a new result or a known result in a new
way are considered to be patentable inventions. (British United Shoe Machin-
ery Co. v. Fussell, supra; Williams v. Nye (1890), 7 R.P.C. 62; Wood v.
Raphael, supra; Anti-Vibration Incandescent Lighting Co. v. Crossley (1905),
22 R.P.C. 441; Goddard v. Lyon (1894), 11 R.P.C. 354; Marconi v. British
Radio Telegraph & Telephone Co. (1911), 28 R.P.C. 181; British Westinghouse
Electric and Mfg. Co. v. Braulik (1910), 27 R.P.C. 209; Internationcl Harvester
Co. of America v. Peacock (1908), 25 R.P.C. 765, 777; Gramaphone and Type-
writer Co. Ltd. v. Ullmann (1906), 23 R.P.C. 752.)

All of the elements of a combination may be old, but the combination may
itself constitute an invention. (Lister v. Leather (1858), 8 El. & Bl. 1004,
120 E.R. 373; Bovill v. Keyworth (1857), 7 EL. & Bl 725, 119 E.R. 1415;
Crane v. Price (1842), 1 W.P.C. 383.)

The leading Canadian case of Smith v. Goldie (1882), 9 Can. 8.C.R. 46,
deals with this point. The headnote reads:—

“An invention consisted of the combination in a machine of three parts,
or elements, A, B and C, each of which was old, and of which A had been
vreviously combined with I3 in one machine, and B and C in-another machine,
but the united action of whick, in the patented machine, produced new and
useful results, Held (Strong, C.J., dissenting), to be a patentable invention.”

In the judgment, Ritchie, J., said, p. 50:—* Where the patent is for a com-
bination, the combination itself is the novelty and also the merit.”

And Henry, J:—*“The result in this case is produced by the combined and
simultaneous action of the draft upwards created by the fun, and the con-
tinuous operation of the brush or brushes worked by the machinery as de-
scribed in the specification. It was the simultaneous action which produced
the result. . . . By the co-operation of the constituents, a new machine
of a distinet character and function was formed, and a beneficial result pro-
duced by the co-operating action of the constituents, and not the mere adding
together of the separate contributions.”

For other Canadian authorities on combinations see Toronto Telephone
Mfg. Co. v. Bell Telephone Co. of Canada (1885), 2 Can. Ex. 495; Robert
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Muchell v. Handeock Inspirator Co. (1886), 2 Can. Ex. 539; Grifiin v. Toronto
R. Co. (1902), 7 Can. Ex. 411; Mattice v. Brandon Machine Works (1907),
17 Man. L.R. 105; Dansereau v. Bellemare (1889), 16 Can. S.C.R. 180;
Barnett McQueen v. Canadian Stewart (1910), 13 Can. Ex. 186,

A new combination may be formed by the omission of an element from,
or by the addition of an element to, the el s of an old combination, pro-
vided there is a new result produced by a different interaction of the elements
(Pneumatic T'yre Co. v. Tubeless Tyre Co. (1897), 15 R.P.C. 74; Wallington v.
Dale (1852), 7 Exch. 888; Russell v. Cowley (1834), 1 W.P.C. 1459; Morris v.
Bransom (1776), 1 W.P.C. 51; Vickers v. Siddell (1800), 15 App. Cas,
496.) The substitution of a new element in an old combination, if the element
substituted is not obviously and demonstrably an equivalent of the one for
which it was substituted, may involve invention. (Unwin v. Heath (1855),
5 H.L. Cases, 508, 522, 1 W.P.C. 551; Badische Anilin und Soda Fabrik v.
Levinstein (1885), 2 R.P.C. 73.)

For American cases on combination see San Francisco v. Keating, 68 Fed.
351, 15 C.C.A. 476; Von Schmidt v. Bowers, 80 Fed. 140, 25 C.C.A. 323;
American v. Helmstetter, 142 Fed. 978, 74 C.C.A. 240; National v. Aiken, 163
Fed. 2564; Hoffman v. Young, 2 Fed. 74; National v. American, 53 Fed. 369;
Green v. American, 78 Fed. 119, 24 C.C.A. 41; Gill v. Wells, 89 U.S. 1; Electric
v.Hall, 114 U.8.87; Prouty v. Ruggles, (1842), 16 Pet. 336; McCormick v. Talcott,
(1857), 20 How. 402; Vance v. Campbell (1861), 1 Black 427; Dunbar v. M yers,
04 U.S. 187.

It is necessary to distinguish combinations from mere aggregations,
Aggregation is not invention either in processes, machines or manufactures.
(Hailes v. Van Wormer (1873), 20 Wall 353.) The elements which are col-
located in an aggregation may themselves, if new, amount to separate in-
ventions, but assembling these elements, unless there is interaction, can
produce no new result, and there can, therefore, be noinvention. Forexample,
in Reckendorfer v. Faber (1875), 92 U.8. 347, a rubber eraser was placed on
the end of a pencil and a patent claimed for the alleged combination. The
Supreme Court of the United States held that the pencil and eraser each
continued to perform its own duty and nothing else. No effect was pro-
duced; no result followed from the use of the two and consequently the
union was an aggregation and not invention. (See also Williams v. Nye
(1890), 7 R.P.C. 62; Thompson v. James (1863), 32 Beav. 570, 55 E.R. 224,
Rushton v. Crawley (1870), L.R. 10, Eq. 522.)

The test of combination is the presence of a result different from the
individual results of its elements. Buckley, L.J.,, in British United Shoe
Machinery v. Fussell (1908), 25 R.P.C. at p. 631, thus states the rule:—

“For this purpose a combination, I think, means not every collocation
of parts, but a collocation of intercommunicating parts so as to arrive at a
desired result, and to this, I think, must be added that the result must be
what, for the moment, I will eall a simple and not a complex result.

It is not every combination of parts which is for this purpose a combination.”

For other English authorities see Crane v. Price (1840), 1 W.P.C. 377;
Cannington v. Nuttall (1871), L.R. 5 H.L. 205; Huddart v. Grimshaw (1803), 1
W.P.C. 86; Bovill v. Keyworth (1857), 7 EL. & Bl. 725, 119 E.R. 1415; Minter
v. Wells (1834), 1 Cr. M. & R. 505; Anti-Vibration Incandescent Lighting
Co. v. Crossley (1905), 22 R.P.C. 441, 445; British United Shoe Machinery
Co. Ltd. v. Fussell (1908), 25 R.P.C. 257; Williams v. Nye (1890), 7 R.P.C",
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62; Newton v.Grand Junction R. Co. (1850), 5 Exch. 331, 334; Boulton v. Bull
(1795), 2 H. Bl. 463; Lister v. Leather (1858), 8 EL & Bl 1004, 120 E.R. 373;
Morton v. Middleton (1863), 1 Macph. (Ct. of Sess.) 718; Marconi v. British
Radio Telegraph & Telephone Co. (1911), 28 R.P.C. 181; British Westinghouse
v. Braulik (1910), 27 R.P.C. 209.

The same distinction was drawn in Hunter v. Carrick (1885), 11 Can.
8.C.R. 300, where it was held that a mere aggregation of parts not in them-
selves patentable and producing no new result due to the combination itself,
was not invention, and consequently it could not form the subject of a patent

For Canadian cases see North v. Williams (1870), 17 Gr. 1 Walmsley v.
Eastern Hat & Cap Mfg. Co. (1909), 43 N.S.R. 432; Swmith v. Goldie (1882),
9 Can, B.C.R. 46; Dompierre v. Baril (1889), 18 Rev. Leg. 597; Wisner v
Coulthard (1893), 22 Can. 8.C.R. 178; Copeland-Chatterson v. Lyman Bros
(1907), 9 O.W.R. 908, 912; Yates v. Greal Western (1877), 2 A.R. (Ont.) 226;
Woodward v. Oke (1906), 17 O.W.R. 881; Toronto Telephone Mfg. Co. v. Bell
Telephone Co. of Canada (1885), 2 Can. Ex. 495; Robert Mitchell v. The
Handcock Inspirator Co. (1886), 2 Can. Ex. 539; Griffin v. Toronto Railway
(1902), 7 Can. Ex. 411; Mattice v. Brandon Machine Works Co., 17 Man
L.R. 105; Emery v. Hodge (1861), 11 U.C.C.P. 106; Summers v. Abell
(1869), 15 Gr. 532

For United States authorities see Gill v. Wells, 89 U.S. 1; Eleetric v. Hall,
114 US. 87; Prouty v. Ruggles, 16 Pet. 336; McCormick v. Talcolt, 20
How. 402; Vance v. Campbell, 1 Black 427; Dunbar v. Myers, 94 U.S. IK87;
San Francisco v. Keating, 68 Fed. 351; Hailes v. Van Wormer, 20 Wull 353;
Reckendorfer v. Faber, 192 U8, 347; American v. Helmstelter, 142 Fed. 9
National v. Aiken, 163 Fed.

Re McNAUGHT AND STOKES-STEPHEN OIL CO.

Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Harvey, C.J., Stuart, Beck and
Hyndman, JJ. October 17, 1918.

1. ARBITRATION (§ II—14)—WORK OF ARBITRATOR NECESSARILY TO BE DONE
AT CERTAIN PLACE—REMOVAL OF ARBITRATOR TO DISTANT PLACE—
IMPOSSIBILITY OF ACTING—APPOINTMENT OF NEW.,

When what has to be done by an arbitrator can only be done with
certain persons and almost necessarily must be done in a certain place,
his removal to a place 2,000 miles away with no expectation of returning
justifies the appointment of another arbitrator under s, 7 of the Arbi-
tration Act (c. 6, 1909, Alta.).

2. ArBrtraTION (§ IV—44)—Awarp—Ju
AWARD TO BE TREATED AS JUDGMENT—ARBITRATION ACT (ALTA.).

. 5. 13 of the Arbitration Act (c. 6, 1909, Alta.) does not authorise a
judge to direct cution, on an award, where the evident intention of
the arbitrators was not to determine how much was due but the basis
upon which the amount could be determined. All that the section
authorises is the granting of leave by a judge for the award to be treated
as a judgment for the purpose of enforcement.

JE DIRECTING EXECUTION ON—

ArpEAL by the oil company from an order made by Simmons,
J., for the enforcement of an award upon an arbitration. Judg-
ment varied.

Statement.
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A. H. Clarke, K.C., for respondent.

The judgment of the court was delivered by

Harvey, C.J.:—In February, 1915, the parties entered into an
agreement for the drilling by MeNaught of a well for the company
for the discovery of oil or gas.

The agreement provided for the submission to arbitrators of
any disputes that might arise, and disputes having arisen, Me-
Naught, on May 26, 1916, notified the company of the appoint-
ment by him of an arbitrator. By the terms of the submission
the other party was required to name an arbitrator within 5 days,
and the two so appointed were to appoint a third. Instead of
appointing an arbitrator, the company commenced an action on
May 30, and obtained an interim order restraining proceedings
for arbitration. They were unable, however, to have the injunc-
tion continued to the trial. The arbitrator appointed by
MecNaught having removed from Calgary to live in Buffalo he
notified the company that ‘“he being incapable of acting” a new
arbitrator had been appointed. The company then, while denying
that there was any dispute and claiming to act without prejudice,
appointed an arbitrator and notified McNaught. The two
appointed a third arbitrator and on June 28, notice was given of
the appointment and of a proposed meeting of the arbitrators for
10 A.m. on June 30. At the time and place named, counsel for
both parties met the arbitrators but the third arbitrator did not
appear. After some delay a telephone message was received
stating that he was unavoidably detained but would arrive as soon
as he could. All but Mr. Charman, solicitor for the company,
remained till his arrival. Mr. Charman, however, left a few
minutes before he arrived having before leaving protested against
being forced on without being given time that he considered
necessary to procure witnesses and having expressed his willing-
ness that there should be an adjournment until July 3, the inter-
vening days consisting of Sunday and a holiday, when, however,
he would ask for a further adjournment. MecNaught's solicitor,
apparently, was not willing, at that time, to consent to the further
adjournment.

After the third arbitrator appeared, an adjournment was made
to July 3, of which notice was sent to Mr. Charman, which notice,
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however, he did not receive till the morning of that day. The
company’s arbitrator also personally notified him and he states
that he then advised the arbitrator that he could not go on, which
is, however, not admitted.

The arbitrators convened and were attended by counsel for
MecNaught, but Mr. Charman, though present in the Court House,
when they met, did not appear at the meeting. The arbitrators
proceeded in his absence and took evidence, and on the following
day made their award, which was in favour of McNaught and
concurred in by all three arbitrators.

It declared that it was not economically practicable to complete
the well beyond its then depth and that the delay in arriving at a
decision was due to the company. It awarded and directed ‘that
the contractor is entitled to payment at the contract price for the
drilling to an estimated depth of 2,400 feet,” and directed that the
company pay McNaught his costs of the reference and the award.
No further action appears to have been taken until February 26,
1917, when the company commenced an action in court claiming
damages from McNaught for breach of contract. The defendant,
instead of entering a defence, applied under s. 5 of the Arbitration
Act for a stay of the action. The application was contested and
carried to the Supreme Court of (‘anada which, on March 25,
1918, gave judgment affirming the judgment of this court (34
D.L.R. 375, 12 A.L.R. 501) granting the stay. Thereafter, on
April 2, MeNaught gave notice that he would move for an order for
the enforcement of the award and that execution be issued for
§9,575 with interest from July 4, 1916, and the costs of the reference
and of the execution. The company, on April 17, gave notice of
motion to set aside the award. The two notices were heard
together by Simmons, J., who made the order now appealed from.

The two matters to be dealt with are provided for by s. 13
and sub-s. (2) of s. 12 of the Arbitration Act (c. 6 of 1909).

8. 13 provides that:—

An award on a submission may, by leave of the court or a judge, be enforced
in the same manner as a judgment or order to the same effect.

The other provision is as follows:—

Where an arbitrator or ire has mi ducted himself or an arbitration

P

s
+ oraward has been improperly procured the court may set the award aside.

It will be convenient to consider the company’s application
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ALTA.  first, for, if the award should be set aside, of course no order for its

8.C. enforcement should be made.
B The first ground of objection to the award is that McNaught
-\"'-\A'::)'““T had no right to name a new arbitrator because the first named
| Srokes-  was not, in fact, incapable of acting.
{ ":m"z‘:‘ 8. 7 provides that, if an arbitrator “ refuses to act or is incapable

)

s o of acting or dies” a new one may be appointed in his stead. It is

: contended that the mere removal of the first arbitrator to a place

2,000 miles away did not render him incapable of acting and in

support are cited ecases holding that removal did not render a

person incapable of exercising a power of appointment. It is, of

course, quite apparent that when what one has to do has no

relation to any other person or place, he may be just as capable of

doing it in one place as another, but when what is to be done can

) only be done with certain persons, and almost necessarily in a

certain place, a person who cannot be with those persons or in that

place is incapable of doing what has to be done.
I do not see how a person in Buffalo can be considered capabl

i of acting as an arbitrator in Calgary and there is nothing to
N suggest that there was any reason to expect him to return.

f The second objection is that there was no dispute or difference

‘1 to be arbitrated. In face of the proceedings that have been taken

t and of the appointment of an arbitrator by the company, I do not

f think this objection should be considered. The Chief Justice of

‘l Canada said, with reference to thisappointment: *‘Theappellants

i

appointed an arbitrator without prejudice, by which I can only
understand that they were willing to wait and see if the award
were in their favour and accept or refuse to be bound by it accord-
ingly. This, I think, is also a proceeding to be discouraged and
is an additional reason why I would dismiss the appeal.”

The third objection is that the submission is too general in
that it proposes to submit “all questions between the parties.”

[: " This objection, I think, should not be open here. It is only a !
."“;’- matter of giving notice to the other sidé, and if objection had been :
| {« taken before the arbitrators, they could have seen that the com-

il pany was not prejudiced.
b it | The fourth objection is that no sufficient notice of intention ﬂ

to proceed was given and that the company was not consulted
| and had no opportunity of being represented before the arbitrators = |
| when the day was fixed for proceeding.
|




rits

ght
ned

wble
tis
lace
lin
ra
i, of

no
e of
can
na
that

om-

ition
ilted
\tors

43 DLR.| Dominion Law Rerorts,

From the foregoing relation of the proceedings it appears that
the company’s solicitor knew of the meeting of the arbitrators but
that he ignored it entirely. Perhaps he did not intend any want

11

ALTA.

Re

of respect for them, but it is not surprising that counsel for Me- M"-\A' AT

Naught and the arbitrators should have supposed, as it isstated
they did, that Mr. Charman was remaining away not because he
had not had time to prepare his case but because he had no in-
tention of taking part in the arbitration and it is stated on oath
that if Mr. Charman had appeared and asked for time it would
have been granted and would not have been opposed. I do not
think the company has any cause for complaint on this score.

The fifth objection is one of bias on the part of the arbitrator
appointed by the company. It is true he did not make himself
a party to any obstruction of the proceedings of the arbitrators
and joined the other arbitrators in the award, but that is no
ground from which to infer bias. It is stated, however, that he
was interested in McNaught receiving some money from the com-
pany. The arbitrator was called as a witness and gave oral
testimony. He denied some of the allegations made against him
and stated that he disclosed to the manager of the company his
exact relation and the manager stated that there was no objection
whatever to his acting as arbitrator. The judge evidently accepted
the evidence of the arbitrator and refused to find any bias. 1
see no reason for disturbing his conclusion.

The sixth objection is “that the arbitrators never became
seized of jurisdiction on the subject matter of the arbitration
because neither at the time nor place fixed for the arbitration, nor
within a reasonable time thereafter, were the then arbitrators
present.” 1 think this objection hardly needs serious considera-
tion. The arbitrators did all meet on the first day, though there
was a delay of 2 hours before they were all together. They then
formally adjourned and met again at the time fixed for adjourn-
ment, of which all parties had notice and had the opportunity and
ability to be present. I can see no reason for considering that
they were not as fully seized of jurisdiction as they could be.

The last objection is that the award is beyond the powers of
the arbitrators, who were only required to determine the ““reason-

able impracticability” and have declared an “ economic impracti-
cability.”

STOKES-
STEPHEN
O Co,

Harvey, C J.
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AE‘_‘ In view of what I have concluded as to the manner of enforcing
8.C the award, this does not appear to me to be of any consequence.
e If the terms are intended to be synonymous, then the arbitrators
M"T::”G"T have only decided what they were intended to decide while, if not,

Srokes-  then they have not decided it at all and that can be well left to be

b(‘;':":"'_\ determined when proper steps are taken to have effect given to the
award. '
Harvey, C.J

1 think, therefore, the company’s substantive motion to set
aside the award was properly dismissed.

It is necessary then to consider the form of the order for the
enforcement of the award.

It is clear from s. 13 that the award can only be enforced, on
such an application as this, in the same manner as a judgment
or order to the same effect and one is at once faced with the ques-
tion how a judgment to the same effect as this award could be
| enforced. A judgment for the recovery of money is enforced by a
f writ of fieri facias. A judgment for possession by a writ or order

of possession, &c., according to the purpose of the judgment, but

ki I know of no summary process of enforcing a mere declaratory
f judgment. The rights which arise by virtue of the declaration,
if not given effect to, may require an action for their enforcement.
| In a great number, probably the large majority of actions brought
to recover money, there is no dispute as to the rights of the plain- |
\ tiff, but there is an unwillingness or inability on the part of the
defendant to give effect to them and a judgment has to be obtained.

| In the present case, at least, the primary dispute was as to what
McNaught's rights were. The recitals of the notice of appoint-

I
i
_ ment of an arbitrator by MecNaught indicate that the dispute was \
i whether it was reasonably practicable to drill to a further depth '
i with the same sized casing and as to the delay and neglect of the F
it company’s manager. The award finds that it is not economically f
it practicable to proceed further with the present diameter and that a
l; the company was to blame for the delay of its manager and awards ;
' payment for 2,400 ft. at the contract price. 1t says nothing about g .
! i ' the amount to which McNaught is thus entitled, apparently no p
il question of dispute being considered by the arbitrators as to the 8 .
i contract price or the amount paid on account. The amount for ‘} it
which McNaught asked and obtained leave to issue execution is . 4

[‘ ascertained as the affidavits shew by multiplying the depth of
i
i
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2,400 ft. by 13, $13 being the contract price per foot and deducting
$21,625 admitted to have been paid on account. It is apparent
at once that this is something quite outside ‘he terms of the award.
The arbitrators, apparently, did not intend to determine how much
McNaught was entitled to but merely the basis upon which the
amount could be determined. If the award were, in fact, a judg-
ment, it is difficult to see how an execution for any sum could be
issued upon it. To issue execution on a judgment, all that would
be necessary would be a prcipe to the clerk but it would be quite
impossible for the clerk to say from the terms of this award for
what sum McNaught might be entitled to execution. All s. 13
authorised is the granting of leave by a judge for the award to be
treated as a judgment for the purpose of enforcement. The
order appealed from goes much further and becomes, in effect, a
new judgment based upon the award with certain facts to which
to apply it.

In Re A Bankruptey Notice, [1907] 1 K.B. 478, it was held that
the section, which is in the exact terms of ours, gave no authority
to make the award a judgment even in the terms of the award.
Fletcher Moulton, L.J., at p. 482, says:-

It (the section) gives no power to turn such an award into a judgment.
It gives to the award the same status as a judgment for the purpose of en-
forcement but it leaves it what it was before, viz., an award.

I am of opinion, for the reasons stated, that there was no
jurisdiction to direct execution for the amount claimed to be due.
It may be that MeNaught would be entitled to an execution for
the amount of the costs which the arbitrators, in the exercise of
power given by the statute, ordered the company to pay, but the
most that the judge has jurisdiction to do is to give leave that the
award be enforced as a judgment, and then the party in whose
favour it is will have the same rights as to enforcement as if it were
a judgment.

The appeal on this branch of the case should, therefore, be
allowed, and the order should be amended so as to strike out the
provisions other than the granting of leave to enforce it as a judg-
ment or order. I see no reason, however, for interfering with the
judge’s disposition as to costs of either application which are in his
discretion under the Arbitration Act.

It was suggested that the award might be remitted, but 1 do
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not think that this should be done without the company being
given a proper opportunity to meet such an application. As
success is divided on the appeal I would give no costs of the appeal
to either party. Judgment varied.

BANK OF HAMILTON v. HARTNEY.

British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., and Martin, McPhillips
and Eberts, JJ.A. October 1, 1918.

Lanp miries (§ 111--33)
~LaAND ReGistration Acr (RB.B.C, e, 127, s,
Charges under s. 73 of the Land lhvmrumn \ql (I‘.)ll RS.B.C,
. 127) must be given priority according to date of registration not nl
execution. The section applies to priority between charges under a
judgment and under a mortgage.

~CHARGES —PRIORITY ACC mun\(. IU REGISTRATION

ArreaL by plaintiff from the judgment of Clement, J., in an
action to determine priorities of charges. Affirmed.

W. C. Brown, for appellant; G. E. Housser, for respondent.

MacponaLp, C.J.A.:—1 entirely agree with the trial judge and
with his reasons for judgment, and desire only to emphasise the
distinction between this case and Entunsle v. Lenz (1908), 14
B.C.R. 51; and Jellett v. Wilkie (1896), 26 Can. S.C.R. 282. In
each of these cases the contest was not between conflicting charges
but between a beneficial right to the fee as against a charge. It
is important to bear in mind, when considering questions affected
by the Land Registry Act of this province, that a clear line of
demareation has been drawn between ownership of the feeandof a
charge. 8. 73 of the Act gives priority to charges according to
date of registration, not of execution.

There is no question in this appeal of priorities between the
person to whom the property has been conveyed or assigned and
the person claiming a charge on the fee. In this case both parties
are chargees, the one under a judgment, the other under a mort-
gage. They, therefore, come within the precise and unambiguous

language of s. 73 and priority of registration must prevail.

I would, therefore, dismiss the appeal.

MarTIN, J.A., dismisses the appeal.

McPuiuies, J.A. (dissenting) :—With great respect to the
trial judge, I find myself entirely unable to accept the view arrived
at in the judgment under appeal, namely, that s. 78 of the Land
Registry Act (c. 127, RS.B.C.,

1911) is in itself conclusive of the

SR
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subject-matter of the action, and that that section is operative
to give priority of position to the respondents, i.e., that the judg-
ment creditors under the registered judgment have priority to the
admittedly prior mortgage but subsequently registered mortgage
of the judgment debtors to the appellant bank. The action
cannot be looked at as one only to settle priorities, it is one claiming
that the judgment constitutes a cloud on the title of the appellant
—a cloud upon the title to lands previously to the registration of
the judgment granted and conveyed by way of mortgage to the
appellant. It becomes necessary in the inquiry to consider what
the nature of the charge is when a judgnient is registered under
the provisions of the Land Registry Act. To determine this, we
turn to s. 27 of the Execution Act (¢. 79, RR.B.C., 1911) and
(8. 27 (1)) it will be seen that it is

from the time of registering the same, the said judgment shall form a lien and
churge on all the lands of the judgment debtor in the several land registry
districts in which such judgment is registered in the same manner as if charged
in writing by the judgment debtor under his hand and seal.

Now the judgment was registered on April 18, 1916, and the
mortgage was executed in the month of March, between the 10th
and 16th of March, 1916, as found by the trial judge, so that on
April 18, 1916, the judgment creditors could not then charge in
writing under their hands and seals lands already granted and
conveyed by way of mortgage to the appellant. See Jellett v.
Wilkie (1896), 26 Can. S.C.R. 282, Sir Henry Strong, C.J)., at
pp. 200-91; and Yoerkshire Guarantee and Securities Corp. v.
Edmonds (1900), 7 B.C.R. 348 (McColl, C.J., at pp. 351, 352).

Itis true that s. 73 (c. 127, R.8.B.C'., 1911) raises some difficulty
in applying the legal principles that govern in the matter, but
with close analysis it occurs to me the difficulty disappears. To
arrive at this conclusion, it is instructive to refer to the language
of Strong, C.J., in Jellett v. Wilkie, supra, upon the point of what
rights and remedies the judgment creditors really have. In that
particular case the Chief Justice, at p. 200, said:

According to the ordinary rules of courts of equity, the appellant could
have made his execution a charge on, and have sold for the satisfaction of his
judgment, just what beneficial interest the execution debtor had in these
lands and nothing more. And ‘this, which is said to be a “broad rule of
justice” and to depend, as is well pointed out by Wood, V.-C., in Benham v.
Keane, 1 J. & H. 685, 70 E.R. 919, 3 DeG. F. & J. 318, upon the obvious

distinetion between & purchaser who pays his money relying on getting the
specific land he buys and a ereditor who is in no such position, was from early
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times enforced by courts of equity in order to protect the title of equitable
owners and chargees. And it must have been the obvious right of the re-
spondents to have the benefit of this protection in the way in which the judg-
ment now impugned afforded it to them, unless the statute has abrogated the
principle.

Has 5. 73 (c. 127, R8.B.C., 1911) “abrogated the principle,”

4in fact, can it be said to be operative or effective at all in deter-
mining the question”? And it is to be remembered that the statute
was in like terms when Yorkshire Guarantee and Securities Corp. v.
Edmonds, supra, was decided. In my opinion, the whole statute
law has to be read together and s. 75 cannot be held to be appli-
cable; and to shew its inapplicability, it is only necessary to note
that the section is dealing with charges created independent of
statute, ‘‘the charges shall as between themselves have priority
according to the dates at which the applications respectively were
made and not according to the dates of the creation of the estates
or interests.”” Now, in the case of the judgment in question, the
obtaining of the judgment was not the creation of any estate or
interest. No estate or interest was created until the registration
was effected, and then by force of the statute (Execution Act,
¢.79,8.27 (1), R.S.B.C., 1911) the judgment constituted a charge
on the lands of the judgment creditors. But can it be said that a
charge was created on lands already conveyed away by way of
mortgage? To arrive at this conclusion one must be constrained
by intractable statute law, as it is in denial of all true principles
of law and of natural justice. See Lord Moulton in Loke Yew v.
Port Swettenham Rubber Co. Limited, [1913] A.C. 491, at 504, 505:—

lndead the du'.y of the court to rectify the register in proper cases is all
the more imp b of the absol of the effect of the registra-
tion if the register be not rectified. . . . The court can order him to do
his duty just as much in a country where registration is compulsory as in any
other country, and if that duty includes fresh entries in the register or the
correction of existing entries it can order the necessary acts to be done
accordingly.

The present case is not the case of a purchaser for value, and
not until registration is there a charge—no transfer of legal estate
in the lands is effectuated, as in the case of the mortgage to the
appellant; also see Lamont, J.A., in Boulter-Waugh & Co. v.
Phillips (1918), 42 D.L.R. 548, at 557 (Sask. Loun of Appeal) . —

The Land Titles Act provides that instr t d in respect of or

affecting the same lands -hall be entitled to priority “the one over the other
according to the time of registration and not according to the date of execution.
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It also provides that a trustee for the purposes of the Act shall be treated as
the beneficial owner. But that is for the purposes of the Act only. The Loke
Yew case, supra, shews clearly that the courts will enforce the obligations of
a trustee subject only to the rights of bond fide purchasers for value without
notice.

Proceeding from this premise it will be seen that in Yorkshire
v. Edmonds, supra, although legislation in similar terms to s. 73
of the Land Registry Act now relied on was existent, being s. 41
of the Land Registry Act then inforce (¢. 111, R.S.B.C., 1897)
and was pressed as being absolutely determinative of the point,
the exact point, arising upon this appeal, vet we find the Chief
Justice, that eminent judge, McColl, C'.J., refusing to give effect
to the contention in the following words, p. 351:

I have given repeated consideration to the arguments strongly pressed by
the bank founded upon the words of the sections of the Land Registry Act
applicable, but in my judgment the company must succeed on the short
ground that as the registration of the bank’s judgment admittedly did not
affect the company’s mortgage before its registration no question of priority
in the proper sense of the term could arise as between them

Here we have the same situation, and this decision of MeColl,
C)., was of the yvear 1900, and has remained unchallenged for now
18 years. Further, in the interint, we have had Entwisle v. Lenz,
14 B.C.R. 51, a decision of the then Full Court, to the same effect,
although it is to be noted that the section then standing similar
to 8. 73, being s. 53 of the Land Registry Act (¢. 23 of the Statutes
of B.C'., 1906), was apparently not referred to; and this fact gives
colour for what may be said to have been a well understood view
of the law since the decision in Yorkshire v. Edmonds, that the
point now so strongly pressed was untenable.  The head-note in
the Entwisle case, supra, in part reads as follows:

That the Judgments Act gives the judgment ereditor only a right to register
against the interest in lands possessed by the judgment debtor, and that in
this case the debtor having conveyed the land to plaintiff so long before the

execution creditor's judgment was obtained was a dry trustee of the land
for plaintiff.

The governing statute now as to the effect of a judgment when
registered is the Execution Act (e. 79, R.S.B.C., 1911), but the
statute law for all purposes in the consideration of this appeal is
the same as that under consideration in the Entwisle case.

Then, it may be said that, in the present action, it is not the
question of priorities in the books of the Land Registry. It may
well be that the registrar will be called upon to so state the priorities
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in giving out certificates as to the state of the title as
appearing upon the books. But there is no express legislation in
8. 73 giving any greater right to the judgment creditor than that
given under the provisions of the Execution Act. It is under the
provisions of the Execution Act that the judgment creditor must
assent and substantiate his right to a charge, and it is plainly
evident, unless s. 73 is conclusive upon the point, as held by the
trial judge, that the charge of the respondent is superseded by
that of the appellant (Yorkshire v. Edmonds and Entwisle v. Lenz,
supra).

In my opinion s. 73 is merely a provision for the guidance of
the registrar but cannot have the effect of destroying the title
of prior equitable owners. It cannot be thought, nor was it the
intention of the legislature to interfere in this way with the well
known ‘“‘broad rule of justice” (Strong, C.J., Jellett v. Wilkie,
26 Can. S.C.R., p. 200). Finally, that which fully sets the point
at issue at rest, in my opinion, is s. 34 of the Land Registry Act
(e. 127, RS.B.C., 1911), which is the enacting provision as to the
effect of the registration of a charge. That section reads as
follows:

34, The registered owner of u charge shall be deemed primd facie to be
entitled to the estate or interest in respect of which he is registered subject
only to such registered charges as appear existing in the register and to the
rights of the Crown and he shall be entitled to a certificate of the registration
of his charge without payment of any fee. (Amended 3 Geo. V. 1913, ¢. 36,
s 12)

It is plainly evident that the charge may be displaced upon
sufficient evidence, and the evidence in the present case is con-
clusive that the primd facie statutory charge has no place as
against the previously existing mortgage of the lands in question
to the appellant, i.e., the judgment upon registration then, and
then only, became a lien and charge (s. 73 Execution Act), but
that lien and charge could only, in the language of the Chief
Justice of British Columbia (Hunter, C.J.B.C., in the Entwisl
case), be upon ‘“those lands in which the judgment debtor has a

real or beneficial interest.” In the present case the judgment
debtors had, previous to the time of registration of the judgment,
granted and conveyed the lands by way of mortgage to the appel-
lant. It can only be as against that interest which remains in
the judgment debtors, the equitable right of redemption thereof




on in
| that
ir the
must
lainly
y the
d by
Lenz,

ice of
title
t the
well
ilkie,
point
r Act
o the
Is as

to be
ibject
o the
ration
c. 36,

upon
con-
‘e as
stion

and

but
“hief
wisle
1a8 a

nent
ient,
pel-
18 in
reof

43 D.LR.| Dominion Law Reports,

that the judgment has affected by way of lien and charge, and a
declaration of that interest could only be the decree of the court
upon proper proceedings being taken to enforce the charge created
by the registration of the judgment, under the provisions of the
Execution Act (¢. 79, 8. 27 et seq., R.S.B.C., 1911).

19
B. C.
C.A

Bank ok
Haminron

Hawrrsey,

In Howard v. Miller, [1915] A.C. 318, 22 D.L.R. 75, their y.ppiip, 1.4

lordships of the Privy Council had under consideration the Land
Registry Act (e. 23, B.C., 1906) which may be said in connection
with this appeal to be, in all its provisions, the same as the present
statute. Lord Parker, in delivering the judgment of their Lord-
ships, at p. 78, said:

The registered owner of a charge is to be deemed to be prima facie entitled
to the estate or interest in respeet of which he is registered, subject only to
such registered charges as appear existing thereon and to the rights of the
Crown (s. 29). The certificate of title is not conelusive but only primd facie
evidence of the title of the owner of a registered charge

The lien and charge, therefore, could only when registered afTect
that interest which the judgment debtors had in the lands, not
the interest shewn in the books of the Land Registry Office.  Note
what Hunter, C.1.B.C., said on this point in the Entwisle case,
at p. 54—

It will be observed that the language is “on all the lands of the judgment
debtor” and not on all the lands registered in the name of the judgment
debtor,

In this view of the matter, the further language of Lord Parker
at pp. 79-81, Howard v. Miller, supra, is apposite, as the judgment
we are considering may be rightly likened to the agreement under
consideration in that case.

It is, therefore, evident that it is for the court to say what the
lien or charge is and, at best, all the respondents can be said to be
entitled to by reason of the registration of the judgment is a
declaration of the (adopting the language of Lord Parker at p.
326, Howard v. Miller, supra) “‘interest commensurate with the
relief which equity would give by way of specific perforinance,”
and that interest could only be an interest subject to the prior
mortgage to the appellant. The appellant in this case is entitled,

_ in my opinion, to similar consequential relief as that granted in

the Miller case, and also to the declaration that notwithstanding

. the entry on the register, the appellant is entitled to be entered

thereon as having a lien and charge in respect of the mortgage in’
priority to the judgment of the respondents, the lien and charge of
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the respondents to be subject to the mortgage of the appellant.
That is that the registration of the judgment as it stands at present
is a cloud on the title of the appellant, and the appellant is entitled
to a declaration to that effect and that all proper amendments of
such registration be made by the registrar.

I am, therefore, of the opinion that the appeal should be
allowed.

EBErTs. J.A.. dismisses the appeal. , Appeal dismissed.

CANADIAN GENERAL SECURITIES Co. Ltd. v. GEORGE.

Ontario Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Mulock, C.J.Ex., Clute, Riddell,
Sutheriand and Kelly, JJ. March 25, 1918.

Coxrracrs (§ 1 D—170)—For SALE OF LAND —INDEPENDENT COLLATERAL
AGREEMENT —NOT NECESSARY, TO BE INCLUDED IN AGREEMENT FOR

+ ease of an agreement for the sale of land with an independent
| agreement for the resale of the lots, it is not necessary for the
| agreement to appear in the agreement for sale.  The collateral
agreement, being an agreement to sell land, not for the sale of land, is
not within the Statute of Frauds.

Arrean from the judgment of Masten, J.  Reversed in part.

W. J. McLarty for appellant.

(. G. S. Lindsey, K.C. for respondents.

The judgment of the Court was read by

RippeLy, J.:—This is an appeal from the decision of the
trial Judge, Mr. Justice Masten, in favour of the plaintiffs.

The plaintiffs’ claim is on a specially endorsed writ, for prin-
cipal, interest, and taxes due under an agreement made between
the defendant and the Port Weller Securities Corporation, and by
that company assigned to the plaintiff company. Most of the
facts of the case are sufficiently set out in the reasons for judgment
of my brother Masten.

The Port Weller Securities Corporation owned certain lots in
the township of Grantham, which it sold to the plaintiffs by an
agreement of the 13th December, 1913—the Port Weller Securities
Corporation allowing the plaintiffs to use its name in effecting
sales of the lots etec.; the plaintiffs appointed William T. Clancy
their “‘general manager to supervise the sale of the company’s
lots.” In the agreement between the plaintiffs and Clancy it was
expressed that he had no authority to make any representations as
to the company’s properties other than those contained in the com-
pany’s printed matter, and that he should have authority to accept
offers for the purchase of lots according to the company’s price-list.
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The plaintiffs, using the name “The Port Weller Securities
Corporation,” employed E. 8. George (the defendant’s cousin) to
sell their lots. Apparently there was a contest between the agents
of the plaintiffs for a $100 bonus. George in Toronto called up
the defendant (who lives in Port Elgin) by telephone and induced
him to buy two of the plaintiffs’ lots for $2,500, under the express
agreement that the company would resell these lots by the end
of June and not later than the 1st August, so that he would make
8100 on each lot—George informed the defendant that he was
authorised by the manager, Clancy, to make this arrangement.
Clancy was present with George in the Toronto office of the plain-
tiffs when this representation was made—George's account is as
follows:—

“Q. What passed between you and Mr. Clancy immediately
after the conversation was finished? A. When I hung up the
receiver Mr. Clancy was sitting back a little piece in the office.
He came in and said, ‘George, you should not have said that the
company will resell the lots.” I said, “Why? I understood the
company was to resell the lots.” And he said, ‘No, George, you
should not have said the company will resell the lots, because we
are selling lots, not reselling them.” I says, ‘I never knew that
before, I am glad you told me, because I have a couple of deals on
this way, and I will correct them, but, as far as Gus's arrangement
goes, it must stand; the others I will change and make sure that
the company is not bound by them.’

“Q. What else was said? A. I don't know just exactly how
he worded it afterwards, but it was really that there was no danger
about it anyway, that we would take care of them, that they would
be taken care of. The gist of it was, that it was allowed.”

Clancy was not called at the trial. On the hearing of the
appeal it was suggested to counsel for the plaintiffs that Clancy's
evidence should now be taken, but this suggestion was declined.
The learned trial Judge has found as a fact that the conversation
alleged did take place; and there can be no room for doubt that
Clancy by implication ratified the representations made in his
name and ostensibly by his authority.

George had already sent two blank agreements to the defend-
ant; and he asked him to sign these in blank and send them down
to Toronto: “If you will fill it in (i.e., sign) I will take care of it
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for you and see to it.” “I told him to sign these things in blank,
and I would fill them and see that they were filled up and handed

in.

The defendant signed the agreements in blank, and sent them
with the down-payment to George; George filled in the numbers
of the lots, added a seal, and handed in the documents to Clancy,
who affixed the name of the Port Weller Securities Corporation;
one duplicate was sent to and kept by the defendant. George
says concerning the undertaking to resell:

“It never occurred to me to put this in. I relied on what Mr.
Claney had done. If you will pardon me, I was green in the real
estate business. 1 knew nothing about it. I just filled in the
application, handed it in, and it never oceurred to me that what 1
guaranteed had anything to do with the application” (i.e., the
agreement).

George tried to sell the lots on several oceasions, and Claney
said, “We will speak to the rest of the agents and get them to
assist in the sale of this thing.” In June, in conversation with
Clancey, the defendant told Claney that he did not buy the lots to
hold for business purposes, but he had only taken them “because
Claney does not seem to

they were going to resell them for me.
have contradicted this statement. The efforts to sell the lots
failed: the Great War came on, and “it was impossible to get any
person to look at them.”

The defendant went on paying money to the plaintiffs till June,
1917; in July, 1917, the plaintiffs sent him an account shewing a
balance of $2,235.35 owing: the defendant paid $25, and then
ceased paying. On the 5th September, the plaintiffs took a
formal assignment from the Port Weller Securities Corporation (as
the agreement had been made in the name of that corporation),
and launched this action.

It seems to me that we have here the case of a sale of land
with an independent collateral agreement, not unlike such cases
as De Lassalle v. Guildford, [1901] 2 K.B. 215 (C.A.), and others
mentioned in the notes to Halsbury's Laws of England, vol. 7,
p. 528, para. 1058. There is no necessity for such a contract to
appear in the agreement for sale. It is, however, objected that
there was no authority in George to make such a contract; but
that is answered by Claney’s ratification. Claney being made
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general manager to sell the plaintiffs’ land, the secret restriction of
his authority (if there was such) would not affect the defendant,
who relied upon Claney being the general manager: McKnight
Construction Co. v. Vansickler, 51 S.C.R. 374, 24 D.L.R. 298;
Vansickler v. McKnight Construction Co. (1914), 31 O.L.R. 531,
19 D.L.R. 505; Clarke v. Latham, 25 D.L.R. 751, and cases cited.
It is impossible, I think, to hold that the general manager of a
company has not the power to make such a contract for his
company as is here disclosed.

Then the Statute of Frauds, sec. 4 (sec. 5 of our statute), is set
But the contract is not one of sale of land but
a contract to sell land, and that is not within the statute—20 Cye.,

up as an answer,

cases mentioned in notes 34 and 35 on pp. 234 and 235—just as
there is no need of a writing to appoint an agent to sell lands
Fry on Specific Performance, 5th ed., p. 269, para. 526, and cases
wentioned in notes 4 and 5.

If it should be considered that such an agreement is within
the statute, another principle may be appealed to:—

“If one be induced to sign a written contract for the
purchase of land on the faith of . . . the performance of some
collateral stipulation, oral evidence of the stipulation so
agreed upon will not be excluded by reason of the statute:”
Williams on Vendor and Purchaser, 2nd ed., vol. 1, p. 12, and see
cases in note (m)—¢f. Dart on Vendor and Purchaser, 7th ed..
vol. 1, p. 224. And the party making the collateral promise will
not be allowed to enforce the promises made to him in the con-
tract for purchase without being bound by his own promise:
Pember v. Mathers (1779), 1 Bro. C.C. 52, 2 Dick. 550; Pearson
v. Pearson (1884), 27 Ch. D. 145, 148.

Nor do I think any difficulty arises from the circumstance
that George was in a sense acting for the defendant, when he was
acting for the plaintiffs in filling in the blanks in the agreement.
Either it was intended that the contract to resell should appear
in the agreement, or it was not—if not, cadit quastio: if it was, it
was left out by mistake.

Moreover, to allow the plaintiffs to take advantage of the
omission would be a gross fraud.

For these reasons, I think the contract to sell for the defendant
was binding on the plaintiffs.
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It is, however, argued that the defendant, by paying on the
agreement after there was a breach of the contract to resell by the
1st August, has put it out of his power to enforce the contract
made with him.

Were the agreement on his part to pay the price of the land to
the plaintiffs and theirs to resell the land for him dependent, there
would be much force in this argument.

But Neveren v. Wright (1917), 39 O.L.R. 397, 36 D.L.R. 734,
and the cases there cited, shew that they cannot be considered
dependent. The case is that there were two independent promises,
each of which could be enforced by the promisee without reference
to his own promise. The payments by the defendant may well be
considered an acknowledgment of his liability to pay, but they are
in no sense a waiver of his right to enforce the contract with him.

I think the case must be treated as though in the agreement
for purchase there had been an express covenant by the plaintiffs
to resell the land for the defendant on or before the 1st August,
1914, so as to realise for the defendant a profit of $100 on each lot.

The appeal should be allowed so far as the claim for damages
for breach of the agreement to resell the lots is concerned; and, if
the parties cannot agree, it should be referred to the Master to
determine these damages—the judgment in favour of the plaintiffs
should stand, but the damages above mentioned (if any) should
be set off. Success being divided, there should be no costs of
action or appeal—if a reference should be necessary, the Master
should dispose of the costs thereof.

It will be seen that I propose to deal with the case as though
the collateral agreement had been pleaded as a counterclaim; in
case the matter goes further, it may be thought advisable to change
the pleadings accordingly—leave should be given for that purpose.

The damages to be found by the Master will, of course, be the
difference between the amount the defendant should have received
for the lots had the plaintiffs carried out their contract (viz., the
purchase-price and $200 added), undithe value of the lots.

Appeal allowed in part.
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MURPHY v. McMILLAN.

New Brunswick Supreme Court, Appeal Division, Hazen, C.J., White and
Grimmer, JJ. September 20, 1918.

1. Acrion (§1 A—4) NOTICE OF—SUFFICIENCY OF NOTICE—MUNICIPALITIES
Acr, )

A Iom-r giving notice of action required by s. 104 of ¢. 165 (C.8.N.B,,
1903) is sufficient, although only the signature of the solicitor, \\11 hout
any addition, appears at the end of the notice. 1f such solicitor’s name
appears on the le"n-rhp ading as attorney and counsellor-at-law, and the
notice states that he will bring action “at the suit of” the plaintiff,
naming her, the fact that the plaintiff threatened an action “for trespass”
and in fact brought an action for trover is immaterial if the notice gave
the defendant a clear idea of the grounds upon which the action would
be brought and the reason therefor.

2. Arrmavits (§ I—5)—Or pEBr—TAkEN our or NEw Brusnswick
RequisiTes—CoMmissioNERS FOR TAKING AFFIDAVITS OUT OF THE
Province Acr.

The aut hurn\ for taking an affidavit of debt out of New Brunswick
for use in N.B. is found in ¢. 62, C.8.N.B., 1903, s. 3, which provides that
when any person shall take any oath under said section his act shall be
certified or authenticated in the same manner and with the same formality
in all respects as though such act were the taking by him of the proof or
acknowledgment of a conveyance. A jurat, ns follows: “Sworn to at
the City of Toronto in the County of York in the Province of Ontario

this day before me. , & Notary Public in and
for the Province of Ontario, does not comply with the requirements of
this statute.

AprEaL from a judgment of McLatehy, J., Judge of the Resti-
gouche County Court, directing a verdict to be entered for the
plaintiff in an m~lion of trover. Affirmed.

Hazen, C. ~This case was tried before the Judge of the
Restigouche C uunl} Court in March, 1917, with a jury, and a
verdiet was found in favour of the plaintiff for $50.

T. F. Bowser and Co., Inc., having obtained a judgment
against the plaintiff, Matilda Murphy, before W. Alder Trueman,
who is a stipendiary or police magistrate in and for the County of
Restigouche, with civil jurisdiction within the Parish of Addington
Civil Court, an execution was issued and sent to the defendant, a
constable for the county, who thereupon seized certain goods and
chattels of the plaintiff and sold the same, the proceeds of the sale
amounting to $21.70.

The plaintifi brought this action, which is one of trover,
alleging that the defendant took and carried away certain of her
goods and chattels of the value of $80, and converted and disposed
of the same to his own use, while the defendant, in his statement
of defence, sets out the execution issued out of the stipendiary’s
court as aforesaid, and claims that the goods were seized and sold

Statement.

Hazen, C.J.
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by him acting under and by virtue thereof, and that the proceeds
of the sale were forwarded by him to the said Trueman.

The Attorney-General, who appeared for the plaintiff, contended
that under the provisions of C.8.N.B. (1903), ¢. 122, 5. 21, the
magistrate had no jurisdiction to enter up judgment, as no bond
for security for costs was given, and if the plaintiff resided outside
the provinee such bond would be necessary before the magistrate
could aequire jurisdiction. The same question arose in Massey-
Harris Co., Lid. v. Stairs (1899), 34 N.B.R. 595, it being held that
the omission to give security for costs did not relieve the magistrate
of jurisdiction to try the case; it was further held by Barker, J.,
that the defendant by not demanding the security at the trial
waived the benefit of the Act.

Before the County Court Judge, on the return of the suninons
taken out by the defendant’s solicitor to set aside the verdict in
favour of the plaintiff, the point was taken that the notice of
action to the defendant required by s. 104 of e. 165, CS.N.B.
(1903), was not sufficient. The section provides that no action
shall be brought against any person for anything done by virtue
of an offence held under any of the provisions of the chapter,
unless within three months after the act committed, and upon
one month's previous notice thereof in writing.

The defendant seized and took away the plaintifi's goods on
February 18, 1916. The notice was given on the 22nd of the
same month, and the suit was commenced on April 1 following.
There can be no objection, therefore, so far as the times of giving
the notice and the commencement of the suit are concerned. The
question is with regard to the notice itself.

The notice wa: given by plaintifi's attorney, James P. Byrne,
and informed the defendant that he would bring an action against
him at the suit of Matilda Murphy for seizing and carrying away
the property which he had seized, and that, unless he returned it,
he would bring an action against him for trespass. It concluded:
“This is a notice of action to you—Yours truly, J. P. Byrne.”
The paper on which the notice was written hore the following
letter-head, “*James P. Byrne, LL.B., Attorney and Counsellor in
Equity, Bathurst, N.B.”

As I understand it, there are two objections to the notice. The
first is that the signature of J. P. Byrne without any addition was
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not a sufficient notice by the plaintiff. As, however, the name of
Mr. Byrne as attorney and counsellor-at-law was on the letter-
head, and as he gave notice that he would bring an action “‘at the
suit of Matilda Murphy,” this objection is not well taken.

The second objection arises because the plaintiff threatened an
action “for trespass’’ and in fact brought an action for “‘trover.”
The notice, however, must have given the defendant a perfectly
clear idea of the grounds upon which the action would be brought,
and the reason therefor. It stated that it would be brought against
him for seizing and carrying away certain property, naming it in
detail and forbidding him from selling the same. In it Mr. Byrne
further stated, on behalf of the plaintiff, that he understood de-
fendant claimed he seized under an execution, but that Mrs.
Murphy had no knowledge of any judgment against her, and was
never served with process, and advised defendant before selling to
obtain a bond of indemnity. There could be no misunderstanding
of the meaning of this notice; it gave the defendant all the in-
formation that would enable him to appreciate the reason and cause
of the action, and is in compliance with the statute, so that the
defendant must also fail on this ground.

The judge who tried the cause was of the opinion that the
defendant should have pleaded want of notice, and quoted vol. 1
Hals., p. 26, and vol. 23 Hals., p. 350, in support of this view.
The want of notice was not pleaded and no objection was taken
to it on the trial, it being raised for the first time on the return
of the summons before the County Court Judge. 1 agree with the
judgment appealed from in this respect.

Another question is with regard to the decision of the County
Court Judge in holding that the judgment of T. F. Bowser Co.
against Matilda Murphy, the respondent herein, in the Stipen-
diary or Police Magistrate's Court in and for the County of Resti-
gouche, was void because the affidavit of debt was defective.
The authority for taking affidavits out of the province is found
in ¢. 62, C.S.N.B. (1903), s. 3, and provides that when any person
shall take any oath under said section his act shall be certified or
authenticated in the same manner and with the same formality
in all respects as though such act were the taking by him of
the proof or acknowledgement of a convevance. The affidavit,
in this case, was taken at Toronto, in the Province of Ontario,
before a notary public. The jurat was as follows:—

Murrny
MeMiLLax.

Hazen, CJ
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N. B. Sworn to at the City of Toronto in the County of York in the Province of
;(* Ontario, this 23rd day of December, A.D. 1916, before me.
gt H. F. Parkinsox, a notary public in and for the Province of Ontario. Si
Murrny L. 8. (Signed) J. H. Green.

This does not comply with the requirements of the statute,

Mrl\nm.AN. 2 -
for it cannot be argued that the act of the notary public who

Hazen, C.J.

administered the oath was certified or authenticated in the same b
manner and with the same formality as though he had taken &
proof or acknowledgement of a conveyance. The appellant relied o
on Hess v. Lawrence (1891), 30 N.B.R. 427, but in that case the la
certificate was entirely different, and the court held that as it
substantially followed the forms used in practice for many years o
it would not say that it was insufficient. of
I agree with McLatchy, J.'s, judgment, that the affidavit was pi
insufficient, and, therefore, the judgment against the respondent ar
in the stipendiary’s court was improperly signed, and, in con- 88
! sequence, the execution issued thereon and upon which the appel- m
lant relied was invalid. Appeal dismissed with costs.
White, J Warre, J (oral):—While I agree with the conclusion reached tl
by the Chief Justice, I think it well, in order that this case may C
not be cited as a precedent for something it was not intended to S
| doeide, to point out that both sides seem to have assumed that the w
| defect in the affidavit was such that the execution, even though ei
i regular upon its face, would afford no protection to the constable, H
owing to want of jurisdiction on the part of the magistrate. I §  es
! may say that matter was not argued here, and I do not want to be g p
| taken as having decided in favour of that view. We simply have E o
) disposed of the questions that were raised before us. . sn
1 Grimmer, J, (GRIMMER, J., agrees with Hazen, C.J. Appeal dismissed. 3 pe

ONT. YOST v. INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES Co. Ltd. and MacPHERSON.
DANNECKER v, INTI“A‘I}ONAL SECURITIES Co. Ltd. and
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Ontario Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Madann Magee, Hodgins
and men, JJ.A. April 2, 1918.
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MISREPRESENTATION—DAMAGES—RESCISSION OF CONTRACT.
nt for the sale of land who without knowledlx or jumﬁmuon
mnke- statements in regard to the land and thereby induces a sale

urchasers who rely on such mptuentluom is liable in damages for
:uc to the E:ld on the contracts of purchase

are entitled to have

inst the vendor
the oom.ncu rescinded.
[Derry v. Peek (1889), 14 App. Cas. 337, followed.)
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ArreaL by defendant MacPherson from the judgment of
Sutherland, J. Affirmed.

The judgment appealed from is as follows:

SuTHERLAND, J.:—By consent these actions were tried to-
gether, the evidence taken in each case, so far as possible, to
be applicable to both. The actions were commenced by writs of
summons issued on the 11th January, 1915. The defendant
company did not appear, though duly served with the writ and
later with notice of assessment of damages.

The actions first came on for trial on the 4th May, 1915,
before the late Chancellor, who directed judgment in the Yost
case to be entered for the plaintiff as against the defendant com-
pany for payment of $1,100 and interest from dates of payment
and costs of action, and for the plaintiff Dannecker against the
said defendant company for $834 and interest from dates of pay-
ment and costs of action.

The plaintifis having applied to the Chancellor to postpone
the trials of the actions as against the defendant MacPherson, the
Chancellor endorsed on the records the judgments against the
company as already indicated, with this addition in each case:
“This without prejudice to further prosecution of action against
either defendant.”

In and prior to the year 1913, the defendant company, a real
estate ageney, with head office in the city of Winnipeg, in the
Province of Manitoba, and claiming to be the owners of certain
lots in the town of Canora, in the Provinee of Saskatchewan, a
small town with glowing expectations in the opinion of some
people, and particularly of real estate agents, had appointed a

firm of real estate agents doing business in the city of Toronto,

as Spicer Graham & Company, to sell some of these lots for them.

On or before the 16th April, 1913, one Sweet, a real estate
agent, and Spicer, one of the firm just mentioned, went to Strat-
ford and met the defendant MacPherson, a financial agent and
man of affairs there, and a fellow-townsman of and well and
favourably known to the plaintifis. They enlisted the co-opera-
tion and assistance of MacPherson in connection with the pro-
posed sales of the lots. It is said that Spicer Graham & Company
were to get a commission of 16 per cent. on sales made by them
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for the defendant company, and that the arrangement arrived at
between Spicer and Sweet and MacPherson was that, for the
latter’s assistance in introducing likely purchasers and furthering
. the sales to them, he was to get 20 per cent. commission thereon,
i wamonaL out of which he was to pay 2 per cent. to Sweet, and also any
s"’"c:'_"" expenses incurred in connection with the sales. Part of the

Lmrep  arrangement was also that he should take over any lots or stock

o A o e ki i

AND g :

Wl Mac- in any company, received as part payment on the sale of lots. :

L Panssox, Some sales were made in or in the vicinity of Stratford before "
it Dannecker the last-named date, as a result of which the defendant Mac-
i Inten.  Pherson earned and received commissions. g
it NATIONAL The plaintiff Dannecker is a baker and confectioner, doing a ;
! SecuriTIES 4 " 2 :
ffe Co. good business at and around Stratford, and with some experience g ¢
e | LnTed iy the purchase and sale of real estate.

-4 Mac- The plaintiff Yost is a carriage-builder and blacksmith, and «

W——— apparently a shrewd and intelligent man. He had previously

i
-~

T

I been a purchaser of western lands. It is apparent from the evi- C
dence that they knew the lots were of a speculative value, and ’ a

were dealing on the basis of their expectation of a rapid rise in a

their value. 4 f:

Dannecker says that on or about the 15th April, 1913, Sweet, .t

whom he had not known before, called at his place of business ; I

with the defendant MacPherson, and the latter introduced him 3 C

as representing the defendant company in selling lots in Canora. n

He says that a map was shewn, and the lots pointed out as cen-
trally located, of good value, high and dry, and that the town F
was a thriving town and going ahead. He says that MacPherson
mentioned that he had been to see him once before with lots to sell
in another place, which lots had meantime increased in value, and
that these lots were even better. He says also that MacPherson
said he had been through the Canora district, and that the lots v

were high and dry. He says further that, while he saw the map, )
no copy of it was left with him. He also says that both stated w
that the title was good and direct from the “Government.” It v

re

was arranged that Sweet was to call next day, and he did. Dan-
necker had concluded from the representations made that the
lots would be a good investment at the prices mentioned. Sweet p
called next day and made a sale of four lots for $1,000. The
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plaintiff paid to him $500 on account, receiving a receipt as follows :—
“ Agent’s Receipt.

“Formal receipts will be issued by the company immediately
the order is entered.

“Stratford, April 16, 1913.
“Lots 5, 6, 7, & 8, block 79.
“Property Canora, Sask.

“Received of Conrad Dannecker, Esq., the sum of five hundred
dollars being one-half payment on above.

“J. E. Sweet, Agent.”
4 $500.00.

“Make all future remittances direct to International Securities
Co. Ltd.”

Dannecker later received a letter, dated the 23rd April, 1913,
on paper having in large print at the top “International Securities
Company Limited,” and in similar print lower down “Spicer
Graham & Company, Mgrs.,” acknowledging receipt of the $500
as the first payment on the lots in question purchased from Sweet,
and stating: “The official receipt and contract will be forwarded
from the head office in due course.”” The formal agreement, dated
the 10th June, 1913, was enclosed to the plaintiff Dannecker in a
letter bearing date the 11th June. In this agreement Spicer
Graham & Company appear as vendor and the plaintiff Dan-
necker as purchaser; it contains the statement, “All payments
to be made at the office of the vendor in the city of Toronto in the
Province of Ontario;” and it contains a covenant on the part of
the purchaser that he will pay the remaining instalments, namel§,
$166.65, on the 1st November, 1913, and a like amount on the
Ist February and the 1st May, 1914.

The document also contains an agreement on the part of the
vendor to convey to the purchaser by transfer “under the Torrens
«ystem or under the Land Titles Act, whichever the case may be,
without covenants other than against incumbrances by the
vendor,” and contains also a clause that “time shall in every
respect be of the essence of this agreement.” The document is
under seal and signed as follows, “International Securities Com-
pany Limited” (apparently stamped on with a rubber stamp),
below which appears in printing “Spicer Graham & Company,”

31

ONT.

8O
Yosr
v,
INTER-
NATIONAL
SecuriTiEs

Co.
Limiten

AND

Mac-
PHERSON.

DANNECKER
v.
INTER-

NATIONAL
SecuriTiEs

Mac-
PHERSON,




m"l 32 DomiNioN Law REPORTS, 43 D.LR.
&

{14
i o ONT.  ynderneath which is the signature “W. C. Graham, Sec.-Treas.”

bt 8.C.  The plaintiff Dannecker also signed copies, returning one to 5 8
2" Yost  Spicer Graham & Co. ] o
! f. ln:i- The plaintiff Yost says that on the evening of the 13th April, f
:1 g 3 snnonu. 1913, Sweet and MacPherson called at his house, and the latter !’ a

} " *CCa ™ introduced the former as representing the defendant company of {
1 | Loater  Winnipeg. He says that both did a good deal of talking, that a B w
(e ﬁ’:‘c' map was got out shewing the town of Canora, that they repre- e
PrERSON.  conted it to be a rapidly growing town with seven mills in it, o
Dannecker three elevators, a railway centre; pointed out the post-office, and e
Inten-  that the lots were three blocks from it, represented the lots as  hs
8"::;‘::,::- cheap lots, a cheap buy and worth more money than they were ! sh
Co. offering them at; that if he did not take them he would lose his wi
L':,";'D chance, as the town was rapidly growing; that the lots were B

P-h::.c‘-m “central lots in the centre of the town.” They represented to é
him that he would get a Government title. He says that that  th
evening he was induced to sign “a little agreement or paper H
written out by Sweet,” and taken away by him, by which he -
(Yost) was to buy three lots at $1,100. No money was paid. He th
says that next morning they came to hisshop; and, having consid- alc
ered the matter overnight, he told them the deal was off, as made th
against his will, and that he threw it up. He says that they co'
began to talk again, the defendant MacPherson being the principal he
speaker, and stated that the place was rapidly growing, that he for
(Yost) would miss his chance and never get such a chance again. if |
He says that finally he was out-talked, went to the bank with if |
them, drew $550, paid it to Sweet in the defendant MacPherson's Pa
presence, and got a receipt as follows:— me
““Agent’s Receipt. “

“Formal receipt will be issued by the company immediately
the order is entered. Ca
“Stratford, April 28th, 1913. in
“Property Canora, Sask. “Lots 13, 20, 21, block 75. Sw
“Received of Henry Yost, Esq., the sum of five hundred and

fifty dollars being one-half payment on above. me
“$550.00, J. E. Sweet, Agent. to

“Make all future remittances direct to International Securities
Co. Ltd.”
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z Later he received a letter, dated the 30th April, 1913, from
; Spicer Graham & Company, similar to the one sent to Dannecker,
and later a letter, dated the 11th June, similar to the one also sent
to Dannecker, and enclosing an agreement similar in form for
. execution.

On the 28th July, 1913, and the 31st July, 1913, letters were
written from Winnipeg to the plaintifis Dannecker and Yost
respectively, by one A. E. Reid, and received by them in due
course of mail, notifying them that their respective agreements of
sale, “issued by Messrs. Spicer Graham & Company of Toronto,”
had been assigned to him, and intimating that future payments
should be sent to him at 845 Somerset Building, Winnipeg. It
was said that Reid was an employee of the defendant company,
and the letters were written on their paper.

Sweet was not called as a witness at the trial. The account of
the defendant MacPherson as to what took place is as follows:
He admits going with Sweet to Dannecker’s, and that a map and
some literature were produced, shewn, and discussed. He says

. that he himself told Dannecker that large towns had grown up
~ along the lines of the Canadian Pacific Railway, and the same
* thing would probably occur as to the Grand Trunk Pacific, the
5 country being better, if anything, along that line. He says that
~ he had driven through that part of the country in 1906, and
3} formed that impression. He says that he said to Dannecker that
 if he wished to speculate in town-sites the chances were as good,
= if not better, than they had been along the line of the Canadian

. Pacific Railway. He says that Sweet said there would be a Govern-

' ment title; and, upon hearing him make that statement, he said,
' “That means a Torrens title.”

He denies that he said the lands were high and dry, or that
Canora was thriving, or that the property was increasing rapidly
in value. He adds that there was a long talk between Dannecker,
Sweet, and himself, and that Sweet was a vigorous salesman.

As to Yost, MacPherson’s story is, that he made an appoint-
ment with him in the latter's shop, that he and Sweet would go
to his house in the evening, and they went. He admits that he
said to Yost that these lots would be better speculation than lots
in the town of Saskatoon, and said this because he understood
3—43 p.Lr.
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that he had bought lots there at a pretty high figure. He says
that again the question of title came up, and that Sweet stated
that the title would be from the Government, but added that that
would be a Torrens title. He says, with reference to the location
of the lots, that they were pointed out on the map, and their loca-
tion indicated as compared to the post-office and the like—that

‘this was done by Sweet. He says he does not think it was said

that the lots were worth more than the price they were being
offered at for sale. He said he did not say it at all events. He
thinks that Sweet said Canora was growing rapidly by reason of
the two railways and the good country around it. He says that
Yost consulted his wife and daughter, who were present, and that
the latter urged him to buy. Thereupon he signed the memoran-
dum or receipt already referred to. He says that next morning
when he saw them, he intimated that the deal was off and very
distinctly and definitely refused to carry it out. He said that he
himself then said to Sweet, “We had better leave,” and he him-
self did leave. He says that Sweet remained, and he had nothing
more to do with the matter afterwards. As a matter of fact, tax
notices were sent to him, indicating apparently that he was
assessed as owner.
A document was, however, produced at the trial and admitted
to have been signed by him, as follows:—
“ Application for Purchase of Lots.
“International Securities Co. Ltd.,
“Somerset Building, Winnipeg, Manitoba.
“Date April 14th, 1913.

“I hereby make application to purchase the

within described lots.
“Property “In the event of the above lots being sold, I
“Canora, Sask.  authorise you to seleet for me the best of the
“Lots 5, 6, 7, 8, lots remaining unsold nearest to those which I

have selected, and at the same price.

“Block 79, “It is understood that the title to these lot ;
“Price $800. must be by good and valid deed and that nointer- -

est will be charged on deferred payments.

“Payment $300. “On receipt of my application you will

“Cheque please make out and forward to me your formal
“Currency ‘Agreement for Sale’ which T will sign and
“Money order  return.

SEQESseEEsEeR Y arazw
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“I agree to purchase the above described
lots with the understanding that while the com-
pany guarantees the correctness in all material

“Terms particulars of its advertising matter as to the
“Bal. 6,9& said lots, it is not bound by the representations
12 months. of its sales-agents if other or different state-
ments or representations are made than those

contained in its printed matter.

“It is important that full name and occu-
pation be given.

“Occupation, Finanecial
Agent. A. J. MacPherson,
“Purchaser.
“Witness, J. E. Sweet,
‘““ Agent,
“P.0. Address, Stratford, Ont.
“Total value of lots to be purchased under this
application £800.00.”

A similar document bearing date the 28th April, 1913, referring
to the Yost lots, and signed by the defendant MacPherson, was
also produced. His explanation as to how he came to sign these
papers is as follows. Sweet and Spicer, he says, came to him
some time before the sales to Dannecker and Yost, and stated that
the defendant company had objected to the way the sales of lots
had been made in the town of Biggar, and wanted the sales in
Canora put through in the name of a third person, as they sus-
pected that the Toronto agents were getting more commission
than they should, and therefore wanted the sales to be shewn as
going through the name of a third person. He said he had done
this in the case of some previous sales for them; and, without
much thought, signed these applications with respect to the lots
in question. He was not able to give any satisfactory explanation
as to why he did it. He says that agreements were actually issued
to him which he got about a month later, and that he then assigned
them over to Spicer Graham & Company. MacPherson received
his commissions on the sales in question from or through Spicer
Graham & Company. He says that Spicer Graham & Company
intended to put the sales through with the defendant company
on the basis of his agreement with them. He says, however, that
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they intended to provide for his commission in this way. His com-
B.C. mission on the Yost deal, on the basis of 20 per cent., would be
Yosr  $220. In his own ledger he gives credit for this commission at
lx;'n— $225, apparently for his own commission on this sale. He admits
wamionar  that personally he did not know the value of lots being sold to the
plaintiffs, and that he took an active part in introducing Sweet to
Loarep  them and promoting the sale.
Mac- On the 20th October, 1913, the plaintiff Yost wrote to the
- defendant company, and in reply received a letter, dated at
Dannecker Toronto, informing him that future payments should be made to
Inten- A E. Reid, “as he holds the agreement of sale. You may send
NATIONAL  him n' 'money order or cheque and he will send you a receipt for

Co. same.

The plaintiff Yost completed his payments, sending the last
Mac-  instalment of $275 on the 1st May, 1914, to Reid, and asking for
his ¢ rveyance. On the 5th May, 1914, Reid replied stating:
“Ow'r 4 to different transfers having to be executed, there may
be some delay in finally getting out your papers.”

It appears that the title never was in the defendant company,
but stood in the name of one Andrews in trust. When the plain-
tiffs began, in the summer of 1914, to communicate directly with
the defendant company at Winnipeg, as to the title, they were
told by the company that they, the plaintiffs, had never been
heard of by the defendant company there in connection with the
lots in question. The company repudiated its alleged signatures
to the agreements held by the plaintiffs, intimating that Mae-
Pherson was the purchaser from the company and was still owing
$800 on the lots.

The plaintiffs had made all their payments when they learned
that the defendant company was taking this position. Thereupon
the plaintiffs employed solicitors and endeavoured to get the title
from the defendant company or some satisfaction, failing which
they brought these actions. In each case they allege that they
were induced to purchase the lots in question through the fraud
and misrepresentation of the defendant MacPherson and Sweet,
an agent of the defendant company.

The specific allegations of fraud are set out in paragraph (6)
of the statements of claim, which in each case is as follows:—

“The plaintiff alleges that he was induced to buy said lots by
the defendant MacPherson and said J. R. Sweet falsely and
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fraudulently stating and misrepresenting to him that the defend-
ants the International Securities Company Limited were at that
time the owners of the said lots, and that his title to the same
would come direct to him from the Government, when the fact
was that the defendant MacPherson was the owner of said lots at
the time of the sale to the plaintiff, he having previous to that
time purchased the same from the defendant company; that the
said lots were high and dry, and were close to the centre of the
town, and were worth much more than he was paying for them,
and that the town of Canora was a thriving town, increasing
rapidly in value, all of which statements were untrue; and that
he is entitled to a rescission of the contract for the purchase of the
said lots and to repayment of his money and damages for fraud
and misrepresentation.”

And the plaintiffs ask from the defendants in each case: (1)
repayment of the purchase-money and interest; (2) a rescission
of the contract and repayment of the money and interest; and
(3) damages for fraud.

The defendant MacPherson in his statement of defence denies
that he made any false or fraudulent misrepresentations. He
further denies that he ever acted as agent for the defendant com-
pany, or that the lots in question were transferred to or purchased
by him on the 1st November, 1913. Why this date is mentioned,
I am unable to say.

It is clear that the defendant MacPherson knew that the de-
fendant company, as alleged principals of Spicer Graham & Com-
pany, with whom he associated himself for the purpose of making
sales of the lots in question, were prepared to sell the said lots,
not at the prices named in the agreements with the plaintiffs, but
at prices much less, namely, the prices mentioned in the applica-
tions to purchase, signed by himself.

Ordinarily, and in default of any different arrangements made
with proposed purchasers, agents receive their commissions from
their principals, and based upon and usually out of the price fixed
as between such principals and purchasers. 1In the first place,
therefore, Spicer and Graham would be entitled to their 16 per
cent., a fairly high commission in itself. It seems apparent that
Spicer Graham & Company and the-defendant MacPherson made
a secret arrangement and agreement between themselves, by
which the defendant MacPherson was to appear to be the actual
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purchaser as between the principals and himself, and other pur-
chasers were to be obtained at suiciently higher prices to enable
the defendant MacPherson to sc..ce another high rate of com-
mission, namely, 20 per cent., less the 2 per cent. and expenses
already referred to, and at the same time Spicer and Graham be
enabled out of the said additional price also to obtain a further
commission than the 16 per cent. stipulated for between them
and their principals.

The arrangement between Spicer Graham & Company and
the defendant MacPherson was that the latter should, as between
them and the defendant company, appear to purchase the lots
and be recognised as the purchaser by the defendant company;
and, having regard to the docuinent signed by him, the defendant
MacPherson eannot be heard to say that he did not buy and become
the purchaser of the lots. It was part of the agreement between
him and Spicer Graham & Company, however, and in this it was
intended to deceive the defendant company, that purchasers were
to be obtained who should be led to think they were dealing
directly with the defendant company. As a matter of fact, the
form of the agreement received by them represented Spicer
Graham & Company as the vendors, and did not refer to the
defendant company, except to the extent of its stamp-impressed
name, as already indicated.

Upon the evidence, I think it is clear that MacPherson was a
party to representations being made to the plaintiffs that they
were dealing with the defendant company as vendor and owner,
at the prices named in their respective agreements, when he knew
as a matter of fact that he and Spicer Graham & Company had
arranged that he should purchase the lots and was to be treated as
having purchased them at the prices mentioned in his application
to purchase, and that payments to the defendant company were
to be made by or through him, or in his name by Spicer Graham &
Company, to the defendant company. I think in this respect
misrepresentation and deception were practised upon the plain-
tiffs. I think it is clear, too, that representations were made to
the plaintiffs that the lots were worth more than they were paying
for them, and would rapidly increase in price owing to the thriving
character of the town of Canora.

I cannot think that such representations were justified by the
facts; and I think that, so far as the defendant MacPherson is
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concerned, he was a party to their being made, and either knew
they were untrue or was reckless as to whether they were or not.

In the circumstances, I think the plaintiffs are entitled to have
the contracts rescinded, and as against the defendant MacPherson
to recover the amounts paid by them under their contracts respec-
tively, as damages resulting from such misrepresentations.

Judgment will therefore go in favour of the plaintiffs as against
the defendant MacPherson for payment of the said sums, without
interest, and with costs of suit.

R. T. Harding, for appellant; R. S. Robertson, for respondents.

The judgment of the Court was read by

FerGuson, J.A.:—The plaintiffi Dannecker in evidence asserts
that the defendant MacPherson represented to him that Sweet “ was
representing the International Securities Company in selling these
lots. . . . They (Sweet and MacPherson) had these lots to
sell, and it was a good investment. Lots close to the centre of the
town. . . . Good value . . . highanddry . . . in
the centre of the town of Canora—it was a thriving town—going
right ahead. He had been through that country, through the
Canora district—price £1,000; that it was a good buy; had a
great future. It was worth the money we paid . . .as an
investment . . . we were getting the money’s worth at the
time .

“Q. They both said it was a good proposition? A. Yes, we
were getting our money’s worth, good value for the money.”

The plaintiff Yost in evidence asserts that the defendant
represented: “They were cheap lots—cheap buy—worth far more
money than what he offered them at . . . Canora was a
growing town, rapidly growing. They were central lots—in the
centreof thetown . . . three blocksfrom the post-office . .
the plaintiff bought three lots, price $1,100.”

I am convinced that the defendant MacPherson made these
statements, and a perusal of the evidence taken on commission
convinces me further that these statements were untrue, and that
no person with any knowledge of the actual facts and values could
make such representations believing them to be true, either as
statements of fact or as statements of an opinion; and that,
unless the defendant MacPherson was himself misled by accept-
ing Sweet's statements, the representations were made without
knowledge or justification. The defendant MacPherson does not
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assert that he relied on Sweet, or that he made these statements
honestly’ believing them to be true; he denies making some of
them, and says he cannot remember making others; but he admits
that Sweet, with whom he was sharing his 20 per cent. com-
mission, made the others. Neither in his pleading nor his evi-
dence does he attempt to justify his statements or Sweet’s state-
ments on the ground that they were true or that he believed
them to be true.

As I read the evidence of location and value, these lots could
not, by any stretch of imagination, be truthfully represented to
be good value or worth the prices asked and paid, nor could they
be truthfully described as “in the centre of the town of Canora,”
nor should Canora be represented as rapidly growing.

To my mind, the evidence on these points demonstrates that
these lots as town-lots had very little, if any, value; and, by
reason of the subdividing of the section, that the property as
farm property was rendered useless and valueless,

For these reasons, I think that the defendant MacPherson,
with the intention of inducing the plaintiffs to purchase these lots,
and so that he might earn a commission of 20 per cent. of the
purchase-price, took upon himself either to make statements he
knew to be untrue or to assert his belief and knowledge in refer-
ence to matters on which he had no real belief or knowledge; in
other words, these representations were made with a reckless
disregard as to their truth or falsity, and without earing whether
they were true or false, so long as they served the purpose of
securing the plaintiffs’ contracts to purchase. Viewed in the most
favourable light to MacPherson, he took upon himself to warrant
his own belief of that which he asserted and in reference to which
he was entirely ignorant, and he should, I think, be held as respon-
sible as if he had asserted that which he knew to be untrue: Derry
v. Peck, 14 App. Cas. 337, and cases collected and considered in
Halsbury’s Laws of England, vol. 20, pp. 688 to (94.

It is argued that the judgment taken against the defendant
company precludes the prosecution of this action against the
defendant MacPherson. The judgment against the defendant
company is copied at p. 30 of the transcript of the evidence, and
it is urged that the recovery was upon the claim for deceit, and
that the taking of judgment against one of two joint wrongdocers
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releases the other. For this proposition the defendant Mae-
Pherson relied on the cases collected at p. 384 of Holmested’s
Judicature Act. It is, however, to be noted that our Rules differ
from the English Rules: Holmested, p. 864.

The point was considered in the Court of Appeal in the recent
case of Goldrei Foucar and Son v. Sinclair (1917), 34 Times L.R.
74, (1918] 1 K.B. 180, and I think we can here, as was done
there, treat the judgment against the defendant company as being
entered upon a motion for judgment on the claim for return of
moneys had and received, and not on the claim for damages for
deceit.

I do not think that we must, and unless forced to I would not,
construe the judgment against the company as being pronounced
on the claim for damages for deceit. The statement of claim
alleges and makes out a claim for the return of moneys had and
received without consideration or on a total failure of consideration.

The defendant company did not appear to the writ or plead to
the claim; and, as I read Rules 35, 220, 354 to 358 (Holmested,
p. 862), it was quite open to the learned Chancellor to pronounce
judgment in favour of the plaintiffs for a return of the moneys
paid—instead of assessing the plaintifis’ damages for deceit. He
directed judgment to be entered for a swn equal to the moneys
paid and interest (see p. 14 and endorsements on the records),
and also directed that the judgment should not prejudice the
plaintiffs’ right to proceed further against the defendant Mac-
Pherson. I am of the opinion that, had this judgment been pro-
nounced in the absence of MacPherson, it could still be properly
construed as a judgment entered on the eause of action for return
of money received on a failure of consideration, so as to take it
from under the principle stated in the cases now relied upon by
the defendant MacPherson. But this judgment was pronounc-
ed in the presence of the defendant MacPherson, and he did
not then ap, oal against that part which adjudged that ‘‘the
entry of this judgment shall not prejudice the plaintiffs’ right,”
ete., but allowed it to become a final and binding pronouncement
on his rights—and, for this reason, I do not think he can now
question the authority of that pronouncement.

I would dismiss the appeal with costs.

Appeal dismissed.
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" ARCHAMBEAULT v. LAPIERRE AND OWENS. impli
C.R. Quebee Court of Review, Archibald, A.C.J., Letellicr and Lane, JJ. i
June 5, 1918. Eatla
VENpoR AND PURCHASER (§ 11—32) —PURCHASER ASSUMING OBLIGATION OF and
HYPOTHECARY CREDITOR—CREDITOR ACCEPTING OBLIGATION—LIEN fully
DE DROIT—QUEBEC JURISPRUDENCE,

Under Quebec jurisprudence, where a purchaser assumes the obligation prese
to pay the hypotheeary ereditor any sum of money which may be due to ac
him on the property purchased, the ereditor ean at any time accept
that obligation and establish a direct lien de dreit against such purchaser (

Al as a personal debtor to pay the money. &
ran
&5 Statement Arreal from the Superior Court, Mercier, J. Affirmed. the
% M\ J. 0. Lacroiz, K.C., for plaintiff. prop
? gl Brossard & Pepin, for defendant. v
E b Aripgid, ArcuisaLp, A.C.J.-—The statement made in the appellant’s the ¢
}f‘j 4 factum treats the various deeds as containing an undertaking on anyt
1'[%), | the part of the purchasers to pay the mortgage in question to hims
'E Ju Decarie in lieu of to their immediate vendor. This writing, which cred
" s i is the sale by Dupré to Lapointe, Lavoic and Lapierre, is in the a er
R;i following language :— pose
3«‘ 1 Quant & la balance de $16,000 restant due sur le présent prix de vente, debt
i ledit vendeur délégue et charge les acquéreurs de la payer conjointement at men

ik solidairement pour et A son acquit et décharge auz pel ci-aprés é =
et de la maniére ci-aprés mentionnde, savoir: une somme de $8,000 & Jérémie with
Déearie aux termes d'une obligation & lui tie par P, Archambeault my
devant Me J.-A. Mainville, notaire, ete. Leat
The deed contains no special undertaking on the part of the abie
purchasers to pay the amount in question. The only deed of the dele
whole series which contains an undertaking on the part of the dele
purchasers is the last deed of all of Lapointe to Fournier. There and
is no question under our jurisprudence that where a purchaser beod

assumes the obligation to pay the hypothecary creditor any sum
of money which may be due him upon the property purchased,
that the creditor can at «ny time accept that obligation and estab-
lish a direct lien de dro’ against such purchaser as a personal
debtor to pay the money, nor can there be any question in this
case that the present defendant never renounced any obligation
which was resting upon him to pay the money in question to
Décarie, nor can there be any uestion that the present plaintiff
armed with his subrogation from Décarie did accept what is called
the delegation of payment as vgainst Lapierre the present
defendant.

The real questions in the case then «ve, did Décarie by any act
of his in connection with his hypothecary action against Fournier

neve
acce
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implicitly deprive himself of the right to accept the several dele-
gations of payment made by the successive vendors in his favour
and so acquire new personal debtors as long as his claim was not
fully paid up? Did the subrogation made by Décaric to the
present plaintiff upon making payment, enable the present plaintiff
to accept such delegation in Décarie’s place?

Could Dupré, an insolvent, during the period of his insolvency,
transfer to the plaintiff any rights which he might have against
the present defendant, resulting from his deed of sale of the
property in question to the defendant and others?

With regard to the first question proposed, the appellant argues
the analogy of principal and surety, that when the creditor does
anything which deprives his debtor of the right to reimburse
himself upon sureties held for the payment of the debt, then the
creditor’s right against the debtor is extinguished, as, for example,
a creditor holding a pledge for the payment of the debt, had dis-
posed of the pledge, he could not afterwards recover from the
debtor who was entitled to receive the pledge upon making pay-
ment. There is no question of the general correctness of this view
with regard to principal and surety, but the present case is not in
my judgment at all like the position of principal and surety.
Leaving out of view Lapointe and Lavoie, defendant’s two associ-
ates in purchasing the property from Dupré, and supposing the
defendant to have sold directly to Fournier, we may say that the
defendant eharged Fournier to pay Décarie the money in question
and Fournier accepted that charge, but there was no delegation
because there was no acceptation on the part of Décarie. Fournier
never was the personal debtor of Décarie, because Décarie never
accepted the delegation of payment in his favour.

Laurent, vol. 18, No. 312, reads as follows:—

On voit par 1d quelles sont les personnes qui jouent un role dans la déléga-
tion et qui, par conséquent, y doivent consentir. Le délégant doit consentir,
car c'est lui qui fait I'offre au eréancier ou, ecomme dit 'article 1275, qui donne
au créancier un autre debiteur; peu importe qu'il y ait novation ou non, il ne
peut y avoir de délégation sans un délégant. Le délégué s’oblige envers le
créancier, done il faut qu'il consente. Le délégataire doit aussi consentir,
quand il décharge I'ancien débiteur, la néeessité de son concours est évidente;
elle I'est également quand il ne se fait pas de novation, il y a toujours une
nouvelle obligation contractée envers le eréancier par le délégué; or, il ne peut
v avoir d'obligation sans le consentement du créancier.

At the time when the hypothecary action was taken, there
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did not exist any personal action against Fournier in favour of
Décarie, because Décarie had never accepted Fournier as his
personal debtor, therefore, in taking the hypothecary action he
did not discharge Fournier from any debt whatever.

It follows, as a matter of course, that if the present defendant
should be obliged to pay Décarie the amount of the mortgage in
question, Fournier could not escape from his obligation towards
Lapierre on his personal contract to pay in Lapierre’s place on the
ground of his having made a delaissement of hypothecated property.

It seems then that this ground raised by the appellant is
unfounded.

With regard to the question as to the effect of the subrogation
made by Décarie to Archambeault when Archambeault paid hin
the balance of the mortgage, it may be said that it is clearly proved
that while Décarie had not accepted any of the délégués who had
been offered to him in the successive sales of property, he had not
released any of them so that these offers at the time of payment
by Archambeault were still open to acceptation by Décarie. 1f
Décarie had not been paid by Archambeault, he could, certainly,
under our jurisprudence, have obtained the several debtors
delegated to him in the several deeds of sale by making an express
acceptation of those several delegations.

Archambeault pays him the money (he was personally indebted
by the first deed of obligation) and obtained subrogation in his
rights with regard to the several debtors in question, and by taking
a personal action against the present defendant, accepted the
delegation so far as he was concerned.

There can be no doubt under our jurisprudence that the
subrogation by Décarie to Archambeault enabled Archambeault
to exercise the rights which he, Décarie, could have exercised in
reference to the acceptation of such delegated debtors. But
when we come to consider the question further, we find that in the
deed between Dupré and his immediate purchasers, including the
defendant, that such purchasers did not by the deed, accept the
delegation and promise to pay Déearie to the discharge of Dupr¢.

There is, therefore, in that deed, no acceptation on the part of
the present defendant to pay Décarie, which Décarie could accept
and constitute the defendant his debtor.

However, the jurisprudence of our courts is to the effect that
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acceptation of a delegation either by the délégué or by the délé-
gataire, need not be express and can be inferred from the acts of
the parties.

Laurent, vol. 18, No. 315, makes the following remarks:—

Comment les parties intéressées doivent-elles donner leur consentement?
Onad dé si le eréancier doit pter d'une itre expresse I'offre de
délégation qui lui est faite. La question implique une confusion d'idées.
Aux termes de larticle 1275, la délégation n'opére point de novation si le
eréancier n'a expressément déclaré qu'il entendait décharger son débiteur qui
a fait la délégation. 1l faut done une déclaration expresse de volonté de nover
pour que la délégation opére novation. Autre est la question de savoir si une
une acceptation expresse est nécessaire pour qu'il y ait délégation. La
négative est certaine. En effet, cette acceptation n'est rien qu'une mani-
festation de consentement; or, tout consentement peut se donner tacitement
quand la loi n’exige pas un consentement exprés. Et, dans I'espiee, la loi ne
dit rien, elle maintient par cela méme le droit commun. L'article 1275 en
tant qu'il exige une déclaration expresse de volonté pour opérer novation, n'es
pas applicable & notre question; nous ne supposons pas de novation; nous
demandons seulement quelles sont les conditions requises pour qu'il y ait
délégation. et cette question est décideé par les principes généraux qui régissent
le consentement. La doctrine et la jurisprudence sont en ce sens. Le con-
sentement tacite suffit. C'est aux tribunaux de décider si les faits que l'on

impliquent le +

In this case, the proof establishes that defendant Lapierre,
when called upon in the action in arriére-garantie by Dupré, had
taken up the fait et cause of the defendant Archambeault in the
case of Décarie against Archambeault and had so accepted the
obligation of defending Archambeault against the action by
Décarie, which he would not have been obliged to do unless he had
accepted the delegation made to him in the deed from Dupré.

The proof also shews that the defendant Lapierre had paid the
sum of $280 to the present plaintiff Archambeault for interest on
the obligation in question.

I am of opinion that these facts, taken in connection with the
entire absence on the part of Lapierre of any plea denying or
questioning the fact that he had accepted the delegation contained
in the deed of Dupré to him, constitute a sufficient indication that
Lapierre had, in fact, accepted the delegation and promised to pay
Décarie the sum in question.

As a matter of fact, in the defendant’s factum, that position
is assumed in express language. If that be the case and if the subro-
gation by Décarie to Archambeault authorized Archambeault to
exercise Décarie’s rights as to the acceptation of the new debtor
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offered to him in the deed from Dupré to Lapierre, then the plain-
tifi’s action against Lapierre was an acceptation of that delegation
and constituted Lapierre the personal debtor of Archambeault in
the sum of money claimed.

In this view of the case, it would not be necessary to consider
the last question proposed that whether Dupré being insolvent
could cede to Archambeault his rights against Lapierre under the
deed of sale from Dupré to Lapierre. There is no admission in
the record that this particular right of Dupré was not taken over
by the assignees in Dupré’s insolvency. It was a mere right of
defence and not of acquisition; it was manifestly of no value to
the estate of Dupré.

Dupré was indebted to Décarie, if Décarie had chosen to aceept
the delegation made in Archambeault’s deeds to Dupré, otherwise
he was indebted to Archambeault in the sum of money in question.
On the other hand, Dupré had received from Lapierre a promise
to hold him harmless with regard to that indebtedness.

Neither the claim of Décarie or Archambeault against the
estate of Dupré, nor the right of Dupré to be indemnified against
that claim by Lapierre, was dealt with upon the insolvency of
Dupré. It would not, in any event, have constituted an asset of
the estate.

Our proceedings for the winding up of the insolvent estates
under the Civil Code do not release a debtor from his obligation.
The assignees are acting only as the agents of the debtor and of the
creditors at the same time.

I am, therefore, of the opinion that Dupré had, under the
circumstances, the right to cede to Archambeault his right to be
indemnified by Lapierre for anything which he might be obliged
to pay in respect of the claim of Décarie or Archambeault.

Lapierre was personal debtor to Dupré and the cession from
Dupré to Archambeault and the signification of that cession
constituted Lapierre personal debtor to Archambeault.

I am therefore of opinion that the judgment which has con-
demned Lapierre is well founded and must be maintained.

I have examined the authorities cited by the appellant and I
find them in most cases inapplicable to the circumstances of the
present case. Appeal dismissed.
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GAVIN v. KETTLE VALLEY R. CO.

British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., and Martin, Galliker,
MePhillips and Eberts, JJ.A.  October 1, 1918.

New trIAL (§ HI—9)—AcT1i08 FOR DAMAGES —NEGLIGENCE—MUTUAL OBLI-
GATIONS—INSUFFICIENCY OF ISSUES SUBMITTED TO JURY.

In an action for damages for injuries sustained in a collision between

a motor ear and a passenger train when both parties have been guilty

of negligence, 1 new trial will be ordered where the court has failed to

submit the mutual obligations of the parties to the jury, with proper and

complete directions on the law and as to the evidence applicable so as to
enable them to come to a reasonable conclusion,

ArreaL by defendant from a judgment of Macdonald, J., in  Stater at.

an action for damages for injuries received in a collision between
a motor car and a passenger train; new trial ordered.

E. P. Davis, K.C., for appellant; A. H. MacNeill, K.C., for
respondent.

Macponawp, C.J.A.:—The jury found the defendant negligent
“in delaying the application of brakes”’; that the plaintifi's wife,
the driver of the automobile, was guilty of contributory negligence
“in not exercising sufficient watchfulness by looking to the right
as well as to the left”’; but that the defendants’ servants neverthe-
less could have prevented the oceurrence “‘by the speedy applica-
tion of the brakes.” Mrs. Gavin, plaintifi’s wife, admits that she
actually saw the train coming when she was yet from 30 to 35 ft.
away from the railway tracks; she also stated that she could stop
her car at the rate she was then driving, namely 10 miles an hour,
in a distance of from 20 to 25 ft.

The jury’s findings excluded negligence on defendant’s part
other than that expressly found as above set forth.

The brakeman saw the approaching automobile in time, as the
jury found, to have stopped the train before reaching the point
of impact with the plaintiff’s car. The train was moving at about
the same rate of speed as the automobile, namely, 10 milcs an hour.
The brakeman expected, with good reason I think, that the driver
of the automobile would stop before reaching the track, but when
this reasonable expectation was disappointed, he made some
efiorts to avoid the collision, but failed. The negligence of the
plaintifi’s wife as found by the jury was her neglect to look for the
approaching train. That negligence was displayed the moment she
actually saw the train. If, thereafter, by the exercise of reasonable
care and skill she could have stopped her car before reaching the
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railway track, then, I think, the plaintiff was not entitled to succeed
in this action.

While the jury were asked whether, when defendants’ employ-
ees became aware that the automobile was in danger, they could,
by the exercise of reasonable care, have avoided collision with it,
yet they were not asked a like question in respect of the plaintifi’s
wife, nor were they instructed to consider whether or not, after she
actually saw the train coming, she could, by the exercise of reason-
able care and skill, have avoided injury. The obligation was
mutual. It was just as much the duty of the driver of the auto-
mobile to take reasonable care to avoid the collision after she be-
came aware of the danger as it was the duty of the defendant’s
servants to do likewise, but, as the case was left to the jury, though
the obligation of defendants was submitted, that of Mrs. Gavin
was ignored. While no objeetion in this connection was taken by
defendants’ counsel at the trial, yet it was the duty of the judge
to leave the issues to the jury with proper and complete directions
on the law and as to the evidence applicable to such issues: S.C.
Act, 8. 55. This duty has been emphasized in the recent decision
of the Supreme Court of Canada in Ashwell v. Canadian Financiers
(not yet reported). The said section also authorized an appeal,
notwithstanding counsel’s failure to take objection at the trial.
I have, therefore, no doubt as to the propriety of ordering a new
trial. Mrs. Gavin's evidence alone puts that beyond question.
Damaging as is her evidence to the plaintiff’s case, I do not think
it necessarily conclusive against him, I think it must go back to a
jury to draw the proper inferences from the whole of the evidence.

MarTIN, J.A., agreed in ordering a new trial.

GALLIHER, J.A.:—I agree in ordering a new trial.

McPuiLuies, J.A. (after a statement of the facts and a review
of the evidence) :—In my opinion, there was no sufficient direction
upon the points pressed by counsel for the appellant, in particular
upon the question of joint negligence, and it was not passed upon
by the jury; further, the facts advanced at the trial only admitted
of two views thereof, either that the driver of the motor car was
solely at fault, or that the accident was a combination of negligence
on the part of the driver of the motor car and the servants of the
railway company, and in either case the plaintifis would fail.
Shortly stated, the jury did not arrive at a “sensible conclusion.”
The jury have not, in this case, ‘‘come to a conclusion which on
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the evidence is not unreasonable,” on the contrary, in my view,
the jury have upon the evidence as adduced at the trial come to
an unréasonable conclusion, therefore, the proper course to now
follow in this case would be to direct a new trial.

Eserts, J.A. agreesinorderinganew trial.  New trial ordered.

Re CITY OF TORONTO and TORONTO and YORK RADIAL R. Co. and
COUNTY OF YORK.

Ontario Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Mulock, C.J. Ex., Clute,
Riddell, Sutherland and Kelly, JJ. March 25, 1918.

1. AreeaL (§ XI—720)—CoUNTY CORPORATION—SPECIAL ACT—NO EXPRESS
RIGHT GIVEN—JURISDICTION OF APPELLATE COURT TO GRANT LEAVE.
8. 48(1) of the Ontario Railway and Municipal Board Aet (R.8.0.
1914, e. 186), which provides that an appeal shall lie from the Board
to a Divisional Court upon a ¢ ion of jurisdiction or upon any question
of law, applies to the jurisdiet given to the Board by the Ontario Act,
1917, 7 Geo. V. e. 92, 5. 4, by which power is given to the City of Toronto
to expropriate part of the Toronto and York Radial Railway, and al-
though under the later Act no right of appeal is expressly given to the
County of York, the appellate court has jurisdietion to grant leave.
2. Exerorriation (§ HII C—135)—Ciry or Toronto—County oF YoRK—
STATUTORY RIGHTS—ABANDONMENT OF PROPERTY —COMPENSATION,
The rights of the County of York to damages for expropriation by the
City of Toronto of the Toronto and York Radial R.W. Co. and all its
real and personal property within the city are statutory under the Aet
of 1897, and are not affected by the fact that by a by-law the county
has abandoned certain roads over which the line is operated to minor
municipalities of the county.

ArrricaTioN on behalf of the Corporation of the County of
York for an order granting the corporation leave to appeal from
an order of the Ontario Railway and Municipal Board dated the
1st February, 1918, on the following among other grounds:—

(1) That the order was wrong in law and should not have been
made.

(2) That the applicant corporation had a eclaim against the
city corporation, for which it should receive compensation upon
hearing and award pursuant to an Act respecting the City of
Toronto, passed by the Legislature of Ontario in 1917, 7 Geo. V.
ch. 92, sec. 4.

(3) That the county corporation was entitled to be heard and
to give evidence in support of the particulars of its claim against
the city corporation by reason of the exercise of the powers con-
ferred upon the city corporation by the said statute.

(4) That the county corporation had an interest in the high-
ways in question, for which it should receive compensation under
the said statute.

4—43 ...
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(5) That, under the several agreements between the county
corporation and the Metropolitan Street Railway Company, the
county corporation had the several rights against the Toronto
and York Radial Railway Company shewn in the particulars of
claim, and that the said rights were prejudiced and would be
seriously impaired by the exercise by the city corporation of the
said powers to the damage of the county corporation, for which
it was entitled to compensation under the said statute,

The county corporation also appealed from the said order,
upon the grounds aforesaid.

The particulars of elaim were as follows:—

The Corporation of the County of York says that unde:
various franchise agreements made between it and the Metropoli-
tan Street Railway Company, now the Toronto and York Radial
Railway Company, evidenced by certain indentures or writings
dated respectively the 25th June, 1884, the 20th January, 1886,
the 28th June, 1889, the 17th December, 1889, the 20th October,
1890, the 2nd March, 1891, and the Gth April, 1894, certain
privileges and franchise rights enured to its benefit in respect to
‘“‘that portion of the railway of the Toronto and York Radial
Railway Company (Metropolitan Division) upon Yonge strect
within the limits of the City of Toronto and all the real and personal
property used in connection therewith, and necessary for the oper-
ation thereof, including all franchises, rights and privileges, which
it"” (the Toronto and York Radial Railway Company) “now
has or may enjoy respecting the construction, maintenance, and
operation of a railway within the city limits on the said street.”

Some of the said privileges and franchise rights of the Corpor-
ation of the County of York are the following:—

(1) The contingent right to authorise the railway company
to lay down a double track or railway on Yonge street, under
para. 2 of the agreement of the 28th June, 1889, and under para-.
13 and 32 of the agreement of 1894,

(2) The regulation of the speed of travel and the stops for
loading and unloading of milk-cans, under para. 21 of the agrec-
ment of 1894.

(3) The fixation of the maximum rate for fares under para.
25 of the agreement of 1804,
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(4) The conveyance of freight, goods or merchandise, by the
railway company on rates that may be agreed upon, and, in case
of a difference as to the rates, as may be fixed and settled by the
Lieutenant-Governor in Council under para. 26 of the agreement
of 1804,

(5) The renewal of the privileges and franchise rights to be
granted to the Toronto and York Radial Company on the 3rd
February, 1929, for a period of 35 years thereafter, upon new terms
and conditions, under para. 32 of the agreement of 1804,

(6) The renewal of the privileges and franchise rights to be
granted to the Toronto and York Radial Railway Company on
the 3rd February, 1964, and on each successive future term of
35 years, on further new terms and conditions, under para. 32
of the agreement of 1894.

(7) The contingent right to the Corporation of the County of
York to take over the real and personal property of the railway
company at a valuation to be determined by arbitration under
para. 33 of the agreement of 1894,

The Corporation of the County of York says that, by reason
of the exercise by the Corporation of the City of Toronto of the
powers conferred upon them by sec. 5 of the Act 7 Geo. V. ch. 92,
the said enumerated privileges and franchise rights enuring to the
benefit of the said Corporation of the County of York will be, in
whole or part, taken away, terminated, or otherwise interfered
with, and an injury will be caused to the Corporation of the County
of York thereby.

The Corporation of the County of York hereby makes claim
on the Corporation of the City of Toronto, by reason of the
foregoing, for the injury which will be sustained by the said
county corporation; and, in the event of disagreement between
the Corporation of the County of York and the Corporation of the
City of Toronto as to the money payment therefor, or generally
in regard thereto, the Corporation of the County of York asks that
its claim be adjudicated upon and determined in accordance with
the provisions of sub-sec. 7 of sec. 5 of the Act 7 Geo. V. ch. 92.

By the order of the Board, the claim of the County Corporation
was disallowed and dismissed.

The reasons of the Board were given in writing. The conclud-
ing portions were as follows:—
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(_)11'.. In argument Mr. McGregor Young based the right of the = U
8.C. county to intervene in this reference upon two grounds:— 4 sl
: B 1. That, notwithstanding the provisions of by-law No. 712, = t
{4 19'" OF  gome residuum of interest in this highway (Yonge street) still :
148 AND resides in the county corporation. : C
i m’:’:‘ 2. That, if it should now be held that the county is excluded | 8
B?#‘(‘J: from all interest in the part of Yonge street in question, the county tl
axp  will be prejudiced at the expiration of the franchise period in st
°°§"'°::'°' 1929 in its negotiations with the company for a renewal of the tl
franchise, or for the expropriation of the railway, by reason of the ; w
fact that the fruitful, profitable part of the railway—that within T
the city of Toronto—is severed from the main portion to the north, = 2
situate in the county. ' q
The Board is of the opinion that neither of these grounds of & w
claim is tenable. w
(1) Dealing first with the first contention set out above. ¥ 0
As to that part of Yonge street situate within the district which | tl
was annexed by the Board’s order of 1908, it is clear that the = P
¥l operation of by-law No. 712 of the County of York had effectually a
It ) put all title out of the county. The words of disposition used *
1 in paras. 3 and 4 of the by-law are that Yonge street “shall here- t
[: | after become the property of and be owned as a public highway w
I by,” ete. No more comprehensive words of devolution could be (
ks (% used; “property’ being the highest right a man can have to a 11
i ) thing; and “owner”” being the person in whom for the time being ?T
§ l ' property is beneficially vested. Emphasis was sought to be laid n
5; fits o in argument on the phrase “as a public highway,” as indicating an S
& | I intention to reserve to the county some interest in the subject- th
i: L1 matter of the disposition; but surely that was the only quality eC
?i i in which the property could be disposed of by the county council, of
‘lg [ ‘ and the words used were competent to dispose of the county's cil
s | entire interest. "‘
: Even though the by-law were ineffectual to vest the highway w
in the local municipalities concerned, it was effectual as an abandon- Ci
ment of the highway by the county corporation, under clause 7 "!‘
of sec. 566 of the Municipal Act, 1892; and thereupon, by virtue et
of sec. 527 of the same Act, the highway became vested in the »
several local municipalities in which the highway was situated. @
m
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Upon the issue of the Board's order of 1908, that part of Yonge
street embraced in the district annexed by that order passed
to the City of Toronto, both as to jurisdiction and ownership.

As to that part of Yonge street which was assumed by the
County of York in 1911, under its by-law No. 1053, the only
sound conclusion seems to be that thereafter, upon the issuing of
the Board’s orders dated 1912 and 1914, the portions of Yonge
street embraced within the districts thereby annexed passed to
the City of Toronto, both as to jurisdiction and ownership. This
was the view adopted by the Lords of the Privy Council in
Toronto Suburban R. Co. v. Toronto Corporation, [1915] A.C. 590,
24 D.L.R. 269. In speaking of a similar franchise agreement in
question there, Lord Haldane says, at p. 594: “This agreement
was made between the Corporation of the Township of York,
within the limits of which was at that time the land on which part
of the railway was situate, and the railway company. In 1909
this land was included within the municipal limits of the res-
pondents” (the City of Toronto), “who succeeded to the rights
and obligations of the other corporation.”

The claim made here by the County of York bears no likeness
to that successfully pressed in the recent case County of Went-
worth v. Hamilton Radial Electric R.W. Co. and City of Hamilton
(1914-16), 31 O.L.R. 659, 35 O.L.R. 434, 28 D.L.R. 110, 54 8.C.R.
178,33 D.L.R. 439. It is to be noted that in that case, though the
trial Judge held that the Board’s order did not vest the highway
in question there in the City of Hamilton, the decision of the
Supreme Court of Canada proceeded rather upon the view that
the County of Wentworth was entitled to recover upon a right in
contract—a covenant to pay a sum certain—quite irrespective
of the question whether or not the highway had vested in the
city. Here there is no suggestion of a claim in gross, as in the
Wentworth case, but rather the assertion by the county of claims
which directly challenge the jurisdiction and ownership of the
City of Toronto in respect of the highway in question. These
claims are, in the opinion of the Board, without vestige of right,
either jurisdictional or proprietary. It will be noted that, under
sec. 433 of the present Municipal Act, in the absence of other
express provision, the ownership of a highway is vested in the
municipality having jurisdiction over it.




54 DomiNioNn Law REPoRTS. 43 D.LR.

ONT. (2) The contention that, by reason of the severance of the
8.C. highway, the county will be prejudiced in its negotiations with
Re the company upon the expiry of the latter's franchise in 1929,
Ciry or  jg singularly wanting in merit, coming from a corporation which,
AND upwards of 20 years ago, voluntarily abandoned the entire highway
ToRONTO  ¢haon in the county as an unwelcome incumbrance. True, many
years after, with a juster sense of its duty, it assumed it as a part
anp  of its system of county highways. Still, for the reasons above
| Counry oF given, the Board is of the opinion that the orders of the Board
, " have been effective in divesting the county of all jurisdiction and
ownership in respect of the part now within the City of Toronto,
f and that there is outstanding in the County of York no interest
il which entitles it to intervene upon this reference.
Irving S. Fairty, for city corporation, respondent.
MecGregor Young, K.C., for the County Corporation, the appli-
cant.
fl [Tue Court decided to hear the application as upon an appeal
' on the merits, subject to the objection.)

Clute, J. Crute, J.:—Application by the County of York for leave to
appeal from an order of the Ontario Railway and Municipal Board,
dated the 1st February, 1918, disallowing and dismissing the
county’s claim.

The question arose under the Ontario Act, 1917, 7 Geo. V.
ch. 92, sec. 4, which gives power to the city to expropriate part of
the Toronto and York Radial Railway.

Sub-section (7) of sec. 4 provides that, in the event of .the
County of York making any claim against the city by reason of
the exercise of the powers conferred by sec. 4, the corporation of
the county, within one month after the passing of the Act, shall
furnish particulars of its elaim to the city, and such claim, in the
event of disagreement, shall be adjudicated upon and determined
by the Ontario Railway and Municipal Board. If such claim
is not made within a month, or if it is disallowed by the Board,
or upon payment by the city to the county of the amount of such
award, after taking over the railway as therein provided, the rights,
if any, of the said Corporation of the County of York shall ceasc
and be determined.

Mr. Fairty, for the city, made the preliminary objection that
no appeal would lie to this Court from a decision of the Board.
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It was arranged to argue the preliminary objection and the merits
of the appeal together. I am of opinion that the objection to the
right of the county to appeal to this Court from a decision of the
Board is not well taken. The only right of appeal given by the
Act is under sec. 4 (1), which makes the power to expropriate on
the part of the city “‘subject to either party having the right to one
appeal to the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of Ontario.”
“FEither party” evidently refers to the City of Toronto and the
Toronto and York Radial Railway Company, and no appeal is
given under sub-sec. (7) to the County of York.

The Ontario Railway and Municipal Board Act, R.8.0. 1914,
ch. 186, sec. 48, provides that an appeal shall lie from the Board to
a Divisional Court upon a question of jurisdiction or upon any
question of law, but such an appeal shall not lie unless leave to
appeal shall be obtained from the Court within one month after
the making of the order.

It was objected that this right of appeal has no application to
the present case, inasmuch as it arises under an Act of the Legis-
lature. The answer to this, I think, is, that the jurisdiction of
the Board under the Railway and Municipal Board Act covers a
case like the present. Sections 21 to 27 inclusive deal with the
qnoniion of jurisdiction and powers of the Board.

Section 21 gives general jurisdiction in respeet of railways and
public utilities; sub-sec. (3) provides that the Board, as to all
matters within its jurisdiction, shall have authority to hear and
determine all questions of law or of fact; and sec. 22 declares that
the Board shall have exclusive jurisdiction in all cases and in
respect of all matters in which jurisdiction is conferred on it by
this Act or by any other general or special Act. Then see. 48 de-
clares that an appeal shall lie to the Divisional Court, upon a
question of jurisdiction or any question of law, upon leave of the
Court.

In my opinion, the county having given the requisite notice
and applied within the time, this Court has jurisdiction to grant
such leave.

The Board declined to hear evidence offered by the county,
upon the ground that the county was not entitled to present any
claim by reason of the effect of certain Acts and by-laws. That
was a question of law, as well as a question of fact.
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The judgment of the Board proceeded mainly upon the ground
that the county, under by-law 712, had abandoned the York
roads and transferred the same to minor municipalities of the
County of York; and, having so disposed of their interest and
control of Yonge street, the county ceased to have any claim in
respect of damages under the Act of 1917; and that the county had
no such interest under its agreement of the 6th April, 1804, as to
give it any right “in gross’ arising out of the said agreement for
any claim to damages under the said Act.

The agreement with the Toronto and York Radial Railway
Company arises out of its original agreement, found in schedule
A. to the Ontario Act respecting the Metropolitan Street Railway
Company, 1897, 60 Vict. ch. 93, by which the said agr ement is
made a part of the Aet “in the same manner as if the several
clauses of such agreements were set out and enacted as part of
this Act:" see. 15.

The county’s elaim for damages is set forth in the particulars
and in the notice of motion.

In my opinion, by-law 712, giving to the minor municipalities
the duty and right of making repairs to Yonge street, does not in
any way affect the county’s elaim to damages, if otherwise entitled.
This does not affect the county in respect of its agreement with the
Radial. It is not necessary, nor do I think it proper, to expre=«
an opinion as to which of the clauses of its agreements with the
Radial the county has the right to make claim under, or whether
all.  That is a question of law and fact, and ought not, I think,
to be prejudged hefore the evidence which the county may offer
is submitted.

The appeal should be allowed upon its merits, the order of the
Board set aside, and the county permitted to offer such evidence
as it may be advised in support of its elaim. The city should pay
the costs of this appeal upon taxation.

Murock, C.J. Ex., and SUTHERLAND, J., agreed with CrLuT, J.

RippEeLL, J.:—By the Act of 1917, 7 Geo. V. ch. 92, sec. 1
(0.), the City of Toronto was authorised to acquire that portion
of the Toronto and York Radial Railway upon Yonge street, within
the limits of the city, paying compensation, to be determined (in
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case of disagreement) by the Ontario Railway and Municipal
Board, “subject to either party having the right to one appeal to
the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of Ontario.”

Section 4(7) provides that, in the event of the Corporation of the
County of York making any elaim against the City of Toronto by
reason of the exercise of the powers conferred by sec. 4, the claim
“shall be adjudieated upon and determined by the Ontario Railway
and Municipal Board . . . If such claim is not made within
, one month or if it is disallowed by the said Board, or upon
payment by the . . . City of Torontotothe . . . Coun-
ty of York of the amount of such award ofter taking over the rail-
way . . the rights, if any, of the . . . County of York
shall cease and determine.”  No right of appeal is given to the
County of York by the statute.

The County of York made a claim as provided for by sec.
4(7): the Board disallowed the c¢laim in the following terms:—

“1. This Board doth order and adjudge that the claim herein
of the said respondent the Corporation of the County of York
be and the same is hereby disallowed and dismissed.”

A perusal of the reasons for judgment makes it plain (as is not
indeed disputed) that the disallowance of the claim of the county
was on questions of law, and not of fact—the facts, so far as they
enter into the judgment, are all admitted, and the disallowance of
the claim is substantially what in the former common law practice
would be called allowing a demurrer.

The county applied 1o this Court for leave to appeal under
R.8.0. 1914, ch. 186, sec. 48(1). We reserved judgment upon this
motion till we heard the merits—these have now been argued, and
we proceed to dispose of the case

The first point to be decided is as to the right to appeal at all.

Admittedly the right to appeal must be given expressly and by
unmistakable legislation: Attorney-General v. Sillem (1864), 10
H.L.C. 704.

It is argued that sec. 48(1) of the Ontario Railway and Muni-
cipal Board Act does not apply to the present case, for two reasons:
(1) because the powers of the Board pro hdc vice are given by the
Act of 1917, and not by the Ontario Railway and Municipal Board
Act, and are of a special nature not contemplated by this Act;
(2) in any event sec. 4(1) gives an express power of appeal, whereas
there is none in sec. 4(7)—* expressio unius est exclusio alterius.”
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But the general Act plainly contemplates other matters being
added to the jurisdiction of the Board; in addition to the juris-
diction expressly mentioned in sec. 21(1), sec. 22 provides that
“the Board shall have exclusive jurisdiction in all cases and in
respect of all matters in which jurisdiction is conferred on it by
this Act or by any other general or special Act;” ¢f. secs. 23(2), 49.
I see no reason why the provisions of sec. 48 do not apply to such
jurisdiction given by other Acts, general and special, as well a~
to the jurisdiction given by sec. 21 (1) of the Ontario Railway and
Municipal Board Act.

In the Assessment Act, R.8.0. 1914, ch. 195, see. 80 (6), ther
is a special provision as to appeal, i.e., “upon questions of law”
only, which is not the same as in the Ontario Railway and Muni-
cipal Board Act, sec. 48, “upon a question of jurisdiction or upon
any question of law,” and the time is not limitod as in the latte:
Act. No doubt, the provisions of the Assessment Act would I
looked at in anappeal under that Act; but, as we shall see, ther
is nothing of the kind in the Aet of 1917,

Of the many sections of the Municipal Act conferring juri-
dietion on the Board, there seems to be only one which require
particular notice, viz., sec. 469, In that seetion the order of th
Board there contemplated is declared to be “final and not subject
to appeal,” plainly indicating that, in the view of the Legislature
such orders would be subject to appeal in the absence of sucl
provision.

A provision contained in another statute that there shall be
right of appeal, a superfluous provision, has by no means the sam:
argumentative foree as a prohibition would have: see Maxwell on
Statutes, 4th ed. (1905), p. 467,

(2) The maxim “‘expressio unius est exclusio alterius’ has been
overworked; useful as it sometimes is, it is oftener misleading. 1
not think it applies in the present case at all.

The appeal given in the general Act is: (1) on questions o
Jurisdiction or law only; and (2) only by leave of the Divisiona
Court. The appeal given by sec. 4(1) of the Aet of 1917 is (1
on questions of fact or law and (2) without the leave of the Di-
visional Court, This is a right given to the city and the railway
company, superadded to, not inconsistent with, the right given i
the general Aet. It eannot be effective to take away from one not

ar

nam
wou

the
appe
(2) ¢
the «
of la
or st
1
gran
l
agre
At
1
plae
not ¢
of tl

the s
\et.
the
we |
stat
l
strec
Proy
is g’
!" \
\Aoll[
with
Com
At
em
lutte
l
City
s n
Cou



43 DLR. Dominion Law Reports.

named in the sub-section the right to appeal which he otherwise
would have had.

It is not necessary to express an opinion as to whether
the city and the railway company are restricted to this special
appeal. It may be so. The grant of an appeal (1) as of right and
(2) on all points may (3), even if it be final, be considered more than
the equivalent of an appeal (1) by leave and (2) only on questions
of law or jurisdiction (3) with a further appeal; but no equivalent
or substitute is given to the county.

I think we are not concluded from hearing the appeal ; we should
grant leave and now treat the appeal as properly before us,

The claim of the County of York is based in substance on the
agreement of the Gth April, 1894, which will be found as schedule
A. to the Ontario statute (1897) 60 Viet. ch. 93.

I may say at once that, in my opinion, counsel for the appellant
placed the rights of his client quite too low. This agreement is
not simply validated by a statute, but it is itself a statute; sec, 15
of the Act makes the “privileges and franchises thereby ereated

existent and valid . . . to the same extent and in
the same manner as if . . . set out and enacted as purt of this
\et.”  Whatever difficulties might have been encountered had
the agreemient been simply validated, there can be none when
we remember that the privileges and franchises are given by
statute,

The history of Yonge street, built from what is now Queen
street to Holland Landing, by Simcoe, in the earliest days of the
Provinee’s life, is curious but need not be here detailed-—sufficient
is given in the lueid and able judgment of the Board. The County
of York was from 1865 onward the owner in fee of that part of
Yonge street now in controversy, and made certain agreements
with the predecessor of the Toronto and York Radial Railway
Company-—see schedule A, to 56 Viet. ch. 94 (0.) and schedule
\. to 60 Viet, ch. 93 (0.), those in the former schedule being
“eonfirmed and declared to be valid” by see. 2 of the statute, the
latter being (as we have seen) made part of the statute.

The Legislature, by the Act (1917) 7 Geo. V. ch. 92, gave to the
City of Toronto the power of expropriating the railway and all
its real and personal property within the city; but authorised the
County of York to make such claim as it might be advised against
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the city for damages by reason of the exercisé by the city of its
powers so given. The county made a claim as set out in the par-
ticulars of claim annexed hereto.

The grounds upon which the Board dizallowed the claim seem
to be (1) that the county has parted with its ownership of part of }
Yonge street, and (2) there is no agreement “in gross.”

Both may be considered together. I have already pointed out
that the rights of the county are statutory under the Act of 1897
They do not depend upon any ownership of the highway, although
of course they would not have been given were it not that the county
owned the highway. They are “in gross,” in the sense in which the
expression is used in the reasons for judgment of the Board.
8o far as any of them becomes valucless by the county alienating
the street and ceasing to be the owner, such an alienation is of
importance, but only in the view of quantum. The by-law No.
712, referred to, does no more than make certain portions of
Yonge street “the property of and . . . owned by” other
municipal corporations. It does not operate as a conveyance of
anything else than the fee, and the statute under which the
by-law was passed does not in any way affect other rights of the
county.

This is not at all such a case as the Farnham Avenue case,
Toronto and York Radial R.W. Co. v. City of Toronto (1913),
15 D.L.R. 270. There by an indenture the county had
conveyed to the city the whole of its interests in the portion of
Yonge street within the city (p. 320). Here there is no such
conveyance.

It is much more like Vancouver Power Co. Limited v. North
Vancouver Distriet Corporation, [1917] A.C. 598, 36 D.L.R. 462,
where such rights as these were held to remain in the original
contracting municipality, notwithstanding a statute which pro-
vided that the agreement should be adopted and carried into effect
by a new municipality.

I can find nothing here which divests the county of the rights
given it by statute. The mere transfer of the highway clearly
does not: County of Wentworth v. Hamilton Radial Electric R.WV.
Co., 33 D.L.R. 439, 54 Can. 8.C.R. 178. (The remarks of Mr.
Justice Duff on p. 189 of this case are, I think, misunderstood
by eounsel for the city; but in any case they do not affect the
present case.)




43DLR. Dominion Law Reporrts.

There being nothing to divest the rights of the county, the
Board should not have dismissed the claim without giving the
county an opportunity of calling witnesses, unless it appears that
in no view could a claim for money damages be sustained.

As to paragraph 1, I do not think this claim could possibly
be substantiated; 2, 3, and 4 may be difficult if Village of Brighton
v. Auston (1892), 19 A.R. 305, be considered to apply; but there
may be facts shewing that the county will sustain a pecuniary
loss by being deprived of the rights there given, and it is reasonably
certain that the principle of Village of Brighton v. Auston will not
be extended—in any event nominal damages may be recoverable:
Village of Brighton v. Auston, ut supra; Leake on Contracts,
6th ed. (Can. Notes), p. 773.

It is unnecessary to determine, in advance of evidence, whether
5 and 6 may be substantiated, while 7 is certainly such as may
be of great value. The contingent right of the county to take
the real and personal property of the railway does not cepend on
the ownership of the fee or of any less interest in the land. The
statute of 1897 gives the statutory right to the county, and any
difficulty which might arise under the general law from the fact
that this property (or some of it) is in another municipality is
avoided by this special statutory provision.

The city takes part of the real and personal property of the
railway, which on a certain contingency the county is to have;
this may be a serious loss to the county, and should be compensated
for., The fact that this loss is contingent does not render the
damages nominal; Chaplin v. Hicks, [1911] 2 K.B. 786 (C.A.),
has placed the law in that regard in a safe and, if I may say so,
a satisfactory condition.

I would allow the appeal with costs of the motion for leave
and argument on the merits, payable forthwith by the city.

I annex to this judgment the claim of the county and the
reasons for judgment given by the Board.

KeLry, J.:—I agree in the result.

Leave to appeal granted and appeal allowed.
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ALTA. LEONARD v. WHITTLESEA. an
¥ 8. Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Harvey, C.J ., Stuart, Beck sea
Al and Hyndman, JJ. Oclober 2, 1918.
1'% Costs (§ I--19)—Party 10 AcTion ENTITLED TO—DEPRIVED OF BY TRIAI ine
I JUDGE—MUST SHOW JUST GROUND— PRINCIPLE MUST BE SHEWN,
g A party to an action is entitled to expect that, when a trial judg mis
MR deprives him of his primd facie right to costs, the materials for a jus
'!L ground of principle shall be made to appear in some form or other eithe na
e upon the evidence or some recorded observation of the judge. v
Jf 18 Statement. ArreaL by defendant from the trial judge’s disposition of cost col
wE R in an action on a contract and a counter claim for damages. hay
i b 1. C. Rand, for appellant; . M. Blackstock, for respondent. ane
L] u The judgment of the court was delivered by rest
i | 1 ;
e 14 L Beck, J.. Beck, J.:—The defendant appeals, by leave, solely as to th apj
Iy 1 trial judge’s disposition of the costs. Both the action and the iy
i { counterclaim were dismissed without costs. of |
} | o " L 2 "
A The defendant’s counsel contends that if the judge proceeded sur
| ¥ upon a wrong principle, this court can and ought to review his dis|
O decision. We agree that this is so. whi
¥ f He contends, of course, that this is what the judge has done in
| Y
5 i the present case. jud
i The facts briefly are as follows: The plaintiff claims $270 for for
oyt 8 breaking land for the defendant. The defendant, by way of fon
ik d defence and counterclaim, says that the defendant agreed to break ser
el a much larger quantity of land and to do some seeding; that I
failed to complete his contract to the great damage of the de- the
fendant, and :he claims by way of counter claim $470. The trial v
judge finds that there was a contract by the plaintiff to break and
seed the larger quantity of land; that he failed to do this, and not
holds that he is not entitled to suceeed even on a quantum meru:! rais
As to the defendant’s counterelaim, he says:— 331
In view of my judgment as to the plaintiff’s claim, I think the defend.nt
ought not in conscience to suceeed on her ¢ laim, for undoubtedly 1 of |
benefits which accrued to her by the work of the plaintiff should offset 1y the
damage she might be entitled to recover. (Then as to costs he says). | ’
think the sction and counterclaim should be dismissed without costs to
cither party. hay
R. 720 leaves the costs of all proceedings to the diseretion of o |
the judge and provides that in case no order is made the costs orig
shall follow the events. It gives, however, power to the judge exa
to award a gross sum in lieu of or in addition to any taxed costs whe
and to allow costs to be taxed to one or more parties on one scale givi
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and to another or other parties in the same action on another
scale and to allow a set-off of the costs.

If no order had been made the result would have been that,
inasmuch as the plaintifi's claim was for 0, the costs on a dis-
missal of his action would haye been taxed under column one, and
inasmuch as the defendant counterclaimed for $470 the costs on
a dismissal of her counterclaim would have been taxed under
column 2, a somewhat higher s ale.  On the taxation there per-
haps would have had to be some u.""'nstment of witnesses’ expenses
and counsel fees. It was urged vy plaintifi’s counsel that the
result would have been that the one set of costs would have
approximately equalled the other and that had the trial judge
directed a set-off the final effect would have been the same as that
of the judge's actual direction. This, however, is more or less a
surmise in any case, and it does not appear that the trial judge
disposed of the costs upon any such caleulation, the data for
which were so vague.

I think that a party i# entitled to expeet that when a trial
judge deprives him of his primd facie right to costs, the materials
for a just ground of principle shall be made to appear in some
form or other, either upon the evidence or some recorded ob-
servation of the judge. See Aunual Practice, 1918, p. 1183.

Going through the evidence 1 can find no reason for depriving
the defendant of the costs on a dismissal of the action, and 1 would
give them to her.

The question of the costs on the dismissal of the counterclaim,
notwithstanding there is no cross-appeal or notice of intention to
raise this question, is open for the consideration of the court, r.

The matters put in isgue by the counterelaim arose solely out

and formed part of the same transaction as that set up in

s statement of elaim.

A counterclaim, although it is declared (r. 65) that it shall
have the same effect as a cross-action so as to enable the court
to pronounce a final judgment in the same action both on the
original and on the counterclaim, ought, it seems to me, to be
examined, when dealing with the question of costs, to ascertain
whether in substance it raises independent issues or calls for the
giving of evidence upon points which are not or would not be put
i issue by a total or partial denial of the plaintifi’s elaim.

Leosann

2
Warrrie-
SEA.

Beck, J




" DomiNioN Law REPORTS. 43 D.L.R.

It is, I think, “issues” in this wide sense that are intended b\
r. 742, which reads as follows, and is, I fear, often overlooked:

In any case where two or more issues of law or fact are raised upon the
pleadings and success upon such issues is divided between the parties the
court or judge may direct the costs only of the more successful of the partic:
to be taxed, and a proportionate part of the whole amount so taxed or «f
the whole amount taxable, whichever is the lower, to be allowed to such part,
or parties, and any such direction may either include or exclude the witness
fees taxable by all or only some of the parties to whom costs are allowed.

Where a trial judge has, without the question having becu
argued, made a disposition of the costs with which either party
is dissatisfied, I suggest that the proper course is, before the order
is taken out, to ask the judge for an appointment to argue the
question of costs. In this way he would be in a position to give
consideration to any aspects of the question which he might haye
overlooked, and appeals in respect of costs might in some cases e
avoided.

In the present case, although the counterclaim claimed a larger
sum than the statement of claim, substantially no issues were
raised by it which were not raised by the defence, and little, if
any, additional evidence was called for.

Under these circumstances it seems to me that, although the
counterclaim was dismissed, the costs ought not to be expressly
given to the plaintiff, but the defendant ought to be left in the
same position as if he had merely successfully defended the plain-
tifl’s action.

I think, therefore, in the result that the plaintifi should be
ordered to pay the defendant’s costs of a defended action and that
there should be no extra allowance of costs because of the counter-

. claim.

As I have already suggested, there is a fair probability that
this question might have been fairly adjusted by the trial judge
on a special application to him before the entry of judgment and
thus an appeal might have been avoided.

Under these circumstances, I would allow the appellant only
actual disbursements as his costs of appeal.

Judgment accordingl).
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AUGER v. BEAUDRY AND HYDE.*

Quebec King's Bench, Archambeault, C.J., Lavergne, Cross, Carroll and
Pelletier, JJ. February 28, 1918.

Witis (§ IV—200)—WORDING CLEAR—INTERPRETATION BY COURT—PROB-
ABLE INTENTION.
Where the wording of o will is clear the court must interpret it as
expressed, effect cannot be given to a probable intention.

Arreal from a judgment of the Superior Court, Monet, J.
Varied.

Lafleur, Macdougall, Macfarlane & Barclay, for appellants;
P. B. Mignault, K.C'., for respondent, Dame Beaudry.

Cross, J. (after having recited the facts):—The respondent,
Mde. Roy, took the present action and in her declaration she set
forth the facts and prayed that she be declared owner of the
entirety of the share of Mde. Gardiner—including the latter's
share of Guillaume-Napoléon's share of the real estate specifically
bequeathed to Guillaume Napoléon and Mde. Cardiner, as being
the sole survivor of the 4 children named in clause 6.  She asked
for an accounting by the executors who were made defendants in
the action.

The appellants, mis en cause, have pleaded, in substance, that
one half of Mde. Gardiner's share devolved to them (instead of the
whole of it having devolved to the respondent) inasmuch as they,
though grandchildren of the testator, are nevertheless also sur-
vivors of the 4 children within the meaning of clause 6, and as such
took jointly with the respondent. Otherwise expressed, their con-
tention is that for the case of death of a usufructuary legatee with-
out issue the will created a fiduciary substitution wherein the
surviving life-usufructuaries are institutes and the children of the
life-usufructuaries the substitutes; that, by operation of that sub-
stitution, one-half of Mde. Gardiner's share passed to the re-
spondent in life-usufruct and the other half—which would have
gone in usufruct to Mde. Auger, mother of the appellants, had she
survived—went directly to the appellants, the fiduciary substitu-
tion operating, as to that half, as a vulgar substitution.

The judge who decided the action in the Superior Court has
taken the view that the respondent was the only survivor of the
testator's 4 above-named children and, as such, took the whole

*Appeal to be taken to Privy Council.

543 n.Lr.
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of Mde. Gardiner's share. He accordingly gave judgment for the
respondent.

Taken by itself, and in its literal sense, clause 6 would be
decisive of the issue in respondent’s favour as held by the judg-
ment. But the appellants say, in substance, that it is possible to
read the clause as meaning that grandchildren, whose parent had
previously died, are intended to represent their parent and to take
per stirpes, notwithstanding that their parent had not entered into
enjoyment, the disposition in such a case operating as a vulgar
substitution so that the provision for life-enjoyment d titre précair.
would not take effect and the bequest would go directly to the
grandchildren per stirpes.  Fiduciary substitution, it is pointed
out, includes the vulgar substitution, and it was argued that elause
6 enables children of a deceased usufructuary to share with «
surviving usufructuary. In support of that view, counsel for the
appellants rely upon the scheme of devolution made by the will a-
indieating that, though the rule in substitutions is that repre-
sentation does not take place, in this case, the testator has provid-
ed otherwise and has manifestpd his intention to pass on the
bequest in the order of legitimate suecession to the grandchildren
To support that conclusion, it has been pointed out that the
specific legacies to the 4 children, in each case with gift over 1o
grandchildren per stirpes made in articles 4, 5, 6 and 7, are follow: !
inart-. 12, 13 and 14 by like specifie legacies to three sons born on
of wedlock, in each ease also with gift over to grandchildren jo
slirpes.

It has also been pointed out that the usufructuary legatees are
forbidden to sell or hypothecate their usufruet and the rents and
issues are declared to be alimentary.

It is specially pointed out that, by clause 8 of art. 18, there is
a gift over to the 4 legitimate children (those first named in the
will) of the legacies given to the 3 sons born out of wedleek, if the

latter all die without issue, but this gift over is
au méme titre d’usufruitiers que ci-dessus spéeifié dans mon présent testamont
et la propriété d'iceux appartiendra & leurs enfants nés et & naltre en Mgitine
mariage, par souches, et aux mémes conditions que les autres biens Kgués
mon présent testament.,

In clause 9 power is given to the usufructuary legatees to dis-
pose by will of the properties given to them, but only in favour of
their children and grandehildren. This would, in effect, mean power
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to vary the shares of grandchildren and to make substitutions in
favour of great-grandehildren.

Particular stress has also been laid upon clause 10 of art. 18,
That clause provided that, in the last year of their term of office,
the executors should have a valuation made of the real estate
given to the 3 residuary legatees, Corinne, Guillaume-Napoléon
and Léoeadie-Clorinthe, that the shares of these 3 legatees were
to be made equal by soultes. That the soulte-money was to be
invested in certain securities,
pour, par ceux de mes trois enfants ci<lessus en dernier lieu nommés qui
auront droit auxdits retcws du soultes, en jouir, & titre de constitut et

re, leur vie durant, et pour, aprés leur déeds, appartenir la pro
d'iccux, i leurs enfants nés et & naitre en lgitime mariage et par souches.

In view of all this carefully ordered devolution of his benevol-
ence to his grandchildren, family by family, it is argued that the
testator’s intention is defeated, if by application of clause 6 it is
made to result that the appellants (children of Mde. Auger, one of
the 3 residuary legates), are excluded from taking any part of the
share of Mde. Gardiner. It is said that such a result is bizarre
and clearly not intended by the testator. I consider that the
appellants have failed to establish the proposition or conclusion
for which they contend. The most that can be said is that they
have shewn it to be highly probable that, if the testator had con-
templated the possibility of such an event as has happened, he
would have provided against it. A court cannot give eflect to a
probable intention. It ean give effeet to the testator's intention
if diselosed by the words which the testator has used. The will
makes it clear that the appellants will receive whatever was given
to Mde. Auger, but it does not have the effect of a suring them
that the share of any of the othor 3 usufructuary legatees who may
die will devolve to them sither in whole or in part, at least, so long
as any of the 1 children survives. The shares of Guillaum
Napoléon and Mde. Gardiner have gone where the testator's
language has carried them. The court cannot amend that dis-
posal.

It is true that the shares of 3 of the usufructuaries in the
bequests of real estate were to be equalised by valuation, the
efiect being that each of the 3 would enjoy and transmit to his or

her family, real estate of equal value, inequality in value being
made up for by soulte, but that was a thing which was to be done
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and accomplished once for all, and its accomplishment did not
stand in the way of one usufructuary legatee getting an addition
by virtue of survivorship which would not have to be shared with
children of a predeceased legatee so as to bring about equality.

On the whole, 1 consider that the appellants are attempting
the impossible task of making the will provide for a case which,
in fact, has not been provided for. They fail to shew from the
will an intention on the part of the testator to have grandehildren
take concurrently with children, the share of a son or daughte
who would have died without issue.

On the contrary, the effect is to shew an intention to postpone
enjoyment by the grandchildren until expiry of enjoyment hy the
last surviving son or daughter.

It is true that there are cases in which the word “survivors "
has been given the meaning of “others.”  Can the appellants i\
that the expression survivants de mes quatre enfants légitimes ci-
dessus en dernier lieu nommes is to be read (having regard to the
will as a whole), as if it were autres desdils quatre enfants and then
that the word enfants is to be taken as including petits enfants as
warranted by art. 980 C.C'.

Counsel for the appellants are no doubt right in saying that
we should look to the descendants whom the testator wished 10
exclude as well a# to those whom he wished to gratify. On the
one hand, he clearly wished to exclude the children born out of
wedlock, for whom he made other provision. He also wished to
exclude Mde. Starnes. To make that exclusion, it was necessar
or at least obviously convenient to name the 4 children. On the
other hand, he desired to gratify 4 of his 5 legitimate children and
after them the children of these four. So far as probable intention
was concerned, there was no reason to prefer the respondent and
exclude the appellants.  How then was he to express himsell in
clause 67 Can the late Mde. Auger's children say: “We are
amongst the ‘survivants.”  He did not exelude us?"" It appears
to me to be necessary to the appellants’ case that they should shew
from the will something which repels the idea that the testator
preferred that the half share in question should be enjoyed by a
child rather than by grandchildren.

Against that there is not only the wording of the clause us 8
whole, but there is the employment of the word ““retourne ™ which
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implies an added gratification, that is to say, a benefit to legatees
already benefited rather than a gift to a new set of beneficiaries
such as the appellants would be. It is to be remembered that the
will was drawn up by a man trained in the law. It was easy to
have had the notary add apt words to make children of any sou or
daughter, who had previously died, share with the surviving uncles
and aunts in the share of any of the latter who might die without
issue, if the testator had so wished. The testator was free to
exercise his preferences and may have thought it wise not to make
the grandchildren too rich or make them rich too soon.

Treating of the considerations to which regard should be had
in construing testamentary dispositions of which the purport is
not clear, it is said in Dalloz, Rep. verbis, Dispositions entrevifs
et Testamentaires, No. 3483,

11 est évident, d'aprés cela, que Vinterprétation d'un testament est une
wuvre de sagacité plutdt qu'une application de régles déterminées a priori.
Aussi le législateur, n'en a-t-il & cet égard établi aucunes.  Plus tard, cepen-
dant, lorsqu'il est arrivé aux conventions, il a été plus explicite: il a posé
quelques régles générales d'interprétation (art. 1156 et suiv.). Pourquoi cette
différence? M. Corn-Delisle (Donation et Testament sur I'urt. 1002, no. 2)
en donne une explication judicicuse. La volonté testamentaire, dit-il, est
plus capricicuse que I volonté conventionnelle. Celle-ci trouve un controle
dans V'opposition d'intérét des parties contractantes, et la combinaison de
lintention des parties forme une intention commune. La volonté testa-
mentaire est despotique; elle s'exerce sans contrdle, et devient par li méme
plus difficile & pénétrer.

Hespecting the meaning of survivors reference may be made to
Re Bilham; Buchanan v. Hill, [1901] 2 Ch. 169; Garland v. Smith,
[1904] 1 Ir. R. 35; Inderwick v. Tatchell, [1903] A.C. 120; Re
Rubbins, Gill v. Worrall, [1898] 79 L.T.R. 313.

Since these notes were first written, the Chief Justice has ealled
our attention to the decision of this court and of the Superior
Court in Ste. Marie v. Bourassa, 18 Rev. Leg. O.8. 135, 454,33 J. 327.
That case presents striking resemblances to the one now before us.
What one may eall the scheme of the will is the same in each case.
The testator in each case sets out by making specific bequests to
each child in two groups; in the Ste. Marie case giving capital
sums to daughters and landed properties to sons, and with gift
over to grandchildren. There was even (as here) a provision for
equalising values of the landed properties. Then came provision
that in case of death of a son or sons without the issue
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sa part ou leurs parts retournera ou retourneront 4 mes autres garcons sur-
vivants, & I'exclusion de leurs sceurs.

The action was taken by the children of a son who had died,
to recover a share of the part of another son who had died at a later
date. The argument for the plaintiff tutrix of the children is so
like that made before us that, had the Ste. Marie v. Bourassa case
been cited to us there would have been an inclination to think the
latter argument a copy of the former. The conclusion in that
case is in accord with that now arrived at. The appellants,
therefore, fail on the main ground of their appeal.

1t, however, appears to be necessary to consider whether the
respondent has the same right to what passed to Mde. Gardiner
from Guillaume-Napoléon Beaudry on his death as she has to the
share which Mde. Gardiner received directly from the testator.
Clause 6 carried the share of Guillaume-Napoléon to the 3
daughters who survived him, in life enjoyment. When Mde.
Gardiner afterwards died without issue, did clause 6 (or the will
as a whole) carry to the respondent as sole survivor of the 4,
Mde. Gardiner’s one-third of what had been enjoyed by Guillaume-
Napoléon?

Neither in clause 6 or elsewhere in the will does the testator
provide that the share which once passes to a survivor is to go to
the survivors of that survivor in case of death of the latter without
issue. On the contrary, the disposition is to the children of that
survivor. There is no provision for continuing accretion to the
survivors of the 4 children, but only provision for a first step in
accretion. It is the particular share given (as part) which is
passed on to the survivors and it is not said that it is to go to the
last survivor. The law favours early vesting. It is to be re-
membered that the legacy to each of the 4 children was a legacy
of individual objects or assets in so far as respects the properties
in question in the present action. The substitution of Mde.
Gardiner’s third share of the Guillaume-Napoléon specific legacy
lapsed by reason of failure of substitutes on the death of Mde.
Gardiner. It follows that no part of the immovables bequeathed
to Guillaume-Napoléon were carried by the channel of Mde.
Gardiner to the respondent by virtue of the will of Jean Louis
Beaudry.

It likewise follows that though Mde. Gardiner enjoyed only as
life usufructuary or institute what she took of Guillaume-
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Napoléon’s share of the properties in question, what she so took
fell at her death into her own individual estate and passed to her
own heirs and out of operation of the will of Jean Louis Beaudry.

For these reasons the respondent’s action fails in so far as
respects the assets mentioned in par. No. 9 of her declaration,
namely, subdivisions Nos. 8 and 9 of lot official No. 1506 St.
Antoine ward, Montreal, saving such share thereof (if any) as she
may have inherited as an heir or legatee of Mde. Gardiner.

Having dealt with that part of the action, there remains for
consideration the appellants’ objection that, even if they should
fail on their main ground, the judgment, nevertheless, has gone
too far in that it has declared the respondent to be owner of the
assets in question out and out instead of having merely declared
her entitled thereto as life usufructuary or institute.

Though probably of little real significance—seeing that an
institute in law holds as an owner—the objection has foundation,
as the unqualified terms of the judgment may be a menace to the
appellants upon the ultimate possible opening of the substitution
in their favour.

In the result, the appeal is maintained in part; the respondent
is declared owner in life enjoyment of the entirety of the properties
described in par. 5 of the plaintifi’s declaration and the prayer of
the action is granted as to them; but it is declared that the prop-
erties described in par. 9 of the declaration were not transmitted
by the will of the late Jean Louis Beaudry to the respondent on
the death of Mde. Gardiner and the action as regards the latter is
dismissed saving any interest of the respondent therein as a
possible heir of Mde. Gardiner.

The judgment is accordingly modified and the appeal main-
tained to the extent aforesaid.

As the modification turns upon a question not raised, each side
will be left to bear its own costs of the appeal. The appellants
must pay the costs of the action in the Superior Court.

PeLLeTiER, J.:—This is a case for interpreting sub-clause 6
of clause 18 in the will of the late Hon. J. L. Beaudry, December
29, 1881.

This clause as it reads is very clear, so clear that it is not
susceptible of two interpretations. However, in comparing it with
the rest of the will it is certain that it does not conform to the
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general idea which prevailed when the will was drawn and to the
disposition of the property as the testator wished it.

Peculiar consequences follow from this and a disposal of a part
of the property which is contrary to the tenor of the whole will.
I am satisfied that the testator if he had forseen the case now
before us would perhaps have arranged this otherwise, but that
was a matter for him; if he has not done so can we adopt an
interpretation different from that imposed upon us by the letter
of the will in order to reform in this respect the part of the will
which engages our attention? 1 do not believe it.

The testator was a legislative councillor; he had been several
times mayor of Montreal; he knew what he wished to say and he
formally declared, with no possible ambiguity, that if any of his
children, whose names he mentions, should die without issue, their
share in the property would go to the survivors of his other children,
80 that the survivors in question should have the usufruct and
that the title should be in the children per stirpes.

It could not have been expressed more clearly, but now we are
asked to apportion a part of this property to those who are not
survivors and who are, therefore, clearly excluded. That would
be acting in contradiction to the very clear terms of the clause.

1 believe that the court is without power to come to the aid of
the appellants who, no doubt, have the equity with them, but the
clause in question does not present any doubt or ambiguity which
in certain cases would permit us to give to a deed or a clause of
that deed one interpretation rather than another.

If the intention of the testator was doubtful, we could interpret
it; if it was susceptible of two meanings, we should ascertain
which would most accord with the other provisions of the will, but
I am satisfied that it cannot be said that a testator who clearly
gives property to primus has wished to give it to secundus. Al-
though I would have preferred to come to a different conclusion,
I consider it impossible to do so, and I am, therefore, of opinion
that the judgment should be affirmed.

LAVERGNE, J., dissented. Judgment varied.

e

— o e A e A A



' not
ould
e.

id of
t the
rhich
se of

rpret
rtain
, but
early

Al-
1sion,
inion

jed.

43D.L.R.] DominioN Law Reports.

TWAITES v. MORRISON.

Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Harvey, C.J., Stuart, Beck
and Hyndman, JJ. October 18, 1918.

1. Sate (§ II B—30)—AGREEMENT TO BUY “GELDING”—SALE OF “nriceor”
—ITJI'I‘IED (‘i)NlllTl()N—(;ELl)lNli OF HORSE-DEALING COMMERCE—
thl’E(”ﬂ()N—Rl“"’ls OF PARTIES,

An agreement for sale being for a “gelding,” there is an implied con-
dition that the subject of the sale shall be the “gelding” of horse-dealing
commerce; this condition is not complied with by the delivery of a
riggot although both parties honestly believed at the time of sale that
it was a gelding and in a proper action the purchaser is entitled to dam-
ages.

2. Preapings (§ I N—110)—CARELESSNESS IN PREPARING—ACTION DIS-
MISSED—AMENDMENT OF BY APPELLATE CoURT,

A plaintiff who in his pleadings carelessly alleges falsehocd and fraud
on \A'l!li(ih ground the action is dismissed, there being no evidence of fraud,
is not entitled to have such pleadings amended so as to give him the relief
he might have been entitled to had the pleadings been properly drawn.
ArpeaL by plaintiff from a judgment of a District Court Judge

in an action for damages for fraudulent misrepresentations.

Affirmed.

G. H. Ross, K.C., for appellant; . M. Blackstock, for re-
spondent.

Harvey, CJ.:—I prefer to express no opinion as to whether
the sale in question should be considered one by description within
the Sales of Goods Ordinance or whether the defect is one of
substance or merely incidental.

The action is one for damages and is based on a charge of
fraudulent misrepresentation. The charge failed absolutely and
the court should not attempt to frame a new case for the plaintiff
unless justice requires it. I do not think it does, for I feel con-
siderable doubt whether the evidence establishes any real damage
whatever. The only evidence of damage given by the plaintiff is
that a horse, such as this, has bad qualities that a gelding would
not have. As to details, he contents himself with evidence of value
4 months after the purchase without anything from which one can
say that that difference was due to the defective quality in the
horse. As against this, evidence is given by the defendant to
shew that for 2 years preceding the sale the horse was deemed to
be a gelding and to have all the qualities of a gelding and to give
the satisfactory results to be derived from a gelding. The trial
judge, in effect, accepts this evidence of the defence and, in the
face of it, I find difficulty in concluding that the plaintiff suffered
any substantial damage.

I would, therefore, dismiss the appeal with costs.

Statement.

Harvey, CJ.
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Stuart, J.:——The defendant sold to the plaintiff a horse identi-
fied and seen by the parties just before and at the time of the
bargain for the sum of $80, which was paid in cash at the time,
and the horse was concurrently delivered. The plaintiff had
asked the defendant, before seeing the horse, if it was a mare or a
gelding, and the defendant said it was a gelding. Defendant
gave plaintifi a receipt for the purchase money, in which the
horse was described as “a bay gelding.” Plaintiff kept the horse
for 2 months and then discovered that the animal was neither a
mare nor a gelding, but what is known as a “riggot”’ or “ridge-
ling,” that is a male horse which has not been castrated but has
only one testicle and that so abnormally concealed as to give
the horse the appearance of a gelding. Plaintiff did not go and
see the defendant but went to his solicitor, who wrote the de-
fendant demanding back the purchase money, but only infer-
entially and not expressly offering to return the horse. The
defendant did not reply. After a period of 2 weeks, plaintiff's
solicitor again wrote warning defendant that if the money was not
returned in a week plaintiff would advertise and sell the horse and
sue the defendant for the difference between the proceeds realised
and the original purchase-price and the cost of the keep of the
horse. Defendant still did not reply. The plaintiff advertised
the horse and sold it for $30. He then brought this action against
the defendant alleging (as unfortunately is so often lightly and
carelessly done in these days) a false and fraudulent warranty by
the defendant and claiming damages. There were other war-
ranties asserted in addition to that respecting the animal being a
gelding.

The trial judge dismissed the action and the plaintiff has
appealed.

On the grounds chiefly dealt with in his judgment by the trial
judge, I think he was right. The point mainly relied upon in the
appeal, viz., that respecting the sexual nature of the animal the
trial judge said nothing more than this: “As to the sex of the
animal I think the defendant acted upon a fair and reasonahly
well-grounded belief that the horse was a gelding.”

There is admittedly no reason, disclosed by the evidence, for
not believing that the defendant honestly believed that the animal
was, in fact, a gelding. This removes all element of fraud.




.L.R.

lenti-
f the
time,
[ had
e or i
ndant
h the
horse
ther a
ridge-
at has
0 give
o and
he de-
infer-
The
intiff '«
/a8 not
se and
ealised
of the
ertised
against
Hy and
nty by
I wWar-
being a

tiff has

he trial
n in the
mal the
¢ of the
sonably

nce, for
e animal
1.

43D.LR/ DominioN Law REePorTs.

In my view, the initial question is one of fact, not of law. Did
the plaintiff get the real thing which he intended to buy? Is the
difference between ‘a gelding and a riggot s substantial as to
justify the court in saying that he did not?

It will be said, in this case, the plaintiff wanted to buy a horse
and he got a horse, and he saw it was a horse when he got it.
Just there comes the question of fact. Of course he wanted a
horse, but the fact that he asked beforehand: *‘ls it a mare or a
gelding?”” shews that it was not only a specimen of the mere genus
horse that he wanted to buy but a certain clearly specified and
understood species of the genus horse, namely, a gelding. And
he did not get a gelding but a riggot. It is, in my opinion, a
question of fact in each case just where the line between incidental
quality and essential substance is to be drawn. All I can say is
that I think this case falls clearly within the field of essential
substance or subject-matter.

1, therefore, think that if the purchaser had offered the horse
back, had held him for the vendor and had sued for the purchase-
money, as for money had and received, he would, undoubtedly,
have been entitled to succeed, at least, when the animal was in as
good a condition as when he bought it, and there is nothing to
shew that it was not. Also, if he had framed his action upon a
contract to sell a gelding and simply alleged that this contract was
broken, he could have recovered damages.

But the plaintiff made great difficulties for himself by the
course he took. e proceeded to sell the horse and give title to
it by extra-judicial procedure and then brought an action for
damages for false and fraudulent warranties, failed absolutely to
establish any fraud at all, and never asked to amend.

If the action had been properly framed, I think, upon the facts
disclosed in the evidence, the plaintiff could have succeeded so far
as liability is concerned.

In Josling v. Kingsford, 13 C.B.N.S. 447, 143 E.R. 177, there
had been a sale of a specified bulk of oxalic acid which was identified
and also actually inspected by the purchaser. After deliveries of
certain quantities, amounting to nearly all of the acid, the sub-
purchasers complained of the quality. It was discovered that the
acid had been sariously adulterated. The purchaser sued: (1) On

a contract to sell oxalic acid; (2) on a warranty that it was oxalic
acid.

Twarres
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It was held by the trial judge that there was no evidence of «
warranty, but he told the jury that the vendors had contracted
to sell oxalic acid and were bound to do so, and that it was a ques-
tion of fact for them to say whether the purchaser had got what
would be known in commerce under the denomination of oxalic
acid, and if he had not he was entitled to damages. The jury
gave a verdict for the plaintiff. On appeal the direction was
sustained. Williams, J., who delivered the judgment of the court
saying:—

It is not possible to construe the contract in any other way than that it

was a part of the agreement that the subject of the sale should be the oxalic
acid of commerce, p. 457.

8o here, I think, it is clear that it was part of theagreement that
the subject of the sale should be the “gelding” of horse-dealing
commerce which it was not.

This is, perhaps, the same thing in substance as saying that it
was an implied condition of the contract that the horse was a
gelding, and that the purchaser, having kept the horse, could
treat the condition as sinking to a warranty and sue for damages.

There were, therefore, three perfectly good courses open to the
plaintiff: first, to refuse absolutely to keep the horse, place him
at the defendant’s disposal, subject possibly to a lien in his own
favour, and sue for money had and received; secondly, having
kept the horse, to frame his action upon a statement of the facts
to allege an implied condition which, exercising his rightful option,
he had chosen to treat as an implied warranty and ask for
damages; thirdly, as was done in the first count, in Josling v.
Kingsford, supra, to allege a simple breach of a contract to sell
him a gelding, this third perhaps being in substance the same as
the second.

But, instead of adopting any of these courses, he rushed into
an allegation of falsehood and fraud. His pleading, I think,
cannot be treated as being anything else than an allegation of an
express warranty, with the added character of deceitfulness and
fraud. If he had not used the words “falsely and fraudulently,”
but had simply said that the defendant “warranted” that the
horse was a gelding, the court could no doubt have treated this
as meaning not an express warranty but an implied one. But
when he added the reference to falsehood and fraud, he must be
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held, T think, to have been asserting that something had bheen
expressly represented (a term of equity) or warranted (a term of
common law).

The defendant went to trial to meet this undoubted allegation
of intended fraud. The trial judge found, ard upon the evidence,
rightly, that there was no fraud at all.

The question now is, should this court of its own motion, now
reform the pleadings and give the plaintiff relief? 1 am not dis-
posed in such a case as this to do so at this stage where fraud has
heen alleged.

Even if we were to amend, it could only be on condition of
payment of costs. At most, the plaintiff could only recover $40
or $50, and the evidence as to the damage is not at all conclusive.
There was rather weighty evidence on behalf of the defendant that
the horse had given good satisfaction as a work horse for a year
and a half. The costs are now far in excess of any damage suffered.

1 would dismiss the appeal with costs.

Beck, J.:—This is an appeal by the plaintiff from the judgment
of His Honour Judge Crawford.

The statement of elaim, abbreviated, was as follows:—

(1) The defendant, falsely and fraudulently warranting a horse
to be a gelding, 7 years old, safe and gentle and broken to drive
single and double, sold the horse to the plaintiff for $80, then
paid. (2) To the knowledge of the plaintiff, the horse was not a
gelding, was not 7 years old, and was not safe and gentle. (3)
The plaintiff relied upon the representations of the defendant as
to the class and qualities of the horse and has suffered damage.
(4) The horse, by reason of the premises, was of no use to the
plaintiff, and he was obliged to, and did, get rid of and sell the
same for a less price, ete.

The defence consists of denials of all the material allegations
together with an allegation that the defendant sold the horse
without warranty of any kind, and that the plaintiff examined it
and agreed to accept it and to pay the price.

What is the ground of the plaintifi’s action? If it was intended
to be a warranty, i.e., a contract of warranty, the proper form of
the statement of claim would have been merely to allege the con-
tract and its breach, with a claim for damages, i.c., the warranty
and the points on which it was not fulfilled. Bullen & Leake,
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Precedents of Pleading, 7th ed., tit. “Warranty,” gives a form:
(1) the defendant by warranting a horse to be then, ete., sold the
horse to the plaintiff for $ , which the plaintifi then paid to the
defendant; (2) the horse was not then, ete.; (3) particulars, (a)
the warranty was in writing dated, etc.; (b) the horse was unsound
in the following respects; (4) by reason of the breach of the
warranty the horse was of no use to the plaintiff (or was worth
$ less than if it had been as warranted); (5) damages. The
same book, tit. Frauds, also gives a form following the lines of
form given in the English Rules App. Court, s. 6, No. 14: (1)
the plaintiffi has suffered damage by the defendant inducing the
plaintiff to buy a horse and pay him $ , the price thereof, by
fraudulently representing to the plaintiff that the horse was
sound, whereas, in fact, it was unsound, to the defendant's
knowledge; (2) particulars; (3) damages.

The plaintiff’s statement of claim seems to confuse two distinct
grounds of action (to put on it the construction most favourable
to the pleader)—one based on contract, the other on tort—by
interweaving them, instead of stating them separately as alter-
native forms of action. But, it is worse than that. If the in-
tention was to rely, alternatively, on a contract of warranty
(1) it must have been an express warranty, for the Sale of Goods
Ord., 8. 16 (Eng., s. 14) says there is no implied warranty or
condition as to (a) quality or (b) fitness for any particular purpose
and (2) being express, it should have been stated whether it was
in writing or oral (Turquand v. Fearon, 48 1.J.Q.B. 703). If the
intention was to rely upon a fraudulent misrepresentation, «
representation should have been alleged; while what is alleged is
a false and fraudulent warranty. It really seems as if by the
word “warranty,” he meant representation, and intended the
action to be one solely grounded on fraud.

On this ill-drawn statement of claim answered by den’als, and
an affirmative allegation of inspection followed by acceptance for
the purpose, I suppose, of meeting the charge that the sale was
induced by fraud, if proved, the parties went to trial.

1 give, what seems to me, the facts proved so far as they are
material: the plaintiff and the defendant met. The defendant
said: Do you want to buy a horse, Mr. Twaites? Plaintiff said:
Yes, what is it, a mare or a gelding? Defendant said: A gelding.
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Plaintiff said: What is it like? and the defendant described it.
Both then went to a near-by barn and looked at the horse, and
the bargain was then closed; the plaintiff took possession of the
horse, paying the whole price in cash and receiving a receipt in
these words: Received from Charles W. Twaites payment in full
for bay gelding seven years old.

The sale took place on May 12, 1917.

The horse eventually turned out not to be a gelding but to be
a stallion uncastrated or only half costrated. Both parties really
supposed the animal to be a gelding. It was from the ways of
the animal especially, when among other animals of the plaintiff,
that he concluded that the animal was not a gelding and, ultimately
it was examined and one testicle was found. Witnesses described
the animal as a “rigot” (other forms of which are “riggot” and
“ridgeling”) or an *“‘original.” The evidence leads to the con-
clusion that the animal had not been even partially castrated but
was defective congenitally.

Evidence was given, though 1 think it is so much a matter of
general knowledge that the evidence was not necessary, that an
animal of that kind has characteristics and habits very different
from a gelding, and is a very undesirable one to have among other
horses and mares. The evidence, also, was directed to this par-
ticular animal and shewed that this animal was no exception to
the general rule. 4

The receipt, which 1 have quoted, describes the animal as a
gelding and mentions the age of the animal, but does not mention
or assert in any form that the animal is safe or gentle or broken
to drive in single or double harness. No question about the age
of the animal was raised at the trial. The trial judge, 1 gather,
found there was no warranty or representation that the animal
had been broken to single harness, and found that the plaintiff had
failed to prove that the animal was not quiet in double harness.
An attempt was made to prove fraud, but the evidence for the
plaintiff, if it be evidence, consisted only, as far as I can find, of
this:—

Q. Do you think Mr. Morrison knew that the horse was ariggot? A. Yes,
I think he did. Q. Do you think he was trying to put one over you? A. I

don't know. Q. Do you think that Mr. Morrison was trying to put one over
you? A, I think he must have been.

The defendant swore that he believed the animal to Le a gelding.
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As to this the trial judge said: ““As to the sex of the animal |
think the defendant acted upon a fair and reasonably well-grounde
belief that the horse was a gelding.”

Reverting to the plaintifi’s statement of claim, the case based o1
fraud failed; so did the case based on an express contract of
warranty, if such a case was ever intended, and the statute ex-
cludes an implied warranty.

“Warranty” is defined in the Sale of Goods Ord., s. 2 (0
(Eng., 8. 62) as
an agreement with reference to goods which are the subject of a contract of
sale but collateral to the main purpose of such contract, the breach of which

gives rise to a claim for damages but not to a right to reject the goods and
treat the contract as repudiated.

In my opinion, the assertion that the animal was a gelding was
not a warranty. It was something different; it was a part of the
description of the horse, the thing forming the subject-matter of
the contract of sale. It went to the essence of the contract, and
not to something collateral to the main purpose of the contract.
It brings the case under s. 15 of the Ordinance (Eng. 8. 13):—

Where there is a contract for the sale of goods by description, there is an
implied condition that the goods shall pond with the descripti

A buyer may waive a condition and elect to treat its breach as
a breach of warranty, and not as a ground for treating the contract
as repudiated, or circumstances compel him to adopt this course
(ss. 13 and 51, Eng. 11 and 53).

If the plaintiff intended to give this aspect to the case, I think
his statement of claim ought to have been so drawn, alternatively
if so desired, as to indicate that his claim was founded on an
implied condition of corresporlence to description which he had
elected to treat as an impli. . warranty to that effect. It is true
that the rules of pleading require only the material facts to be
stated and the appropriate relief to be asked, leaving the party
entitled to succeed upon any conclusions of law that can be
legitimately drawn from the facts. Nevertheless, pleadings must he
drawn with some degree of particularity. In doing so in this case,
a pointed reference to the description and the fact that the animal
did not correspond with it could hardly have been avoided. I
think, too, that an allegation of the plaintifi’s election to treat
the implied condition as a warranty would be one of the material
allegations which it would be necessary to make. Kspecially
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would these observations be appropriate if, as in this case, other
aspects of the case were distinctly indicated.

On the statement of claim as drawn in the present case, 1
think that it canaot be said that, on a minute examination of the
statement of claim and the elimination of allegations unnecessary
to support the action on the basis of an implied condition sunk to
the grade of a warranty, such a cause of action is sufficiently
alleged, especially, in view of the prominence given apparently to
two other possible aspects of the case. In some circumstances,
and at some stages of the case, a judge might perhaps have been
inclined to hold that such a cause of action was not too greatly
concealed to be discovered.

I take occasion to say what I have very often said that
practitioners seem to have an idea that the frame of the pleadings
is of very little consequence. This case will, I hope, tend to
eradicate this false idea. The form of the pleadings is, in my
opinion, so important that in practically every case they should
be reviewed by counsel before the case is entered for trial in the
light of the fuller information derived from examinations for dis-
covery, production of documents or otherwise. This is not the
first case in which a party has failed owing to his defective plead-
ings.

The question then comes, is this a proper case in which, no
amendment having been asked, the court ought to “mould the
pleadings” to conform to the evidence? After much discussion
and consideration I have, I confess, with some hesitation, decided
that this ought not to be done; for the reason that it may be that
if the correct aspect of the case had been set up by the plaintiff it
is not clear that no other evidence would have been given either
by calling other witnesses or by further examining or cross-
examining those actually called. 1, therefore, agree to dismiss
the plaintifi’s action with costs.

The case, though involving a trifling amount, except for the
costs incurred, has led to so much discussion amongst the members
of the court and to some divergence of opinion that I set down the
reasons why I think that, on the facts as they appear, the case is
one not of fraudulent misrepresentation, not of express warranty,
but of implied condition of correspondence with description.

6—43 p.L.R,

v
MORRISON.

Beck, J.




DominioN Law Reports. [43 D.LR.

I think the situation is that supposed and iilustrated in the
following extract from Pothier on Obligations, Part 1, ¢. 1, . 1,

art. 3, par. 1, clauses Nos. 17 and 18:—

17. Error is the greatest defect that can occur in a contract, for agreements
can only be formed by the consent of the parties and there can be no consent
when the parties are in an error reflecting the object of their agreement. . .

18. Error annuls the agreement, not only when it affects the identity of
the subject, but also when it affects that quality of the subject which the partics
had principally in view and which constitutes the substance of the thing. There-
fore, if, intending to buy a pair of silver candlesticks, I buy a pair which you
offer me, and which I take to be silver, whlletbeymonlyphudoopmr,
although indeed you had no design of deceiving me, being y If in the
mm,'hemtvillbenull.becaunthmriuwhwlallmbm
destroys my consent. For the thing which I wished to buy is a pair of silver
candlesticks; that which you offered me, being a pair of copper candlesticks,
cannot be said to be the thing which I intended to buy. . . . 8iaes pro
auro veneat, non valet (the inuation of this quotation, which is from Ulpian,
is) aliter alque si aurum quidem fueril, delerius autem quam emplor ezistimaril;
tunc enim emptio valet.

ltho'herwuswhenthemldhmlyonmmuldqudnyoflhe
thing.

lnthecueofKenudyv The Panama, &c., Co., L.R. 2 Q.B.
580, Blackburn, J., giving the judgment of the court, uses these

words after referring to the Roman Civil law:—

And, as we apprehend, the principle of our law is the same as that of the
civil law; and the difficulty in every case is to determine whether the mis-
take or misapprehension is as to the substance of the whole consideration,
going, as it were, to the root of the matter, or only to some point, eves
though a material point, an error as to which does not affect the substance of
the whole consideration., p. 588.

In the same case the same judge says:—

There is, however, a very important difference between cases where & con-
tract may be rescinded on account of fraud, and those in which it may be
rescinded on the ground that there is a diff in subst b the thing
bargained for and that obtained. 1t is enough to shew that there was a fraudu-
lent represeritation as to any part of that which induced the party to enter into
thc contract which he seeks to rescind; but where there has been an innocent

ion or mi hension, it does not authorise a rescission unless
ltuluohuwlbcwamnhemuucomdeﬁmoemmmoebewm
what was supposed to be and what was taken, so as to constitute a failure of
consideration. For example, where a horse is bought under a belief that it
is sound, if the purchaser was induced to buy by & fraudulent representation
a8 to the horse's d the contract may be rescinded. If it was induced
by an honest misrep ion as to its d though it may be clear
that both vendor and purchaser thought that they were dealing about a sound
horse and were in error yet the purchaser must pay the whole price, unless

there was a warranty, p. 587.
I make several observations upon the foregoing judgment:
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(1) The court distinguishes most clearly (in cases where fraud is
absent) between an error as to the substance of the thing, the
subject-matter of the sale, and an error merely as to some quality
though a material one supposed to belong to it; (2) when it is
said that, in the case of an innocent misrepresentation or mis-
apprehension, there is no right of rescission, and the whole price
must be paid, unless there is a warranty. This is clearly stated
as relating to a case of error not of substance, but merely of quality;
(3) in Benjamin on Sales, 5th ed., p. 439, on a note to the words
“unless there was a warranty” in the foregoing quotation it is

said:—

It is submitted that this statement of the law, and the decision of the case
itsell, is not, having regard to the decisions since the Judicature Acts, in accord-
ance with law at the present day. The right to rescind a contract will now be
g d by the equitable principles stated infra. The enquiry is an interest-
ing one. Suppose the case of a sale of a horse upon a representation made
honestly, which turns out to be untrue in fact . . . would the buyer be
entitled to return the horse and demand back his money? It is conceived
that he would (and then it is said) the equitable principles with regard to
misrepresentation are now, by virtue of the Judicature Acts, the rule in all
courts, and seem to be preserved by the Code (i.c., the Sale of Goods Act)
p. 441,

The nearest reported case I have been able to find is an Irish
case, (7ill v. McDowell, [1903] 2 Ir. R. 463. That was a case of a
sale of an animal as a heifer which turned out to be a hermaphro-
dite. Three of the four judges held that there was evidence of
misrepresentation sufficient to maintain the action on the ground
of fraud, but all the judges agreed that, independently of fraud,
there was no binding contract because the parties had bargained
about a thing substantially different from what the seller knew
the purchaser intended to bargain for, following the principles laid
down by Blackburn, and Hannen JJ., in Smith v. Hughes (1871),
L.R.6Q.B. 597. In that case, as in this, the animal was a specific
thing, in view of both parties at the time of the bargain, yet the
description was relied upon.

Randall v. Newson (1877), 2 Q.B.D. 102, held that on the sale
of an article for a specific purpose there is an implied undertaking
by the seller that it is reasonably fit for the purpose, and there
is no exception as to latent undiscoverable defects; and that the
limitation as to latent defects introduced by Readhead v. Midland
R. Co., L.R. 4 Q.B. 379, does not apply to the sale of a chattel.
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In the course of the reasons for the judgment of the court
given by Brett, L.J., it is said, p. 109:—

In some contracts the undertaking of the seller is said to be only that tle
article shall be merchantable; in others, that it shall be reasonably fit for the
purpose to which it is to be applied. In all, it seems to us, it is either as-und
or expressly stated, that the fundamental undertaking is, that the art./
offered or delivered shall answer the description of it contained in the contracl
That rule comprises all the others; they are adaptations of it to particulir
kinds of contracts of purchase and sale. You must, therefore, first determine
from the words used, or the circumstances, what in or according to the contract
i8 the real mercantile or business deseription of the thing which is the subject-
matter of the bargain of purchase or sale, or, in other words, the contract,
If that subject matter be merely the commercial article or commodity, the
undertaking is, that the thing offered or delwered shall answer that deseription,
that is to say, shall be that article or commodity, salable or merchantable. i
the subject-matter be an article or commodity to be used for a particular
purpose, the thing offered or delivered must answer that description, that is to say,
it must be that article or dity and bly fit for the particular
purpose. The governing principle, therefore, is that the thing offered and
delivered under a contract of purchase and sale must answer the description
of it which is contained in words in the contract, or which would be so con-
tained if the contract were accurately drawn out. And if that be the govern-
ing principle, there is no place in it for the suggested limitation.

The limitation was suggested in this way. Readhead v. Md-
land R. Co., L.R. 4 Q.B. 379, was supposed to lay down the prin-
ciple that a seller of a chattel for a special purpose was not liahle
on an implied warranty of fitness for that purpose, in respect of a
latent defect, which no care or skill could discover. Randall v.
Newson, supra, was the case of a pole to be used as part of the
plaintif’s carriage. The pole was fitted to the carriage. The pole
broke when the carriage was being driven and the horses were
injured. The plaintiff sued for damages. The jury found that
the pole was not reasonably fit for use in the carriage and that
there was no negligence on the part of the defendant in making
the pole or in the selection of the material for it. The trial judge,
Archibald, J., entered a verdict for the plaintiff. The Divisional
Court (Blackburn and Lush, JJ.), ordered judgment to be entered
for the defendant on the ground that the answers of the jury
amounted to a finding of a latent defect in the wood of the pole,
which no care or skill could discover, and that the principle of the
decision in Readhead v. Midland R. Co. extended to the sale of
an article for a specific purpose. The Court of Appeal held that
the implied undertaking of the seller was not restricted by the
limitation applied in the Readhead case to a contract of carriage;
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e court that, in other words, no such limitation applied to the implied Ai‘

undertaking in the sale of a specific chattel for a specific purpose. 8.C.

: I;m ';m The quotation from the judgment in Randall v. Newson, which o aires
or the , ;

ﬂs‘mm d 1 interrupted for the foregoing explanation, proceeds as follows:— » o)
e artich If the article or commodity offered or delivered does not in fact answer the ORRISON,
contract description of it in the contract, it does nol do so more or less because the defect in Beck, J.
articular it is patent or latent or di able. And dingly there is no suggestion

etermine of any such limitation in any of the judgments in cases relating to contracts

rontract, of purchase and sale.

subject- See also a decision of our own court, Wright v. Nelson (1917),

;‘,’""""- 35 D.L.R. 603.

,l,',‘l,,”“ Putting the case as one of a substantial difference in the thing

able. i in question, the implied condition of correspondence with the
articulur description became effective. It gave a right to repudiate. The
:r'(::;‘" plaintiff did this by two letters, the effect of which is that he held
ol aid the animal subject to the defendant’s order and demanded his
seription money back. The defendant refused. The plaintiff certainly was
D 88 00w not bound to take the animal to the defendant, hand it over to
Eaid him and “whistle” for his money. He was entitled to a return

of his money in return for the animal. On refusal he was surely
entitled to a lien on the animal. The plaintiff was then at liberty

v. Mud-

::’« Ill)nrll.lll' to treat the implied condition as a warranty and sue for damages.

sk of The fact of his selling the animal was perfectly justified and was

il a convenient way to ascertain his damages.

ol e Hy~xpman, J.:—This is an appeal from the judgment of His myndman, J.
he pole Honour Judge Greene, who dismissed the plaintifi’s claim with

BS were costs.

ol that The action is founded entirely on alleged false and fraudulent

ad that representation of the defendant, in consequence of which the

e plaintiff alleges damage.
L judes, The plaintiff is a dealer in live stock, especially cattle and
el horses, and has been employed in that occupation for upwards of
torid 25 years. The defendant is a farmer on a comparatively small
e by scale, and it can fairly be assumed that the plaintiff was experienced
vy e(ulully. at least, with the defendant as a judge of ordinary farm
it v :Illllllmhi. On May 12, 1917, the defendant approached the plain-
sale of tifT with respect to buying a horse, the facts being contained in the
Jd that ful}uwing questions and answers, p. 6 of the appeal book, in the
i <-\|nk-nw‘3 of the plaintiff :—

E Q. Will you tell us when you purchased this horse from Morrison and
arriage; what iati were leading up to the purchase? A. I forget the exact
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ALTA.  dates, but I have no doubt I met Mr. Morrison on the market, and he suid
= do you want to buy a horse, Mr. Twaites? Q. Defendant? A. Yes. I suid
what is it, a mare or gelding. He said, a gelding. I said, what is it like, and
Twarres  he described it to me. We went across to have a look at the horse to the
v. blacksmith’s barn by the Salvation Army, and eventually I bought it. Wll,
» Mo_nimu. I said, if you come along with me I will pay you for it, and I paid him for it in

‘ Hyndman,J. cash. He gave me a receipt. I wrote the receipt out and he signed it.

The receipt is in the following words:—

May 12, 1917, received from Charles W. Twaites payment in full for Ly

‘ gelding, seven year old, two white feet and branded on left shoulder, signed
George Morrison, Medicine Hat.

At p. 7 of the appeal book are the following questions and

answers :—

Q. Will you tell us again what the defendant said as to the horse being o
gelding? A. In the first instance there? Q. During the whole conversation’
A. He just simply said it was a gelding when I bought it. I asked him what
the horse was, a mare or gelding, and he said a gelding, and that was the only
talk we had about him as to his sex.

It is not at all clear, therefore, that the plaintiff would not have
: entertained the idea of purchasing at all if the reply had been
other than it was, namely, a gelding. I am of opinion that it was
at that stage mere curiosity on the plaintifi’s part, for a dealer in
horses buys all kinds.

After using the horse for about a month and experiencing a
good deal of dissatisfaction on account of its actions when with
other horses, the plaintiff discovered that the horse was not a
gelding in the ordinary acceptation of the term, but that it wus
) i what he calls a “riggot” or “ridgeling,” meaning a horse which has
} not been properly castrated or whose genital organs were never
properly developed. He then requested the plaintiff to retum
i him the moneys paid and to take back the animal. This the
o defendant refused to do, and in about a month’s time the plaintif
sold the horse at auction for the sum of $30, and sued the defendant
for the difference between the purchase-price and $30 together
with the costs of its keep for the period which he had it, namely,
§4 80 | The action being founded on a false and fraudulent repre-
i sentation the trial proceeded wholly on that basis and resulted in
S the trial judge finding as a fact that the defendant acted upon s

i M fair and reasonably well-grounded belief that the horse wus a

% gelding, and dismissed the action with costs.
bl I think the trial judge took the correct view of the law, which
i appears to me to be well settled in cases similar to this. The
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he suid, case is not one of sale of goods by description, but the sale of a ALTA.
 Lsuid specific chattel where the buyer inspects the goods before com- .
:kfo ;’llf pletion of the bargain. If the buyer had purchased this specific gy ares
. Well, article by deseription, relying on the vendor’s representation that Mon:m".
 for it in it was a gelding and it turned out not to be a gelding, doubtless, f—
k. there would have been a right to rescission and return of the a1
moneys paid, but here the facts are quite different from that.
ll,f::':l"""i After the intimation was given that the defendant had a horse
described as a gelding both sides examined the animal, and, asa
ms and result, both being of the same belief or opinion as to its ‘‘sex,”
the bargain was struck and the animal delivered.
> being a In Ormrod v. Huth, 14 M. & W. 651, 153 E.R. 636, Tindal,
ersation” (.J., at p. 664, uses the following language:—
l:i';:ev:,:':]‘: The rule which is to be derived from all the cases appears to us to be that
. where, upon the sale of goods, the purchaser is satisfied without requiring a
warranty (which is a matter for his own consideration), he eannot recover
ot have upon a mere representation of the quality by the seller unless he can shew
d been that the representation was bottomed in fraud. If, indeed, the representation
TP was false to the knowledge of the party making it, this would, in general, be

conclusive evidence of fraud; but, if the representation was honestly made,
ealer in and believed at the time to be true, by the party making it, though not true
in point of fact, we think this does not amount to fraud in law, but that the
rule caveat emplor applies, and the representation itself does not furnish a

""""-f - ground of action. And although the cases may, in appearance, raise some
en with difference as to the effect of a false assertion or representation of title in a
8 not 4 seller., it will be found, on examination, that in each of those cases there was

cither an assertion of title embodied in the contract or a representation of title
which was false to the knowledge of the seller.

It seems to me that the case at bar fits squarely into the rule
above laid down, and although the latter was decided as far back
" ':N an as 1845 it has not since been modified or overruled. It is, however,
h"" ”,"f suggested that, even though the defendant is entirely innocent of
plaintif any fraud in the matter or even knowledge that the horse was not

t it was
hich has

e never

fe"‘l""" strictly as represented, that there was a mutual mistake entitling
oget ;er the plaintiff to rescission and return of the price, though there is
namely,

no suggestion on the record of any such claim. As pointed out
above, the whole action is based on fraud. It would, therefore,
in my opinion, be unfair and unjust to the defendant, at this
stage, to decide against him on what must be considered an
entirely new claim or form of action which might demand a
quite different form of defence both as to pleading and at the
trial. If it were a mere technicality, perhaps, it might be not

b repre-
ulted in
upon i
 was 4

r, which

s. The
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unjust for a court of appeal to do as is suggested, but, to my mind,
there is, in the point, much more than a mere technicality. The
question to be decided would be one of fact, that is, whether or
not the parties were mistaken as to the thing or subject-matter
of the bargain, or, the subject-matter being agreed to, then only
as to some quality or attribute thereof. My own opinion is that,
in this case, it is a mere quality or attribute of the thing bargaincd
for, but this fact ought to be decided only on the evidence of
expert witnesses. Now, it is clear that this phase of the case
was not consciously dealt with by counsel or the trial judge.
The very least which defendant ought to be entitled to is a new
trial, in any event. But, surely, some responsibility ought to re t
upon the plaintiff in respect to the manner in which his pleading-
are framed and the trial conducted. He chose to charge false an<!
fraudulent representation, and failed to substantiate it. To my
mind, he should be compelled to stand or fall on his claim as
launched and maintained throughout, no amendment at any time
having been asked for.

But, apart from all this, I have grave doubts as to whether or
not, even though he had succeeded in establishing that there was
a false and fraudulent representation, or even if he were entitled
to rescind on the ground of mutual mistake, that he has shewn
any actual damages. There is evidence both ways, and with this
point the trial judge has not dealt. The defendant’s own testi-
mony is to the effect that the horse was well worth the $80 paid
for it, and the only ground for asking the court to conclude that
the horse was worth $30 was because that was what it fetched at
the auction sale. However, that may not be at all a true test of
its value, because a great deal would depend on the manner in
which the sale was conducted, the number of persons present, the
season of the year and the demand for horses of that description
in the locality where the auction sale took place.

I have, therefore, come to the conclusion that the appeal
ought to be dismissed with costs. Appeal dismissed.

4
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OSHAWA BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS v. ROBSON ONT.
LEATHER CO.

Ontario Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Sir William R. Meredith, C.J.0.
and Maclaren, Magee and Hodgins, JJ.A., and Middleton, J.
April 23, 1918.
ReFERENCE (§ I—1)—TORT WAIVED—ACTION CONSISTING OF MATTERS OF
ACCOUNT—T0 OFFICIAL REFEREE—JUDICATURE Act, R.8.0, 1914,

\\;nez‘l he tort has been waived by the plaintiff in an action tor water
wrongfully and fraudulently taken, the wrongdoer being ealled upon to
pay the value of the water taken, the whole question in dispute con-
sisting of matters of account, an order referring the whole action to the
official referee for trial is properly made under &. 65 (¢) of the Judicature
Act, R8.0, 1914, ¢. 56.

A~ appeal by the plaintiff board from an order of FALCON- Statement.
srivae, C.J.K.B., under sec. 65 (c)* of the Judicature Act,
R8.0. 1914, ch. 56, referring the whole action to an Official
Referee for trial by him.

R. T. Harding, for appellant.

M. H. Ludwig, K.C., for respondent.

The judgment of the Court was read by

MippLeToN, J.:—This is an appeal by the plaintiff from an  iqgieton, 1.
order of the Chief Justice of the King's Bench referring this action
for trial to His Honour Judge McGillivray, as an Official Referee,
under sec. 65 (c) of the Judicature Act.

The plaintifi complains that the defendant company unlaw-
fully and fraudulently connected pipes to the plaintifi's water
system, at stand-pipes for fire protection, in the defendant com-
pany’s tannery, and took large quantities of water therefrom.

The plaintiff,i n the words of the late Mr. Adolphus, * Assumpsit
brings and God-like waives the tort,” and claims for the water, at
11 cents for each hundred cubic feet, the sum of $37,725.42.

The defendant company says, in effect, that, on several occa-
sions when it found its own water-supply unsuitable for its pur-
poses, and when its own waterworks were out of repair, it “used
water for its tannery from the plaintiff’s said service pipe,” but
not to the extent claimed, and submits to pay what shall be found
due. raising several contentions as to the basis upon which pay-
ment should be made. After thus euphemistically describing the
conduct of the defendant company, the pleader, with some sense

* 65. In an action, . . . (c) where the question in dispute consists
wholly or partly of matters of account, a Judge of the High Court Division
may at any time refer the whole action or any question or issue of fact arisin
therein or question of account either to an aﬂhnl M‘mmwllp.d‘
referee agreed upon by the parties.
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of humour, claims for it “that the statute commonly known as
the Statute of Frauds is a bar” to the claim.

The order of reference was made at the instance of the defend-
ant company and against the protest of the plaintiff.

All the cases shew that a wide meaning should be given to the
words “matters of account” in sec. 65; and we think they are
wide enough to warrant a reference in this case, as the so'e matter
in issue is the amount of water taken and the price that should
be paid.

The course adopted seems convenient, as there will probably
be much evidence of detail before the amount of water actually
taken can be ascertained. The value of the water taken can easily
be ascertained by the Referee, upon well-understood principles
applicable where the tort is waived and the wrongdoer is called
upon to pay the value of the thing taken, upon the implied
contract.

The statute as it now stands differs from the corresponding
provision in the Common Law Procedure Act, and authorises a
reference of the whole action when the question in dispute con-
sists wholly or partly of matters of account. The earlier Act
permitted only the question of account to be referred.

The appeal should be dismissed; costs to the defendant com-
pany in the cause. Appeal dismissed.

BELANGER v. L'UNION MUTUELLE DES VOYAGEURS DE
COMMERCE.

Quebec Court of Review, Archer, Greenshields and Lamothe, JJ.
May 22, 1918.

Insurance (§ II1—42)—BeNErFIT S0CIETY—BY-LAWS NOT ENFORCED—Li11-
BILITY UNDER INSURANCE POLICY—BY-LAW INVOKED TO ESCAPE.

A benefit society which has never enforced a rule requiring dues to he
promptly paid, but has made it a custom to accept payments from
members in arrears whenever they were willing to pay, cannot invoke
such rule in order to escape liability under the conditions of an insurance
poliey.

ArpEAL from a judgment of the Superior Court. Reversed.

Dame E. Bélanger, widow of Thomas Bernier, claimed $1,100
from the society defendant, due under a life insurance policy
issued by the defendant to said Bernier.

The society contested the claim, alleging that at the time of
his death in May, 1914, Bernier was in arrears on his policy and,

therefore, according to the rules of the association, the latter was
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in no way liable towards his widow for $1,000 claimed on the
policy, or for $100 towards funeral expenses.

The action was dismissed before the Superior Court.

GREENSHIELDS, J.:—Plaintifi’s action in the Superior Court
was dismissed solely on the ground that there had been a violation
of the strict rules of the association regarding the punctuality of
payment of the dues on the policy of insurance. The rules said
a member would be suspended from benefit if he did not pay within
a certain period following the date the monthly payments became
due. The only violation of the rules and regulations sought to be
established against the plaintifi’s late husband was his failure to
pay regularly his monthly dues.

We say there was no violation. The record shews that nearly
every one of the members were at one time or another in arrears,
and not one of them ws ever suspended. There was no violation
then because there was never any effort to enforce the rules. We
say the association created a custom which became so generally
prevalent and so well recognised that all the members believed
and knew that even if they were in arrears their money would be
taken any time they would pay, and gladly taken. Having
created that custom, the association cannot now invoke a rule or
regulation which, by that custom, is absolutely destroyed, and, in
this way, escape liability under the conditions of its policy. Dur-
ing the whole time Bernier was a member of the association he
paid his dues in arrears, which arrears were accepted by the
association without objection. The agents of the association were
instructed to collect arrears from the members, and one of the
agents, a few days before the death of Bernier, collected arrears
from him, which the association accepted and retained. The
association is bound by the custom which it created and followed,
and Bernier at the time of his death was a member in good stand-
ing. The association never suspended him or notified him that
he was suspended. We, therefore, cancel and annul the judgment
of the court below, which rejected plaintifi’s demand ,and the court
condemns the association to pay to the plaintiff the sum of $1,100
with interest from the date of service of the action and costs in
both courts. Appeal allowed.
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WHEELER v. HISEY.

Ontario Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Sir William R. Meredith, C'.J.0.,
Magee, Hodgins and Ferguson, JJ.A. April 23, 1918.

Prixcipal AND AGENT (§ I1 D—26)—AcCT DONE WITHOUT AUTHORITY OF
PRINCIPAL—RATIFICATION—FULL KNOWLEDGE OF FACTS.

In order that & person may be deemed to have ratified an act done
without his authority, it is necessary that at the time of the ratification
he should have full knoulﬁlze of all the material circumstances under
which the act was done, unless he intends to ratify the act and take the
risk whatever the circumstances may have been.

AN appeal by the defendant Abraham Hisey from the judgment
of the Senior Judge of the County Court of the County of Simcoe,
upon the findings of a jury, in favour of the plaintiffs, who were land
agents, for the recovery of a sum of money as commission on the
price ($9,000) at which the appellant sold his farm; and a cross-
appeal by the plaintiffs from the same judgment in so far as it
dismissed the action against the defendant Norman Hisey.

The defendants were father and son; the father (Abraham)
owned the farm; but it was the son (Norman) who “listed” it for
sale with the plaintiffs; by a writing which the son signed, the
plaintiffs were given ““ the exclusive sale of my property’’ —describ-
ing the farm—‘“good for 90 days,” “and in case of a sale being
made I will pay to them a commission of 2 per cent. on the selling
price.”

The sale upon which the plaintiffs claimed commission was not
made by them, but by the defendants or one of them.

The finding of the jury was as follows:—

“Norman Hisey, after consulting his father, became his agent;
therefore Abraham Hisey becomes responsible for commission.”

Upon this, judgment was entered for the plaintiffs against the
defendant Abraham Hisey, and in favour of the defendant Norman
Hisey, as above.

W. A. Boys, K.C., for appellant and for the respondent in the
cross-appeal.

D. L. McCarthy, K.C., for the plaintiffs, the respondents
and cross-appellants,

The judgment of the Court was read by

MegrepitH, (0.J.0.:—This is an appeal by the defendant
Abraham Hisey from the judgment of the County Court of
the County of Simcoe, dated the 20th January, 1918, which was
directed to be entered on the findings of the jury, after the trial
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of the action before the Senior Judge of that Court on the 16th
January, 1918.

The respondents are land agents, and sue for the recovery of a
commission of 2 per cent. on the purchase-price of the appellant’s
farm, which he sold for $9,000.

The employment of the respondents as agents to sell was by
the defendant Norman Hisey, the son of the appellant, and was
evidenced by the following document:—

“Stayner, Oct. 20th, 1916.

“I hereby give to Messrs. Wheeler & Hol-

brook, Stayner, the exclusive sale of my property

known as lot 11 concession 3 Township of Not-

tawasaga, and in case of a sale being made I will

pay to them a commission of 2 per cent. on the
selling price.

““Name, Norman Hisey.

‘ Address, Stayner, R.R. No. 2 (L.8.)”

The farm, which consisted of one half—not the whole—of
lot 11, was owned by the appellant, and the son had no interest
in it, but he owned the stock on the farm, and had made some
improvements on it, and would probably have become the owner
of it at his father's death.

The respondents testified that their understanding at the
time this document was signed was, that the son had an interest
in the farm.

There was a conflict of evidence as to what occurred at the
time the document was signed. According to the testimony of
the son, the understanding was that no commission should be
payable if the farm were sold by him. This was denied by the
respondents, who testified that Norman Hisey was told by them
that they would be entitled to the commission even if a sale were
made by him. It must be taken that the jury accepted the testi-
mony of the respondents on this point.

It is clear upon the evidence that the son did not assume, in
entering into the agreement, to act for his father. The only men-
tion of the father that was made was in what was said by the son
after the document was signed, and what he said was, that he
would see his father and that if his father was not satisfied he
would let the respondents know.

On returning home, the son informed his father that he had
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“listed” the farm with the respondents, but he did not tell his
father that he had given an exclusive authority to sell to the
respondents. The father was satisfied with the listing having been
made; but the proper conclusion upon the evidence is, that, if he
had been told that an exclusive authority to sell had been given
and that the commission would be payable if the farm were sold,
as it afterwards was, without the intervention of the respondents
and not in consequence of their introducing the purchaser, he
would not have sanctioned it.

Some days after, in consequence of something that was said
by a commercial traveller, who was asked by the appellant to try
to find a purchaser for the farm, the son went to the office of the
respondents in order to ascertain if the authority he had signed
was an exclusive one. Here again there was a direct conflict
between the son and the respondents. According to the testimony
of the son, the respondent Holbrook told him that no commission
would be payable to them if the farm were sold by his father.
Holbrook was asked :—

“186. Q. If Norman Hisey says he did come in and asked
what the word ‘exclusive’ meant, he having got information in the
meantime, what do you say?”

And his answer was: “I say it is wrong. Only the discussion
about the farm.”

I understand this to be a denial that Norman Hisey had seen
him (Holbrook) after the document was signed for the purpose of
making such an inquiry, and indeed the testimony of the respond-
ents is, that they did not see Norman Hisey after the document was
signed until he came in in response to a letter from them requesting
payment of the commission on the sale which had then been made.

The attention of the jury was not directed to this point in the
case, and it has not been passed upon by them. The proper con-
clusion as to it is, I think, that the testimony of Norman Hisey
should be accepted. The probabilities are all in favour of his
having gone to make the inquiry that he said he made. The
question as to the authority being an exclusive one arose before
the sale of the farm, and there is the testimony of the father that
his son was sent to make the inquiry.

Even if that conclusion is not warranted, there was, in my
opinion, no ratification of his son’s act by the appellant. He was
not informed of the important provision of the agreement his son
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had made—that the respondents were to have for 90 days the
exclusive right of selling the farm—and it is clear upon the evidence
that, if he had known that, he would not have sanctioned what
had been done. The most that he intended to ratify and did
ratify was the listing of the farm with the respondents, which
ordinarily means that the agent is to receive a commission in the
event of a sale being effected through his instrumentality.

In order that a person may be deemed to have ratified an act
done without his authority, it is necessary that at the time of the
ratification he should have full knowledge of all the material
circumstances under which the act was done, unless he intends to
ratify the act and take the risk whatever the circumstances may
have been: Bowstead on Agency, 5th ed., p. 507, and cases there
cited; and of any such intention there is no evidence, nor can the
inference properly be drawn that he so intended.

All that the jury found was that:—

“Norman Hisey, after consulting his father, became his agent;
therefore Abraham Hisey becomes responsible for commission.”

This is not a finding sufficient in the circumstances to warrant
a verdict for the respondents against the appellant.

Upon the whole, I am of opinion that, for these reasons, the
verdict should be set aside and judgment entered dismissing the
action against the appellant.

As [ have come to this conclusion, it is not necessary to consider
the other grounds urged by the appellant’s counsel in support of
the appeal.

It was contended that, if the judgment against the appellant
cannot stand, the respondents are entitled to judgment against
Norman Hisey, but I am not of that opinion. No case on that
footing is made on the pleadings, and the judgment dismissing
the action as against him should stand, without prejudice to the
respondents, if so advised, bringing another action against him,
based upon a contract by him to pay the commission in the event
of a sale being made within 90 days.

The result is, that the verdict against the appellant is set aside,
and judgment is to be entered dismissing the action as against him,
with costs here and below; and the cross-appeal is dismissed; but,
under all the eircumstances, the dismissal should be without costs.

Appeal allowed; cross-appeal dismissed.
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DEL SOLO v. CITY OF MONTREAL.

Quebec Court of Review, Archibald, A.C.J., Greenshields and
Tellier, JJ. March 27, 1918,

Mavuicious PROSECUTION (§ I1—5)—ARREST—CONSTABLE ACTING IN GOOD
ll‘)AAl:l: :I? WITH PROBABLE CAUSE—DISMISSAL FOR WANT OF PROOF—

e S & e S e s e e Lroes el 1 paed

faith, and with probable cause, although the case when called was dis-

missed for want of proof.

ArpEAL from a judgment of the Superior Court, Martineau, J.
Affirmed.

Internoscia & Fortin, for plaintiff; Laurendeau, Archambault
& Co., for defendant.

GreENsHIELDS, J.:—This is an inscription in Review from a
judgment dismissing the plaintifi’s action with costs.

The plaintiff alleges a malicious arrest and prosecution without
reasonable and probable cause. The defendant by its plea
justifies.

The facts can be briefly stated. The plaintiff is a market
gardener, and for some years had sold his vegetables at the Bon-
secours market; he rented a space, or three double spaces, at the
south end of the wooden platform which is erected on Jacques
Cartier Square, and this platform at its southern extremity reaches
the northern line of Commissioners St., which is a street running
east and west. The street itself is paved throughout its entire
width, and is level, and no part is specially marked out as a side-
walk.

On October 4, 1912, one of the constables of the city defendant,
acting under instructions, notified the plaintiff that he was obstruc-
ting Commissioners St., or the sidewalk on Commissioners St.,
and notified him to remove his vegetables which were placed be-
tween the end of the platform and the rear end of the plaintifi’s
vehicle, which projected southward into Commissioners St.,
and between the rear end and the wooden platform there
was a space of some 6 or 7 feet, which was used for foot
passengers, and which the city constable wished to keep un-
obstructed. The plaintifi refused to do anything, but insisted
that he had a right to maintain the position in which he then was.
The constable told him that unless he removed the obstruction
he would have to place him under arrest. The plaintiff preferred
arrest to removal. This took place about half-past four in the

]
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morning. The plaintiff went with the constable to the Recorders’ ~ QUE-
Court across the street, gave security or made a deposit for his C.R.

subsequent appearance at the opening of the court; he appeared DEL

Goop at the opening of the court, pleaded not guilty, and the case was 5;“"
e continued for another day. It was continued a second time, and  Ciry o

Il not
| good’
8 dis-

finally, through some misunderstanding or error, the witnesses Mommmnas.
for the city failed to appear. The case was called and was dis- Greenshields, J.
missed for want of proof, and the present action for £399 followed.

w, J. The trial judge was of opinion that the charge made against
the plaintiff before the Recorder’s Court was well founded. 1 am
bault, not at the moment called upon to go that far. I express no

opinion as to whether a recorder should have convicted the plain-
om a tiff or not, but this much I do know, that the city had previously
experienced trouble with market gardeners in connection with the
thout blocking or obstructing of Commissioners 8t. The city tolerated

plea to some extent such obstruction, but the constable in question
had been given definite instructions to prevent, so far as possible,
arket the interference with foot passengers’ free movement along the

Bon- north side of Commissioners St., and that constable on the morning
\t the of October 4, acting in perfect good faith and under instructions,

eques and with no malice whatever, was of opinion that the sidewalk or
aches the street, or both, was being obstructed by the manner in which
nning the plaintiff had put his vehicles and his vegetables.

entire That both sidewalk and the street were obstructed, there is

side. not the slightest doubt. Whether that obstruction was greater
than the plaintiff was entitled to, under his quasi lease from the

dant, city, is a question of law which the constable was not called upon

Hanio- to solve at the moment; but he saw a condition of affairs that he

s St thought called for his intervention, and in perfect good faith he

wd be- intervened.

ntifi’s I have no doubt whatever, if the plaintifi had been at all

3 St., reasonable, the whole matter could have been adjusted in a few

there moments; but he positively refused to remedy what the constable

foot thought was an evil.
p un- It is urged by the counsel for the plaintiff that the charge made

sisted in the Recorder’s Court was that the plaintiff obstructed the street
1 Was. with his vehicles, whereas now, or at the trial in the present case,
sction the constable urged that the sidewalk was obstructed by vegetables.
ferred If the recorder had been called upon to pass judgment on the
n the 7—43 Dp.LR.
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merits, he would have convicted, if the case were proven, the
plaintifi of doing what the facts proved he did do.

1 should follow the holding in the case of St. Denis v. City of
Montreal, 20 D.L.R. 571, 45 Que. 8.C. 435:—

In an action for damages for false arrest by a constable . . . malice
of the latter will not be inferred from technical errors in his charge against
the plaintiff before the recorder, and no such action will lie when the constable

" appears to have acted in the bond fide discharge of his duty.

And I should adopt the statement of the acting Chief Justice
in his remarks in that case:—

1 think that, in the present case, the constable who arrested the plain-
tiff was exercising his office, in that respect, in good faith, and it would be a
serious thing that our constables should feel that, as long as they are acting
in good faith, they are subject to condemnation for having arrested a person
defying their authority, in case some legal quibble should be di d for
the purpose.

Upon the whole I should confirm the judgment.

Appeal dismissed.

CRAWFORD v BATHURST LAND and DEVELOPMENT Co. Ltd.

Ontario Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Meredith, C'.J.C.P.,
iddell, Lennox and Rose, JJ. March 1, 1918.

1. Companies (§ IV G—123)—SECRET PROFITS OBTAINED BY TRUSTEES

PROFITS OF COMPANY MUST BE REFUNDED.

Secret profits obtained by those who are in reality trustees of a con.-

r«n,\'. organized and incorporated under the Ontario Companies Act,

or the purpose of acquiring and re-selling land, which had been purchased

by a syndicate, the members of which beeame shareholders of the com-

run\', are pmfhn of the company, and those who in effect paid it are
iable to refund it or cause it to be refunded.

2. Cowranies (§ V E—217)—RESOLUTION OF COMPANY RATIFYING PAYMENT
OF COMMISSIONERS—SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHTS.
A resolution of a company passed at a meeting of shareholders pur-
porting to ratify the payment of commissions illegally paid to directors
of the company cannot be enforced against the will of any shareholder.
ArpeaLs by the defendants and cross-appeal by the plaintiff
from the judgment of MasteN, J., 37 O.L.R. 611.

1. F. Hellmuth, K.C., for the defendant Fullerton, appellant;
D. Urquhart, for the defendants Murray, Gibson, and
Bryan, appellants; H. J. Macdonald, for the executors of the
deceased defendant Doran, appellants; J. E. Lawson, for the de-
fendant company; A. C. McMaster and J. H. Fraser, for the
plaintiff, respondent and cross-appellant.

MerepitH, C.J.C.P.:—At the trial of this action the
plaintifi’s claims were reduced to four items, involving three
separate questions: here they were further reduced to three
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the items, involving two separate questions, the plaintiff abandon-
ing the fourth item and third question, upon which he had failed ;
vy of at the trial.* Crawronp
The items now in question are: $3,867.25 claimed from the B s
alice defendant Fullerton; the like sum claimed from the estate of one Lanp anp
st Doran, deceased; and a further sum of $8,121.22 claimed from the ~D%yeLor-
e sameestate. Theone questioncoversthe first two items: the third Co.

item involves another and altogether different question, A
Meredith,

The first question is: whether the plaintiff can compel pay- ¢7Cp.
lain- ment, to the defendant company, of the first two items, the amounts
be a of which were received by the defendant Fullerton and Doran,

tice

::: respectively, out of the price paid by the company for the land in
1 for question.

And the second is, whether the plaintiff can compel repayment
to the pany of the t of the third item, which was paid
d. by the company, or its officers, to Doran, in his lifetime, as a
commission upon a sale of the company’s lands.
The material facts upon which these questions have to be
determined are simple and really little, if at all, in controversy.
One Wallace and the defendants Fullerton and Doran were
rs intimately connected by family, business, and friendship’s ties.
= Wallace seems to have first conceived the idea of buying the land
I"‘\:.‘li in question, for a company to be created, for the purpose of selling
iy it to such company again at a profit: it was possible for him to
b e secure the right to purchase it at a fixed price, and he did so; but
MENT that was a futile thing unless the company could be created to take,
- and to pay for, it: and he was quite powerless to carry out that
wetors part of the scheme: but that part of it the defendants Fullerton
e and Doran were capable of accomplishing, and did accomplish.
mtiff The company was formed; and the shareholders paid in enough
money upon their prospective stock to enable Wallace, Fullerton,
lant; and Doran to carry out, fully, the scheme. The price at which
and Wallace had contracted to purchase the land was $725 an acre:
" the the price at which the land was transferred over to the company
v de- was $800 an acre; the number of acres was 156.
the The profit thus made out of the scheme was 811,601.75; but
might have been any greater, or less, sum at which these three
the persons saw fit to put it.  And this profit was divided, by Wallace,
three
three

. *The plaintiff did not appeal or cross-appeal as to the item referred to,
which was the payment of dividends out of capital,
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equally among the three; and the first two items in the plaintifi’s
claim in this action are the amounts of the shares which Fullerton
and Doran got. No claim is made against the estate of Wallace,
who also is now dead.

Every payment which was made upon the land, with the
exception of a “down-payment” of $2,500, one-third of which
was paid by Doran, and all of which was repaid out of the com-
pany’s moneys, was paid directly by, or out of the money of, the
company, to the sellers of the land; and the profits made by the
three men came directly out of the company’s money; the money,
for all purposes, could not have come, and it was never intended,
from the conception of the scheme, that it should come, in any
other way.

Throughout, Fullerton and Doran purported to represent and
act for the company to be formed, and Wallace as the vendor to
them for the company. In the formal writings, evidencing the
formal transaction, Fullerton was expressly made a trustee of the
land for a “syndicate” which was to become the company; and,
when the company was, at once, created and organised, Fullerton
became its secretary-treasurer, and Doran its vice-president and
general manager. The transition from syndicate to company was,
in form, brought about by a resolution, at the company’s first
meeting, moved by Doran and carried unanimously, “that the
syndicate should form itself into the said company.”

From the testimony of the defendant Fullerton, it seems that
he had not deemed himself legally entitled to demand any part
of the profit made out of the scheme, but there can be no doubt
that he and Doran expected to get, and deemed themselves entitled,
apart from any legal right, to a share of it, and, I have no doubt, to
share and share alike in it, as in the end they did. Doran in his
testimony admitted that he expected to get a share of the profit;
and the defendant Fullerton in his testimony put his position,
as to the amount which he should have, thus: “I said to him”—
that is, to Wallace—*the amount is entirely for you, but I have
got in at least half the subscriptions, and it is owing to my
efforts this matter has gone through so well for you as it
has . . .”

The trial Judge found, and the evidence well supports that
finding, that the receipt of these profits, so obtained, was not dis-
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closed to the company, or indeed to the syndicate; and, being
secret profits obtained by those who were really trustees, and
self-appointed trustees, for the company, which was not only then
substantially in existence, but had, as I have said, provided all the
money required to carry out the scheme of the three, including
payment of the profits thus divided among them, and without
which company, so supplying the money, there could not have
been any profits to be divided, how was it possible for these persons
to resist a claim upon them by the company to account for and
pay over to them these profits? The company, and its supply of
the money, was the essence of the scheme from its inception.

It was contended that the money paid to Wallace was his, and
that he could do with it as he pleased. We are not in this action
concerned with the first part of this contention. The second is
plainly erroneous, meaning, as it did, that the company had no
concern in the transaction. All profits out of the transaction were
the profits of the company, not those of servants of the company;
and, in the circumstances of this case, it can make no difference
whether the parties to the scheme thought, or did not think, that
those who were paid them had any legal claim upon him who
paid such profits; or at what point of time the payments were
made. The money received was a secret profit which the servant
could not retain against the master’s will.

Nor can I perceive any substantial difference, as to liability,
between the case of Doran and that of Fullerton; as a matter of
arrangement the latter was formally made the trustee through
whose name the transaction should, in part, be carried out, and
rights of all parties to some extent safeguarded. The mere fact
(hot Fullerton was the one who thus acted does not at all alter the
actual position of the others. Any of the others might just as well
have been selected. Doran was a party to the whole scheme from
its inception, and, as it seems to me, is in the same position as if he,
instead of Fullerton, had been assigned to the position of formal
trustee for the purposes I have mentioned.

It is, therefore, not needful for the plaintiff to rely upon the
provisions of the prospectus clauses of the Ontario Companies
Act (secs. 99 et seg., R.8.0. 1914, ch. 178) to sustain the judgment
appealed against, in this respect; but, if it were, I could find no
good reason for excluding this company from their salutary require-
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ments: the case seems to me to be one entirely within the mischief
intended to be prevented by that remedial legislation. The com-
pany was not in any sense a close corporation. Shareholders,
wherever they were thought to be procurable, were sought; and
there was no restriction upon their rights to transfer their shares
to anyone anywhere. Aliberal interpretation of the words“offersto
the public” is imposed upon us by legislation, as well as by the char-
acter of the legislation in question. And, upon the other ground,
surely these clauses are applicable. The shares of the company
were shares which were to be dealt with in Ontario. The company
dealt with them; and the defendant Fullerton dealt with them,
as others also did: and so the company is doubly brought within
this legislation. The words of sub-sec. 2 of sec. 99 of the Companies
Act are very wide, and assuredly embrace this company.

The next question is: whether Fullerton and Doran were dis-
charged from liability, to account for these profits, by the resolution
of the company, passed at a meeting of its shareholders, in these
words:— .

“That the company renounces all claims against the said Doran
and Fullerton in respect of the moneys so paid to them, and that
the retention by the said Doran and Fullerton be and the same ix
hereby approved and confirmed, and that the whole transaction
between Wallace, Doran, Fullerton, and the company, be and the
same is hereby confirmed, approved, and ratified.”

This action of the shareholders, if effectual, was substantially
a gift by the company to Fullerton and Doran of these secret pro-
fits, a gift made at a meeting called in their interests, whilst the
trial of this action was pending and for the purpose of defeating
this action, and a meeting almost entirely composed of shareholders
who were relatives and friends of these two then defendants, and
who were summoned, and came, to the meeting for the purpose
of relieving them from liability.

But there was no power to give such relief against the will of
any shareholder, if otherwise it could be said to have been given
fairly. In no sense could it have been deemed in the interests of
the company to discharge such a liability, or make such a gift; it
could be given only in the interests, and for the personal benefit,
of these two individuals; and to be an encouragement to that which
the law deexps a breach of trust, whatever may be the views of
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business men upon the subject in regard to some particular cases:
so that, if the company were a going concern, the gift could hardly
be upheld: see Hampson v. Price’s Patent Candle Co. (1876), 24
W.R. 754; and Taunton v. Royal Insurance Co. (1864), 2 H. & M.
135; and the less so when it was substantially, and practically,
though not by legal methods, being wound up, and was so far
wound up that a part of the capital of the company had been
returned to the shareholders: see Hutton v. West Cork R.W. Co.
(1883), 23 Ch. D. 654; Cyclists’ Touring Club v. Hopkinson, [1910]
1 Ch. 179; and In re George Newman & Co., [1895] 1 Ch. 674. 1
do not put it uponwant of power, but upon impropriety of the
act—stated in legal phraseology, fraud.

The adjudication appealed against, regarding these two items,
was, in my opinion, right: and this appeal as to them, in my
opinion, should be dismissed.

The third item stands upon a different footing. The amount
of it was paid to Doran, as a land agent’s commission, upon the
resale of the land in question, which was made by the company
at a profit; a sale made while Doran was a director of the company
and its general manager.

The trial Judge was unable to find that there was any agree-
ment to pay Doran any commission, or that he was employed by
the company to sell the land; and the evidence, as I find, fails to
establish any such employment or any agreement to pay, expressed
or implied.

Doran had recently become a land agent; and his story, at the
trial, was: that in some informal way he had been employed to sell
the land, and so employed on the understanding, that he was to
have aland agent’s commission of five per cent., upon the sale-price,
if he effected a sale; and that the sale, which the company event-
ually made, was effected by him. But there is no unprejudiced
corroboration of the story of his employment, though such corrob-
oration was easily obtainable from those who took part in his in-
formal employment, if they could have proved it; and the writings
are altogether against it. The minutes of the meetings at which it is
said to have taken place, though they purport to set out all its
proceedings, and although they relate to the land in other respects,
contain nothing that supports the story in any way; and some of
the records of meetings of the company shew that the remuneration
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of directors was to be $10 for each meeting attended; nothing
more than that is anywhere provided for.

It seems that an offer, somewhat lower than that eventually
accepted, had been made for the land, and that some of the
directors were in favour of accepting it, but that Doran opposed
them, expressing the opinion that more could be had from the
persons making the offer; and more was obtained eventually. But
in all that was done there was no more than a director’s duty
performed. 1 find no evidence of anything done in the capacity
of a land agent merely, anything done that might not fairly be
expected of a director who might have had some skill, and
some experience, though very little, as the man had been
but a short time a land agent, in buying and selling land.
No advertisement in his lists of lands for sale by him, nor any
seeking of other purchasers, seems to have been proved; his deal-
ings with a person who went to England in respect of another
transaction are left in a very hazy state in evidence, so hazy a state
as to be insufficient to support a legal claim for any amount, not
to speak of over $8,000. The argument of Doran, in the witness-
box, that he should be paid a commission of over $8,000 because,
as he a:serts, he procured an advance of less than $8,000 in the
price of the lands, seems to one, as his whole elaim also does, less
even than a lame one.

It would be very dangerous to support, upon such flimsy
evidence, a claim such as this, by a person holding a position in
a company.such as Doran held in this company, and whose duty
it was, consequently, to do all that, by virtue of such position,
he should, to effect a sale. And, by the way, I may add that the
danger of relying on parol evidence to support a claim for a land
agent’s commission, in any case, has become so apparent that,
somewhat recently, legislation has been passed requiring evidence
in writing of it.

But as to this item, as well as in regard to the other two, an
attempt was made to ratify, at a shareholders’ meeting, the pay-
ment of it. It was the same meeting at which the attempt was
made to discharge Doran and Fullerton from the claims against
them upon the first two items. In regard to the calling to the
meeting, what took place at it, and the ineffectual character of it,
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this item and the others are, for the same reasons, in the same
position: what was done was ineffectual as to this item, as it
was as to the other two, and for the like reasons.

It is not necessary to consider what would have been the result
if there had been an expressed or implied employment of this
director, and general manager, of the company, to sell its land:
the alleged right to the commission fails, as far as I am concerned,
because in fact no employment was proved.

And those officers of the company who authorised the payment
of the sum in question to Doran, and so those who in effect paid
it, are liable to refund it or cause it to be refunded. It could not
have been paid out but for such authorisation, and the finding
of the trial Judge as to those who are so liable seems to me to be
well supported by the evidence.

The result is that the appeal, which embraces these three
items, should, in my opinion, be dismissed.

The plaintiff has a right to enforce his interests in these matters
in the name of the company, though all other shareholders may,
and though they should, release theirs.

Since this opinion was written, soon after the argument of
this appeal, two of my learned brothers have become unable to
agree to it in so far as it affects the defendants Gibson and Bryan,
thinking that the evidence is not sufficient to connect them with
the improper payment to Doran of the $8,121.22. If we were
bound to look at the minutes of meetings only for evidence of
what these directors did, I should yet find no great difficulty in
agreeing with the trial Judge that it is proved that these defendants
were parties to that improper payment. Minutes of meetings are
not to be looked upon as if they were legal documents “settled”
by learned counsel: rather the eye of the business man, or as
much of it as remains in the Judge, is to be applied to it; and I
have no sort of doubt that the man of business would smile at my
suggestion that the minutes in question might not be those of a
directors’ meeting, and would say to me, “What else can they
be?” And I am bound to confess that my inclination would be
to say “Nothing.” And then he would say, “Why do they not
shew a direction by the directors to pay this sum?” But there
is much evidence besides; these defendants do not deny it in their
pleading; on the contrary, they adopt the Doran defence that it
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was a proper and lawful payment; and they did not at the trial
go into the box and say, “We took no part in that payment;”’ on
the contrary, their counsel contended that it was a proper and
lawful payment, and in their notice of this appeal the same thing
is contended; and the probabilities are, if not the presumption
is, that the payment was, with the other payments, duly authorised
at this directors’ meeting. Otherwise we must assume, contrary to
the fact and with extreme unfairness to the defendants Murray and
Fullerton, that they were guilty of the obvious and grave wrong
of signing the cheque and making this large payment without any
kind of authorisation. Besides all this, they joined with Doran
and the others at the ratification meeting, held for the purpose of
defeating this action, and have completely, by their conduct
throughout, cut the grounds of this defence from under their fect,
if there ever were any such grounds.

Lexnox, J., agreed with the Chief Justice.

RiopeLL, J.:—1 agree that the appeal should be dismissed in
respect of Fullerton and Doran and allowed in respect of the other
directors.

The facts are not obscure and the law is not in doubt; and I
can see no good end to be attained by adding remarks of my own,
adopting, as I do, the judgment of my brother Rose.

Rosg, J.:—1 agree that Mr. Fullerton and the Doran estate,
respectively, must account for the payments made to Mr. Fullerton
and Mr. Doran by Wallace out of the profit made by him upon his
sale to Mr. Fullerton as trustee.

Mr. Fullerton’s statement, which appears to accord with the
documents, including the contracts, the conveyances, and the
minutes of the meetings, makes his position quite plain. Wallace
informed him that he was buying land at $725 an acre or less, and
asked him to act as trustee for a syndicate which Wallace desired
to form to take over the land at $800 an acre and to go into the
syndicate himself and help to bring others in. Mr. Fullerton at
once consented to act as trustee, but declined to promise to join
the syndicate or to ask others to join, until such time as he had
examined the property and satisfied himself as to its value. Then
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Mr. Fullerton and Mr. Doran were taken to see the property, and,
following the inspection, Mr. Fullerton spent some time in satis-
fying himself as to the prospective value of the land, and finally
agreed to join the syndicate and to ask others to join. Next, an
agreement was signed betwveen Wallace as vendor and Fullerton
as trustee, by which the vendor agreed to sell and the trustee
agreed to purchase the land at the price of $800 an acre, in all
£123,752, payable $2,500 down, $44,201.75 in ten days, and the

balance by the assumption of mortgages, and it was “understood
and agreed” that the purchaser was ““a trustee for a certain
syndicate formed to purchase the said property;” and the vendor
agreed to accept the liabilities of the syndicate and the members
thereof, in lieu of any liability of the purchaser, and to release the
purchaser from any personal liability. Contemporaneously, there
was prepared a syndicate agreement between Wallace of the first
part, Fullerton “as trustee” of the second part, and the subseribers
of the third part. By it the parties agreed that on entering into
the contract of purchase Fullerton “shall be deemed to have been
acting as trustee for and on behalf of the syndicate and the syndi-
cate shall forthwith pay him the deposit and shall indemnify him
against all liabilities under the said contract.” It was further
agreed that each subscriber should be entitled to shares in a com-
pany to be formed, proportionate to the number of shares held
by him in the syndicuwl; and that the trustee should, on request,
convey the land to the company.

Matters then proceeded as was intended. Mr. Fullerton busied
himself in getting persons to join the syndicate; the money for
making the cash payments to Wallace was provided by the syn-
dicate; the land was conveyed to Wallace by the persons from
whom he had bought it; and Wallace conveyed it to Fullerton.
The cash paid to Wallace exceeded by $11,601.75 the cash which
Wallace had had to pay to those from whom he bought.% Im-
wediately after the money had been paid to Wallace and the
conveyance to Fullerton had been executed, Wallace came to Mr.
Fullerton and said: “I have come in to see what you thought
you ought to get out of this.” Mr. Fullerton says that the state-
ment “rather startled” him; and he explained to Wallace that
there was no understanding that he should have anything: 'that
he was not entitled to anything. Wallace then said, “How
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would $300 strike you?” And Fullerton said: “The amount is
entirely for you, but I have got in at least half of the subscription:,
and it is owing to my efforts this matter has gone through for you
as well as it has; if under these circumstances you feel disposed
to give me a bonus or gratuity I will aceept it, but the amount of
that or whether you give it or not is entirely for you to say.”
The same afternoon or the next morning, Wallace handed My,
Fullerton a cheque, and wenv away.  Mr. Fullerton “looked at
it and saw it was for one-third” of the $11,601.75.

Mr. Fullerton next obtained letters patent incorporating the
company, and had these with him at a meeting of the syndicate
held on the 7th April, 1913. No information was given to the
meeting about the payment by Wallace to Fullerton, or about a
similar payment to Doran. The letters patent were | roduced, and
it was resolved “that the syndicate should form its If into the
said company and that the members of the syndicate should take
stock in the said company in proportion to the amount of their
shares in the syndicate.” Meetings of the provisional directors
and of the shareholders were then held, the shareholders present
or represented being the members of the syndicate present or
represented at the meeting of the syndicate. Directors were
elected, Messrs. Fullerton and Doran being of the number; and a
meeting of directors was held, attended by those two and two
others. At that meeting a by-law was passed “that the agree-
ment made between Mr. Wallace and Mr. Fullerton be adopted
as the agreement made on behalf of this company, and that the
directors be instructed to accept and execute a deed from Mr.
Fullerton to the company of the said property, containing a
covenant by the company to indemnify Mr. Fullerton from any
contracts or covenants which he may have entered into as trustee
of the company.” By a deed, dated before, but registered after,
the last-mentioned meeting, Mr. Fullerton conveyed the land to
the company.

Upon this statment of facts, I do not see how it is possible to
hold that Mr. Fullerton has any right, as against the company, to
retain the $3,867.25. He never had any beneficial interest in the
land; and, granting that there is a difficulty in holding that at the
time when he received the money he was trustee for the company,
which was not then formed (see In re Leeds and Hanley Theatres
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of Varietics Limited, [1902] 2 Ch. 809, at p. 822), he certainly was,
at that time, trustee for the syndicate; and, upon the formation
of the company, he became trustee for the company. The money
that he paid to Wallace for the land was the money put up by the
members of the syndicate, and was treated by the company as
payment for the shares allotted to those members. The company,
when it adopted as its own the contract between Wallace and
Fullerton, and agreed to accept a conveyance from and to in-
demnify its trustee, was not aware that the trustee had got back
some of the money which he had disbursed. How can the trustee
say that the money that had thus come to him was not held by
him upon exactly the same trust as the trust upon which he held
the land, i.e., a trust to hand it over to the company?

Mr. Doran's position, formally anyway, was a little different
from Mr. Fullerton’s. The land was never in his name, and in
that sense he was not a trustee; and to that extent the case against
him is weaker than the case against Mr. Fullerton. But, as found
by Mr. Justice Masten, he became interested in the matter even
before Mr. Fullerton did; he advanced to Wallace a portion of the
money which Wallace had to pay as a deposit upon his purchase,
and from that time he was active in the formation of the syndicate
and of the company; he was with Mr. Fullerton when Mr. Fuller-
ton first went to see the property ; he did as much as Fullerton didin
procuring subseriptions to the syndicate agreement; he was, in
short, a promoter, and subject to all the disabilities attaching to
that position. There seems to be strong reason for assuming,
as Mr. Justice Masten does, that when Doran put up one-third of
Wallace's deposit, he expected to receive some part of Wallace's
profits: certainly, he admitsthat he expected Wallace would pay him
for his work; but, even if the payment to him by Wallace can be
looked upon as merely a gratuity, it seems to me that he must
account for it. It is true that in most of the cases in which a
promoter has been held liable to account for secret profits there
had been something more than a voluntary payment to him by
the vendor of property to the company; in some of the cases there
had been an antecedent bargain between the vendor and the pro-
moter, and in others the promoter had been party to a scheme by
which the price to be paid by the company had been enhanced
for the purpose of providing the fund out of which the promoter’s
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profit was to come. But it does not appear to me that such
antecedent agreement or enhancement of price, while it has been
present and has been referred to in the judgments, is something
that must be proved in order that the promoter inay be liable.
His fiduciary position is recognised even at a time when he is not
strictly a trustee: it is “clearly settled that persons who get up
and form a company have duties towards it before it comes into
existence:” Emma Silver Mining Co. v. Lewis (1879), 4 C.P.D.
396, at p. 407. Grant that, at the time when Doran received the
money, he had “duties towards” the company, and that Wallace
expected him to see that the company, when it came into existence,
should ratify the agreement between Wallace and Fullerton, and
should become responsible for the later payments which Wallace
had contracted to make, and it seems impossible to avoid the
conclusion reached by Mr. Justice Masten that Doran was under
obligation to account for the payment made to him by the vendor
of the property: see Bagnall v. Carlton (1877), 6 Ch. D. 371, at
p. 384. So that, even if Doran was a promoter only, and not a
promoter and a trustee, as Mr. Fullerton was, I think his liability is
established.

The claim in respect of the sum of $8,121.22 paid to Mr. Doran
for effecting a sale of the company’s lands remains to be considered.
Mr. Doran swore, and Mr. Fullerton’s evidence seems to support
his statement, that it was understood amongst the directors that
he should not be given a regular salary for acting as vice-president
and general manager, but should have the opportunity of finding
a purchaser for the land, and, if he succeeded, should be paid the
usual land agent’s commission, and should accept that as his
“recompense’’ for performing the duties of his office.

At a meeting of the shareholders, he was instructed, informally,
to endeavour to find a purchaser. He did make a sale, and he man-
aged to induce the purchasers to add to the price first offered by
them, which price some, at least, of the shareholders and directors
were in favour of accepting, a sum practically equivalent to the
amount of the commission. The company, therefore, ought to
have been well content to pay the commission; and, apparently,
all the members who knew about the matter were content. It
was paid; and the question is, whether there was legal authority
for paying it.

L
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At a meeting, which was held on the 29th May, 1914, and which
seems to have been a directors’ meeting, although the minutes
call it a meeting of the company, the secretary-treasurer is reported
to have put in a statement of liabilities shewing the solicitors’
charges in connection with the sale, a commission to Doran of
$8,121.22, small sums for fees of the several directors, and a small
salary to the secretary-treasurer. The statement ended with the
following memorandum :—

“The amount at present in the bank is $45,014.48. The dis-
bursements as above are $8,829.22, which will enable us to pay a
dividend of 57 per cent. and leave the balance in the bank of $161.76
to the eredit of the company.”

Resolutions were passed that the directors be paid $10 per
meeting for meetings attended by them; that the secretary be
allowed the sum mentioned in the statement as owing to him;
and that a dividend of 57 per cent. be declared and be paid to the
shareholders forthwith. Om the same day, cheques were issued for
the commission and for the dividend.

There was no resolution of any kind referring to the commission
or to the solicitors’ charges; but the directors present at the
meeting have been held liable in respect of the commission. Now,
the company’s general by-law number 6, passed by the directors
and duly confirmed by the shareholders, enacts that: “The direc-
tors, themselves, shall have power to fix their remuneration
cither as directors or as officers of the company, and also the sal-
aries or remuneration to be paid to all salaried officers of the com-
pany, and to vary the same when it may be expedient to do so;”
and it is argued that the directors did order the payment of
the commission and did so in the exercise of the power conferred
upon them by the by-law; and that no further confirmation by
the sharcholders was necessary. If the directors had in fact
ordered the payment, it would be necessary to consider whether
the general by-law relates to payments such as the one in question;
but I cannot find evidence supporting Mr. Justice Masten’s
assumption that they did order it. It seems to me that the only
proper basis for a decision as to what the directors did or did not
dois what is set out in the minutes; and that, there being no formal
resolution for payment of the commission, the passing of such a
resolution cannot be inferred from the mere fact that the directors
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ordered the distribution of the money that they were told woull
remain after the commission and the other outgoings were pai !,
Therefore, I reach the conclusion that there was no authority i
the payment; that the Doran estate is liable; that Moessi.
Fullerton and Murray, who signed the cheque, are also liabl
but that the other directors arc not liable.

So far I have discussed the case without reference to the b-
laws passed by the shareholders, purporting to ratify all the pa:-
ments for which the several defendants have been held liabl
and to release all claims against those defendants. At to these
by-laws, and as to the argument that the action is not maintain-
able except by the company as plaintiff, it is unnecessary to sav
more than that I agree with Mr. Justice Masten that the by-laws
were invalid as being, in effect, an attempt, at a time when the
company’s capital was impared, to make presents to the directors
of the debts (lue by them to the company, and that the authoritics
support the right of the plaintiff, under these circumstances, to
maintain the action.

Except as to the liability of the directors, other than Messis.
Fullerton and Murray, I would dismiss the appeal.

Appeal dismissed; RippeLL and RosE, JJ. dissenting on one point.

CITY OF REGINA v. McCARTHY.

Judicial Committee of the Privy Council, Lord Finlay, L.C., Lords
Buckmaster, Dunedin and Atkmwn July 31, 19 18.

Scuoows (§ IV-—74)—SEPARATE SCHOOLS—ASSESSMENT.

'here the minority ratepayers in a district have established a sepurate
school under the School Act (Sask. Stats. 1915, ¢. 23, 5. 39) all the rate-
payers of the same religious denomination in the distriet are bound 10
contribute to the support of such school; a ratepayer of the same religion
cannot elect to be a supporter of another school.

[McCarthy v. ('uy of Regina, 32 D.L.R. 741, affirmed. See also Anno-

tation 24 D L.R. 492,

ArpeAL by the City of Regina and others from the judgment
of the Supreme Court of Saskatchewan directing that a Roman
Catholic residing in a separate school district be entered as a
separate school supporter.

P. 0. Lawrence, K.C., and D. L. McCarthy, K.C., for appellants;
Hon. Frank Russell, K.C., and 8. R. Curtin, for respondent.

The judgment of their Lordships was delivered by

Lorp DunepiN:—In the City of Regina there is a public
school district and there is also a separate school district, the
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voul | territorial boundaries of the districts being coterminous. The

pai !, separate school district is a Roman Catholic separate school dis-

by for i trict. One Bartz, who is a Catholic, and who, in 1915, was  (ypy op

ORSIS entered in the assessment roll as a separate school supporter, ReciNa

jabl applied in 1916 to be entered as a public school supporter. The AI((":nmy-_
request was granted by the official making up the roll and he was St

p by soentered. An appeal against this entry was taken by McCarthy, — Dusedis-

pay- B another separate school supporter (title to that effect being given
iahl by a clause in the statutes), to the Court of Revision, who con-
these B firmed the entry. Appeal was taken from this decision to the
wain- Local Government Board, who allowed the appeal and directed his

) sav name to be entered as a separate school supporter. This judg-
-laws ment was affirmed by the Supreme Court unanimously, to whom
1 the appeal had been taken. From the Supreme Court this appeal has
etors been taken to this Board.

ritics The case accordingly raises the straightforward issue, can a
es, 1o person of the faith of the minority, who have established a separate

school distriet, demand that he should be entered as a publie

OSSIS, school supporter? The question depends entirely on the statutory
provisions which are contained in the three Acts, the School Act
point. 8 (e. 23 of 1915), the School Assessment Act (c. 25 of 1915), and the

City Aet (e. 16 of 1915).
The Local Government Board delivered a most careful and
reasoned opinion, and the result at which they arrived was con-

Is firmed by equally careful and elaborate opinions delivered by the

judges of the Supreme Court. These various opinions express
purate with so much precision and accuracy the views which are enter-
l‘nrn:l”;;‘. tained by their Lordships that they can really add nothing to
iggion what has been already said. It is only in respect of the general

Aiios importance of the question that they desire to state succinetly
and in general terms what they think the gist of the matter.
ment The scheme of the Acts seems to their Lordships to be this.

man There is a power given to the community after certain preliminary

as 4 steps to erect a public school district. Whether there is to be such
a district or not is decided by vote, and by the result of that vote

—— the majority binds the minority. If the district is erected and
nothing more is done then all persons holding property in the dis-
trict are assessable for school rates. The religious complexion of

ublie 8—43 p.LR

, the
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the school as between Protestant and Catholic is controlled by the
majority who have voted for the creation of the district. DBut
there is a conscience clause to protect parents having their children
instructed in religious education which is not to their liking.
. There is, however, a power given to the minority, which meuns
the members of the religious faith, be it Protestant or Catholic,
who form the minority (for no other faiths have in this matier
official recognition) to establish a separate school distriet with u
separate school of their own religious complexion. In such a case
the ratepayers establishing such a district are only liable for their
self-imposed rate and not for public school rates. The legislation
as to the formation and form of the assessment roll provides for a
return by each assessable person, and preseribes a descriptive
entry of P.8.8. (public school supporter) or 8.8.8. (separate school
supporter), as the case may be.

It seems to their Lordships that in this arrangement there ure
two guiding principles. The first is that after a vote the majority
binds the minority. The majority settle as against the minority
whether there shall be a district at all (there is a provision for the
erection of a district on the motion of the Minister of Education,
but this may be disregarded as extraneous to the present question).
The second is that it is the eriterion of religious faith which forms
what may be called the subordinate constituency, and here again
the majority compels the minority, either establishing or refusing
to establish a separate school. If the school is established all must
be rated.

It is true that the subordinate constituency form the minority
of the whole constituency. As such they would have been assessed
as public school supporters, were it not for the special exemption
which is to be found in s. 39 of the School Act. But it is the
very enfranchisement from the liability to pay public school rates
that they get as a community, which subjects them to the rule, so
to speak, of the majority of their own community. It is im-
possible, their Lordships think, to read the words in s. 39, “rate-
payers establishing a separate school,” as applicable only to the
majority of the minority.

It is evident that there is a great practical advantage in working
the scheme if the respondent’s argument is sound. For the
minority constituency to come to a common sense determination

aamt e B LoD o [
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as to whether they shall or shall not establish a separate school
it is necessary that they shall calculate what assessments are
available. If the religious test is taken, that is simple enough,
but if the minority constituency is liable to be depleted by some
of its members leaving its ranks and enrolling themselves as
public school supporters it is evident that all calculations would
be upset.

There are other arguments to the same efiect, but as has been
already said they are most adequately dealt with in the judgments
below.

1t should be added that the point as to whether the legislation
in question was ultra vires was not pressed before the Board.

Their Lordships will humbly advise His Majesty to dismiss the
appeal with costs. Appeal dismissed.

HALLETT v. BANK OF MONTREAL.

New Brunswick Supreme Court, Appeal Division, Hazen, C.J., While
and Grimmer, JJ, September 20, 1918.

1. Evipence (§ XII A—923)—PoSITIVE AND NEGATIVE—RELATIVE VALUE.

In the estimation of the value of evidence in ordinary cases, the testi-
mony of a eredible witness who swears positively to a fact should receive
credit in preference to that of one who testifies to a negative.

2. Traan_(§ V D—295)—JURY VERDICT—AGAINST WEIGHT OF EVIDENCE—
UNREASONABLE—AMENDING,
All possible weight should be given to the verdict of a jury, but when
viewing the case from every standpoint it appears that the verdict is
against the weight of evidence, nnJ the verdict as rendered is such as
could not reasonably have been found, such verdict may be set aside
and judgment entered in accordance with the weight of evidence.
ArreaL from judgment entered for plaintiff, at the York
County Court, before Wilson, J., and a jury.

F. R. Taylor, K.C., and J. J. F. Winslow, support appeal; P.
J. Hughes, contra.

The judgment of the Court was delivered by

Hazen, C.J.:—Josiah Hallett, who carries on lumbering opera-
tions in the County of York, had certain moneys on deposit with
the Bank of Montreal at its office in Fredericton, and on January
19, 1915, wrote Mr. Hawkins, manager of the bank, enclosing
a cheque for $300, which he asked him to cash and express the
amount to Millville and charge the same to his account. At the
foot of the letter there was a memo stating that he wanted 50 one
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dollar bills, 25 two dollar bills, and 40 five dollar bills, making in
all $300. Upon receipt of this letter at the bank it was handed
to the teller, Cecil Kemp, with instructions to have the mone)
forwarded by registered mail, although Mr. Hallett requested that it
should beforwarded by express. The teller counted out the money,
listed it on what is called a bordereau slip and put a memorandun
on the foot of the letter shewing the numbers and denominations
of the bills, which he initialled.

The teller, in the ordinary course of business, handed the
money, the bordereau and the letter with an envelope addressed
to the plaintiff at Millville to the accountant. The accountant
says that he counted the money twice, checked it with the bor-
dereau slip and the letter and found it to correspond. The
envelope was then closed and sealed and either handed to or placed
on the junior’s desk, which is the ordinary course of procedure.
There was some doubt as to whether the sealing with wax was done
by the teller or the junior, but I think nothing turns on this. The
junior, Frank Coburn, says he took the letter, put the stamps on
it, entered it in the registration book at the bank, and took it to
the post office, where he got the registration slip signed with the
date stamped thereon. These witnesses, Kemp, Sheffield and
Coburn, swore distinctly to this state of facts. On January 21,
1915, the letter arrived at the post office at Millville and was
entered by the postmaster in the registration receipt book, and
was kept with the registered letters, which are placed at night
in a safe, and which, according to the evidence of the Millville
postmaster, could not be interfered with in the office. The
plaintiff, to whom the bank officials had sent a letter informing
him of the fact that the money had gone forward by registered
mail, called at the post office for it on January 25, when it was
delivered to him by the postmaster and he signed a receipt for it.
The seals were unbroken and the plaintiff opened the envelope
and took out the money which he placed in his trousers pocket,
but did not count it, and states that he did not remove the elastic
bands which were around the package of money, nor use nor
interfere with it in any way until he handed it, still uncounted,
to a man named Claire 6 days afterwards, and that that was the
first time he had had it out of his pocket since he put it in there.
At the time he received the money from the postmaster, Hallett
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had in another pocket of his trousers a package of money contain-
ing $1,000 that he had received by express from the Bank of Nova
Scotia, and about $80 of loose money. He swears that this money
was in one pocket and the money received by registered letter in
another, and that he kept the Bank of Montreal money in that
pocket separate from all other. On the same day he got the
money he returned to the woods, and says that he did not remove
his clothes during that period or take the money which he had
taken from the registered letter from the pocket in which he had
placed it. He also says that during that week he paid out in
different sums about $800, every dollar of which was paid out of
the Bank of Nova Scotia money which was in the other pocket.
On January 30, six days after he had received the money at the
post office, he was called upon to pay $340 to J. R. Claire, and
then, for the first time, he took out of his pocket the package of
money received from the Bank of Montreal and handed it to
(laire, telling him it was $300 that he had received from the Bank
of Montreal. Claire counted it and found only $105. He handed
it to Hallett who counted it and found only the same amount.
There was $50 in one dollar bills, and $50 in two dollar bills, but
only one bill of the denomination of $5. It came out in evidence
that, on a previous occasion, Hallett had received money from the
Bank of Montreal with a shortage of $90, which was promptly
admitted by the bank and rectified. As soon as the deficiency in
the money became known, Hallett caused the manager of the Bank
of Montreal to be telephoned to from his camp, and was told to
come to Fredericton, which he did on the following Monday
morning. He explained the situation to Mr. Hawkins, the
manager, who promised to make inquiries, and having made
inquiries and communicated with the head office he informed the
plaintifi a few days later, and disclaimed any liability on the
bank’s part.

This, in substance, is the evidence for the plaintiff. Mr. Haw-
kins, manager of the bank, in his evidence, explained the customary
system that is followed by the bank officials in sending out regis-
tered parcels containing money, and all the officials swore that the
usual course was followed. In answer to questions submitted to
the jury they found that the defendant on January 20, 1915, did
not cause the sum of $300 in bank notes to be placed in a strong
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wrapper and closed and sealed with sealing wax and addressed to
the plaintiff at Millville. In other words, they found that the
$300 was not sent through the mail to Hallett, and that, for sone
reason or other, the amount which he directed the defendant to
place in the envelope was not so placed. They found, however,
that the defendant caused the postage and registration thereon
to be prepaid by putting stamps thereon, that it caused the parcel
80 closed, sealed and stamped to be delivered to the post office in
the City of Fredericton, that the parcel was duly registered for
conveyance by mail to the plaintiff at Millville, that the defendant
also caused a separate letter to be sent to the plaintiff at Millville
informing him that the sum of $300 had been forwarded to him by
registered mail, that the parcel so delivered at the post office in
Fredericton was received in due course of registered mail at the
post office in Millville, that it was delivered to Mr. Hallett, and
received by him intact, and with the seals unbroken, but that the
parcel sent by the defendant to the plaintifi when delivered to
Mr. Hallett at Millville did not contain $300.

There is no evidence, whatever, to shew that the parcel was
tampered with between Fredericton and Millville or at the post
office in either place, and, therefore, I think, it is reasonable to
conclude that $300 was not enclosed in the package or else that
that amount was received by the plaintiff. The evidence is of
the most conflicting character. There is nothing to shew lack of
bona fides on the part either of the plaintiff or the defendant, and
a careful perusal of the evidence leads me to conclude that the
witnesses on both sides believed they were swearing to what was
true. If the money was not in the envelope when it was delivered
at the Fredericton post office, I should think it was because of
some error or mistake that was made, and if it was received by
Hallett and was not all in his pocket when he handed it to Claire
to be counted, then I should conclude that he had lost it. He
stated that it was in exactly the same condition as when he opened
the envelope and put it in his pocket, that the same bands were
around it, that he took no money or anything else out of the pocket
in which the envelope was, and that it could not have been stolen
from him as he had never removed his clothes, but slept in them
during all the time that he was in the lumber camp.

The evidence given by the witnesses for the defendant was of
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the most positive description. It was given by men all of whom
had had experience in a bank, and who were in the habit of hand-
ling money and of counting it, and, in this respect, their evidence
is on a different plane from that of the plaintiff’s witnesses. It is
impossible to believe, in view of the way in which the money was
counted and checked over, that the $300 was not placed in the
envelope. See Aitken v. McMeckan, [1895] A.C. 310. In Lefeun-
teum v. Beaudoin (1897), 28 Can. 8.C.R. 89, after stating that the
supreme Court of Canada would take questions of fact into con-
sideration on appeal, and if it clearly appeared that there had
heen error in the admission or appreciation of evidence by the
courts below, their decisions might be reversed or varied, it was
laid down that, in the estimation of the value of evidence in ordin-
ary cases, the testimony of a credible witness who swears positively
to a fact should receive credit in preference to that of one who
testifies to a negative. In this case the defendant’s witnesses
swore positively to the sending of the money. The plaintiff’s
witnesses say that the money was not received. As there is
nothing to impeach the bona fides of the witnesses on either side,
I am disposed to think that those who testified on behalf of the
defendant should receive credit in preference to the plaintiff. In
saying this I am influenced by the consideration (among others),
having regard to the method in which business is carried on in
banks throughout the country, that, if the amount sent from the
bank had been $195 less than the defendant claims, the fact would
have been discovered in a short time and made perfectly clear by
the officials of the bank themselves, when they came to balance
their books at the close of business hours, as they would have on
hand that much more than the cash would shew and the mistake
or error would be made plain. On the other hand, according to
the evidence of the plaintiffi himself, when he took the registered
parcel to his house from the post office, he “ just took the money out
and threw the package down.” 1Is it not probable that when he
threw the package down some of the money sent from the bank
may have remained in it? The envelope which contained the
money was not produced at the trial, and the plaintiff did not know
what had become of it. The plaintiff, too, it seems to me was
certainly negligent in not counting the money at an earlier date;
and in paying out such a large sum as $800 in different small
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amounts for wages to people in his employ, it seems to me entirely
probable that he might have made a mistake and taken mone,
from the pocket in which the Bank of Montreal money was placed
instead of the other pocket, in which was placed the money which
he had received from the Bank of Nova Scotia. 1 am disposed 1o
give all possible weight to the finding of the jury, but viewing this
case from every standpoint I cannot help coming to the conclusion
that the weight of evidence is preponderatingly in favour of the
defendant, and that the verdict which was rendered is not such «
one as, viewing all the circumstances of the case, could reasonably
have been found. See Metropolitan R. Co. v. Wright (1886) 11
App. Cas. 152,

It is very strongly urged that there was evidence to support
the finding of the jury, and that therefore it should not be intei-
fered with. In this case nearly all the defendant’s witnesses were
examined under commission, and neither the court nor the judge
had the opportunity of hearing them. In the case of Currey v.
Currey (1910), 40 N.B.R. 96, it was held by Barker, C'.J., MeLeod
and White, JJ., that the rule that the findings of fact by a trial
judge should not be set aside unless clearly wrong does not apply
where the judge did not see and hear the witnesses during a large
portion of their testimony. In that case, the trial was begun before
one judge and continued before another judge, to whom a con-
siderable portion of the evidence was read from the stenographer's
notes. In giving judgment in that case, Barker, C.J., said, p.
14l— .

1f the judge neither hears nor sees the witness give the evidence he i< in
no more favourable a position for dealing with it than anyone else. 1f the
evidence is uncontradicted, if the testimony has been taken under a com-

mission, or the facts are admitted, the judge before whom the hearing has
taken place is in no better position to decide than any other judge.

The same reasoning would apply to the finding of a jury in the
case of evidence taken under a commission. In my opinion, also,
the Judge of the County Court was in error in charging the jury
that a certain amount of responsibility rested upon the defendant
bank for not having sent the money according to directions of the
plaintiff, without stating the extent of the responsibility.

As already stated, the plaintiff gave instructions that the money
should be sent by express, and the defendants, following their
usual custom, sent it by registered letter. In my opinion, this
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tirely did not affect the merits of the case at all. If the money had

noney been sent by express, and when the express parcel reached the
Maced plaintiff it did not contain the amount of money which he ordered,
which his position with regard to the bank would have been just the
sed 1o same as in the present case. He would have a right to recover

g this hack the deficiency if he was able to shew that the bank had not
lusion sent him the amount of money which he had ordered, and 1 am

of the disposed to think that the Judge of the County Court should not
uchz B have charged the jury as he did. The statement to the effect that
mably a certain amount of responsibility rested upon the defendant bank,
i6) 11 was, 1 think, caleulated to prejudice it in the eyes of the jury, and

may have been a determining factor in deciding their action.
Ipport Exception is also taken to the judge’s charging the jury as
inter- follows:—
3 were Then you have the other facts, incidental facts which do not amount to
much, so far as the testimony is concerned. There is nobody going to ques-
tion the honesty and uprightness of Mr. Hallett, and there is no one going to
throw any discredit upon the young man Claire about what he said, because

Judge
rey

cLead it would leave the impression upon anyone that they were men who were

2 trial actuated not to tell the truth.

apply This is only an isolated sentence, and the charge must be read
large B as a whole. In other parts of it the high character of the witnesses

before for the defendant, as indicated by their employment in such an

A con 3 institution as the Bank of Montreal, and the fact that no one
pher's would think of charging either of them with a wrongful intention
with regard to the transaction out of which the suit arose, and

that it must have arisen in consequence of a mistake either in the

he is in bank before the money left it or in the handling of the money in
If the the hands of the plaintiff after he took the money from the post

o office in Millville, was referred to. It is clear from the charge that
the judge was of the opinion that both parties belicved they were

in the telling the truth, and that the trouble arose in consequence of a
, also, mistake. It is also clear, I think, that the jury did not give due
e jury consideration to the evidence of Geoffrey Sheffield, taken by com-
mdant mission, for in spite of his uncontradicted evidence they found

ing has

of the that the defendant did not on January 20, 1915, cause the sum of
$300 to be placed in a package, closed and sealed and addressed
noney ‘ to the plaintiff at Millville.
: their I am of opinion that the verdict for the plaintiff should be set
1, this aside and judgment entered for the defendant with costs.
Judgment accordingly.
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ARMSTRONG CARTAGE AND WAREHOUSE Co. v. GRAND
TRUNK R. Co.

Ontario Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Sir William R. Meredith, C.J.0
Magee, Hodgins and Ferguson, JJ.A. April 23, 1918.

TriaL (§ V C—280)—FINDING OF JURY—MEANING OF—EVIDENCE TO 801+
PORT—SETTING ASIDE.

When the meaning to be given to the finding of the jury is that 1l
leaving of one of the gates at a railway crossing open was an invitation
to the driver of a truck that he might safely cross the tracks, and where
there is evidence to support this finding and also a finding against con
tributory negligence, the findings will not be disturbed.

AN appeal by the defendant company from the judgment of
Falconbridge, C.J.K.B., on the findings of a jury, at the trial at
Hamilton, in favour of the plaintiff company, in an action for
damages for injury caused to a motor-truck of the plaintiff comn-
pany, and the goods the truck was carrying, owing, as the plaintiff
company alleged, to the negligence of the defendant company's
gateman, at a highway ecrossing in the city of Hamilton, in allowing
the plaintiff company’s truck to pass the north gate and get upon
the railway lines at a time when there was danger from an ap-
proaching train, by which the truck was then struck, which was
the cause of the injury of which the plaintiff company complained.

The jury found negligence of the defendant company, ““by not
having the north gate lowered soon enough,” and no contribatory
negligence on the part of the driver of the plaintifi company's
truck.

8. F. Washington, K.C., for the appellant company.

George Lynch-Staunton, K.C., for the plaintifi company, re-
spondent.

The judgment of the Court was read by

Mereprra, C.J.0.:—This is an appeal by the defendant from
the judgment dated the 20th January, 1918, which was directed
by the Chief Justice of the King’s Bench to be entered on the
findings of the jury, at the trial before him at Hamilton on that
day.

The action is brought to recover damages for injuries caused to
a motor-truck of the respondent, and the goods it was carrying,
owing, it is alleged, to the negligence of the appellant.

The motor-truck was injured by being struck by an east-
bound train of the appellant, while the truck was being driven
across the tracks of its line on Lottridge street.
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The appellant has, under the authority of the Board of Rail-  ONT-

1.0 way Commissioners of Canada, erected gates on the north and 5C
south sides of its line on Lottridge street, in the city of Hamil- Apustrone

sUI- ton, and it is not disputed that it was the duty of the appellant C‘:;;“'

t to keep these gates closed when there was danger to persons crossing Wué.:ouu

ation the tracks from an approaching train; nor is it open to question g

that, when the gates are not down, the travelling public is told g:*m’m
that the tracks may be safely crossed without danger from an R.W. Co.
approaching train. Meredith,C.J.0
The truck was being driven by a man named Heury Ince, and
was proceeding, heavily laden, southward on Lottridge street.
What bappened I shall afterwards mention in dealing with the
answers of the jury to the questions submitted to them by the
learned trial Judge.
Therelevant questionsand the answers to them are as follows: —
“1. Was the injury to the plaintifi's motor-truck caused by
any negligence of the defendants? A. Yes.
“2, If so, wherein did such negligence consist? A. By not
having the north gate lowered soon enough.
“3. Was the plaintiff’s driver guilty of negligence which caused
the accident or which so contributed to it that but for his negligence
the accident would not have happened? A. No.”
In order to ascertain what the jury meant by their answer to
the second question, it is necessary to consider the evidence as to
the position of the gates, which was conflicting.
According to the testimony of Ince and of Oscar Smith, who
was riding with him on the truck, both the gates were up when the
truck reached the railway tracks.
Daniel Jones, the man in charge of the gates, testified that he
saw the east-bound train approaching, when it was distant about
half a mile; that he started to lower the south gate behind a young
lady who was about to cross the tracks from the south, and that
he then started to lower the north gate “as she was coming to go
under;"” and that, just as she was crossing the last track, i.e., the
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north one, “the truck came with a dash and took advantage of the
gate being half-way up and went through at a fair rate of speed;”
that he held the north gate half-way up to let the young lady pass;
that the south gate was then down; that he had seen the truck
coming when it was at the curve in the street near the creamery,
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about a block away; that the truck went on; and that, thinking
that the driver was going to make a rush right over, he went to
move the south gate to give him a chance to get through.

Florence Solly, the young lady, testified that when she got to
the south gate it was being lowered, and after she went through it
came down behind her; that the north gate ‘“was just lowering
down;” and that the truck came along and came under, and the
gateman had to pull the gate up again to let the truck under; that
. the north gate was not put down while she was crossing the tracks;
that, when she crossed, the truck was about underneath the north
gate; that the north gate was moving when she went under it;
that the gateman started to put down the north gate before she
passed it; that the truck was then right up to that gate; and that
the gateman pulled it up again to let the truck tnrough.

In view of this evidence, the meaning to be given to the jury’s
answer to the second question is, I think, that they were unable to
find that the south gate was up, but that they found that the north
gate was not lowered when the truck reached it, and that this
was an intimation to the driver that he might safely cross the
tracks.

It cannot, in my opinion, be said that there was not evidence
to support this finding. The jury acquit the driver of contributory
negligence, and must therefore have come to the conclusion that
he was not negligent in not noticing the condition of the couth
gate.

It is impossible to say that as a matter of law the condition in
which the south gate was, prevented the condition of the north gate
from being taken to have been an intimation to the driver that
he might safely cross the tracks, or that the driver was negligent
in failing to observe that the south gate was down. These were
matters for the consideration of the jury, and we cannot say that
their findings as to them are such that a jury might not reasonably
have made them.

Oddly enough, in the case of North Eastern R. Co. v. Wanless
(1874), L.R. 7 H.L. 12, which was the case of a railway crossing pro-
tected by gates, there was, as in this case, contradictory evidence as
to whether the gate on the opposite side of the track to that by which
the injured person entered upon the line was or was not open.

That case is authority for the proposition that the leaving of
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the north gate open was evidence of negligence to go to the jury,
and that it was so even though with care and circumspection the
driver of the truck might have been able to see at a distance the
approach of the train which did the injury.

The statement of the gateman that when the truck was “going
under”’—that is, passing the north gate—he shouted to the driver,
“Stay where you are,” indicates, I think, that the gateman then
recognised that the driver had been led, by the position in which
the north gate was, to get where he was, and that he was endeavour-
ing to avoid the effect of his—the gateman’s—failure to lower the
north gate in time.

It is not without significance on the question of contributory
negligence that the driver of the engine of the train, who was on
the look-out, did not see the truck until, it was just approaching
the west-bound track; and that the train which was travelling at
a rate of between 35 and 40 miles an hour, was then only between
300 and 400 feet from the truck. The engine-driver had a much
better view of the track to the east than the driver of the truck
had, for there is a large building abutting on the railway line and
coming almost up to the west side of Lottridge street, which pre-
vented the driver from looking along the tracks to the west until
after he had passed the north gate.

The jury, in view of all the circumstances, as I have said,
acquitted the driver of the truck of contributory negligence. That
question was one eminently for the jury, and I see nothing that
would warrant us in setting aside their finding as to it.

As was said in Smith v. South Eastern R. Co., [1896] 1 Q.B.
178, it was a question for the jury whether the driver of the truck,
finding that the north gate was up, might not reasonably have
supposed that he could safely cross the rails without taking the
precaution of looking up and down the line or listening for the
whistling of a train.

In my judgment, it would require an extremely strong case to
defeat an injured person’s claim because, after entering upon the
railway tracks, he had failed to look for an approaching train.
The gate being open, he was in effect told, “ You may cross the
tracks in safety;” and it would be anomalous indeed that, having
told him this, the railway company may say to him in effect, “ You
ought not to have believed what we told you, but have looked out
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yourself to see if there was danger from an approaching train;”
and I do not wonder that juries do not look with favour upon such
a defence.
I would dismiss the appeal with costs.
Appeal dismissed

FREEDMAN v. CITY OF WINNIPEG.

Manitoba Court of Appeal, Perdue, C.J.M., Cameron, Haggart, and
l"ulrerlon, JJ.A. October 21, 1918.

Hiauways (§ IV A—146)—OBs1RUCTION—CONCURRING CAUSES OF INJURY —
NEGLIGENCE.

The rule in regard to negligence where a person is injured by coming
in contact with an obstruction on a highway is that two things must
concur to support the action, an obstruction in the road by the fault
of the defen(Ennt, and no want of ordinary care to avoid it on the purt
of the plaintiff,

AppEAL from the judgment at the trial in an action for damages
for injuries sustained by running into an obstruction on a highway.
Reversed.

T. A. Hunt, K.C., and J. Preudhomme, for appellant; F. M.
Burbidge, for respondent.

Peroug, C.J.M.:—This action is brought by the widow and
infant children of the late Max Freedman to recover damages
occasioned to them by his death in an accident on June 14, 1916.
On that day, the deceased had commenced working as a teamster
for the Manitoba Cartage Co. While driving a dray loaded with
boxes westward along Higgins Avenue in the City of Winnipeg,
one of the boxes on the rear end of the load came in contact with
a telegraph pole of the Canadian Pacific R. Co. erected on the
north side of the street. This displaced some of the boxes and one
or two fell off the dray. The deceased then stopped the horses,
threw down the reins and climbed over the top of the load with the
intention of preventing other boxes from falling. While engaged
in so doing, he fell off the dray, struck his head upon the pavement,
and received injuries which caused his death. The only witness to
the accident who gave evidence was one Moody, who had hired
the deceased for the Cartage Co. Moody and another man were
following the dray at a distance of twenty or thirty feet at the
time of the accident and the deceased was under Moody's orders.

According to Moody’s account the load had been put on the
dray at the Immigration Hall. The greater part of the hoxes
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were about 8 feet long, and they contained seeds and samples for the
Dominion Government. The boxes were placed crosswise on the
dray. They had rope handles at the ends. There were somesmaller
hoxes in front, on one of which the deceased sat while driving.
On the north side of Higgins St. there is a line of telegraph poles
helonging to the Canadian Pacific R. Co. These poles have been
there for many years. In 1903, Higgins St. was paved with
asphalt, and the pavement was placed around the poles and
extended to the north limit of the street, there being no sidewalk
on that side. Immediately adjoining the street on the north side
there are the tracks of a switch belonging to the same railway
company. Outside the line of telegraph poles, and extending to
a boulevard on the south side, there is a clear asphalt pavement
30 feet in width forming the portion of the street intended for
vehicles. There is no street car tramway line on the street.

The accident happened about 10 o’clock in the morning.
Moody says that there was plenty of room for the deceased to
avoid the pole with which the box came in contact. The deceased
had already passed at least 4 poles, so that he had full warning of
their presence. The witness also stated that the poles were per-
feetly visible so that any one could see them. There was not a
team ahead of the deceased nearer than a whole block away.
There were no vehicles or persons near to interfere with him.
When he stopped the horses, they stood still while he climbed over
the top of the load. Moody shouted to him to sit still, to leave
the boxes alone, but the deceased went on with his attempt and
the accident took place.

No evidence was put in for the defence. At the close of the
plaintifi’s case, a motion was made for a nonsuit by counsel for the
defendant. The trial judge, while strongly expressing the view
that no case had been made by the plaintiff, allowed the case to
£o to the jury, and they brought in a verdict for $3,250.

The only witness who gave evidence as to the facts which led
up to the accident was the plaintifi’s witness Moody. His evidence
clearly shews that the unfortunate event was caused by the negli-
gence of the deceased. While fully aware of the existence of the
line of telegraph poles, in broad daylight, with nothing interfering
with him and the ample paved street before him, he drove so
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carelessly as to cause a part of the load to collide with one of the
poles.

The rule in regard to negligence in a case where a person is
injured by coming in contact with an obstruction on a highway
was laid down by Lord Ellenborough in Butterfield v. Forrestir
(1809), 11 East 60, at 61, 103 E.R. 926, at 927, as follows:—

One person being in fault will not dispense with another’s using ordinary
care for himself. Two things must concur to support this action, an obstruc-
tion in the road by the fault of the defendant, and no want of ordinary care
to avoid it on the part of the plaintiff.

This statement of the law was expressly approved in Bridge +.
Grand Junction R. Co., (1838) 3 M. & W. 244, 150 E.R. 1134, and
in The “Bernina” (1886), 12 P.D. 58, and expresses the basic
principle of the law of contributory negligence. For a discussion
of the authorities I would refer to Beven on Negligence, 3rd ed.,
149-155.

As to the duty of the trial judge in a cave like the present, |
would cite Lord Hatherley’s view, expressed in Dublin, Wicklow
& Wezford R. Co. v. Slattery, 3 A.C'. 1155, at 1168, as follows:

But I coneur, also, in the opinion expressed by Palles, C.B. (Ir. R. 10
Com. Law, p. 270), that “When there is proved as part of the plaintifi’s case,
or proved in the defendant’s case and admitted by the plaintiff, an act of the
plaintiff which per se amounts to negligence, and when it appears that such
act eaused or directly contributed to the injury, the defendant is entitled to
have the case withdrawn from the jury.”

In the present case the evidence of the plaintifi’s own witness,
the only witness who testified as to how the accident took place,
shewed clearly that the deceased could have avoided the obstruc-
tion by the exercise of ordinary care, and that there was no excuse
for coming in contact withit. The trial judge should have entered
a nonsuit upon this ground alone.

After the load had come in contact with the pole the horses
stood still and the deceased was quite safe where he sat at the
front part of the load. The question was raised whether his act
in climbing over the top of the load to prevent other boxes from
falling, with the result that he fell himself and sustained the injury,
was one known by common experience to be usually in sequence
to the wrong complained of, so that the wrong and the damage
were conjoined or concatenated as cause and effect. Was the
injury to the deceased caused by the alleged obstruction as a
natural, legal consequence of it, or was the injury the result
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of the of his own negligence in leaving a safe place and going into danger?

Upon this question the plaintiffs’ counsel relied upon Prescott v. 3,

son I8 Connell (1893), 22 Can. 8.C.R. 147; Thorn v. James (1903), 14 Freepmax
thway Man. L.R. 378, and Ferguson v. Southwold (1895), 27 O.R. 66. C“_': =
ester I do not think that the principle set out in Prescott v. Connell, Winsirec.

which the other cases follow, apply in the present case, but I pege cam.
would decide this appeal upon the first ground above discussed.

dinary
bstrue-

ty care The appeal should be allowed, the judgment for plaintifis set
aside and a nonsuit entered. The plaintiff is liable to pay the
dge v. costs in the Court of King’s Bench and in this court.

1, and CameroN and Furnerton, JJ.A., concurred with PrrouE,

basic CJM.

ssion HagaArt, J.A.:—At the trial of this action, when the evidence

o ed., was all in, the defendants moved for a nonsuit. At that time, the
trial judge was very much in doubt as to whether he ghould allow

ent, | the case to go before the jury, and having expressed his doubts

icklow in this regard, he permitted the jury to give their opinion as to the

8: amount of damages that should be assessed.

R. 10 After a perusal of the evidence, I think justice would have

H..'rh:. been done by entering a nonsuit.
it such I have perused the reasons of the Chief Justice. I adopt his

itled to reasoning, and agree with the conclusion he has arrived at.

A careful perusal of the evidence of the plaintifis’ principal wit-
ness, Mr. Moody, shews that the deceased, by the exercise of
ordinary care, could have avoided the telegraph post which
caused the load of boxes to collapse. There was clearly con-
tributory negligence upon the part of Max Freedman.

The appeal should be allowed, the verdict of the plaintiff set
aside and a nonsuit entered. Appeal allowed.
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3 from Manitoba Court of Appeal, Perdue, C.J.M., Cameron and
njury. Fullerton, JJ.A. Oclober 7, 1918.

MUNICIPAL  CORPORATIONS (§ IT C—50)—INDICTABLE OFFENCES—DEALT
|uence with BY CRIMINAL CopE—BY-LAW REGARDING—ULTRA VIRES.
amage A municipal by-law attempting to deal with and impose punishment
, for an indictable offence already dealt with by the Criminal Code is
1w the ullra vires,

) a8 4 Statep Case by police magistrate under s. 761 of the

result Criminal Code for the opinion of the court as to the power of a
9—43 p.L.R.
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municipality to pass a by-law making it an offence to interfere
with any person taking cattle to pound. By-law held to he
ultra vires.

H. J. Symington, K.C., for appellant; R. A. Bruce, for rc-
spondent.

Peroyg, C.J.M.:—This is a case stated by R. M. Noble,
police magistrate, under s. 761 of the Criminal Code for the opinion
of this court. The charge was that the accused

Did in the municipality of West Kildonan, in Manitoba, on or about
April 29, 1918, unlawfully interfere with a person impounding cattle, con-
trary to the by-law of the said municipality in such case made and provided

The evidence taken on the charge, which was made part of the
case, shews that the accused made an attempt to release certain
cattle which were being taken to the pound. The police magis-
trate, after hearing the evidence, ruled that the municipality had
no power to enact the by-law, or that part of it making it an
offence to interfere with a person impounding cattle, and e,
therefore, dismissed the charge and released the accused. 'The
case was stated on the application of the prosecutor.

The questions submitted for the opinion of this court are as

follows:—

(1) Has the icipality of West Kild the power to pass a by-law
authorizing any person over the age of 14 years, not being a poundkeeper, to
impound cattle?

(2) Has the icipality of West Kild the power to pass a by-law
making it an offence to interfere with any such person taking cattle to pound
as enacted by s. 21 of the by-law 106 of the said municipality filed as ex. 1in
this matter?

(3) If the municipality has the power to pass the by-law referred to in
questions 1 and 2, has it the power to also provide for a penalty for the hreach
of such by-laws?

By-law 106 of the rural municipality of West Kildonan con-

tains the following amongst other provisions:—

(1) Prohibiting from running at large within the municipality, bulls,
stallions, boars, rams, cattle, horses, mules, goats, pigs, turkeys, geese or
poultry, and imposing on the owner a money penalty for every animal found
running at large.

(2) Every y shall impound any animal “distrained from
unlawfully running at large or from trespassing and doing d
delivered to him for that purpose by any person who has distrained the <ume.’
such animal to be held until the owner pays any claim for damages, ctc.

(3) Enabling any person of the age of 14 years or over to take to the
pound any animal found running at large or any animal found trespassing
and providing for the payment of specified fees to such person so distruining
animals.
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(19) That every fine and penalty imposed by the by-law shall be recov- MAN.
ered with costs “by summary conviction before any police magistrate or (_:
bo e justice of the peace having jurisdiction in the municipality and in default of oo
pavment and there being no distress out of which the fine can be levied”— Tur Kixe
committal to the common jail for a period not exceeding 14 days unless the e v

erfere

1 fine and costs be sooner paid. :T’.‘
(21) Any person interfering with the poundkeeper or interfering with perdue, C.J.M.
Noble, any person or persons taking animals to pound, or anybody foreibly taking

animals or poultry aforesaid out of pound before paying fees will be subject
to a fine of not less than $25 and not more than $350 in addition to all fees due
the § Ak for the impounding of said animals or poultry.

* about 8. €01 of the Municipal Act, R.8.M. 1913, ¢. 133, as amended

e, con- , 2 .. .

,,‘.,:h,,", by 4 Geo. V., ¢. 66, s. 14, empowers a municipality to pass by-
of the laws for the following amongst other purposes:—

ertain (b) For allowing, restraining, prohibiting and regulating the running at
‘ large or trespassing of any animals, geese or poultry, and providing forimpound-
ing them; for causing them to be sold if they are not claimed within a reason-

pinion

magis-

y had able time, or if the d fines and exy are not paid according to law;
it an and for appraising the damages to be paid by the owners of animals, geese or

| poultry impounded for trespassing contrary to law.

d he,

I shall first deal with question no. 2, which, as it appears to
me, is the all-important one in this case. The alleged offence laid
in the information is based upon clause 21 of the by-law. It is
clear that if this clause has attempted to deal with a matter which
B comes within the general scope of the criminal law, the clause is
eper, to heyond the power of the municipality or of the legislature of the

provinee to enact; criminal law in its widest sense being reserved
: for the exclusive legislative authority of the Parliament of Canada:
:,1’7”1";;] Atl'y-Gien. for Ontario v. Hamilton Street R. Co., [1903] A.C'. 524.
This exclusive power of the Dominion Parliament does not, of
course, exclude the right of the provincial legislature to enforce
by fine, penalty or imprisonment any law made by the legislature
s o0 in relation to any matter coming within the classes of subjects
specially assigned to the provincial authority for legislation: see
. bulls, 8. 92 (15) of the B.N.A. Act; and see also Ouimet v. Bazin, 3
teese of D.L.R. 593, 46 Can. 8.C.R. 502, 505.
i Jouak The above case of Att'y-Gen. of Ontario v. Hamilton Street K.
d from Co., supra, held that the Ontario Lord’s Day Act, treated as a
whole, was ultra vires as legislation upon criminal law. The Act,
o in its original form, was in force at the time of Confederation, and
s W it was declared by the Privy Council that an infraction of that Act

The
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by-law
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ipassing was an offence against the criminal law. The legislature of the

{ruining province had not therefore power to re-enact and amend the original
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Act. The Imperial Act, 6 & 7 Viet., e. 30, deals with offencc-
similar to th = which are dealt with by clause 21 of the by-lu
in question, with the exception that turkeys, geese and poult:
are not mentionel in the Act. It has been held by this court th:
the Act, 6 & 7 Vict. is in force in Manitoba, and that an offen: .
against any of its provisions is of a eriminal nature: Rex v. Laug/ -
ton, 6 D.L.R. 47, 22 Man. L.R. 520. The reasons for so holdiig
were not set forth in the report of the case, and I feel that it i
necessary now to refer to them briefly.

At common law, pound-breach (the wrongful removal of catilc
or goods from a pound) was an indictable offence. The underlying
principle was that the things impounded were in the custody of
the law. See Russ. Cr., 7th ed., vol. 1, pp. 551-552; Rex v. Bro-
shaw (1835), 7 C. & P. 233; Reg. v. Butterfield (1893), 17 Cox (.,
598. There is authority, also, that the forcible rescue of animuls
from a person lawfully taking them to a pound was an indictal/le
offence at common law. See Chitty’s Cr. Law, 2nd ed., vol. 2,
pp. 203-204. The recital to the Aet, 6 & 7 Viet., ¢. 30 (Imp.),
refers to the frequent happening of rescues of cattle from the
pound or on the way to or from the pound, and to the expense of
prosecuting such offenders, and states that it was expedient 1o
provide for the trial of the offenders in a summary way. It is
clear that that Act dealt with offences which, by the laws of
England, were of a criminal nature, and that the Act was intended
to provide a summary method of dealing with such offences,
instead of proceeding by way of indictment against the offenders.

By 51 Viet. c. 33, 8. 1 (D.) the laws of England relating to
matters within the jurisdiction of the Parliament of Canada as
the same existed on July 15, 1870, were declared to be in force
in Manitoba from that date, in so far as they were applicable to
the province, and in so far as they were not thereafter repealed,
altered, varied, &e., by any Act of the Parliament of the United
Kingdom, applicable to the province, or of the Parliament of
Canada. The effect of this enactment was to introduce the
criminal law of England, as of the above date, into Manitoba, suve
in so far as it might at any time be repealed, altered or varicd by
the Parliament of Canada. The above enactment is still in force
and its effect in introducing the criminal law of England, as the
same existed on the date aforesaid, into Manitoba, is set out in
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<. 12 of the Criminal Code. The Imperial Act, 6 & 7 Viet. ¢. 30,

therefore, if applicable to Manitoba, and not repealed is still in

force in this province as a part of the eriminal law of England so  7up Kine
introduced. There can be no question as to its applicability and
there has been no repeal of it. As it is an Act dealing, as I have
<hewn, with certain offences of a criminal nature, it can only be
repealed, altered or varied by the Parliament of Canada.

I would also refer to Reg. v. Shaw (1891), 7 Man. L.R. 518,
which was cited and much relied upon by counsel for the accused
in Rex v. Laughton, supra.

Even if the Imperial Aet, 6 & 7 Vict. ¢. 30, is not wide enough
to apply to a case where animals found straying on unenclosed
land have been lawfully impounded, and a rescue has taken place,
<till the offence in question is of a similar character to those
referred to in the Aet and should come under the same legislative
authority. At all events, the by-law attempts to legislate in
respect to matters which have already been made a subject of
legislation and dealt with by the Act as part of the criminal law.
\n attempt by the council of the municipality, or of the provincial
legislature itself, to pass a by-law or enactment varying, adding
to, or interfering with the Aet would be wltra vires, because it
would be an attempt to deal with a subject that belongs to eriminal
law. See Atl'y-Gen'l of Ont. v. Hamilton Street R. Co., already
cited.
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The question may also be regarded from anotl ¢ standpoint.
In cases of rescue of goods on their way to the pound the main con-
sideration at common law was whether they were or were not at
the time of the rescue in the custody of the law. If they were, the
resene was a eriminal offence.  If the goods were impounded by a
person authorised by law to do so they would be in the custody of
the law from the time of the impounding. But if the person
imipounding was not authorised by law to do so, the goods would
not be in the custody of the law until they were placed in the
pound. See Rexr v. Bradshaw, above cited. In the case at bar,
the hy-law authorises any person of the age of 14 years or over to
tuke animals running at large or trespassing to the nearest or any
pound, and the poundkeeper is to receive and impound them (s. 3).
The taking of the animals in the present case for the purpose of
impounding them would, if the municipality had power to pass
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the by-law, be authorised, and from the time of taking they would
be in the custody of the law. Rescue of them would, therefore, | ¢
a criminal offence at common law. It follows that the by-liw
would be bad in so far as it attempts to deal with a criminal maticr
and impose a punishinent in respect of it. 8. 169 of the Criminal
Code, in sub-s. (b), seems, in fact, to deal with this offence. If
that is so, the by-law is clearly wltra vires.

For the reasons I have stated, and following the decision of
this court in Rex v. Laughton, 1 would answer the second question
in the negative. This answer disposes of the case and upholds
the decision of the police magistrate in dismissing the charge and
releasing the accused. It is not, therefore, necessary to answer
the first question submitted.

The answer to the second question disposes of the third ques-
tion.

CameroN, J.A.—The accused was charged before a provincial
police magistrate with unlawfully interfering with a person in-
pounding cattle contrary to the by-law of the rural munieipality
of West Kildonan in such case made and provided. The magis-
trate dismissed the prosecution on the ground that the munici-
pality had no power to pass such a by-law, but reserved the
following questions for this court. (See judgment of Perdue,
C.J.M.)

It is to be noted that the by-law does not authorise the persons
named to impound, but to drive or take animals to the pound there
to be impounded by the poundkeeper. ’

The first question submitted might possibly (with the nodi-
fication suggested above) be answered in the affirmative. Dut it
seems to me that consideration of the part of the by-law therein
referred to does not arise on the facts of this case, that the
question should, therefore, not have been submitted by the
magistrate and that that court is not called upon to answer a
question of law which has nothing to do with the facts involved in
the matter.

As to the second question, I am satisfied that the decizion in
Rex v. Laughton, 6 D.L.R. 47, 22 Man. L.R. 520 (to which we were
referred as necessitating a negative answer thereto), would 1ot
have been based on the Stat. 6 & 7 Vict. e. 30, had it not heen
practically conceded by counsel in that case that the statute and
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the by-law there in question were substantially identical. It was
certainly not drawn to the attention of the court that the Fnglish
Act was confined in its application to the case of animals tres-
passing on inclosed land. Of course I am speaking now of the
terms of the by-law in the Laughton case (which is not now acces-
sible) as if they were similar to those of the by-law now before us,
which applies to animals running at large and does not, in express
terms, cover the case of animals trespassing on fenced or enclosed
premises. Nevertheless, I am satisfied that the decision in Rex v.
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it I have examined the question of the common law in force in
an

England prior to and, consequently, in this province since, July
15, 1870. 1 would refer to the statements as to the law on Rescue
and Pound Breach, in vol. 1, Hals. 385-6. See also the Corpus
Juris 111., 79, 80, 81, 111, 135, 137. The decision in Rez. v. Brad-
shaw, 7 C. & P. 233, is important. There it was decided that
where an official such as a “hayward” has distrained animals on
private land and is taking them to the pound they are in his custody
as servant of the owner of the land and not in custodia legis and,
therefore, taking them from the “hayward’ is not an indictable
offence.

The conclusion I reach is that under the common law inter-
ference with any person, other than officers of the law in the
execution of their duties, in driving or taking animals to the
pound, was not in England, and would not be here, a misdemeanour
or indictable offence. But I need not elaborate this branch, as
it seems to me the question as to the validity of the parts of the
by-law raised by the second and third questions is decided by
Dominion legislation, which is comprehensive on the subject and
supersedes the English law.

By s. 168 of the Criminal Code:—

Every one is guilty of an indictable offence and liable to ten years imprison-
wer a ment who resists or wilfully obstruets any public officer in the execution of his
ved in duty or any person acting in aid of such officer.

And by s. 169:—
Every one who resists or wilfully obstructs:

(a) Any peace officer in the execution of his duty or any person acting

rwere in aid of such officer;
d not (b) Any person in the lawful execution of any process against any lands
W or goods or in making any lawful distress or seizure: is guilty of an offence
punishable on indictment or on summary conviction and liable if convicted
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on indictment to two years imprisonment, and, on summary eonviction
before two justices, to six months imprisonment with hard labour or to a fine
of one hundred dollars.

“Peace officer” is defined by s. 26, and “Public officer” |,
8. 29 of the Code. Under neither definition would the persons
mentioned in the by-law come. They would certainly not !¢
persons “employed for the preservation and maintenance of 1
public peace or for the execution of eivil process.” Would ]y
be persons ““in making any lawful distress or seizure?” ““Person
is defined by s. 2 (12) of the Code and by s. 34 (20) of the Ini¢-
pretation Act. Whether or not the poundkeeper is a puliic
officer or peace officer is not material, as he is clearly a person

The result is that I am unable to read sub-s. (6) of 5. 169 in 11\
other light than making in its terms clear provision for the i
case covered by the part of the by-law before us in the second
question submitted. There is no doubt that that part is aimed at
any one resisting or wilfully obstructing persons in making a l:v-
ful distress or seizure of animals running at large. In the casc of
animals doing damage it would be distress to take them in conirol
or possession. When they are at large otherwise, contrary to the
by-law, and are taken control or possession of by any one authoris-
ed, that certainly constitutes seizure of the animals. The tom
“geizure "’ is a wide one as shewn by the various definitions gi\on
in C'ye. XXXV. 1372, Beyond question, to my mind, the taling
of animals under control and driving them is amply sufficient to
constitute a seizure. The evidence to convict under the hy-law
would be sufficient to conviet under s. 169 of the Code. We Luve
therefore, a reduplication of the state of affairs in Reg. v. S,
7 Man. L.R. 518, with a new offence and additional penalties
prescribed by the municipality, under the presumed authority of
provincial legislation, in addition to the offence and the penalties
preseritied by the Code. This makes the by-law to this extent
beyond tlie powers of the local legislature to enact, if it purported
to do so. As the legislation does not expressly so authorise the
municipalit:’, we must take it that it was not intended to go beyond
the powers of the legislature. We must conclude, therefore, that
the by-law itseil goes beyond those powers. Here, however, this
distinction is not material as it is clear that the ground which the
by-law attempts to cover is already fully covered by the provisions
of the Code.
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wiction I am, therefore, of opinion that the second question must be
g answered in the negative. This disposes with the necessity of
i answering the third.

BrRONS FriLerroN, J.A., concurred with Perdue, (".J.M.

ot le By-law ultra vires.

HAYS v. WEILAND.

Cuterio Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Maclaren, Magee and
Hodgins, JJ.A., and Keily, J.  April 23, 1918,

DiscoVERY AND INSPECTION (§ IV

IISCLOSURE OF NA

CLOSURE OF NAME OF W

On an examination for discovery in an action for libel based on a printed

pamphlet, the defendant can be compelled to disclose the name of the

’l'huf of the pamphlet us being a relevant fact in the ease, although it
imvolves the diselosure of the name of o witness.

of the
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e Arreal from the order of MerEpITH, C.J.C.P. Reversed.

R. 8. Robertson for appellant; W. Lawr for respondent.

The judgment of the Court was read by

Hooeins, J.A.:—Appeal by leave of Clute, J., from an order of

the Chief Justice of the Common Pleas, dated the 8th January, 1918,

refusing to compel the respondent to answer questions 53, 142,

147, 188, and 190 on his examination for discovery.

The action is for libel, based on a pamphlet printed by the

respondent, who pleads only that the document is not capable of

nor intended to have the meaning attributed to it in the statement

B of claim. The pamphlet refers by name to the appellant, a mem-

bt ber of the legal profession, who went to the front; and the innuendo

is that the pamphlet charges both cowardice and unprofessional

conduct.

The position of the respondent, so far as these five questions

are concerned, resolves itself into a refusal to give the name of the

person to whom he gave the copies of the pamphlet after he had

printed them. He says, however, that that person brought him

the manuseript to print.

The reason of the refusal as to question 53 is, that to answer
pros further would “have a tendency to disclose the name of the person

1 his whom we intend to call at the trial.”

. il As to 142, the refusal is on the same ground, the question being

as to whether certain named people were “acting with” him “in

connection with this matter.”

Question 147 inquires whether it was the respondent’s inten-
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tion that what he printed should come to the attention of the
people already mentioned. The remaining two questions dcal
with specific people, and ask if they received printed copies of the
pamphlet. To the first of these questions the same ground of
objection is taken, and it obviously is intended to cover the
remaining two.

The only question to which any plausible ground seems to be
open is No. 53. The others deal with the respondent’s good
faith—a very important matter when, as here, his counsel argues
that he was an innocent actor in the matter, merely printing what
he did in the way of his trade. The respondent, who admits
reading the manuscript and thinking it was “a pretty hot reply,”
kept it in his pocket, having been told it was secret, and destroyed
it after printing it. The appellant seems to be entitled to test
this phase of the matter; and the four last questions could have
been answered without disclosing any names, as they had been
stated by the questioner. The refusal is therefore really not on
that ground, but rests upon a disinclination to afford any clue to
the real offender, the writer of the manuseript.

In consequence, the true point involved in all the questions is,
whether the fact or allegation that an answer might disclose the
name of a witness is enough, in this libel case, to warrant the
refusal.

1t should be stated that the learned Chief Justice of the Com-
mon Pleas exacted an undertaking from the respondent that on
the trial he would “admit publication by him of the printed paper
containing the words complained of,” and considered that with
such an admission the appellant was not entitled to press for
further answers.

In Marriott v. Chamberlain (1886), 17 Q.B.D. 154, Lord
Justice Bowen, in the Court of Appeal, sitting with Lord Fsher,
M.R., and Fry, I.J., said (pp. 164, 165):—

Although one party cannot compel the other to disclosc the
names of his witnesses as such, yet, if the name of a person is s
relevant fact in the case, the right that would otherwise exist to
information with regard to such fact is not displaced by the
assertion that such information involves the disclosure of the name
of a witness. s
This view of the law follows Storey v. Lord Lennox (1830),
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1 Keen 341, 48 E.R. 338, and is itself adopted in Humphries &
Co. v. Taylor Drug Co. (1888), 39 Ch.D. 693, 695; Wootton v.
Sievier, [1913) 3 K.B. 409; and Macdonald v. Sheppard Publishing
Co. (1900), 19 P.R. (Ont.) 282,

To this rule there are two exceptions, and both are relied on
by the respondent. One is that to answer as desired would be
oppressive, and the other, that the question is put for a purpose
outside the action, as, for instance, that of bringing an action
against some other person.

The answers to the questions would not of course entail any-
thing in the nature of oppression. As regards the other excep-
tion, it is really a rule applicable only to newspapers, and depends
upon their peculiar character and privileges. This appears from
such cases as Gibson v. Evans (1889), 23 Q.B.D. 384, Hennessy v.
Wright (1888), 24 Q.B.D. 445 (note), Hope v. Brash, [1897] 2 Q.B.
188, and Plymouth &c. Society v. Traders Publishing Association,
[1906] 1 K.B. 403, in which the defences set up were all statutory
under the Act relating to newspaper libel, and consequently the
information sought possessed no relevancy.

The exception itself is founded upon considerations of policy—
for, if a newspaper proprietor were compelled to give up the name
of his informant, the collection of news would be difficult; and,
in the second place, if fair comment and ample apology are a
defence to a newspaper, it would be difficult to deny them to the
real author of the words eomplained of.

These considerations do not apply here, and there is no reason
for extending the protection afforded to newspapers to the printer
of a fugitive libel, who, after reading it, asks to be assured that it
will lead to no trouble, then prints it, and destroys the manu-
script.

There remains, however, the inquiry whether the name of the
person to whom the copies were delivered is a material fact. It
may be observed that the delivery deposed to by the respondent

i8 not in itself necessarily publication, because the recipient was
the author of the manuseript. But it was part of the publication,
and publication is or may be a complex operation; and the intent
and knowledge of the respondent, when delivering these copies, is
an clemrent of considerable weight in determining whether he was
an innocent printer or a participant in an attack, particularly
mean and unpatriotie, if the allegations were not true or believed
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to be so by him. The name of the person to whom the cojies
were given way be illuminating and indicate the purpose under.
lying the secrecy observed, and may even destroy the pre-ent
defence and aggravate the damages. It might also tend to niti-
gate them if it turned out that the respondent was misled or
inveigled into what he did by his friend.

The relevancy of the identity of the person to whom the covivs
were given may be put on several grounds. Innocency in ¢ii
lating libellous matter may entirely absolve the person pul!
ing if he shews that he was not negligent: Vizetelly v. Mu/ ¢y
Select Library Limited, [1900) 2 Q.B. 170; Smith v. Streatf.ild,
[1913] 3 K.B. 764; Haynes v. DeBeck (1914), 31 Times L.R. 15

In Vines v. Serell (1835), 7 C. & P. 163, Park, J., ruled 11,
although publication was admitted, the manner of it was ¢ m-
petent evidence with a view to the amount of damages. Ihis
ruling was amplified in the judgment given by the Common !’ cas
in Pearson v. Lemaitre (1843), 5 M. & G. 700, 134 E.R. 742
aftera very full argument. Tindal, C.J., there said (pp. 719, 720

“Either party may, with a view to the damages, give evil nee
to prove or disprove the existence of a malicious motive in the
mind of the publisher of defamatory matter; but . . . ilthe
evidence given for that purpose establishes another cau-¢ of
action, the jury should be cautioned against giving any damiiges
in respect of it.”

Inspection of documents was granted in Pape v. Lister (1571),
L.R. 6 Q.B. 242, though having a bearing only on the quantim
of damages.

In Ontario the case seems covered in principle by the judg-
ments of Mabee, J., and a Divisional Court, in Massey-Harris Co.
v. DeLaval Separator Co.(1906), 11 0.L.R. 227 and 591. Inthat case
the name of the informant was ordered to be disclosed. On the
other branch, viz., discovery of the names of the persons to whom
the circular was published, Meredith, C.J. (now C.J.0.) said
(p. 593): “The inquiry they desire to pursue is undoubitedly
relevant to the issues in the action or some of them and on the
quest on of damages.”

One of the issues there was qualified privilege, which would
raise not only the question of the mutual interest between the
persons to whom communication was made and the publishier of

P Y
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the libel, but also that of malice as defeating privilege. In this
case there is no defence of privilege, but innocent publication is
asserted, into which the question of bona fides, honest belief, or
malice enters, and the principle must be the same.

McKergow v. Comstock (1906), 11 O.L.R. 637, another case of
privilege, contains the following statement of the law by Anglin,
J. (p. 643):—

“Apart from any question of privilege bond fides is always
material upon the question of damnages. A plaintiff may offer
evidence to prove lack of good faith—absence of honest belief on
the part of a defendant—in order to aggravate his damages; a
defendant may, in like manner, give evidence to shew that he
acted in good faith to mitigate the damages: Pearson v. Lemaitre,
5 M. & G. 700, 719, 134 E.R. 742. The existence or absence of
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This express malice is the issue to which such evidence is relevant and,
1 P eas as the lack of honest belief is cogent evidence of such malice,
R. 742 the existence of such belief goes far to negative it.”
120 The appeal should be allowed with costs, including those of
Adend the order appealed from and the application for leave to appeal,
in the to the appellant in any event; and an order for attendance at his
if the own expense of the respondent, and requiring him to answer these
use of questions, should issue. Appeal allowed.
wnages o
NASHWAAK PULP & PAPER Co v. WADE.
(1871), New Brunswick Supreme Court, Appeal Division, Hazen, C.J., W hite
antom and Grimmer, JJ. September 20, 1918,
Warens (§ II D—95)—LuMBerMEN—RIGHT TO FLOAT LOGS DOWN STREAM
~RIGHTS OF MIPARIAN OWNERS—OBSTRUCTIONS,
v judg Lumbermen and riparian proprietors have concurrent rights in a float-
ris C able river. The lumbermen have an undoubted right for passage of
ris Co. their logs down the river, but this right must be exercised subject to the
at case rights of the riparian proprietors, and all reasonable means must be used
On th and care and um taken to avoid injury to the riparian owners.
n the
whom AreeaL by defendant from the judgment of the King’s Bench
sald Division in an action to recover damages for injury to land by
Dtedly depositing logs thereon, damaging and destroying crops and wear-
on the ing away the bank of the intervale. Affirmed.
A.J. Gregory, K.C., and M. J. Teed, K.C., for appellant; P..J.
would ”llyhl s, contra,
o the Hazen, C.J.:—The Nashwaak river, which is a floatable stream,
Ther of it a tributary of the 8t. John, into which it enters on the easterly
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side opposite the City of Fredericton. From the earliest settlem
of the province it has been used for the floating and driving of logs.
The plaintifis own a farm situate in the county of York about §
miles above the mouth of the Nashwaak and situated on its west
bank, 40 or 50 acres of the farm consisting of intervale land, 1nd
this farm is about 2 miles above certain jam piers which were
placed in the river by the predecessors in title of the defendunt
company. The defendant, a company duly incorporated under
the N.B. Companies Act, is the owner of large areas of land at the
head waters of the Nashwaak river, and also owns the mills at the
town of Marysville, which were formerly owned and operated by
the late Alexander Gibson.

It appears from the evidence that the dam which held back the
water which supplied power to these mills went out in the year
1913, and that since that year no lumber has been manufactured
at these mills, and that in the year 1917 the machinery had | een
removed, or was being removed, from them, and they were | cing
dismantled and there was nothing left of the mill except the
wooden structure in which the machinery had formerly been. It
further appeared that the logs which were brought down the
Nashwaak by the defendant company during the season of 1917
and preceding years back to 1913 were driven by Marysville to
the mouth of the Nashwaak river opposite Fredericton, where
they were rafted and freighted down the River St. John to it
mouth. The defendant is the owner of the alveus of the stream,
and of land on both sides of the river at the point where the jam
piers were constructed, about two miles below the plaintifi’s inter-
vale, and is also the riparian proprietor of both sides up as far as
the plaintiff’s lower line. In the spring of 1917 there was u con-
siderable quantity of old logs in the river that had not come down
in the spring drive of 1916, about three million of which belonged
to the defendants, and a quantity to the Frasers, who also operated
upon the river. In the spring of 1917 the defendant had « large
quantity of new logs, and the Frasers also had a considerable
quantity. Many of the logs came down in April or May, 1917,
and were stopped at the jam piers maintained by the defendant
company near the Penniac bridge, this bridge being very close to
the piers which, as I said before, were within about two miles
of the lower line of the plaintiffs’ intervale. These logs weie being
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lement sluiced out in the ordinary way, and it is stated about three million
of logs., feet had passed through. The spring freshet had subsided, and

bout § about the 17th or 18th of June a freshet that appears to have been
8 west unusual for the time of year occurred, and the water rose to a
d, and considerable height. The plaintiffis claim that the logs being
b were jammed in the river above the piers filled the river completely,

endant heing wedged in, as was said by one of the witnesses, like nails in

under a keg, from the surface of the river to the depth of 25 or 30 ft,.
at the extending up river for a mile or more, and so created a dam,
at the raising the water on the plaintiffs’ land to a much greater height
ted by and retaining it there for a much longer period than otherwise

would have taken place, and that this would not have occurred
ek the hut for the boom and piers which were maintained by the defend-
e vear ant in the river. This caused injury to the erops upon the plain-
wetured tiffs’ intervale, and when the freshet subsided logs of the defendant

d Tieen and of the Frasers grounded upon it, thereby causing damage. 1t
2 being is also claimed by the plaintifis that the action of the logs coming
pt the down the stream caused damage by wearing and tearing away the
en. It intervale at the river bank, and that a ford by which they usually
v the crossed the river was blocked by the logs, thereby causing further
of 1917 damage.
ville to The jury, in answering the questions submitted to them,
where assessed the damage to crops at $544, injury to the river banks

I to its by the logs of the defendant company prior to the freshet of June
stream, I8, 850, and during that freshet at $50. For stoppage of the ford
he jam used by the plaintiffs at Gibson’s Island, by the logs of the de-
% inter- fendant company, $25, and for the stranding of the defendant’s

s far a8 logs on the plaintifis’ intervale, $15, making a total of $684.

i con- The lands of the plaintiffs, as stated, are situated about 2 miles
¢ down above the jam piers. Opposite the plaintifis’ upper line there is a
rlonged small island known as Gibson’s Island, and to the east of the
nerated plaintifis’ intervale as it juts out into the river is a large island
a large situated at the confluence of the Nashwaak and Penniac Rivers,
derable known as Penniac Island. At this point the river divides into two
, 1917, channels, one known as the eastern or Penniac channel and the
fendant other known as the western channel, which skirts the southern
rlose to side of the plaintiffs’ intervale. The evidence was that if the river
0 miles at the point of division was left unobstructed many, if not most of

o being the logs, would go down the eastern or Penniac channel. During
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the season of 1917, however, and for the 2 years preceding, il
defendant had strung a boom from a point at or opposite the lo: «
end of Gibson’s island extending down to and along the northe;
end of Penniac Island, effectually closing the eastern or Penui:

channel, and thishad the effect of diverting all logs coming do )
the river into the western channel by and in front of the plainti -
lands. This fact has important bearing on the plaintifi’s c¢luin
for damages caused by the wearing away of the bank by the |og
of the defendant. The defendant denied that the logs filled (}e
river to the extent alleged or that it created a damage or raised (he
water to any appreciable extent, and further alleged that the fre-het
waters would have overflowed the plaintiffs’ intervale and damaged
their crops if there had been no jam at all. He also denied ihe
trespass complained of and denied the liability, and alleged that
the river is a common and public highway for the driving and
floating of logs, and the defendant was lawfully using the sunme
for such purposes without negligence, and that the freshet in
question was of such an unusual and extreme character u- to
amount to vis major, and logs were carried on the plaintiffs’ linds
without the defendant’s negligence, and also that some of the
damage complained of was done by the logs of the Frasers. The
defendant also justified under Act of Assembly, N.B. (1865), ¢ 3.
This statute authorised Alexander Gibson, the proprietor of the
Nashwaak mills to erect and maintain a dam across the river
Nashwaak at or near the lower bridge, for the purpose of stopping.
collecting together and sorting timber, logs, masts, spars and other
lumber which might float down the Nashwaak river and for the
purpose of selecting and separating therefrom all of his logs, nists.
spars and other lumber. He was also authorised to erect and
maintain a boom extending from the boom just mentioned (down
the river Nashwaak near the centre thereof, and near to the said ills
for the purpose of protecting and securing the timber, log- and
lumber for the use of the said mills. It declared it to be his duty
at all times while the boom mentioned in the first section of the
Act was kept and maintained across the river and whenever any
timber, logs or lumber coming down the river were stopped by
said boom, to cause the same to be examined and sorted out each
day except Sundays, and to select thereform without any un-
reasonable delay, all the timber, logs or lumber belonging to him.
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and place the same within the boom mentioned in the second

g, 1he
lower section of the Aet, or otherwise to remove the same and to allow
ko the remainder of such lumber to float down on the western side
mn of the said river Nashwaak to and over the sluice of the mill dam
dov of the said Alexander Gibson in the customary manner. 8. 8 of
nti of the Act provide that all the rights, powers and privileges given
claim to and vested in the said Alexander Gibson and all the duties and
e logs liabilities by the Act imposed upon him should vest in and attach
'l the to his heirs and assigns, being the owners of the said Nashwaak
s the wills, as fully in all respects as the same were given to and vested
reshet in and attached to him,
naged The trial judge withdrew this statute from the consideration
W the of the jury as not applying to logs not manufactured or not in-
| that tended for manufacture at the Nashwaak mills, giving to it the
g and reasonable construction that the Act only applied to logs and
F— lumber to be manufactured at those mills and not otherwise, a
ot ia construction which, I think, can be clearly gathered from the
ot language of the Act. Otherwise it is impossible in my mind to
niike attach any meaning to the words “proprietor of the Nashwaak
f the mills™ in the first section, the words “near to the said mills for
Ihe the purpose of protecting and securing the logs and lumber for
o 53 the use of the said mills” in the second section, and the words
f the “being the owners of the said Nashwaak mills” in the eighth
sver section. T think it is perfectly clear that the legislature in giving
ing. the authorisation for the construction of these piers did so for the
oiber purpose of enabling the more effective operation and carrying on
L the of the mills at Marysville, and as the dam which provided power
hiiis’ which drove those mills had been carried out in 1913, and no lumber
¢ and was sawn at those mills after that date, and as the mills had been
Jowe dismantled and at the time of the trial the machinery either had
L aille been or was being removed, I think the judge was right and that
Ll in charging the jury that the provisions of c. 53 of the Act of 1865
duty were not applicable to the defendant company and that Act had
f the 1o effect so far as the case was concerned, he was fully justified.
r any The defendant, however, was the owner of the land on both sides
by of the stream where the boom was constructed, and it becomes
cash necessary, therefore, to consider what his rights were as such
A riparian proprietor.
 him, A question very similar to this was fully gone into by the late

1043 p.L.R.
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Barker, C.J., in the case of Roy v. Fraser (1903), 36 N.B.R.
113, and a conclusion come to that the owner of the alveus of a
navigable river and of the land on both sides of it upon which
a dam stands has an absolute right to maintain it for the purpose
of operating his mill by the use of the flowing water, and he has
this right as an incident to the ownership of the property, hut
such right must be exercised subject to the rights of other riparian
proprietors to a reasonable use of the water and to the public
right of passage. This public right is not a paramount right, but
a right concurrent with that of the riparian proprietors, and if in
the exercise of their public right the defendants in driving their
logs down the stream injured the plaintiffs’ dam, the onus is upon
them to shew that they adopted all reasonable means and used all
reasonable care and skill in order to avoid the injury. In that
case the plaintiff had a water-power mill upon Green river in the
County of Madawaska for the purpose of working his mill, with a
certain dam across a certain stream where the same passed through
his lands, and the action was brought against the defendants, for
damaging said dam. The langusge in which Barker, C.J., at p.
1382, refers to Green river is applicabic to the Nashwaak :—

It is, I think (he says), clear from the evideroe that this Green river is
a navigable river, or to use a practice which has been ~dopted in such cases,
a floatable river, the same as the Hammond river which wa: nnder discussion
in Rowe v. Titus, 1 All. 326, among other rivers and streams in this provinee
and elsewhere. They are private rivers subject to the public right of passage.
The dam in question is said to have been built some 50 or 60 years ago, and
there is no question raised here either as to its having been built by the
owner of the bed of the stream at that point or that the plaintiff who now
owns it is also the owner of the land on both sides of the river at this point
and the owner of the bed of the stream as well. The original owner in build-
ing this dam for the purpose of his mill, and the present owner in maintain-
ing it for the same purpose both acted in the undoubted exercise of s right
incident to the ownership of the soil.

In support of this proposition he mentioned the case of (a/dwell
v. McLaren (1884), 9 App. Cas. 302 at pp. 404, 405:—

In this case I, therefore, conclude that the defendant had
the right to place a boom and piers, but that that right must be
. exercised subject to the rights of other riparian proprietors to the
reasonable use of the water, and that if in consequence of the
erection of this boom logs coming down the Nashwaak river were
held back to such an extent as to dam back the water and cause
the same to overflow the plaintiffs’ land or to be retained on the
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VB.R. plaintifis’ land for a longer time than would otherwise have been
18 of a the case or to do other injury thereto, the defendant is liable in
which damages to the plaintiffs therefor, and that it is incumbent upon
urpose the defendant to shew that he used all reasonable means and all
he has reasonable care and skill in order to avoid injury to the riparian
y, but proprietors above and below him, but if by the construction of the
parian boom he infringed on the rights of the proprietors abowe him as it
public was claimed occurred in this case, he is liable to damage to such
at, but proprietors. In 1853 the Court of Common Pleas of Upper Canada
dif in held in The Queen v. Meyers, 3 U.C.C.P. 305, that the erection of a
g their dam on a river such as the one now in question by a riparian owner

§ upon was illegal. The dam was a nuisance and as such an indict-
sed all ment would lie to have it abated. In Farquharson v. Imperial
n that 0il Co.( 1898), 20 O.R. 206, Armour, C.J.,, quoted the passage I
in the have cited from Caldwell v. MeLaren, supra, and held that the
witha dams had not been wrongfully erected although they were erected

wrough not by any legislative authority but by virtue of a right of prop-
its, for erty in the bed of the stream. The more recent Canadian case,

,at p. on the subject, however, is that of Ward v. Township of Grenville

(1902), 32 Can. 8.C.R. 510. In that case it appeared that the
!"“’“' defendant, by legislative authority, had erected a bridge over a
I cases,

i tributary of the Ottawa river. The appellant, Ward, was a log
wrovinee owner whose lumber was being driven down this river, which is a
Jassage. stream, I should judge, of the same character as the Nashwaak

};(;)»‘..-l: river, and the bridge was carried away by reason, it was alleged,

P of the negligence of those driving the logs. The township brought
is point an action and recovered. The judgment was sustained.
n bulld- In the leading case of Rylands v. Flelcher, L.R. 3 H.L. 330, the

e judgment of Blackburn, J., in the Court of Exchequer Chamber,
is quoted with approval by the Lord Chancellor:—

aldwell We think that the true rule of law is that the person who for his own pur-
poses brings on his land and collects and keeps there anything likely to do
mischief if it escapes, must keep it at his peril, and if he does not do sois primd

1t had facie ble for all the d which is the natural consequence of its

ust be escape. He can excuse himself by showing that the escape was owing to the

to the plaintifi’s default or perhaps that the escape was the consequence of vis major
or the act of God, but as nothing of this sort exists here it is unnecessary to

of the inquire what excuse would be sufficient.

T were The Lord Chancellor goes on to say that the general rule, as

| cause above stated, seems on principle just. The person whose grass or

on the corn is eaten down by the escaping cattle of his neighbour, or
whose land is flooded with water from his neighbour’s reservoir, or
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whose cellar is invaded by the filth of his neighbour’s privy, or
whose habitation is made unhealthy by the fumes and noisone
vapours of his neighbour’s gas works, is injured without any f:ult
of his own, and it seems but reasonable and just that the neigh-
bour who has brought something on his own property (which \as
not naturally there), harmlesst o others so long as it is confined to
his own preperty, but which he knows will be mischievous if it gets
on his neighbours’, should be obliged to make good the dam:ge
which ensues if he does not succeed in confining it to his own prop-
erty. But for his act in bringing it there no mischief could hive
occurred, and it seems but just that he should, at his peril, keep
it there so that no mischief may accrue, or answer for the natural
and undisputed consequence, and upon authority this is established
to be law, whether the thing so brought be beasts or water or filth
or stenches.

In the same case Lord Cranworth, in the course of his judgnent,
said at p. 340:—

If & person brings or accumulates on his land anything which if it should
escape may cause damage to his neighbour, he does so at his peril. If it does
escape and cause d he is ible, h careful he may have heen
lndwhnwvnrpmuuomhemyh.voukonwpnmtﬂndmu

My conclusion from thése authorities is that if the boon: and
piers maintained by the defendant near the Penniac bridge held
back logs coming down the Nashwaak river to such an extent as
to dam back the water and cause the same to overflow the plaintifi's
land, or retained the water thereon for a longer period than would
otherwise have been the case, the defendant is liable for such
damages, if any thereby occasioned.

Taking this view of the legal rights of the parties, the question
now arises with regard to the evidence and the finding of the jury,
and in this connection and at this point I think it desirable to give
the questions submitted to the jury with their answers thereto.
They are as follows:—

The Court:—1. Was the flooding of plaintiffs’ intervale due to the freshet
of June 18?7 Yes. 1A. Was it due to the backing up of the water by the
jam of logs at the piers and extending up river? The jam retained the
water to quite an extent.

2. Was the freshet which ooum-udonornbomtho 18th day of June last
of such viol and so | and dinary as to be properl, called
an act of God or vis major? No.

3. Was the defendant company guilty of any negligence or want of
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disome

reasonable and proper care and precaution in the construction and mainten-
ance of the piers and booms at the Penniac bridge? No.

y fault 4. If 80, in what did such negligence consist? S_

neigh- 5. Did the defendant’s logs cause damage to the plaintiffs' lands by Nasawaax
; in Jurmg and carrying away portion of the bank on the river? Yes. Puwe

oh was 6. Did the defendant Saks 3 22 Mpmp“mmdpm_ gam

ned to caution to prevent the logs driven down the river causing injury to the bank -

it wets of the plaintif’s land?  No. WabE,

Amuge 7 Did the fideuhnt company use proper md reuonnble care and pre- !.—_CJ

eaution to keep its logs free from going on the plaintiffs’ lands? No. i)

1 prop- 8. Was the jam formed at the piers near the Penniac bridge due to any
negligence or want of proper and reasonable care and precaution on the part
of the defendant company?  To a certain extent.

9. 1f so, in what did such negligence consist? In not making some pro-
vision for holding a portion of their logs at some point below the jam piers.
10. What damages did the plaintiff sustain by reason of the flooding of
his intervale lands on or about the 18th day of June last? Total damage to
crops, $544.90.

11. What damage did the plaintiff sustain by reason of injury to his
river banks by the logs of the defendant company (a) prior to the June freshet
of the 18th, (b) during the freshet of June 187 (a) $50; (b) 850.

shoud 12. What damages did the plaintiff sustain by reason of the stoppage if
any, of the ford used by him at Gibson’s island by the logs of the defendant
company? 825,

13. What damages did the plaintiff sustain by reason of the stranding of
the defendant’s logs on his intervale lands? $15.

Questions submitted by plaintiffs:

1. Do the plaintiffs own and occupy the lands described in the statement
of claim? Yes.

2. Did the defendant in the month of June, 1917, maintain in the Nash-
waak river (a) The piers and boom referred to in the evidence as the jam
piers and boom? Yes. (b) Logs in & jam above the jam piers? Yes.

3. Did the defendant negligently allow said jam to obstruct and hold
back this water in the Nashwaak river? Yes.

. 4. Were plaintiff’s crops injured as a result of the wnter being so obstructed
lestion or held back? Yes.

e jury, Questions by defendant:

10 give 1. Did the defendant i ble and usual ordinary care in con-
ducting its spring drive and in the management of its logs in 1917? Not in
the vicinity of Wade's intervale.

2. Was the freshet of June 17 and 18, 1917, extraordinary and unusual
freshet having regard to the time of year? The freshet of June 17 and 18, 1917, was
by the unusual,
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ned the 3. Could the defendant have bly anticipated such a high freshet
in June? No.
e last 4. Would the high freshet of June, 1917, have overflowed the plaintiff’s
called land and injured their crops if the jam had not been there? We are unable
to say,
vant of 5. Did the jam of logs in June, 1917, cause the water to be backed up so

85 10 damage the plaintiffs’ lands and crops more than they would have been
if the jam had not been there? Yes.
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6. Did the plaintiffs forbid or refuse to permit the defendant to reniove
the logs from the plaintiffs’' land after the first June freshet? Yes.

7. Is the Nashwaak river a floatable river for the driving of logs? Yes,
ng'um From these answers it will be seen that the jury found that the

& Paren  Overflowing of the plaintifis’ intervale was due to the freshet of
Co. June 18, and that the jam caused by the logs piling up against the
Wape. boom and piers constructed by the defendant at the Penniac
Hasen,0J.  bridge retained the water to quite an extent; that the defendant’s
logs caused damage to the plaintifis’ lands by the injuring snd
carrying away of a portion of the bank on the river; that the
defendant company did not take the reasonable and proper care
and precaution in order to prevent the logs driven down the river
causing injury to the bank of the plaintifis’ lands, and did not take
proper and reasonable precaution to keep its logs from going on
the plaintifis’ lands; that the jam formed on the piers near the
Penniac bridge was to a certain extent due to negligence and want
of proper and reasonable care and precaution on the part of the
defendant company, and that such negligence consisted in the com-
pany not making some provision for holding a portion of their logs
below the jam piers. In answer to a question by the plaintifis the
jury said that the defendant negligently allowed the said jam to
obstruct and hold back the water in the Nashwaak river, and that
the plaintifis’ crop was injured as a result of the water heing so
obstructed and held back.

In answer to the defendant’s questions, it was stated that the
defendant did not exercise reasonable and ordinary care in con-
duecting its spring drive and in the management of its logs in 1917,
in the vicinity of Wade's intervale; that they (the jury) were
unable to say whether the freshet of 1917 would have overflowed
the plaintiffs’ land and injured their crops if the jam had not heen
there; that the jam of logs in June, 1917, caused the water to be
backed up so as to damage the plaintifis’ lands and crops more
than would have been the case if the jam had not been there.

A great deal of evidence was given on both sides with regard to
the rise in water in the river, and it was contended on behalf of the
defendant that as, according to certain witnesses, the rise helow
the jam was only 1.78 feet less than above, the backing up of the
water and consequent damage to the intervale could only have
been caused by the jam. The jury, however, had the opportunity
of seeing the witnesses, hearing them under oath, and witnessing
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remove their demeanour on the stand. They had the further ad vantage of
b Yeu inspecting the locus in quo and while they state they are unable to
ot the say if the high freshet in June, 1917, could have overflowed the
het of plaintifis’ land and injured their crops if the jam had not been there,
yet they say that the jam caused the water to be backed up and
retained so as to damage the plaintifis’ lands more than they would
have been damaged if the jam had not been there, and they further
find that the plaintifis’ crop was injured as a result of the water
being so obstructed and held back, and that the flooding of plain-
tiffs’ intervale was due to the freshet of June 18, and that the jam
s thver retained the water to quite an extent.

& take In view of all these findings, and of the evidence upon which the
same were based, I am of opinion that the trial judge was right in
directing a verdict for the plaintiffis and that there was ample
evidence to justify a jury of reasonable men in coming to the con-
clusion which they did. It has been contended that the answer
ol to question 1A is not a finding that the overflowing of the plaintifis’
ir logs intervale was due to the backing up of the water by the jam. The
fi's the answer of the jury to that question is that the jam retained the
water to “quite an extent.” I am disposed to think that the fair
meaning to be derived from this is that after the water had risen
the jam retained it and prevented it from running off as rapidly
as it otherwise would, and therefore made the damage caused by
Lt e it so much the greater.

L ot In answer to the third question put by the plaintifis, however,
1017, the jury distinetly say that the defendant negligently allowed the
jam to obstruet and hold back the water in the Nashwaak river,
and in answer to question 4 say that the plaintiffs’ crop was injured
as a result of the water being so obstructed or held back. To my
mind it makes very little difference whether the injury was caused
by the backing up of the water by the jam of logs at the piers or
I by the retention and holding back of the water by that jam and its
WY, being prevented from running ouf in the usual free and unob-
of the structed manner. In either case the damage was caused by the
N action of the defendant in maintaining the boom and piers which
of the occasioned the jam of logs and the backing up of the same.

b The answers to the questions submitted will shew that the jury
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accepted the evidence of the plaintiffs’ witnesses to the effect that
a large jam of logs existed and remained above the jam piers after
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N.B. June 17, and raised up the waters of the Nashwaak river above /¢

8.C. jam and held the waters back longer than they would otherwi-
Nasawaax have remained had there been no obstruction in the river in il
form of the jam of logs caused by the piers and booms, and tlt
in consequence the crops on the plaintiffs’ intervale were injur|
W:i»:. and to a great extent ruined.

I now come to the question raised by the defendant to 1l
effect that the freshet in June was of such an unusual and exti-
ordinary character as to amount to vis magjor, or the act of (.,
and that therefore it was not liable. The evidence shews that i
the spring of the year, May and early June, the rainfall il
not exceed that which was customary at that season of the your,
and this state of affairs continued until about June 15, when hei oy
rains occurred which caused the vater to rise in the river to vlat
was an unusual height for that season of the year. This question
was left to the jury by the trial judge in these words:—

The act of God does not necessarily mean exertion of natural for ¢ s
tremendous in extent that no human force or scheme could possibly proent
its effect. It is enough that it should be such that human effort coull not
reasonably be expected to anticipate it. The question for you is this: was
the flood due to the freshet so great that it could not reasonably have heen
anticipated, although if it had been anticipated the effect might have leen
prevented. However great the flood had been, if it had not been grouter
than floods that had happened before and might be expected to oceur ::uin
the defendant cannot claim immunity, but the company should not be held
liable because it could not r bly anticipate—that is, h great the
flood might have been on the 18th, if it was no greater than floods that hap-
pened before and would be expected to occur again, then the question f s
magor or act of God would not arise, but as a matter of law I do not thinl the
company should be held liable because it did not prevent a very extraorinary
act of Nature which it could not reasonably anticipate. Now the quc-tion
largely turns upon whether this freshet could have been reasonably anticied
and this is a matter for you, for when the law creates a duty and the porty is
disabled from performing it without any default of his own by the act o God,
the law will excuse him.
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The following question concerning the matter was left (o the
jury by the court:—

2. Was the freshet which oceurred on or about June 18 last of such

iol and so | and extraordinary as to be properly called an uct of
God or vis major? No.

Question by defendant :—

2. Was the freshet of June 17 and 18, 1917, extraordinary and unususl
having regard to the time of year? The freshet of June 17 and 18, 1017, was
unusual.

3. Could the defendant have bly anticipated such a high freshet
in June? No.

e e
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e the I must say that on first consideration the answers to these ~N-B-

wWise questions seem more or less conflicting, but having regard to the 8.C.
in the answer to the question submitted by the court, that there was n0 N, snwasx
1 that vis major, the jury having been properly directed on the subject.

jjured I think the meaning of the answers to the questions submitted by
defendant becomes reasonably clear. It was undoubtedly the
o the opinion of the jury that there was no vis major and it so found.

pxtr- That is evident from their answer to question 2 submitted by the
God, court. In answer to question 2, submitted by the defendant, they

hat in found that the freshet of June 17 and 18 was unusual. They
1 did were asked if it was extraordinary and unusual. They simply
vear, found it was unusual. The inference, therefore, clearly is that

|,}». v they did not regard it as extraordinary. They also found that
what the defendant eould not reasonably have anticipated such a high

pstion freshet in June. To my mind it is clear that the jury meant that
such a freshet was unusual in the month of June, but that it was

wee 80 not extraordinary, and while it was unusual in June and while the
vevem defendant could not reasonably have anticipated such a high
== freshet in that month, there was no reason why such a freshet

e been might not have been anticipated earlier in the season, at the time

il not

¢ heen when the spring freshet ordinarily occurs. The inability to anti-
~ "I'I']' cipate, to my mind had reference to the time of year, and that
e held being the case, I do not think the answers to questions 2 and 3

al the by the defendant in any way limited the answer of the jury to the
W hap- question put by the court when it asked directly if the freshet was
‘, " [1' = of such violence and so unusual and extraordinary as to be properly
called an act of God, or vis magjor, and the jury found it was not.
Conflicting evidence was given with regard to the extent and
character of the storm, but the question to my mind was one for
the jury, they being properly directed, and there was evidence
that justified them in coming to the conclusion and giving the
o the answer which they did, and finding that the injury was not caused
by the act of God.

The defendant relied upon the case of Nichols v. Marsland,
(I875), L.R. 10 Ex. 255. This case decided that one who stores
water on his own land and uses all reasonable care to keep it safely
nususl there is not liable for an action for the escape of the water which
7, was injures his neighbour, if the escape be caused by an agent beyond
o his control, such as a storm which amounts to vis major or an act

of God, in the sense that it was practically, though not physically,

if such

act of
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impossible to resist it. This case differs from the one under con-
sideration, however, in several important particulars. In the first
place, the jury found that there was a vis major. The question was
submitted to them, and if the jury had found as in the present
case, that there was no vis major, the decision of the court would
probably have been different. In that case a storm which was in
the nature of a cloudburst came and caused the damage. It wus
not contended, as I understand the evidence, that there was uny
cloudburst which caused the damage in the present case. It i< a
matter of common knowledge in this province that freshets occur
and have occurred for very many years past at different periods,
and if in consequence of one of these freshets, the jury having
found that there was nothing extraordinary with regard to the
present one, the river is raised to such a piten as to cause logs that,
but for an obstruction in the river, would have gone out in the
natural way to jam and retain the water so that it is backed up
and thus damages the land of a proprietor further up the stream,
.it cannot be successfully contended that the defendant can escupe
liability on the ground that the conditions which caused the rise
of water constitute a vis major, in view of the fact that with all the
facts and evidence before them the jury decided that it was not a
vis major, and that the freshet of June, 1917, was not extraordinary,
but unusual, having regard to the time of the year.

In the recent case of the Greenock Corporation v. Caledonin
Railway, [1917) A.C. 556, which was not cited in the factuns,or
at the argument, it was held:—

It is the duty of any one who interferes with the course of a stream 1o see
that the works which he substitutes for the natural channel are adequate to
carry off the water brought down even by an extraordinary rainfall, and if
damage results from the deficiency of the substitute which he has provided
for the natural channel he will be liable. Such damage is not in the nature
of an act of God or demnum falale (the equivalent used in Scottish cascs to
the expression an act of God), but is the direct result of the obstruction of s
natural watercourse.  There is no difference in this respect between the law
of England and that of Scotland.

In this case the railway company contended that an overflow
of water undermined and brought down the wall of the station,
and that this would not have happened but for an interference
with the natural course of the stream by the corporation.

The Lord Chancellor, in referring to the case of Nichols v.
Marsland, supra, upon which reliance was placed by the appeliants,
said at p. 572:—

b SIS S B B B A ek A A A s i
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F ot In that case it was decided that if the escape of water from a reservoir was  N. B.
3 due to the act of God, the person maintaining the reservoir is not liable. (He BT
e first says the case has been tried by a jury and that two observations arise upon

n was it). The first is that the case was dealt with in the argument and judgments Nm“;
esent with reference merely to the accumulation of water in the reservoir. There Powe

) is no reterence to the fact that the course of a natural stream had been inter- & P"'“
“'“_ld fered with, . This decision having reference merely to the storage of

Fas water, as in Rﬁauﬁ v. Fletcher, L.R. 3 H.L. 330, does n»t affect the question

t was of lisbility or interference with the course of a natur- stream, as laid down
in the authorities which he cited. Secondly, the jury had found that the
damage was occasioned by the act of God.

Lord Dunedin, in the same case, referring to Nichols v.

B any
tisa

——_ Marsland, supra, states that
riods, it was decided upon the footing of the verdict of the jury, which, as construed
aving by the court, amounted to a direct finding, that the act in question was an

o the set of God, which, is the exact equivalent to the expresssion used in the
Scottish cases—damnum fatale.

Lord Shaw, concurring in the judgment of the Lord
Chancellor, says:—

No doubt whatsoever is thrown upon these doctrines by Nichols v. Mars-
ream, land. A perusal ol the judgments and procedure therein shews that it was
seape held by a jury’s findings that the disaster did, as a matter of fact, oceur by a
damnum fatale. 1 eannot, I confess, view the case as wholly sati-factory, but
its conclusion was reached undoubtedly and solely by the road of settled fact—
Il the an affirmance of damnum fatole.
not a His Lordship says, quoting the words of Lord Chelmsford in
nary, Tennent v, Glasgow, 2 M. (H.L.) 22:—

He was bound, therefore, under those circumstances—interfering with
the stream and with another person’s right over the stream—to provide
against every contingency, and although it was an extraordinary flood in that

that,
n the
x| up

P rise

naan

ns, or case which oceasioned the bursting of the dam, it was one which he ought to
have provided against. It is accordingly quite unnecessary to go into the

10800 doctrine of damnum fatale in general.

ite to I am not entirely satisfied that that expression, or the equivalent expres-

and if sion, ““the act of God,” will ever be capable of complete, exact and

wided definition, . . . Further, I may be allowed to express the doubt whether
wature expressions such as those used by Lord Cockburn in Samuel v. Edinburgh &
. Glasgow Railway, 13 Dunlop 312, p. 314, as to nature’s “miracles” do any-
nds thing to clarify, or indeed whether they do not confuse the issue, and I am
e law quite clear that when, in Potter v. Hamilton and Strathhaven (1864)
3 M. 83, at 86, Lord Ardmillan supplemented his citation from Lord West-
rfow bury’s judgment in Tennent’s case, supra, by the observation: “A party who
makes & new work is bound to protect those on a lower level from extra-
ordinary as well as ordinary accumulations of water, provided they be not
rence such as to to an unprecedented event, so improbable and unnatural
a8 could not have been reasonably anticipated,” such a gloss is not warranted
by law. Its effect might be to whittle away and undermine an affirmation of
the law which without it would be as it was meant to be and is, broad and firm.
ants, Lord Wrenbury said:—
The case is not that of a man who has brought a wild beast upon his land
and has effectually chained it, and the chain has been broken by the act of

ition,

ils v,
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God. That was Nichols v. Marsland, supra. It was a case in which the .t
of God, if there was one, brought the wild beast, and but for the act of n.an
there was a safe exit for the wild beast, and it would have gone away .nd
there would have been no injury. The act of man consisted in closing the
exit, which, had it remained, would have rendered the advent of the vild
beast harmless. To construct a reservoir on your own land is a lawful «ct.
To close or divert the natural line of flow so as to render it less efficient is not,
It has never been held that in such a case there is not liability.

With regard to the damage done to the banks of the plaintiis’
intervale by logs coming down the strcam, the jury found tlut,
prior to the June freshet, it amounted to $50, and, during (he
June freshet, the same amount. It was admitted that the river i<a
floatable and drivable river for the floating and driving of logs, ind
is a common and public highway for that purpose, and the jury
80 found in answer to question 7 put by the defendant.

The cases which I have quoted in the previous part of this
judgment 1 think clearly establish the proposition that while the
lumbermen and riparian proprietors have concurrent rights in the
river, and the lumbermen have an undoubted right for passage of
their logs down the same, that that right must be exercised sul)ject
to the rights of the riparian proprietors, and that the defend.nts
must use all reasonable means and exercise all reasonable carc and
skill in driving their logs, in order to avoid injury to the riparian
proprietors. See Ward v. Township of Grenville, 32 Can. S.( R,
510, and Roy v. Fraser, 36 N.B.R. 113.

In the present case it does not appear that the defendant took
any precautions in order to protect the plaintiffs’ intervale from
injury caused by the drive in the spring of 1917. On the contrary,
1 have already pointed out that at the point above the plaintifls
intervale, where the river divides into two channels, one is known
as the eastern or Penniac channel and the other as the western
channel, if the river was left unobstructed most of the logs would
go down the eastern or Penniac channel, and could not in any way
injure the plaintiffs’ intervale, but before the season of 1917 the
defendant had strung a boom, and during that season maint ined
a boom, from a point at or opposite the lower end of Gilson's
Island, thus effectually closing the eastern or Penniac ¢liannel
and diverting all logs coming down the river.

Wuire, J.:—I agree with the conclusion arrived at Ly the
Chief Justice, that the verdict entered upon the findings of the
jury in this case should not be disturbed, and wish to add only a
few observations of my own.
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e Questions 1 and 2 by the court are as follows:— N.B.

o s Was the flooding of plaintiffs’ intervale due to the freshet of June 182 g (.

' AN A. Yes. —_
;.:,.I;.: Was it due to the taking up of the water by the piers and extending up NA:,.“'AA[
be wild river? A, The jam retained the water to quite an extent. P el
ful set. Question 4 by the defendant is as follows:— Co.

is not, Would the high freshet of June, 1917, have overflowed the plaintiffs’ W .
land and injured the crops if the jam had not been there? A. We are unable ' %
intiffs’ to say. White, J.

Question 5 . v the defendant is as follows:—

Did the jam o1 logs in June, 1917, cause the water to be backed up so as
to damage plaintiffs’ lands and crops more than if the jam had not been there?
A. Yes,

Taking these questions and answers together, it is quite clear
that the jury have found that, but for the jam of logs at thepiers
mentioned, the plaintifis’ lands possibly might not have been
injured at all by the overflowing of the water, and certainly would
not have been injured to the extent which they were injured had
it not been for the existence of the jam referred to. By their
answer to question 3 by the court the jury found that the defend-
ants were not guilty of negligence or want of reasonable, good and
proper care and precaution in the construction and maintenance
of the piers and booms at Penniac bridge. This question and
answer should be read in connection with questions 8 and 9, and
the answers thereto, which are as follows:—

Q. Was the jam formed at the piers near the Penniae bridge due to any

negligence or want of reasonable care and precaution? A. To a certain
extent.

Q. If 8o, in what did such negligence consist? A. In not making some
provision for holding a portion of their logs at some point below the jam piers.
Questions 3 and 4 by the plaintiffs, and the answers thereto,
are as follows:—

Q. Did the defendant negligently allow said jam to obstruet and hold
back the water in the Nashwaak river? A. Yes.

Q. Was plaintiffs’ crop injured as a result of the water being so obstructed
or held back? A. Yes.

From these answers it is quite clear that the jury have found
that some part, if not all, of the damage occasioned to the plaintiffs’
land by the overflowing of the freshet was due to the jam of logs,
and that such a jam was caused by the negligence of the defendants
in not making provision for holding part of their logs at some point
below the jam piers. The evidence, I think, justified these find-
ings. It seems to me immaterial, therefore, whether the freshet
referred to could properly be deemed vis magor or not, because the
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damage was caused not by vis major alone, but to a consideralle
extent, at least, and possibly altogether, by and through the
negligence of the defendants.

See Rickards v. Lothian, [1913] A.C. 263, at 277-279, and Lt
v. Viectoria Graving Dock Co., (1882), 47 L.T. 378 at 381, und
Dizon v. Metropolitan Board of Works (1881), 7 Q.B.D. 418,

It is of the essence of the defence of vis major that the daniuge
done shall be occasioned by some power as, for example, the act of
God, or the King’s enemies, which the defendant could not control
or anticipate and provide against, and that the damage was not
caused or contributed to by any breach of duty on the part of the
defendant toward the plaintiff. I agree, however, with the ( hief
Justice in the conclusion arrived at by him, that the freshet of
June 18, which the defendants claim was so extraordinary und
unusual as to constitute vis major, did not amount in fact to vis
magor. Though unusual and extraordinary, it was an occurrence
which the defendants were bound to provide against. Because |
think it is a matter of common knowledge to residents of this
province that such a freshet is liable, though little likely, to oceur
in the month of June.

GiRIMMER, J., agreed. Application refused.

MARITIME COAL, RAILWAY & POWER Co. v. CLARK.
(Annotated).

New Brunswick Supreme Court, Ap&ul Division, Hazen, C.J., White and
1 918.

plember 20, 191

SaLe (§ 1 D—20)—AcCCEPTANCE OF GOODE—NO COMPLAINT A8 TO QUALITY—
ACTION FOR PURCHASE PRICE—DEFENCE OF INFERIORITY,

A purchaser who makes no complaint to the vendor as to the qulity
of goods sold, until months after the goods have been aceepted wid paid
for, although he has complained to an agent of the vendor, who lus no
authority except to receive orders, cannot set up such elaim in an aetion
for the purchase price of the goods.

2, Sae (§ 11 B—31) — ScreeNED coAL — TRADE DEsIGNATION — CoAl
SCREENED AT MINE,

A contract for the delivery of “screened coal” is carried out Ly the
delivery of coal properly screened at the mine, altho owing to the
soft and friable nature of the coal more slack is produ in transit than
would be produced from coal from other mines,

ArpEAL from a verdict entered for the plaintiff, at the Westmor-
land Circuit Court, before Chandler, J., without a jury. Affirmed.

W. B. Wallace, K.C., supported appeal.

M. G. Teed, K.C., contra.

Grimmer, JJ. 8
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The judgment of the court was delivered by

Hazen, C.J.:—The respondent company, in this case, operates
the Joggins Mine, so-called, in the Province of Nova Scotia, and
carries on the business of mining and selling coal, and the appellant

erable

h the

| Burt
l, and
before Chandler, J., without a jury, at the City of Moncton on
the 20th and 30th days of April last, and a verdict found for the
respondent for $036.52, and judgment ordered to be entered for
him for this amount, with the costs of the action. It was further
ordered that a verdict of $20 be entered for the appellant under his
counterclaim as damages without costs, this amount to be set-off
against the amount found for the respondent.
The respondent’s claim was for 5 cars of coal which he sold and
delivered to the appellant, and the correctness of this claim was
admitted, but the appellant set up, by way of counterclaim, that
a large quantity of coal in addition to the 5 cars of coal mentioned
in the respondent’s claim, delivered by the respondent company to
theappellant, was not properly screened and was not fit for the use
of the appellant’s customers, and he claimed the following sums in
respect of the alleged excess of slack coal in the coal delivered:—
waad. To work and labor screening coal in various cars shipped: $26.45;
loss of $3.75 per ton in 82 tons of slack coal, $307.50; paid for
screening, $69.10; loss of $1.65 per ton on 103 tons sold to J. 8.
Gibbon & Co., $179.95 = $583.
In the month of October, 1916, R. M. McCarthy, of St. John,
a coal broker, who had previously sold some Joggins coal to the
e appellant, suggested to the appellant that he purchase some more
of the same coal, as he stated the price was likely to go up, and in
wed paid consequence the appellant ordered through McCarthy 10 cars of
b Joggins coal at $4.25 per ton. These cars were delivered through
the fall of 1916. Some dispute in regard to the price arose between
the appellant and the respondent, and eventually the price of 10
‘ Iu‘.\. 'll; cars was fixed at $4.25, and this amount of coal was paid for by the
it than appellant.  According to the evidence of McCarthy himself, who
was called by and gave evidence on behalf of the appellant, he was
tmor- simply a coal broker and had no authority to bind the respondent
irmed. company or to make any financial arrangement between the com-
pany and the appellant, and it apy from the evidence he had no
power to adjust or allow rebate; that he had no power to bind the
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company, and that any order he took was subject to their acc -
ance; and he also states, in the course of his evidence, that he |ud
no authority from the company to make any final settlement. It
would appear from this, therefore, that no general agency exi-ie]
between MeCarthy and the respondent, that as stated he was
simply a broker and that any orders he took were subject to apyio-
al by the company, and that there his authority in the mutter
ended. MeCarthy’s evidence as to what took place betveen
himself and the appellant when the coal was ordered was to the
effect that the appellant asked him for a price on screened (oal,
which he gave and from time to time sold him screened coal, v lile
appellant’s evidence is to the effect that MeCarthy came to Lim
and stated that he had the agency for the Jogging Mines und
wanted him to take some of that coal. He told him he knew v hat
he wanted, that he wanted good screened coal, that he (( luk
could deliver from the car to the customers, and said that wa= the
coal he expected it would be. The agreement then entered into
between Clark and McCarthy was for screened coal, with the
words added—‘that can be delivered from the car to the custon crs.
The respondent sold three grades of coal—screened coal, ri-of-
mine and slack coal, and, in my opinion the contract wus for
screened coal, and the words, that could be delivered from tl ¢ car
to the customers, do not add anything to the contract. The coal
was to be screened coal delivered at Minudie, from which point
the freight was paid to St. John, by the appellant, and it apjcured
.. from the evidence that the coal that was sent to the appellani was
properly screened in the usual manner. The evidence lea:cs no
doubt whatever upon this point. The 10 cars of coal mentioned
were delivered to and accepted by the appellant and paid for by
him. The cars containing the coal mentioned in the particulirs of
the respondent’s claim were as follows:— March 8, 1917, one car
containing 36 tons; March 14, 1917, one car containing 30 tons;
March 23, 1917, one car containing 38 tons; April 3, 1917, two cars
containing 67 tons. The appellant claims in his set-off by vay of
counterclaim for an excess of slack in these cars as well as in the
cars previously received.

The trial judge was of opinion that the question of excess of
slack coal can only be raised by the appellant with refercice to
the 5 cars last mentioned, shipped between March 8, 1017, and
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August 3, 1917, and he comes to this conclusion after a review of
the evidence, including the letters that were put in by the respond-

ent. I quote from the judgment of the judge as follows:—
On November 7, 1916, the defendant wrote to McCarthy claiming that

161
N.B.
8.C.

ARITIME
Coaur,

he was being overcharged by the plaintiff company for a part of the ten-car I“"‘“' &

order, and also complaining of the amount of slack coal in all of the ears so
far received, saying that it was necessary to keep a man upon each ear screen-
ing, from the time the car was opened until the last load had been taken out,
and that he had taken about two tons of slack out of each car.

On November 10, 1916, the defendant wrote to the plaintiff company at
Joggins Mines, with reference to the price of the coal shipped, claiming that
he should have been charged $4.25 per ton instead of the amount charged by
the plaintiff company. In this letter the defendant made no reference to
the question of slack coal.

On November 14, 1916, the defendant wrote to MeCarthy again, calling
his attention to the excess of slack coal in the Joggins coal received by him,
and in this letter he says, “We expeet you to make up to us the difference in
prices on this ear.  Kindly let us hear from you on the matter at your earliest
convenience.”

On November 18, 1916, the defendant again wrote to the plaintiff com-
pany with reference to the price charged for the coal, claiming that he should
have been charged $4.25 per ton instead of the price charged by the plaintiff
company. This letter contains no reference to the question of sluck coal.

On January 4, 1917, the defendant wrote to MeCarthy with reference to
the quantity of excess slack coal, asking him to take the matter up with the
mines and to arrange for an allowance to the defendant on the cars shipped.

On March 1, 1917, the defendant again wrote to McCarthy, concerning
the amount of slack in the coal received, complaining about the excess of
slack coal, and in this letter he says, “‘Kindly let us hear from you at once in
regard to the settlement of this matter.”

On May 27, 1917, the defendant wrote to the plaintiff company with
reference to an unaccepted draft drawn by the company upon him, and says,
“We notified Mr. McCarthy that we would not accept the draft until he had
the correction made’’ (meaning the correction in price) “and also had some
settlement made of the several claims we had made to him for slack in the
coal that we had been getting, and which he had repeatedly agreed to do.”

The judge points out in his judgment that it is somewhat
remarkable that the appellant said nothing to the respondent
company in the course of the correspondence between them as to
this question of slack coal until May 27, 1917, several months after
the last of the 10 cars ordered, and some time after the delivery of
the last 5 cars included in the respondent’s claim, and concludes
that it is not now open to the appellant to raise any question as to
the excess of slack coal in the 10-car lot ordered in October, 1916,
as this coal was all delivered and paid for without any question

being raised by the appellant as to an excess of slack coal so far as
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the respondent eompu'ny was concerned. The appellant did bring
up this question as to slack coal in letters to McCarthy, but he
said nothing to the respondent company about this and paid for the
10-car lot without directly calling the attention of the respondent
. company to this question of slack coal. He was of opinion that
McCarthy had no power to deal with this question of slack coal or
make any settlement with the appellant or allow any rebate, and
while McCarthy seems to have communicated to the respondent
company the claim of the appellant as to slack coal, the respondent
paid no attention to the claim whatever, and the appellant never
took up the question so far as the 10-car lot was concerned until
May 27, 1917, months after the coal had been delivered and paid
for. In his letter to the respondent company of July 20, 1917, the
appellant expressly said that a number of the cars were received
prior to those mentioned in these letters that contained a quantity
of slack upon which he did not make any claim. Under the circum-
stances the judge was of the opinion that the appellant is not now
entitled to make any claim upon the respondent company for
excess of slack coal in the 10-car lot, and I think that in view of the
evidence no exception can be taken to his finding in this respect.
This leaves the question of the excess of slack coal to apply in his
opinion only with reference to the 5 cars mentioned in the partic-
ulars of the respondent’s claim, shipped between March 8, 1017,
and April 3, 1917,

In view of the fact, as stated before, that the contract was for
screened coal, and the evidence shews that the coal was properly
screened at the mines, 1 think the judge might fairly have come to
the conclusion that the contract had been carried out, when the
screened coal was delivered at Minudie on the line of the Inter-
colonial Railway, and that, therefore, no claim could be main-
tained against the respondent with respect to it. It is true that it
appears from the evidence that the cars when they arrived in
St. John contained a larger percentage of slack than the coal from
most other mines would shew, but this was explained by the fact
that the coal from the Joggins Mine was softer and more friable
than that from other mines, and that in its handling after it was
put upon the cars and its transportation from Minudie to St. John,
and its removal from the cars there more slack would be produced
than from coal from other mines in Nova Scotia, but as the con-
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tract of the respondent was for screened coal, in my opinion, as |
have said before, the contract was fulfilled when screened coal was
delivered at Minudie.

The trial judge, however, took a different view of the case, and
discussed the question of excess of slack coal with respect to the
5 cars mentioned in the respondent’s claim. Three of these cars
were transferred by the appellant to J. 8. Gibbon & Co., coal
dealers of St. John, at 10 cents per ton over and above what
appellant paid for them, without the appellant examining the coal
in any of them and knowing nothing about its quality. No evi-
dence was offered as to the quality of the coal in these cars, nor
a8 to whether there was or was not an excess of slack in them.
The judge, therefore, concludes that these 3 cars must be excluded
from consideration in connection with the question. Two cars
containing about 71 tons altogether are, therefore, left for con-
sideration, one shipped March 14, 1917, and the other on March
23, of the same year. In this connection, the trial judge said:—
There is no doubt the defendant ordered from Mr. McCarthy screened
coal, as he required this kind of coal for his trade. The plaintiff company
sells three grades of coal, run-of-mine being the coal just as it comes from the
mine, with the stone and other foreign substance removed; screened coal,
being coal which has gone over a screening apparatus in use at the mine,
_ which is supposed to remove the slack coal as the coal passes over the screens
or shakers as they are called, and slack coal, the lowest and cheapest grade of
coal sold, The plaintiff claims that the coal shipped by them to the defendant
wae screened coal and was properly screened, and they prove by the evidence
of several witnesses that the coal shipped to the defendant by the company
had gone over the screens and was what they sell as screened coal. The
coal sold is of course soft coal and friable, and had to be shipped from the
mine at Joggine to MeCann Station on the 1 lonial Railway, a di

of 12 miles, and from there to the City of 8t. John, a distance of some 140
miles. The coal was all shipped in box cars.

The accountant of the respondent company, and general busi-
ness manager, claimed that the company never recognized any
claim for slack exceeding 107, of the amount of coal shipped.

In the judge’s view of the case the question of the excess of
slack coal must be confined to the two cars mentioned. He states
that he found it difficult to say from the evidence just what was
the quality of the coal contained in the 2 cars of March 14 and
March 23, but it seemed to him that very probably there was some
excess of slack coal in these 2 cars over and above the 109, which
the respondent company said it would expect to find in the car
sold by the respondent after its arrival in 8t. John, and being of
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.
the opinion that the appellant is entitled to some allowance for
that excess he thinks that $20 is a fair amount to give the appellant
toward this excess.

As previously, I do not think, in view of the evidence with
regard to the screening of the coal, that the appellant is entitled
to have anything for this excess of slack, but as the respondent
has not moved against the judge’s finding on the counterclain,
stating that as it is so small such a step would not be justified,
1 do not think the judgment should be interfered with or varied
in that respect.

The appellant complained that the trial judge refused to adnit
evidence of what McCarthy said in regard to the claim for slack
coal. The respondent’s counsel stated that he wanted to shew |y
this evidence that Clark, before he paid the drafts, called up
MecCarthy and told him he would not accept the draft as nothing
had been done. It appears, however, that all the evidence of the
rejection of which the respondent complains was admitted at one
stage of the case or another. The appellant says that he told
MecCarthy he was not going to accept drafts and that he told him
he would pay them under protest. He says he told McCarthy he
would not accept and afterwards told him he would accept them
under protest, and in his letter of May 27, to the respondent. lie
says:i—

We notified McCarthy that we would not aceept draft until he had cor-
rection made, and also had some settlement made of the several claims we
had made to him for slack in the coal that we had been getting and which he
had repeatedly agreed to.

Other extracts from the evidence might also be quoted to the

same effect, and I think it, therefore, clear that, altogether apart
from the question as to whether or not the evidence is properly
rejected or was relevant or material, or admissible in view of the
fact that McCarthy had no authority to settle, or make any
arrangement or payment for excess of slack, the appellant was not
prejudiced in any way by its rejection, as he was able to shew
exactly what he wanted to shew by this evidence, by other evidence
given at other times during the progress of the case,
Appeal dismissed.
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ANNOTATION.
Accerraxce or Rerexmion or Goobs Sowp.

Damages where title fails. A purchaser from one who has no title was
held in Ontario to be entitled to recover as damages the value of the chattel,
and not merely the amount paid therefor. In Confederation Life Association v,
Labatt (1900), 27 A.R., (Ont.) p. 321, Osler, J.A., said:—

“As to the MaeWillie company: they undoubtedly sold as owners, and
cannot successfully deny their liability to indemnify their vendee, Eichholz v.
Bannister (1864), 17 C.B.N.8. 708, 144 E.R. 284, but they contend that
recovery a8 against them must be limited to the amount of the purchase
money paid by Labatt. There is no case in the English courts or our own
which expressly decides that unliquidated damages may be recovered on the
breach of an implied warranty of title. In all the reported decisions on the
subject, the recovery has been confined to the price paid, but in all these
cases the elaim was simply one to recover back money paid as upon a failure
of consideration, Eichholz v. Bannister, supra, Raphael v. Burl & Co. (1884),
Cab. & ElL 325, Peuchen v. Imperial Bank (1890), 20 O.R. 325. In Benjamin
on Sales (1899), 7th Am. ed., from the Eng. ed. of 1892, and in earlier editions
published in the author’s lifetime, it is said: “Eichholz v. Bannister was on the
money counts and therefore, strictly speaking, only decides that the price
may be recovered back from the buyer on the failure of title to the thing sold;
but as the ratio decidendi was that there was a warranty implied as part of
the contract, there seems no reason to doubt that the vendor would also be
liable for unliquidated damages for breach of warranty.” In the fourth
edition of Judge Chalmers’ work on the Bills of Sale Act, 1893, it is pointed
out that this suggestion has been adopted in that Act. In the most recent
edition of Mayne on Damages (1899), the subject is not noticed. In America
there is much diversity of opinion, both in the text writers and decisions. In
Sedgewick on Damages, 8th ed. (1801), vol. 2, p. 492, the general rule is said
to be that *‘the measure of damages for breach of warranty of title to a chattel
is the value of the chattel at the time of the purchase, with interest and the
necessary costs of defending a suit brought against a vendee to test the title,
with interest from the time of payment. But the vendee may disaffirm the
contract and recover the consideration paid, though that is greater than the
value of the property.” It is remarkable that the editors do not discuss or
even refer to Eichholz v. Bannister, one of the two leading English cases on
the question of an implied warranty of title, and cite only Morley v. Atten-
borough (1849), 3 Ex. 500, 154 E.R. 943, for the English law on the subject.
In Sutherland on Damages (1882), vol. 2, pp. 418, 419, it is said: ““The value
of the property at the time the vendee is dispossessed has been held to be the
measure of damages. Generally, however, the measure has been stated to be
the purchase money and interest: thus adopting the same rule that is applied
generally in estimating the damages for breach of covenants for title to real
estate. . . . Where the vendee is dispossessed by suit, and has, in good
faith, incurred expenses in defending it, he is entitled to recover these also
from the vendor as an additional item of damages.” It appears to me that
the law is accurately stated in the passage quoted from Mr. Benjamin's
learned work, and that the vendee, going upon a breach of the implied war-
ranty, is entitled to recover the value of the thing he has lost in consequence
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Annotation  of the failure of the vendor’s title. Can less be supposed to have been in 1/,

contemplation of the parties when the sale was made? Why should a loss
by failure of title be less fully compensated than a loss by breach of warrant
of quality? The case appears to fall fairly within the general rule of the coi-
mon law, as stated by Parke, B., in Robinson v. Harman (1848), 1 Ex. 850, at
855, 154 E.R. 363, at 365, that “where a party sustains a loss by reason of 4
breach of contract, he is, 8o far as money can do it, to be placed in the sane
situation, with respect to damages, as if the contract had been performed.”

Conditional sale. Evidence may be given of non-compliance with warraniy
to reduce damages. In Cull v. Roberts (1897), 28 O.R. 591, an agreement wus
made for the sale of machinery, a note being taken for the price, or, rather, an
agreement called a note, by which it was stipulated that if the note was not
paid, or if the purchaser should dispose of his land or personal property, ¢i¢,
the vendor might retake the property and sell the same, possession to be
kept in the meantime by the purchaser. The defendant set up the defective
character of the machinery as a breach of warranty, but was not allowed. at
the trial by the County Court Judge, to give evidence of it. It was sought
in the argument to distinguish between this case of a conditional sale and the
case of Abell v. Church (1875), 26 U.C.C.P. 338, which was a straight sile
Per Boyd, C., Tomlinson v. Morris (1886), 12 O.R. 311, “is not opposed, hut
rather favourable to the view that in case of conditional sale of a machine. if
the price is sued for, the defendant may shew that the machine was not
warranted, and so reduce the claim by the difference between the value of
the machine as warranted and its actual value in fact.”

Compare Copeland v. Hamilton (1893), 9 Man. L.R. 143.

Damages governed by market price. Where the defendant failed to deliver
according to contract, the plaintifi's damages were held to be the difference
between the contract price and the market price. Defendants sought to
reduce this amount by saying that the plaintiff had contracted to sell the
goods at a lower price, so that he had not in reality lost as much as he was
claiming. “But, said Osler, J., in Ballantyne v. Watson (1880), 30 U.C.C.P.
529, at 541, “this is not the way to look at it. The defendant has nothing
to do with the profit the plaintiff might have made. Assuming that the
plaintiff sold this cheese, he was not able to deliver it, for he had not got it
from the defendant. If the sub-sale went off for that reason, the plaintiff
was not thereby disentitled from going into the market and purchasing the
same quantity at the market price, which was ten cents per Ib., or it is perhaps
not assuming too much to infer that he filled the sub-contract by the delivery
of other cheese which he would have had to purchase in the market at the
increased price, or to supply from his own stock, which was then worth to
him ten cents per pound. In either case he would sustain a loss of four cents
per Ib. There seems no reason, therefore, to reduce the damages.”

Notice of purpose for which goods required. Damages in such case. In
Watrous v. Bates (1854), 5 U.C.C.P. 366, defendants agreed to furnish plaintiff
with railway ties to enable them to carry out a contract for the supply of ties
to Sykes & Co. The trial judge directed the jury that the measure of plain-
tifi’s damages was the difference between what he was to pay defendant for
the ties and the price he was to receive from Sykes & Co. Although the
profits to be made on the article contracted for are in general too remote to
be considered as damages for a breach of contract, this principle is subject to
be lled by the ci of the particular case. The words of
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Baron Alderson in Hadley v. Bazendale (1854), 9 Ex. 341, 156 E.R. 145, were
quoted: “Now, if the special circumstances under which the contract was
actually made were communicated by the plaintiffs to the defendants, and
thus known to both parties, the damages resulting from the breach of such
contract which they would reasonably contemplate would be the amount of
the injury which would ordinarily follow from a breach of contract, under
these special cireumstances so known and communicated.”

An attempt was made to apply this principle in Feehan v. Hallinan,
(1856), 13 U.C. Q.B. 440, the purpose for which cordwood was bought being
the burning of bricks, and the defendant having failed to supply wood accord-
ing to his contract.  Plaintiff claimed that he was entitled to recover damages
occasioned by the fall in the price of bricks while he was waiting for the wood.
1t does not appear that the purpose for which the wood was bought was com-
municated, but the judgment does not seem to proceed upon this ground. It
reads as if the damages would have been considered remote under any cir-
cumstances.

“The plaintifi’s case shews nothing more than that he dealt with the
bricks which he intended to make and burn, in the same manner that a mer-
chant would do with goods which he was importing, viz., that ke took his
chance and incurred the risk of a rising or falling market. In such case the
mere ordinary chances of the market cannot be supposed to have entered into
the minds of the parties when the bargain was made for the delivery of the
wood. If the fluctuations of the market are to form an ingredient in esti-
mating damages in such a case as the present, then the contract must be
special with reference to that. The contract here is not made for bricks, in
which case the rise or fall might have had some bearing upon the question,
but the contract is for wood to burn the bricks, and therefore the immediate
damage is that which is connected with the price of wood at that time.”

Contract price of goods fifty-two dollars, damages three hundred and ninety-
seven dollars,  Held not excessive for failing to supply them. The contract in
Lalor v. Burrows (1868), 18 U.C.C.P. 321, was to furnish 180 sets of locks of
malleablized iron. Damages were claimed in a lump sum of between $700
and $800, and the jury awarded $397.50, without specifying the items allowed.
The eourt held that there might be damages amounting to this sum and dis-
cussed the law as to the various items that might be claimed for, saying,
among other things: “If the plaintiff be entitled to procure other goods by
reason of the defendant’s failure of contract, it makes no difference to him
how little he paid, or was to pay the defendant for them, and how much he
had to pay to procure or replace them. The damages the defendant may be
liable to pay may be enormously beyond any profit or price he was ever to
receive for his work, as in Wilson v. The Newport Dock Co. (1866), L.R. 1 Ex.
177, and as often happens when a lawyer, who was to get a few dollars for
scarching a title, has to pay the whole value of the property by reason of some
defect which he should have guarded against; or, when a surgeon who has
got # few dollars for his services, is called upon to pay for the loss of a limb, or
some other misfortune which his patient has suffered from his alleged neglect,
far beyond the trifling sum which was to have been his compensation.”

Damages for goods not delivered according to contract. 1In Colton v. Good
(I834), 11 U.C. Q.B. 153, 155, the plaintiff claimed as damages for the delivery
of mill stones not according to the contract, the cost of endeavouring to repair
the stones and expenses of dressing them and the damage done to his mill
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Annotation. machinery by the broken stones. It was held that he could recover the cos

of dressing the useless stones on the same principle as expenses incurred witl,
espect to articles bought in the confidence that they would prove such as 11y
vendor was bound to furnish. The cost of repairing the damage to the mac! i
ery was also allowed, the jury being satisfied that the breaking of the stones
was not such an accident as could not be fairly charged against the -
facturer, but was occasioned by their not being secured by a sound and strog
iron band as usual. The expense of attempting to repair the broken stones
wus not allowed. The plaintiff had done this on his own responsibility; |
could have rejected the stones and recovered back what he had paid for 1
He could not be allowed to recover back the amount paid for the stones and
also the cost of attempting to repair them.

Note the differgnee between recovering the cost of dressing the stones
under the assumption that they were such as the plaintiff was bound to aceept,
and the cost of attempting to repair them after it was clear that the plaintiff
would be justified in refusing acceptance.

Recovery of deposit where vendor wrongfully sold goods. The plaintiff pur-
chased cattle to be kept by the defendant until fit for the English marke( and
paid a deposit of two hundred dollars. Defendant idered that he wus not
bound to keep them beyond August 20th, and insisted upon plaintiff taking
them off his hands, notifying him that if he did not do so they would be
re-sold. Plaintiff refusing to take them until the proper time, the defendant
did sell them and claimed to retain the deposit. It was held that the plaintiff
could waive the breach of the contract and sue simply for the recovery of the
money paid. Murray v. Hulchinson (1887), 14 A.R. (Ont.) 489.

Purchaser must accept delivery in reasonable time. Damages for refusal.
Where a specified quantity of hay was sold to be delivered at a specified place,
at such times and in such quantities as the purchaser might order, it was held
that the purchaser must accept the hay dered within a ble time,
and that the measure of damages was the difference between the contract
price and the market price or value on the day fixed for delivery, or in the
present case, the day when the hay was tendered to the defendant and he
should have taken delivery, that being the time when the contract was broken.
The plaintiff was not bound to re-gell the hay, though he might, if he thought
proper, have done so and charged the vendee with the difference between the
contract price and the price realized at the sale. But it would be requisite, in
such a case, to show that the hay was sold for a fair price and within a reason-
able time after the breach of the contract. The plaintiff was also allowed for
extra expenses which he had incurred owing to the refusal of the defendant to
fulfil his contract, such as labour, cartage, storage, weighing and selling the
hay. Chapman v. Larin (1879), 4 Can. S.C.R. 349.

Damages for refusal to accept where the contract was to deliver wood in instal-
ments and after one instalment had been delivered. The plaintiff in Moore v.
Logan (1856), 5 U.C.C.P. 204, received as damages the difference between
the contract price and the selling price ‘“at the time the contract was broken
or to be performed.” These periods are not necessarily the same, but the
case does not discriminate and is of no value on the question which is dis-
cussed, which is the proper time at which to take the selling price, whether it is
the time when the instalments were to be delivered, or the time when the
defendant refused to accept further instalments and thus broke the contract.
On the whole, it is not a very valuable case.
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In Brunskill v. Mair (1857), 15 U.C.Q.B. 213, the defendant failed to
accept a quantity of flour delivered at Oswego, in consequence of which the
plaintiff was obliged to resell. He was held entitled to recover the difference
between the contract price and the price at which he had been obliged to resell
at Oswego. The defendant was contending that the price at Toronto should
govern, but this contention was overruled, as the plaintiff was at liberty to
deliver it at Oswego.

Damages for refusing to accepl deed of transfer. The plaintiff sued in
an action, among other things, for the refusal to accept the deed of a vessel
sold by plaintiff to defendant and of which the defendant had received posses-
sion. The jury gave as damages the whole value of the vessel and the court
declined to disturb the verdiet. The defendant was objecting that no title to
the vessel had passed to him for want of the transfer under the provisions of
§ Viet,, e. 5, but the court held that it was not competent for him to set up
such a defence, as he had refused to accept the transfer. Phillips v. Merritt
(1853), 2 U.C.C.P. 513.

A few additional cases where the subject of acceptance and rejection of
goods sold has been considered may be noted.

Jacobsen v. Peltier, 3 D.L.R. 132, held that a rehibitory action (or action
in cancellation of sale for latent defects) must be brought with reasonable
diligence according to the nature of the defect and the usage of the place
where the sale is made; and where there is no usage, the old French law pre-
seription of six months from the date of the sale will be applied; also that
use of the thing sold as the buyer’s property, the making of extensive repairs,
alterations and improvements thereto, are acts of acquiescence to the sale
and will bar a resolutory action, more especially when the defendant was
never notified thereof.

Ironsides v. Vancouver Machinery Depot, 20 D.L.R. 195, 20 B.C.R. 427,
was an action for the price of railway construction dump cars and equip-
ment, the defence being shortage and unfitness. The defendants did not
advance the contention put forward at the trial for a year or more after they
took delivery, the British Columbia Court of Appeal affirming the judgment
of Gregory, J., held that the lapse of time before making the complaint of
alleged shortage of or unfi were el to be i d as adversely
affecting the credit to be given the evidence adduced for the buyer to sustain
a defence based on such complaint.

Alabastine Company, Paris v. Canada Producer and Gas Engine Co., Ltd.,
17 D.L.R. 813, was an appeal from the judgment of Clute, J., in favour of
the plaintiff in an action to recover $5,500 paid by the plaintiff on account
of purchase-money for an engine (to be built according to specifications)
bought from the defendant and alleged to be useless for the purpose intended,
and for damages and for rescission. The engine was being “tried out” from
September, when it was set up in respondent’s factory, until the time of the
breakdown in the following March, The Ontario Supreme Court (Appellate
Division), affirming the judgment of Clute, J., held that when a sale of per-
sonalty not yet in existence or ascertained is made with a condition that it
shall, when existing or ascertained, possess certain qualities, the “trying
out” of the thing sold after delivery covering a protracted period does not
constitute an acceptance against the buyer, where such “trying out” was, as
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understood by both parties, to be for the purpose of discovering whether or
not it answered the conditions of the contract.

In Duncan & Buchanan v. Pryce Jones Lid., 22 D.L.R. 45, McCarthy, J.,
of the Alberta Supreme Court, held that the buyer of goods is liable, because
of his acceptance of same, if he retained them after actual receipt of same for
such a time as to lead to the presumption that he intended to take possession
thereof as owner.

Haug Bros. v. Murdock, 25 D.L.R. 666: Elwood, J., of Saskatehew:n,
held that where, in the sale of a traction engine, a purchaser accepts the
engine and continues to use it after discovery of the defeets, he is therchy
precluded from later returning the engine. This case was reversed in 26
D.L.R. 200, but on the ground that as the engine was not constructed in
accordance with the Steam Boilers Act (R.8.8. 1911, ¢. 22, sec. 19), the regu-
lations not having been complied with, the sale of the engine was wholly
illegal.

In Hart-Parr Co. v. Jones (Sask.), [1917] 2 W.W.R. 888, the facts were:
‘The receipt of an engine, the property therein not having passed, and user of
it for threshing purposes for about 30 days and the signing of an acknowledg-
ment that an expert had spent a certain number of days in repairing it and
had made it satisfactory.—Lamont, J., the trial judge, held, under the cir-
cumstances, that there had been no acceptance. From August till spring
could not be regarded as an ble time for the rejection of an engine,
the vendor by painting it having made inspection on the part of the pur-
chaser at the time of delivery ineffective.

The following Quebec cases may also be of interest:

Macey Sign Co. v. Roultenberg, 48 Que. 8.C. 346. A defect in the
“flasher”’ of an electric sign consisting in the fact that it produces only a red
light in place of producing simultaneously a red and white light is an apparent
defect. The irregular placing of the interior wires of the sign is a latent
defect, but the purchaser cannot eomplain of it eight months after its instal-
lation.

Martin v. Galibert, 47 Que. 8.C. 181. When a purchaser has examined
merchandise before buying, and has not objected to the price on account of
its inferior quality, he cannot afterwards refuse to accept and pay for it on
account of such inferiority.

Mackay v. Temple Baptist Church, 25 Qw K.B. 417. The buyer of a
debt who, after having pted a first ived from the same seller
another one containing in addition to the first, other claims against new
debtors, and who instead of notifying the seller of his refusal to accept the
second transfer, keeps it in his possession for several years, and meanwhile
proceeds to collect the debts from the two debtors, has thereby tacitly pted
the last transfer.

Where a transfer of claims contains the debts of several debtors, and the
buyer, without positively pting, colk the debt of any one of the debtors,
he accepts tacitly the whole transfer.

Southern Can Co. v. Whittal, 50 Que. 8.C. 371. A delay of four months
after the dehvery of a mlchme is too long to refuse to accept it on account of

defects. If d are made by a buyer to a machine sold and
delivered, it ts to an t
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SMILES v. EDMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT.

Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Harvey, C.J., Stuart, Beck
and Hyndman, JJ. November 9, 1918.

NeoLiGENCE  (§ T B—5)—ScuooL BoARD LENDING DANGEROUSE QUIPMENT
FOR EXAMINATION PURPOSES—INJURY TO CANDIDATE—DAMAGES.

A School Board which conducts a technical school for instruction in

the manual arts, and permits the Department of Edueation to use its

t on an ion, the ination being entirely under
|Iw dlmcllon of the Department of Edueation, is not hable m damuuea
for injuries to a student taking the tion, if the

was reasonably safe and suitable for the work for which it was bemx used.

ArpeAL by defendant from the judgment of Walsh, J., 41 D.L.R.
400, in an action for damages for injuries received by a student
at an examination. Reversed.

H. H. Parlee, K.C',, for appellant; J. F. Lymburn, for respondent .

Harvey, C. J.:—I would allow this appeal with costs and
dismiss the action with costs.

The trial judge finds, as seems clear from the evidence, that
the defendants were exercising no control or authority over the
operations out of which the accident happened.

I cannot see how they can be charged with negligence in per-
witting the use of the machinery which is clearly as suitable
for the purposes for which it was being used as it was mnymubl\
possible to obtain.

Such machinery is, by its nnture, dangerous and must be used
with great care.

If boys of 16 cannot exercise such care it may be that they
Should not use such machinery, but the defendants were not
responsible for the plaintifi’s using the machinery.

If he neglected the opportunities presented by the defendants
to familiarize himself with its practical operation, I am at a loss
to see why the defendants should be held liable because they did
not prevent him from taking the examination, which they had no
legal right to do, or because their instructors did not inform the
examiners of the fact of which they probably, at the time, were
unaware,

Moreover, if they had given such information, I fear that it
would have made no difference.

Sruarr, J. (dissenting):—My inclination in this case is to
dismiss the appeal. With much deference I think too much
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has been made of the authority of the High School and University
Matriculation Examinations Board. Even if that body werc a
strictly subordinate branch of the Department of Edueation,
subject entirely to the control of the Minister, which, in fact,
it appears not to be, inasmuch as it is appointed, according to the
evidence, jointly by the Department of Education and the Uni-
versity of Alberta, it does not seem to me that its authority was
anything more than a purely examining authority. Treating it,
however, as entirely subordinate to the Department of Education,
it appears to me that its functions were confined to the appoint-
ment of examiners which would include three classes: (1) those
setting the questions; (2) those reading the answers; (3) those
presiding while the pupils of the various schools were engaged in
answering the questions asked. To make examinations uniform
throughout the province was no doubt one purpose of having a
general board. But in effect the examiners simply entered the
schools on certain days and asked the pupils certain questions.
No doubt, under the School Ordinance, the Department had
authority to send out its examiners to do this. But, in my opinion,
this did by no means abrogate, even temporarily, the authority
and duties of the various Boards of Trustees as these are set forth
in 8s. 95 and 95(a) of the School Ordinance. A perusal of those
sections will plainly shew that it was the duty of the Boards of
Trustees to look after the personal health and safety of the pupils

attending the schools. I do not think that duty was even for a

moment ever transferred to any other authority.

What was the situation? It was, as I apprehend the matter,
just this: Under s. 95 (a) the Board of Trustees in a town dis-
trict is given power ‘‘at its discretion’’ (it is not imposed s a
statutory duty) ‘‘to provide, equip, and maintain such room or
rooms as may be required and to provide suitable teachers for giving
instruction in manual training, domestic science, physical training,
music, and art.”” This power-the defendant board chose, in
its discretion, to exercise. It “provided, equipped and nuin-
tained’’ the technical school in question. It employed ‘‘utf its
discretion’’ teachers, whom, no doubt, it thought to be *‘suit:ble.”’
To put the matter on the lowest ground, it invited the pluintiff
to attend this school and to make wse of this equipment. I
cannot see that the question, much canvassed at the trial, as to
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whether the plaintiff, as a pupil in grade IX., was or was not bound
to take this work or rather to be examined upon it, is very material.
As a matter of fact he did attend the classes. He was only 16
vears old—not a man, but a boy. Then, one day, the examining
authority appeared, and, to put the matter in a plain, simple
form, proposed to ask this boy to do a certain thing by the use
of the circular saw in question. This examining authority was
not a guiding or instructing authority. Its object and purpose
was to find out if the pupil had been properly guided and instructed
by the authority which had undertaken that function ‘‘at its
discretion.”” Its object and purpose was to test and examine. It
seems to me to be a contradiction in terms to say that such an
authority, acting solely for such a purpose, owed a duty to the
person whom it proposed to test to discover first if he had been
made fit for the test. That was just what the examining authority
was endeavouring to find out. Much less also was it the duty
of the examining authority to guide, instruct, and warn. The
boy was still a pupil at the school. He was still on the day of
examination under the charge of the Board of Trustees and its
agents, the teachers. But it is not necessary, in my opinion,
as a matter of principle, to go even so far as to say that. At least
up to the time when he submitted to the examination, he was under
the guidance and instruction of the teachers. They knew he
was about to be examined. They knew or ought to have known
to what extent it was safe for him to venture to use the circular
saw, if it should turn out on examination day that he was asked
to do so. Upon the evidence, I am satisfied that they ought to
have known that it would be unsafe for him to attempt to use it.
That the boy had perhaps played truant, or was absent on the
one single day shortly before the examination when the boys
in the class were put to use the saw, seems to me just as immaterial
as would be the fact, if it should happen to be the fact, that he
had not understood the instruction given during some of the so-
called ‘“‘demonstrations’’ which had taken place during the term.
This is not the case of a grown man in the employ of a master
for pay in a commercial manufactory. Even then, it is the duty
of the master to give full and careful instruction and warning to
a novice who is put, for the first time, at working a dangerous
machine. But here, I think, the duty was a more rigid and exact-
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ing one. The plaintiff was a boy at school. He went there,
he was sent there, by his parents, to get instruction in the manuul
arts. The defendant Board had, at its discretion, offered him and
his parents to give him this instruction. They proposed to
instruct him in the use of what is shewn in the evidence to be o
of the most dangerous machines in use in any factory. And,
having him in their charge and care, they allowed him to be put
to a test by an intervening examining authority upon the use of
that machinery, without even having ever seen him use it, without
his having, in fact, ever used it at all, and this to their knowledge.

There is, in my opinion, a fallacy in the suggestion, whicl,
if not directly made in argument, at any rate underlies some of
the propositions addressed to us, that the examining authority
had asked the plaintiff (I mean asked in the sense of ‘‘ordered”’)
to use the saw. The plaintiff was not bound to use the saw. iz
doing so was simply an answer to a question on the examination.
In substance it was this ‘‘can you use that circular saw properly
in cutting out a piece of wood to the required length and breadth;
show us whether you can or not by actually doing it in our pres-
ence.”” As in the case of any question on an examination paper
the pupil could omit such a question if he liked, taking the con-
sequence in a loss of marks. But the fact that he was asked
to do so, that other pupils in his class were doing so, that the
examiners—to him strange and authoritative no doubt—were
there expecting him to try, would no doubt urge on a boy of that
age to do something or to try to do something which, if he had
been alone, he might not have ventured upon. Now, in my
opinion, in the umstances of this case, and the facts as to his
meagre instruc .on being what they were, there was a duty resting
upon his teachers, before he entered upon the practical examina-
tion at all, to tell him that he must not attempt to use the circular
saw, if the examiners should happen to ask him to do so. They
should have told him that not having had full and sufficient
instructions he should not venture to do so, and that he must,
in the circumstances, simply submit to the loss of marks.

The matter of the liability of educational authorities for acci-
dents to school children has come up in a number of Inglish
cases. Morris v. Carnarvon County Council, [1910] 1 K.B. 810,
and Ching v. Surrey County Council, [1910] 1 K.B. 736, were cases,
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the first of a defective door, and the second of a defective play-
ground. They afford little help, perhaps, in this case, although
they do shew, in a general way, the duty of the educational
authority not to supply defective ‘‘plant.’””  In Smith v. Martin
and the Corporation of Kingston-upon-Hull, {1911] 2 K.B. 775, the
corporation was held liable for the negligent act of the teacher
employed by it in sending a girl of fourteen to poke a fire, in con-
sequence of which she was burned. It was held that the teacher
had authority to send the child on the errand, and was acting
within the scope of her employment, and that there was evidence
to justify the jury’s finding that she had done this negligently.
Shrimpton v. Hertfordshire County Council, (1911) 104 1..T. 145, is
perhapsmore in point. There, the House of Lords upheld the verdict
of a jury, in holding the educational authority liable where it
had, at its discretion, provided a conveyance for children, and
had permitted the plaintiff, a child of 12 years, to ride therein,
though, strictly she did not come within the class entitled to do
s0, but had omitted to provide a safe conveyance owing to the
absence of any econductor or guard.

The head-note on the case shews that it has some bearing here
on the other ground of negligence which I have not yet touched
upon, viz:—that the saw was not made reasonably safe by means
of a guard. It says;—

A person who provides anything for the use of another is bound to provide
a thing reasonably safe for the purpose for which it is intended, even though

the person using it uses it only by the permission or consent of the person
providing it-and has no legal claim to the use of it.

This is the principle, which, I think, is applicable to the present
case. I do not think that the saw was, in any sense, under the
control of the examining authority. The school conducted by
the defendant Board was going on. Its pupils were using the
machinery supplied by the defendant. Would it be contented
that, if, on a written examination, a child was injured through a
defective seat collapsing, the examining authority would be liable
because it had taken possession of the school for the day for the
special purpose and that the Board of Trustees were not liable
for that reason? I think not. All the examining authority did
was to come in and say: ‘‘We propose to see if you know how to
use one of these machines which you have, as we suppose, been
instructed about. Let us see if you can use it.”’ In attempting
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to use it the plaintiff was, in my opinion, still using a machine
provided for him by the defendant. So, while I lay the greater
stress on negligence consisting in the absence of proper warning
and instruction, and in the act of permitting the pupil to attemt
at all to use the machine, if asked to do so by the examiners, |
think that, upon the other ground also, the defendant is liable.
Upon the evidence, I think they could have made the machine
much safer than it was by means of some protection. The pruc-
tice of manufactories is only relevant in a limited sense, because
there, the question of expense through delay in what needs to he
rapid work comes in. Here, such a consideration did not need
to come up at all.

Returning to the other ground, the evidence shews that in
some schools and factories, an apprentice is made to act as an
assistant for a long time to a person actually operating such a
machine before being permitted to touch it. What was done
here is as wide as the poles away from such carefulness as that.

The case of Smerkinich v. Newport Corp., (1912) 76 J.P. 454,
is really nearest to the facts of this case but, nevertheless, it is
distinguishable. The plaintiff was 19 years of age. He was a
pupil in a technical institute, and was injured in using a circular
saw which had no guard. But the two Judges of the King's
Bench Division thought he appreciated the danger. He asked
for leave to use the machine of his own accord, after having
actually used it frequently for two sessions. They, in effect,
applied the maxim volenti non fit injuria. .

I do not think that the casual, hurried warning given just
before the plaintiff began to use the saw to ‘‘mind your hand’
was sufficient to relieve the defendant from liability.

For these reasons, I am in favour of dismissing the appeal.

Beck, J.:—My view is that it was the Department of Ldu-
cation and not the School Board who was conducting the exami-
nation; that the Department had, under the School Ordinance,
the right to use the school and the apparatus for the purpose of
holding the examination therein (School Ordinance, ss. 4, 6, etc.);
that, during the examinations at which the plaintiff was a candi-
date, the apparatus in the school was, in fact, wholly under the
control and actual direction of the officials of the Departiment
and not the School Board.
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The application for the examination made by the plaintiff
was, as required by the regulations of the Department,
made to the Department and not to the Board. 1 can see no
ground for asserting an obligation on the Board, assuming they
had knowledge that the plaintifi was a candidate, to inform the
Department of the qualifications or want of qualifications or pre-
vious course of instruction of the plaintiff. . In any event, the
importance of the plaintifi’s grade of knowledge would depend
upon the nature of the examination to which the officials of the
Department might see fit to subject him. There was no obliga-
tion, in my opinion, for the Board to foresee or suspect negligence
in this respect on the part of the officials of the Department.

(Consequently, in my opinion, the Board is not liable, even if
negligence is made out, upon which I express no opinion.

I would therefore allow the appeal with costs.

Hynpman, J.:—This is an appeal from the judgment of Walsh,
J., in favour of the plaintiff.

The plaintiff is an infant, and, at the time of the happenings
complained of, was 16 years of age.

The defendant School Board was duly constituted under the
ptovisions of the School Ordinance and the regulations made in
pursuance thereof. In the year 1917 the said defendant, as part
of its educational system, organised a technical or manual training
school which they owned and equipped.

The plaintifi was a student in grade IX. of the Strathcona
High School, also owned and controlled by the defendant Board.
Part of the course of study for said grade IX. was that of manual
arts which was taught in the said technical school and which was
obligatory.  The plaintiff, in consequence, attended the classes,
once a week, for a period of about 30 weeks extending from about
January to June, 1917. The regulations of the Department
of Kducation prescribed that a student, desirous of taking the
departmental examinations for matriculation, must, on or before
April 15, make application in writing on a form furnished by the
Department. The plaintiff, accordingly, made such an applica-
tion and paid the prescribed fee of $2.

The examinations were held in the month of June, 1917, and
included manual arts.

The only technical school in which examinations in this sub-
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ject could be held in Edmonton was the one in question, and i1,
Department notified the defendant Board that they ‘‘would
require this building for the June examinations.” Although thre
may or may not have been any legal obligation on the part of 1l
defendants to grant the use of this school, as a matter of courtesy,
they did give the use of the premises without charge, the Depuii-
ment paying for all materials required for the occasion, and on
June 27, candidates, amongst whom was the plaintiff, attended,
and the examinations were held. The evidence is, and the trial
judge so found, that, on this occasion, the school was under the
exclusive control of the Provincial Departmental examiners,
although two of the permanent instructors, employees of the defen-
dant school, were present at the time.

A part of the equipment of the school was a combination
circular crosscut and rip saw, both saws set in the same tulle
and operated by the same power, only one of them, however, Leing
capable of use at a time. Attached to the machine is an adjust-
able guard or hood of wire mesh fastened to a steel rim which
can be utilised if desired as a supposed protection to the person
operating the saws. During the examination, the plaintifi, in
order to comply with one of the tests put to the candidates, was
required to saw a piece of wood 3 ft. long by 3 inches wide. The
plaintifi was given a piece of wood with which to do this, and
to use the words of the trial judge:

He put the end of it which was nearest his body in his right hana and with
his left hand guided the other end of it against the rip saw, which was in
motion, ana ran the saw through the wood, keeping his left hand on the left-
hand edge of the block at a distance, I should say, of a little more than 1 inch
from the saw until the saw had run itself through the block. Then for some
purpose and in some manner which he cannot explain, he brought his left
hand back towards his body and in doing so it came in contact with the saw
which was unguarded. The result is that he has lost from that hand his little
finger from the first joint, his third finger from the knuckle, and the end of his
thumb, whilst his first and second fingers are to a certain extent stiff. His
claim is against the Board for the damages thus occasioned him.

The grounds of the plaintifi’s claim are that the defendant (1)
provided for the use of pupils in attendance at the said teclnical
school a circular saw which was defective and unsafe; (2) fuiled
to provide for the use of the said pupils a circular saw afforling
the maximum of protection or reasonable safety; (3) failed to see
that the guard of the said circular saw was in position on the
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occasion in question; (4) failed to instruct the plaintiff in the use
of the said cireular saw; (5) submitted the plaintiff to the test of
the examiners in the operation of the said circular saw with such
inadequate instruction in its use as to expose him to serious risk
of injury.

It seems to me that grounds 1, 2, and 3 are substantially
one and the same thing and mean that the defendant did not
provide machinery which was not defective and not unsafe.

The general rule of law is that a master or employer must
provide machinery fit and proper for the work and take care to
have it superintended by himself or his workmen in a fit and
proper manner. The test of fitness 18 not that others use like
tools and machinery but to consider whether they are reasonably
safe and suitable for the work to be done, and such as a reasonably
careful man would use under like circumstances. ‘‘Reasonably
safe’” means safe according to the usages, habits, and ordinary
risks of the business. Absolute safety is unattainable and em-
ployers are not insurers. They are liable for the consequences,
not of danger, but, of negligence; and the unbending test of negli-
gence in methods, machinery and appliances is the ordinary usage
of the business. See Beven on Negligence, 3rd Can. ed.,pp. 613,
614, and cases there cited.

There is no dispute but that a circular saw whether a crosscut
or rip saw is a dangerous instrument if not carefully handled, and
that characteristic is inseparable from its nature.

The question is then, did the defendant Board, in providing
this machinery, fail to fulfil their duty as required by the rule of
law above stated? In my opinion, they did not. A technical
school would be practically useless without the installation of
such saws, and it was absolutely necessary for the proper carrying
on of the work of manual training. The evidence is, in my opinion,
decidedly in favour of the fact that this particular machine was
up to the standard of the day and is of the latest and best type.
John W. Allen, one of the plaintifi's own witnesses, in cross-
examination, admitted that the machine is one of the best on
the market and that he did not know of any better equipment
in a combination saw. The chief complaint seems to be that
there was no ‘‘guard’’ used, though a guard, to which I have
already referred, was attached to the table and might have been
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put in use, and the greater part of the evidence is directed to thut
fact. The plaintiff’s witnesses state that, in their opinion, there
is greater danger in using the rip saw than the crosscut saw, -
cause, in using the former, the wood is apt to shoot forward (back?)
in the direction of the worker and cause injury, and that the
guard will, in some way, prevent this. But no such thing happened
on the oeccasion in question, so even if the hood had been there,
this important object would not have been served. On the con-
trary, however, other witnesses, men of long experience and whose
opinions are entitled to weight, say that the machine would be
more dangerous with than without this appliance, taking all the
possibilities into consideration. The witness Allen also stated,
in his cross-examination, that possibly ‘‘there may be some times
when you would say if the hood had been on this accident would
not have oceurred, but if the hood had been on other accidents
would have occurred.”’ There is evidence, too, that in other well-
appointed factories, similar machines with hood attachment are
used, but the hood is generally discarded for the reasons given.
With great deference to the opinion of the trial judge I am unable
to agree that there was any evidence upon which it can be said
that the School Board did not use every reasonable care and pre-
caution to provide machinery reasonably safe and suitable for
the work contemplated.

However, even if I should be in error in this conclusion, there
is the further, and I think, fatal objection to the plaintifi's claim
that, on the occasion complained of, the premises were not under
the management or control of the defendant but were being used
by the Provincial Board of Examiners, a distinet and separate
body, independent in every way of the defendant Board, and no
obligation attached except to see that no trap or hidden danger
existed. In granting the use of the building to the Provincial
Board, if permission was at all necessary, there was no contractual
relationship between them; they cannot-be said to be invifees,
for the premises were practically, though not perhaps legally,
commandeered by them. They notified the defendant Poard
that they would require the building, which notification was
complied with. They were, then, I think, mere licensees.

A licensee is a person who is neither a passenger, servant nor
trespasser, and not standing in any contractual relation with the
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owner of the premises, and is permitted to come upon the premises
for his own interest, convenience, or gratification. (20 Cye. 451.)

The rule is well settled that an owner of premises owes to
licensee no duty as to the condition of such prenuses, unless im-
posed by statute, save that he should not knowingly let him run
upon a hidden plant or wantonly or wilfully cause him harm.
The licensee enters upon the premises at his own risk and en-
joys the license subject to its concomitant perils. (29 Cyec. 449,
450, also King v. Northern Navigation Co., (1912) 6 D.L.R. 69;
Perduev.C.P.R. (1910), 1 O.W.N. 665; Gunn v. C.P.R.,(1912)1
D.L.R. 232, and annotations.)

In Hounsell v. Smyth, (1860) 29 L.J. C.P. 203, the declaration
alleged that the defendants were seised in fee of waste land, and,
before the grievance alleged, a quarry had been opened on the land,
which was worked by leave of the defendants, who received a
royalty, that the waste was open to the public, and all persons
having occasion to eross it had been used to cross it with the
license of the owners; that the quarry was actually near to and
between two public highways leading over the waste, and was
dangerous to persons who might accidentally deviate or have occa-
sion to cross the waste for the purpose of crossing from one road
to the other; that the defendant, well knowing the premises, left
the quarry unfenced, and the plaintiff; having occasion at night
to cross the waste to get from one of the roads into the other,
and not being aware of the existence of the quarry, fell into it
and was injured. It was held on demurrer that the declaration
shewed no cause of action.

Williams, J., at p. 207, says;

No right is averred but merely that the owners allowed persons, for
diversion or business to go across the waste without complaint . . . But
4 persoa so using the waste has no right to complain of any excavation he may

find there; he must accept the permission with its concomitant conditions,
and, it may be, its perils.

The plaintiff, therefore, under the circumstances here, can have
no greater right than the licensee itself as against the defendant
Board.

There was another point urged on behalf of the respondent,
namely, that because of his youth he should not have been allowed
to use so dangerous a machine. Apart from the question of who
might be liable for negligence, I do not think any effect can be
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given to this point. Where a danger is obvious or known, a person
is bound to use ordinary care to avoid it, and recovery cannot
be had, where the person injured, by the exercise of ordinary
care, could have avoided the injury, even though the defendunt
was negligent. (29 Cye. 515.) )

No arbitrary age has been fixed at which a child is require]
to exercise the care demanded of an adult . . . and in every case
the question of the intelligence and the measure of his capacity
is one for the jury to determine. (29 Cye. 540-1.)

If such is the law, it is clear that the plaintiff is a boy of cven
more than the average brightness and intelligence. He knew of
the danger, and the duty was cast upon him, just as it would
have been upon an adult to exercise very great care in the operg-
tion causing the injuries.

The trial judge also finds that the examiners had the right
to assume that the boy, when he undertook to operate the suw,
had sufficient practical familiarity with it to enable him to do
it in safety, when his instructors, who should«have known that
he had absolutely none, stood mutely by and allowed him to under-
take it.

I do not think the defendant can be held liable on this ground,
It was the exclusive business of the Department of Education,
just as though some other distinct building or plant had been
utilised. If such had been the case, certainly the officers of the

. defendant Board would not have been expected to attend and

advise the examiners with regard to each candidate. In my
opinion that would be a matter entirely for the Department. The
same rule, I think, must be applied, even though the defendant’s
premises were used.

It seems to me, therefore, for the reasons above referred to,
the chief one being that the defendant Board were not in control
at the time of the accident, but that the premises were under
the complete management of the Board of Education, thut the
defendant cannot be held liable to the plaintiff. If he has a
claim at all, which I do not think is the case, it is solely against
the Provincial Board of Education.

I would, therefore, allow the appeal and dismiss the uction
with costs here and in the Court below. Appeal allowed.
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ANDERSON v. JOHNSON.

Saskatchewan Court of Apyed, Haultain, C.J.S., and Newlands and
Elwood, JJ.A. October 81, 1918.

Mauicious PROSECUTION (§ IT—10)—EvipENcE UNDISPUTED—CONCLUSIONS
OF TRIAL JUDGE—INFERENCES—REASONABLENESS.

Where the trial judge, sitting without a jury, has found on undisputed
evidence that an offence for which the plaintiff might have been arrested
without a warrant has been committed, and that the defendants honestly
believed that such an off had been itted, and that it had been
committed by the plaintiff, he is justified in drawing the inference that
there were reasonable and probable grounds for the arrest and granting
the protection of 8. 30 of the Criminal Code.

ArpeAL from the judgment of Lamont, J., in an action for
wrongful arrest. Affirmed.

W. A. Beynon, for appellant.

Hon. W. E. Knowles, K.C., for respondents.

The judgment' of the court was delivered by

Havirain, CJ.8.:—In my opinion this appeal should be
dismissed. The trial judge has found on facts, which are not in
dispute, that the arrest of the plaintiff by the defendants was
justifiable under the circumstances, and that the defendants are
entitled to the protection of 8. 30 of the Criminal Code, so far as
the original arrest is concerned. That section is as follows:—

30. Every peace officer who, on 1easonable and probable grounds, believes
that an offence for which the offender may be arrested without warrant has
been committed, whether it has been committed or not, and who, on ressonable
and probable grounds, believes that any person has committed that offence,
is justified in arresting such person without warrant, whether such person is
guilty or not.

This section is simply declaratory of the common law. By the
common law, any person (whether a peace officer or not) may arrest
any one on probable suspicion of felony, and a peace officer under
such circumstances is protected, even if it should turn out that no
such felony had been committed by anyone, provided he can shew
that he had reasonable ground for suspecting the party arrested.
Stephen’'s Comm. (14th ed.) 310; 2 Hale P.C. 78; Allen v. L. &
S-W. R. Co. (1870), L.R. 6 Q.B. 65.

The case of Lister v. Perryman (1870), L.R. 4 H.L. 521, estab-

lished the general principle that *
It is a rule of law that the jury must find the facts on which the question
of ble and probable cause depends, but that the judge must then

determine whether the facts found do constitute reasonable and probable
cause. No definite rule can be laid down for the exercise of the judge’s
judgment.

Statement.

Haultain, C.J.8.
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My brother Lamont, sitting without a jury, has found, on
undisputed evidence, that an offence for which the plaintiff might
have been arrested without a warrant had been committed. He
had the opportunity of seeing the plaintiff and comparing lim
with the photograph and deseription sent to the defendants hy
the police authorities at Saskatoon. He also found, on the evidence,
that the defendants honestly believed that such an offence had
been committed and that it had been committed by the plaintiff,
Upon these two findings, which cannot be questioned, the trial
judge has, in my opinion, exercised a sound judgment in drawing
the inference that, in each case, there were reasonable and probable
grounds for the defendants’ belief.

The judge has further found that, while the arrest of the plaintiff
was justifiable, he was thereafter unreasonably detained by the
defendants on account of their delay in communicating with the
Saskatoon authorities. This finding is in accord with the decision
in Wright v. Court (1825), 4 B. & C. 596, 107 E.R. 1182. The
defendants do not appeal on this point, but the plaintiff appeals
on the ground that the period of unreasonable detention as found
by the trial judge was too short.

On this point, reference was made to the case of Reg. v. Cloutier
(1898), 2 Can. Cr. Cas. 43. That case supports the opinion I have
already expressed with regard to s. 30 of the Criminal Code. So
far as the present point is concerned, it decided that, in the case of
an arrest under s. 30, the common law rule applied, and that, in
such a case, the person arrested should be brought before a justice
of the peace within a reasonable time. What is a reasonable time
must depend upon the particular circumstances of the case. Tak-
ing all the facts of this case into consideration, I can see no reason
for altering the finding in this respect. The appeal is thercfore
dismissed with costs. Appeal dismissed.

DOMINION TRUST Co. v. MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE Co.
B. C. SECURITIES v. MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE Co.

British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., Galliher and
McPhillips, JJ.A. October 1, 1918,

Fixtures (§ I1—12)—SAFETY DEPOSIT BOXES—AFFIXED TO FithEHOLD
BY OWN WEIGHT—INTENTION, _

If an intention to make chattels part of the freehold is sufficiently
established from all the circumstances of the particular case, they may
be held to be part of the freehold notwith ing that they are not uffixed
otherwise than by their own weight to the freehold.
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ArpeAL by defendant and cross-appeal from the judgment of
Gregory, J., in an action between a mortgagee and the assignee
of a mortgagor who is the owner of the equity of redemption to
establish whether certain safety deposit boxes form part of the
frechold or are merely chattels. Appeals dismissed.

8. 8. Taylor, K.C., and Smith, for appellant.

A. H. MacNeill, K.C., for respondent.

MacponaLp, C.J.A.:—The question is whether or not the
safety deposit boxes in question were part of the freehold or were
merely chattels. It arises, in this case, as between mortgagee and
the assignee of the mortgagor; who is now the owner of the equity
of redemption.

The building now known as the Dominion Trust Building was
erected by the British Canadian Securities Co., a company sub-
sidiary to the Dominion Trust Co., and I think it can fairly be
inferred from the facts that the building was intended mainly for
occupation by the Trust Company. It was erected and equipped
to meet the business requirements of the Trust Company.

The trial judge found that the boxes originally installed during
the construction of the building by the said B.C. Securities Co.,
the mortgagors, were part of the freehold, but that certain other
boxes placed in the building by the Dominion Trust Co. about a
vear afterwards were chattels. The term “vault” is some-
times used in this case as signifying the strong room and some-
times the boxes in the room. But this confusion in terminology
apart, the case has to do with steel boxes and their frames installed
in a room specially constructed for the safe deposit and care of
documents and valuables. At the date of the mortgage, these
boxes had not been installed, but their installation was clearly in
the contemplation of the parties to the mortgage and the Dominion
Trust Co. The Trust Company at first occupied a considerable
part of the building, including the strong room and its equip-
ment, as tenants of the Securities Company, and after a year of
such tenancy took a conveyance of the premises subject to the
mortgage. The Securities Company and the Trust Company are
now in liquidation. The mortgagee is in possession and the Trust
Company brought this action to recover the boxes in dispute.

The circamstances under which the first lot of boxes were
installed in the strong room are, in my opinion, important as

DomiNion
Trusr Co.




DomiNion
Trust Co.

DominioNn Law REPoRTS. [43 D.LR,

indicating the intention of the owners of the premises, and also
the understanding of the Dominion Trust Co. as to what the
relationship of these boxes to the freehold was intended to be. A
large number of the boxes were purchased from the Trust Com-
pany by the Securities Company for installation with others pur-
chased from the manufacturers. They were installed in accord-
ance with plans of the strong room prepared by the architcct.
The strong room was constructed specially for the business of
safe deposit. The installation of these boxes appears to me to he
part of the general scheme to construct and equip a building or
room for a particular purpose. Those which the trial judge held
to be part of the freehold, while not actually attached thereto by
bolts or other fastenings, were placed in such a way as to suggest
permanency. They occupled one side of the Toom from end to
end and from floor to ceiling, with appropriate finished moulding
along the top, and rested upon the concrete floor below the rubber
tiling which covered the rest of the floor, and which was fitted
against the base of the boxes. Complementary to the boxes,
were certain cubicles or small apartments affixed to the frechold,
designed for the convenience of depositors in examining their
documents in private.

It appears to be well established by authority that if an inten-
tion to make chattels part of the freehold is sufficiently established
from all the circumstances of the particular case, they may be
held to be part of the frechold, notwithstanding that they are not
affixed otherwise than by their own weight to the freehold: Hollund
v. Hodgson (1872), L.R. 7 C.P. 328, in which Lord Blackburn
points out that, in such circumstances, the onus of proof lics on
the party who alleged that the chattel has been made part of the
realty. In Leigh v. Taylor, [1902] A.C. 157, at 158, Lord Mac-
naghten said that:—

The mode of annexation is only one of the circumstances of the casc und
not always the most important, and its relative importance is probably not
what it was in ruder or simpler times.

One may be permitted to ask in view of the fact that the Trust
Company was to become tenant, why the boxes which belong
to the Trust Company should have been purchased from tlem
by the Securities Company and installed as part of the original
scheme of construction if they were to remain chattels? That
portion of the building including the strong room which was lcused

T R
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by the Trust Company was leased at a lump sum without dis-
tinction between the building as freehold and these boxes as
chattels. In my opinion, the completeness of the equipment of
the room by the installation of the boxes and cubicles strongly
supports the defendants’ contention that the boxes were intended
to be a permanent adjunct of the strong room. The removal of
these boxes would leave the floor of the room in an incomplete
condition. The rubber tiling would have to be extended over
the surface formerly occupied by the boxes, and while this is not
in itself a matter of very great weight, yet in conjunction with
other circumstances it is not to be overlooked.

As regards the second class of boxes, namely, those which
were placed in the strong room by the Trust Company after they
became the owners of the equity of redemption, I entertain con-
siderable doubt as to their status. They were no part of the
original construction or installation, and I am unable to say that
the judge came to a wrong conclusion when he held that the mort-
gagees did not satisfy the burden of proof resting on them to6 shew
that these boxes were made part of the freehold. They did not
form even a complete “nest of boxes” and were not embraced in
the general scheme of numbering applicable to the others.

I would, therefore, dismiss the appeal.

Gavumer, J.A.:—1 would dismiss the appeal and allow the
cross-appeal.

I realize that it is a case of no little difficulty, and one on
which different minds can very well come to opposite conclusions,
as indeed is instanced by the fact that no two minds have wholly
met here.

After a careful perusal of the evidence, and an endeavour to
apply the authorities cited to us; and others which 1 have read, 1
am unable to conclude that the articles in question here are fixtures
and come within the purview of the mortgage.

Mr. Taylor presented.to us a very forceful and elaborate
argument as to the architectural design, location and numbering
of the nests of boxes, the cubicles, grills and other fittings, their
general erection and construction on a well defined plan, and

urged that he was well within the decision in D'Eyncourt v. Gregory '

(1866), L.R. 3 Eq. 382, 394.
14—43 p,L.R.
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In that case Lord Romilly, M.R., expressed himsell as not
coming to his conclusions with any degree of confidence or con-
plete satisfaction to himself, but even had the decision been given
absolutely free from doubt, I must confess 1 cannot see the appli-
cation of a principle under the circumstances of that case which
was the beautifying of an expensive manor house and grounds by
the harmonizing and symmetrical designing and construction of
objects of art to the furnishing of a safety deposit vault in o
business block.

As regards the rule laid down by Lord Blackburn (then Justice
Blackburn), who delivered the judgment of the court-in Holland v,
Hodgson, L.R. 7 C.P. 328, followed and approved in subsequent
cases in England and in our Supreme Court of Canada, it resolves
itself into a question of what was the intention of the parties under
the particular circumstances of each case.

I think we must find upon the evidence here that the several
articles in question could be easily removed without damage to
the property.

Of course, that alone does not determine what are fixtures and
what are chattels, and, as evidence of intention, Mr. Tavlor
points to the fact that, when negotiating for the loan, the plaintifis
made a point of the earning capacity of the safety deposit vault.

I think it may be assumed that generally speaking loan com-
panies do not advance their money with the view of, at some
future time, ncquiring the property by foreclosure or sule pro-
ceedings, but rather for the purpose of income by way of interest
on such loans, but, of course, with a view to obtaining aniple
seeurity in case of failure to repay the loan and interest.

After the valuation of the property as a property pure and
simple, they enquire into the earning capacity of the promises,
not so much perhaps with a view to placing an enhanced value
thereon as to the probability of the mortgagor being able to meet
his payments when due.

I admit both conditions may be in mind, but not so as to warrant
us in assuming that the defendants believed or the plaintifis
intended, that the fittings or fixtures, whichever we may for the
moment call them, would be covered by the mortgage.

The mortgage was upon the lands and premises, describing
them, and making no reference to fixtures (though fixtures of
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course would be included), and I mention it merely to point out
that in most of the cases cited to us by Mr. Taylor, of counsel for
the defendants, which were eases where machinery was being nsed
for manufacturing purposes, and where without the active oper-
ating creative power the purposes for which the premises were
utilized could not be carried out, fixtures were specifically men-
tioned in the mortgage.

Some of these nests of boxes were laid on steel beams and
rubber tiling, with which the floor of the vault was finished, was
brought up to and against the base of the boxes, while those
brought in later were placed on top of the rubber tiling, a fact
which rather argues against their being an intention to attach
ves these as fixtures to carry out a completed plan as a whole.

The removal of one row of rubber tiles, which would be suffi-
¢ient to enable the boxes to be removed, seems to me to affect the
realty in so slight a degree as to constitute practically no appre-
ciable damage.

Nothing would be gained by dwelling upon the matter further,
as rightly or wrongly I have reached a conclusion satisfactory to
my own mind as to the nature of these articles.

McPumiuies, J.A.:—The two actions were tried together by
Gregory, J., and involved the question of the determination as to
e whether the safety deposit boxes, cubicles and other fixtures con-
ime nected therewith of the safety deposit vault of the Dominion Trust
o (0. were the property of the Mutual Life Assurance Co. of Canada,
est mortgagees, later mortgagees in possession, and still later the
iple owners of the freehold by an order absolute of foreclosure. The
trial judge, in a very careful judgment, in which he goes, very fully
und into the facts, and discusses the law as it is interpreted and applied
808, by him, found that the safety deposit boxes called by him as lot 1
lue were the property of the Dominion Trust Co., being part of the
cet realty, that as to lot 2 they were and remained chattels of the
Dominion Trust Co. The Mutual Life Assurance Co. of Canada
ant appealed as to the finding relative to lot 2, and the Dominion
Trust Co. cross-appealed as to the finding relative to lot 1. The
the British Canadian Securities Limited was, in its action, held to be
entitled to the steel bookeases and map and voucher cases and the
Mutual Life Assurance Co. of Canada was held to be entitled to
the steel shelving and wire partition in the storage vault and
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counter plate glass on the counters, and in this action there is an
appeal and cross-appeal.  In my opinion, and with great respeet
to the trial judge, I am entirely unable to accept the view that the
Dominion Trust Co. or the British Canadian Securities Limited,
are entitled to any of the claimed articles, but that they are all
fixtures and are the property of the Mutual Life Assurance Co. of
Canada, the owners of the frechold.

It would be too long a story to, in detail, set forth the various
changes in the business relations and realty holdings changes of
the Dominion Trust Co. and the British Canadian Securities
Limited ending in disastrous finaneial failure, but this much can
be said, that the two companies were one, in so far as that can be
said where they were separate entities, managed wholly by the
one person, namely, the late W. R. Arnold, who was the managing
director of both companies. The mortgage held by the Mutual
Life Assurance Co. of Canada now foreclosed was given by the
British Canadian Seeurities Limited, the then owners of the free-
hold, being a most modern and substantial office building in the
City of Vancouver of extensive proportions, and was later the
home and the property of the Dominion Trust Co., subject to the
mortgage, becoming, subsequent to the mortgage, the owner of
the frechold by conveyance from the British Canadian Securities
Limited. The Dominion Trust Co. (hereafter called the Trust
Company) was a party to the application for the loan made to
the Mutual Life Assurance Co. of Canada (hereafter called the
Assurance Company) and was a party to the mortgage and hond
as a principal debtor along with the British Canadian Securities
Limited (hereafter called the Securities Company) for the due
payment of the mortgage. Elaborate forms of application plans
and other data were placed before the Assurance Company, and
great gtress was laid upon the nature of the building, its adaptation,
in fact, architectural design, to house the safety deposit vaults and
to generally carry on an extensive financial and trust business of
a permanent nature, an< the business carried on was certainly of
large, even vast proportions, unfortunately, only to end in dis-
astrous failure. There was displayed in large letters upon the
building this legend: “Dominion Trust Company—The Perpetual
Trustee—Armour Plate Safety Deposit Vaults”—evidencing the
declared permanent nature of the business carried on in the build-
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ing. It is true that the whole office building was not devoted to
the business of the Trust Company and the Securities Company,
there being other tenants, but the building was most certainly
ear-marked in particular as the permanent abode of the Trust
Company, and was built and especially adapted for the business
of the Trust Company and the Securities Company, and this was
generally impressed upon the Assurance Company. It would
take too long to enter into the details as to this, but I consider
that the subject warrants at least the setting forth of a letter
which went to the Assurance Company at the time of the applica-
tion for the loan. It reads as follows: —

Vancouver, B.C',, October 4th, 1912.
Messrs. Mutual Life Insurance Co.,

Waterloo, Ont.

We beg to advise you that we are sending you to-day under separate cover
blue prints of our building at the corner of Pender and Homer Streets, Van-
couver, as requested by Mr. R. L. Drury.

With regard to the rentals for safe deposit vaults, we beg to advise y
that the earnings for the first eight months of 1912 were £35,000. The
being installed in the building at the corner of Pender and Homer Streets are
double the size of the present vaults, and the earning capacity will be 825,000,
At the present time the Dominion Trust Company have some ten different
gizes of deposit boxes for rent, but a number of sizes are all rented and they are
wailing to instal new boxes in the new building.

We would like to know regarding this loan by wire after your full board
meeting to be held on the 10th inst. I might say that since your president
and managing director were here we have refused this loan from other parties
on account of assurances which they gave us at that time.

: ) W. R. Arnold, managing director,

The Assurance Company finally advanced the sum of $225,000
by way of mortgage, and became possessed of the legal estate in
the lands upon which the building is situate, and were mortgagees
thereof; the Trust Company became the owners thereof subject
to the mortgage by purchase from the Securities Company for the
sum of $625,000 being conveyed the land upon which the building
is “together with all buildings, fixtures, ete.”"—words to be found
in the conveyance. Now, at the time of the conveyance, the
bulk of the articles ealled in question were in place and situate in
the building, and in use in connection with the business there
carried on, and all of the articles are, in their nature, not only
useful, but, in these modern times, may be said to be necessary
in the carrying on of the business, especially when carried on in
the extensive way in which it was—being a business of great
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volume—and the building was advertised far and wide as having
the most complete fittings of the most modern kind, and of
undoubted convenience and safety, in fact, in perfect keeping witl,
the character of safety deposit vaults now so well understood in
the large cities of the United States and Canada. It is clear
beyond question that a very material inducement for the making
of the loan by the Assurance Company was the character of the
building and its special adaptation to the business carried on and
its very complete architectural design and construction, together
with all the necessary fittings of safety deposit vaults—i.e., safety
deposit box units and all the necessary attendant features to
complete the same, together with the steel bookcases, map and
voucher cases, steel shelving, wire partition and storage vault, in
short, all the claimed articles find their natural place upon the
premises in which the business was being carried on, and were
essential and necessary in the carrying on of the business, and
evidenced the special character of the building and its adaptation
for the special class of business carried on therein.

1 do not find it necessary to enter into detail as to which com-
pany placed the respective claimed chattels upon the premiscs, it
not being a matter material to the inquiry as I view it. They all
became fixtures, and were not removable as against the mort-
gagee in possession and the owners of the building and land by
way of foreclosure of the mortgage. It may be remarked in
passing that no attempt was made to set up any title to the
claimed chattels until after the mortgagee was in possession.
The Trust Company and Securities Company are both in the
course of being wound up, and the claims made are being made
by the liquidators thereof, that is, the actions are being carriced on
in connection with liquidation.

In the argument upon the two appeals—(I am dealing with the
actions and the appeals in one judgment as the facts and the law
are so interlaced that it would only mean undue repetition other-
wise, and 1 eannot really see any differentiation in the maticr for
consideration; that is, my view of the law applicable to the special
facts is equally decisive and comprehensive of both appeals —a
great many authorities were referred to. I do not intend to, in
detail, discuss all of these authorities. With deference to counscl,
upon both sides, some of them seem quite inapplicable, but 1
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admit that there would appear to be quite a good deal of con- B. C.

ng -
l.: fusion in the many opinions of the eminent judges who have so C. A.
th laboriously and ably examined into the principle of law as affect-  poumion
in ing fixtures. This, though, is apparent throughout all the decisions Twvst Co.
ar and has been given voice to by the judges that each case must MU:UAL
ng really be decided upon the special facts thereof, that is, that the Aull‘,'::;c‘
he principle is elastic in its application and should, of course, be Co.
Wd equitably applied. In the appeals which are before this court, we McPhillips, 1A
er have the original parties, no intervening intérests, the fact that
ty the Trust Company and Securities Company are in the course of
to being wound up confers no greater rights than the rights exer-
Wl cisable by the mortgagors, and both companies, as we have seen,
in were parties to the mortgage. In passing, it may be further
e noted, as the evidence shews that the conveyance from the Securi-
re ties Company to the Trust Company is the only.instrument
W passing the articles which, in the main, are the subject-matter of
n the appeals, that is there is here cogent evidence of intention, that
they were considered fixtures and passed with the conveyance of
- the land upon which the building was situate, no bill of sale was
it executed, in fact, no evidence whatever that there was any sale
l independent of the sale of the realty.
t- It is a further matter for remark and particularly pertinent to
W the inquiry that the safety deposit boxes, accompanying appli-
,;, ances, attachments and conveniences were all put in place under
1® special architectural supervision and in accordance with plans
. made. There is here no easual bringing into a building of chattels,
e the placing of same, with more or less fixity to the premises, with
e no intention, whatever, of making them part of the building, but
n here we have substantial articles, all coming within the plans and
scheme of the building, to constitute a permanent safety deposit
" vault, with all its modern accessories, and to otherwise put in
= place and make serviceable a modern and up-to-date office build-
e ing having, in particular, these special features. But now the
i contention is that there must be a complete emasculation of the
d creation which was so much enlarged upon when the very con-
a siderable loan was applied for to the Assurance Company, which
n loan was made upon the faith of these professions; and when the

mortgagee seeks, in accordance with the terms of the mortgage,
to exercise the right of possession and ownership of that which
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was mortgaged to it—these companies (the liquidators cannot
assert any greater right) have the hardihood and effrontery to
submit that the law supports them in their contention, with |
respect to contrary opinion, my view is that the law fails to sup.
port any such submission, and it would be an instance, were it
otherwise, of bringing the law into disrepute. We have hore
special circumstances that cannot be overlooked, and whatever
confusion there may be in the law, no confusion can arise in its
application to the special facts so apparent in these appeals. \n
early case much cited in later cases which well demonstrates vt
the law is and its proper application is Walmsley v. Milne (1859,
7 C.B. (N.8) 116, 141 E.R. 759, and it was a case of bankruptey,
the assignee claiming. The case well warrants careful perusal wd
consideration, and wholly supports the arguments of the couns
for the mortgagee, the Assurance Company, in the appeals before
us. See Crowder, J. at p. 139:—

We think, therefore, that, when the mortgagor (who was the real owne
of the inheritance), after the date of the mortgage, annexed the fixtures in
question for a permanent purpose, and for the better enjoyment of his estute,
he, thereby, made them part of the freehold which had been vested by the
mortgage<deed in the mortgagee; and that, consequently, the plaintiffs, Lo
are assignees of the mortgagor, cannot maintaio the present action.

This ease has been cited in the following cases: Gough v. 1Woul,
[1894] 1 Q.B. 713; Hobson v. Gorringe, [1897] 1 Ch. 182; Crossloy v.
Lee, [1908] 1 K.B. 86; Ellis v. Glover, [1908] 1 K.B. 388.

The extent to which the law has been earried in its application,
even where the ownership in the chattel was not really in the
mortgagee, is evidenced in Hobson v. Gorringe, supra.

A. L. Smith, L.J., at p. 195, said:—

That a person can agree to affix a chattel to the soil of another so that it
becomes part of that other’s freeliold, upon the terms that the one shall be at
liberty in certain events, to retake possession, we do not doubt, but how a
de faclo fixture becomes not a fixture or is not a fixture a8 regards a purchuse
of land for value and without notice, by reason of some bargain between the
affixers, we do not understand, nor has any authority to support this conten-
tion been adduced.

Reynolds v. Ashby & Son, [1904] A.C. 466, a decision of the
House of Lords, is a leading case dealing with the law calling for
consideration upon these appeals. I will only quote one portion

of the judgment of Lord Lindley, appearing at p. 472:—

The question is whether they passed by the mortgage. But for the fact
that Holdway had not paid for them the question would not in my opinion
be open to the slightest doubt. There is a long series of decisions of the highest
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authority shewing conclusively that as between a mortgagor and a mortgagee
machines fixed as these were to land mortgaged pase to the mortgagee as part
of the land. The decisions in question begin with Walmsley v. Milne (1859),
7 C.B. (N.8.) 115, and include Barclay, Ex parte (1855), 5 DeG. M. & G. 403,
Mather v. Frazer (1856), 2 K. & J. 536, Climie v. Wood (1868-9), L.R. 3 Ex. 257,
Longhottom v, Berry (1869), L.R. 5 Q.B. 123, Holland v. Hodgson (1872),
LR, 7 C.P. 328, Gough v. Wood, (1894] 1 Q.B. 713, and Hobson v. Gorringe,
[1507] 1 Ch. 182. Others were referred to in the argument, but I need only
mention Southport and West Lancashire Banking Co. v. Thompson (1887),
37 Ch. D. 64, where it was held that whether the mortgagor is an owner in
fee or is only a leaseholder (as in this cuse) is immaterial with reference to the
question now under eonsideration. It is quite impossible to overrule these
deeisions.

In the present appeals, there is no question that the legal estate
pussed to the mortgagee.  Re Samuel Allen & Sons, (1907) 76 L.J.
Ch. 362 Parker, J. (afterwards Lord Parker of Waddington, lately
deceased, one of England’s greatest jurists) had under considera-
tion rights under a hire purchase agreement.

The cireun stances surrounding the giving of the mortgage in
question in these appeals, the character of the business to be
carried on upon the premises, the special construction of the
building, its adaptation to the particular business, all punctuate
the creation of premises of a special character with a present and
potential value, that should appeal to a mortgagee in making the
loan, and was undoubtedly an inducement to make the same, so
a8 to create an equitable position that the Trust Company and
the Securities Company eannot be allowed to now dispute  But
quite apart from that, the legal estate became vested in the mort-
gagee and there was no removal before the mortgagee took posses-
sion, of course, though, in my opinion, no removal would have
been justified, and if there had been, there would be a right of
action therefor. A case which is apposite is Monti v. Barnes,
[1901] 1 K.B. 205. The head-note is in the following terns:—

The mortgagor of a freehold dwelling-house after the execution of the
mortgage removed certain fixed grates from the house and substituted for
them an equal number of dog grates. The substituted dog grates were not
physically attached to the freehold, but rested in their places merely by their
own weight, which was considerable; held, that, the true inference being that

the dog grates wese substituted for the purpose of improving the inheritance
they were fixtures. .

It is noteworthy that A. L. Smith, M.R., used this language:—

It is obvious that a dwelling-house cannot continue without grates and

manifestly the mortgagor never intended that the house should be without
them.
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Here we have a building specially constructed and with a declarcd
present and potential value, founded upon having therein a safcty
deposit vault. Of what practical value would it be without the
necessary accessories, the safety deposit boxes? To state the
proposition only shews how untenable it is, that as against this
declared intention, the very parties who induced the Assurance
Company to make this very considerable advance of money,
should now be interfered with in its right to the security, that it
should be left intact, not destroyed; and, in passing, the evidence
shews that the Assurance Company, in the endeavour, no doubt,
to recoup itself for the investment made, is now maintaining and
carrying on a safety deposit vault business upon the premises.

The Scotch case of Howie's Trustees v. M’'Lay (1902-3), 5
Fraser's Session Cases, 214, 5th series, is much in point. The
head-note is as follows:—

Held, that a heritable security over a factory included as part of the
heritable subjects five lace looms therein, which were bolted to a long iron
sole-plate attached only by its own weight to the floor, the upper part of the
looms being tied by substantial iron stays to the roof beams.

Then it is to be noted that the facts disclose in these appeals that
the fixtures were placed by the owners of the realty, and, in this
connection, the judgment of Joyce, J., in Re Chesterfield's Settled
Estates (1911), 80 L.J. Ch. 186, is much in point.

Mowats Limited v. Hudson Bros. Ltd. (1911), 105 L.T. 400, is
an interesting case, although in no way decisive of the points we
have to consider, being solely a case of landlord and tenant, but
a statement of the law as understood by that great judge, Vaughan
Williams, L.J., appearing at pp. 402-403 (although in the particu-
lar case dissenting from his brethren) is instructive. The Lord
Justice speaks of “the scheme for the conversion of the building
into a provision shop.” We have the erection of a building
specially constructed and adapted for a safety deposit vault and
the carrying on of that business—*“Armour Plate Safety Deposit
Vaults”—and the case of the granting of the legal estate. .\ most
decisive case upon the points calling for decision upon the present
appeals is that of the House of Lords in Meuz v. Jacob (1875),

44 L.J. Ch. 481—the head-note reading as follows:—

Trade fixtures pass by a mortgage of the freehold or of a leascholder's
interest in the property to which they are attached, whether such mortgage be
effected by a regularly executed deed, or by deposit with memorandum, and
such mortgage will be effectual, though not registered, as against any sub-
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sequent unregistered bill of sale. Trade fixtures added subsequently to the
mortgage are subject to this rule as much as those attached before the
mortgage. .

Lord Hatherley, in this case, at p. 485, said:—

1 apprehend that a mortgage or assignment out and out of all a lease-
holder's interest in the property itsell as distinguished from the fixtures
carries with it, also the interest in the fixtures attached to the property,
although those fixtures might be subject to the right of removal if the mortgage
had not been executed by the party entitled to the lease. 1 mention that
because it appears to me to cover the question of any fixtures that may have
been added subseq ly to the me ndum of deposit by the mortgagor
in this instance.  If, subsequently to the memorandum of deposit, he had
attached other chattels to the property, the mortgagee of the lease stood in
the same position as his mortgagor, and those things, when attached to the
frechold, passed during the interest that still remained in the lease. Therefore,
the mortgage would attach to them, and the mortgagee would, at any time dur-
ing the lease, have the benefit which his mortgagor had of removing those
chattels that first attached anterior to his mortgage and also that subsequently
attached posterior to his mortgage. That being so, the only argument on this
subject which we have heard to-day appears to me to be entirely untenable.

I particularly rely upon this statement of the law, as the mortgage
in the present case was executed by both the Trust Company and
the Securities Company, and both companies have placed fixtures
in the building which in my opinion passed under the mortgage
and are of the freehold, the property of the Assurance Company.
See also Lord Selborne at p. 486.

The present appeals indicate that note must be taken of the
modern advance in the use to which buildings are put—and that
that which might be at first thought upon the cases to be trade
fixtures or chattels, not fixtures, forming part of the frechold, may
well have to be considered as forming part of the freehold, and in
the inquiry it is particularly a matter for eareful consideration, to
give full effect to the intention of the parties and the special
character of the building, and when that special character may be
said to give the main or a particular value to the frechold, the
nature of the attachment to the frechold or non-attachment at all
is to be considered.  But there may be no attachment at all, and
vet it may be just and right and a true application of the law to
hold that the property in the at one time chattels has passed and
has become incorporated in the freehold. In this connection the
language of Lord Shaw in Att'y-Gen. of Southern Nigeria v. Holl,
[1915] A.C. 599, at p. 617, is indeed most instructive.

In 'y opinion, the mortgage was effective to pass the property
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in question, and as owners of the freehold, the Assurance Con-
pany is the owner thereof, i.e., the articles in question became
part of the freehold, and the Trust Company and the Securitics
Company both fail in their appeals, and the Assurance Comp:ny
should suceeed in their appeals. In the result, the actions should,
in my opinion, be dismissed.

B.C. Securrmies v. Murtual Lire.

Macponarp, C.J.A.:—The questions to be decided here, like
those in Dominion Trust v. Mutual Life, judgment in which has
just been delivered, are very close to the line, and as I am unable
to say that the judge came to a wrong conclusion, I must disniss
the appeal.

Garuiner, J.A.—1 would dismiss the appeal and allow the
cross-appeal (except as to the spare armature and counter plate
glass) for the reasons already given in Dominion Trust v. Mutval
Life, just decided.

As to the armature and plate glass, I am in some doubt, but
not sufficient to warrant me in reversing the finding of the tiial
judge.

McPmees, J.A's reasons are included in his judgment in
Dominion Trust v. Mutual Life, ante, both cases having been
heard together.

Plaintifi’s appeal dismissed (GALLIHER, J.A., dissenting).
Defendants’ appeal dismissed (McPuiLuies, J.A., dissenting).

KOKOMO INVESTMENT Co. v. DOMINION HARVESTER Co.

Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Harvey, C.J., Stuarl, Beck
and Hyndman, JJ. October 18, 1918.

Conrtracrs (§ IV B—333)—IMPOSSIBILITY OF PERFORMANCE—REASONANLE
CAUSE NOT TO BE DEEMED A BREACH—MACHINERY FOR MAKING SHELLS
—NOT CONSIDERED AS FIXTURES,

By the terms of a written contract the plaintiffs agreed to convey in
fee simple to the defendants a ten-acre plot of land together with u par-
tially constructed buildi The defend cov ted to complete
the building before a certain date, to equip the building as a fuctory
for the manufacture of farm machinery and municipal suprli(- ete.,
and to employ a certain number of men; on default, ete., the defendants
covenanted to transfer the site and all buildings and fixtures back to
the plaintiffs. There was also a proviso that it should not be decmed
a breach of any of the clauses or covenants if the defendants could shew
reasonable cause. By aj ient between the parties, machinery was
installed for making shells. The building and contents were subse-

uently destroyed by fire. The defendants removed some of the ma-
chinery, had it repaired and removed to another site, where they continued
the manufacture of shells as before. The plaintiff alleged defuult and

laimed specific perf: . Harvey, C.J., and Stuart, J., held that
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the machinery was not covered by the word “fixtures,” which in the

agreement meant ‘‘landlord’s fixtures,”” Harvey, C.J., also held that

reasonable cause had been shewn for not carrying on the business. Beck, J.,

held that the ease was not one of non-compliance with the agreement,

but of an accident creating an impossibility of performance and this,
by virtue of an implied condition, operated as a termination of the con-
tract with respect to both parties to it, entitling the plaintiff, on the

basis of a resulting trust, to a reconvey: ance of the land. Hyndman, J.,

held that, assuming the ma(hlncr\ to be fixtures within the mmmug

of the agreement, the permission of the plaintiffs to remove the damaged
machinery uper:ued as a waiver by them to any right to it.

Arrean from the judgment of the trial judge in pn action
alleging default under an agreement and claiming specific per-
formance, a re-conveyance of land and the return of machinery
alleged to be “fixtures.” Reversed.

1. C. Rand, for appellants; . M. Black

Ianvey, C.J.:—I am disposed to agree with my brother
Stuart that the machinery in this ease does not come within the
deseription of fixtures as intended by the agreement. The purpose
for which it was to be used, namely, the manufacture of war sup-
plies, shews clearly that it could not have been intended to remain

on the premises permanently and when its use came to an end it

stock, for respondents,

would have to be removed, to be replaced by the necessary
machinery for the class of manufacturing contemplated by the
agreement, so that the machinery actually in the premises
whatever might be said of machinery for the purposes specified
in the agreement—was clearly there only for temporary purposes
and should not, I think, be considered a fixture.

I am likewise of opinion that in any event there was no breach
of the agreement. Apart from the principle mentioned by my
brother Beck, the agreement itself provides that reasonable cause
would prevent any apparent breach of the agreement from being
deemed an actual breach. The destruction of the building by fire
for which the defendants were in no way responsible was surely
reasonable ground for their not continuing to carry on the business
which could be performed only if a building existed.

I agree, therefore, in the disposition proposed by the other
members of the court.

Stvarr, J.:—The plaintiff was a real estate company operating
in Medicine Hat. They owned a tract of land which had been
subdivided and which they were hoping to sell advantageously in
lots. They owned a 10-acre plot upon which, for some purpose
not disclosed, they had partially erected a building at a cost of
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about 87,500. In order to enhance the value of their surrounding
lots, and to create a market for them, they, on January 16, 1015,
entered into a written contract with the defendants, whereby they
agreed to convey, in fee simple, to the defendants, on March 25,
1915, the said 10-acre plot together with the said partially cop-
structed building. In consideration of this transfer, the defendints
covenanted to proceed and complete the building on or before
March 26. 1915, to equip the building as a factory for the manu-
facture of farm machinery and municipal supplies, to use the lund
for industrial purposes only, to commence operations in the factory
on or before May 1, 1915, and to continue to operate the sime
continuougly, to employ at least 6 men continuously during 1015,
to employ continuously during 1916 at least 25 men, “provided
that conditions were such as to warrant such inerease in the
number of men employed” and to erect all other buildings “in
connection with the local branch of the company " on the said site,

There was a proviso that, in case of default on the part of the
defendants in the performance of any of these covenants, or in
default of the defendants being able to satisfy arbitrators that on
March 26, 1918, the factory was a “good and substantial going
concern”’ the defendants covenanted to transfer the site in fee
simple free of encumbrances and all buildings and fixtures thereon
to the plaintiffs.  There was also a proviso that it should not be
deemed a breach of any of the clauses or covenants in the agree-
ment if the defendants could shew reasonable eause. There wasa
clause also by which the plaintiffs agreed, if all the covenants were
performed by the defendants, that it would, on March 26, 1018,
cause a caveat referred to in the agreement as having been
placed against the land to be removed.

This caveat was in fact never lodged against the land, the
reason being that it was found that it would embarross the
defendants’ credit.

The defendants completed the building, but, before installing
the machinery intended, it obtained a contract from the authorities
to make shells for the war, and, with the consent of the plaintifi,
installed machines adapted for this different purpose, and not,
with the exception of one or two small machines, adapted for the
originally intended purpose of manufacturing farm machinery and
municipal supplies.
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ing The defendant proceeded with the manufacture of shells and,
913, apparently fulfilled the terms of its contract respecting the employ-
hey ment of men. In April, 1916, the building and contents were

Kokomo

26 wholly or partially destroyed by a fire. h:‘\:z;:.
rone The defendants removed some of the machinery which was Co.

ints capable of repair to another site, repaired it at considerable expense, nm";'“ -
fore about $7,000, and proceeded to manufacture shells as before, HARVESTER

Co.

e On September 22, 1916, the plaintiff began this action, alleging
and a default and claiming specific performance of the agreement,
ory a re-conveyance of the land and a return of the machinery, an
W injunction against its sale, and, alternatively to delivery of the
"3, machinery, damages to the amount of its value. There was no
ded claim for damages for breach of the covenants.

the The defence was a denial of default, an assertion of impossibility
“in of performance, which was a legal excuse, a denial that the removed
iite, machinery came within the true meaning of the term “fixtures”
the as used in the contract, an allegation of an offer to re-convey the

Stuart, J.

o

“in land as a compromise before action brought, and of continued
on readiness so to do. !
ing The trial judge gave judgment for the plaintifi. He ordered i
foe the defendant to re-convey the land and to pay $2,000 as damages 1%
20n in lieu of the return of the machinery. This was, in his opinion, t
be shewn to be the fair value of the machinery, removed as it stood 5
e after the fire and before repair, B
. From this judgment the defendant has appealed. 2
ere The contract is in some respects rather badly drawn and leaves 1%
18 much room for doubt as to its true interpretation. In any case it § [
el is certainly a contract for the interpretation of which few, if any, '3
precedents can be found. T think one is, perhaps, apt to lose rather ':
the than gain by attempting to obtain light from cases about fixtures A
the as between landlord and tenant. These are in a class by them- ‘1
selves and rest very much upon considerations which are not present i
g here.  Also, though there is perhaps some analogy between the i
ies relation of the parties under the contract now in question and §
iff, the relation between mortgagor and mortgagee, I doubt ‘if the i
o, analogy is so complete as to justify the adoption of precedents in H
cases in which mortgagors and mortgagees were concerned. §
od We have here a contract to convey land which was carried out. A ’

The consideration was to be the performance by the transferee

e r—c
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both before and after the transfer of certain acts upon the L,
Though the agreement does not expressly so stipulate, there s,
I think, in law, a right in the transferor to recover damages (o
the breach on the part of the transferee of the covenants to
these things. The parties were, however, not content to leave iy
transferor merely to this remedy. They proceeded to stipulite
that, upon default by the transferee in the performance of his
covenants, he would re-convey the land with all buildings 1
fixtures thereon to the transferor or grantor.

It does seem to me that we have here, in substance, a stipulation
for a forfeiture or penalty. It may be that, if the defendant had
not done anything even towards completing the building, 1|
taken no steps at all to do anything in performance of his covenants
that the stipulation ought to be considered as an intended rescis-

sion of his contract, leaving the parties as they were before. Dut,
where the parties contemplated the expenditure of large s« of
money by the grantee, first, in completing the building, which
would undoubtedly become part of the realty, and in affixing
thereto apparatus, much of which also would undoubtedly hecone
part of the realty, and then proceeded to speak of what would
happen in case of o default, say, during 1916, in keeping the
complement of 25 men continuously employed, and to spee

that, upon such default, not merely what the grantee had got fron
the grantor, but a great deal of very valuable property which
had put there at his own very large expense, should be given up
by him to the grantor—ecan it truly be considered that this is any-
thing else but a forfeiture or a penalty imposed in the place of the
ordinary damages recoverable for a breach of covenant? To ke
it perhaps more clear, suppose the case that the contract had been
fulfilled to the letter for 2 years and 11 months and that just one
month before the end of the 3 years, which may be termed the
probation period, the defendant made clear default and did not
keep up any longer a “good and substantial going concern™ and
gave no “reasonable excuse” therefor, but nevertheless had wdded
to the land buildings very many thousand dollars in value. Would
we not say that this was a true case of forfeiture or penalty if,
instead of merely suing for damages for breach of the covenant
to operate the plant continuously (which meant no doubt for 3
years, in view of the wording of the agreement), the plaintifi had
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sued for a return and re-conveyance of the whole land and plant,
without either proving or even alleging any damages as a conse-
quence of the default?

On the other hand, we may perhaps view the contract as one
providing a condition subsequent or for a defeasance of the grant.
The transfer was given upon completion of the building but until
the full 3 years had elapsed without default in the covenants
payment of the consideration for the transfer was not to be con-
sidered as complete, and if it was never made complete, then the
land was to revert. If everything had been in a deed of grant,
covenants and.all, it would look like a defeasance clause. But
with a simple transfer given under the Land Titles Aet, and with a
separate document containing the covenants and conditions it is
more difficult to view the matter in that light.

I am not suggesting at all that it is a case for the exercise by
the court of its right to relieve against penalties and forfeitures,
for there was no suggestion of such a course made at the trial or
ny upon the appeal. But it seems to me necessary to discover the
true nature of the contract, to understand at least its general
character (for it is neither a lease nor a mortgage) in order to
proceed to the interpretation of the crucial word “fixtures’ and
to give the contract its right legal effect.

Certainly, if events had taken one of the turns which I have
above suggested, the court would have been face to face with a
fairly plain case for relieving against a forfeiture. The obligations
placed upon the defendant in case of a default cannot, it seens to
me, be looked upon as merely liquidated damages. 1t was quite
uncertain what amount of valnable machinery the defendant would
have upon the site at any given time. It might have $20,000
worth or $100,000 worth. There was nothing “liquidated’” about
that.

Of course, it can be put this way. The plaintiff said in effect
to the defendant: “You covenant to do these certain things which
will incidentally be of great benefit to us in an extraneous way.
For any default for which you have a reasonable excuse yvou will
not suffer. But if you make default without any reasonable excuse
vou know precisely what you must do.  You must return the land
and all the buildings and fixtures thereon to us.” The defendant
agreed to do this with its eyes open.
15—43 p.L.R.
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Well, we may call that a provision for a forfeiture or a penalty
or we may not. Certainly it was. a definite substitution for the
ordinarily recoverable damages for a breach of covenants of son-
thing else which was agreed to be done, i.e., the surrender of vilu-
able property. The recoverable damaees might have included the
original value of the land and of the partially erected building
which the plaintiff had lost, plus what it had lost in value in its
surrounding lots owing to the default. The latter would be vory
uncertain and this no doubt was the reason for the substitution of
something which was supposed to be very definite in place of general
damages. It was at least supposed to be quite definite in sul-
stance though it could not have been supposed to be definite
value.

But the trouble is it has nol turned out to be very definite
even in substance and this because of the uncertainty in th
meaning intended by the word “fixtures.”

The peculiarity of the contract is that the grosser the default
the less the defendant would suffer. 1If it did absolutely nothing
it would lose nothing, only giving back what it gave nothing for
But the more it did in fulfilment of its contract, at least up to a
certain point, the more it would suffer if it, after all, made a defanit

In view of the unusual characteristics of the contract to which
I have referred, it is my opinion that the court ought to adopt a
strict interpretation of its terms, and that the defendant ought
not to be taken as having agreed to surrender any part of its
property which it is not absolutely clear that it had agreed to
surrender.

If T am right in my suggestion that there was a forfeiture
provided for, then forfeiture is a matter stricti juris, as stated by
Holroyd, J., in Doe d. Lloyd v. Powell (1826), 5 B. & (. 308, 105
E.R. 115. The condition upon which the forfeiture was to happen
must be shewn to have strictly and clearly occurred, and the
property claimed must be strietly shewn to have been specified in
and covered by the words of the contract.

And even if the terms “forfeiture” or “penalty’ are not
properly applicable, it seems to me that, in any case, in such 2
contract as this, with a provision for the re-conveyance of very
raluable property as compensation for a default in a covenant no
property should be taken as within it unless it is beyond all doubt
covered by it.
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The word “fixtures' is, as we all know, used in different senses.

The machines in question here were some of them placed on
cement foundations into which bolts were inserted and cemented
with the heads down and with the other ends passing through iron
footings on the machines and fastened with serewed nuts,  Others
were werely attached to the wooden floors with serewnails. No
harm whatever could be done to the building by their removal.
If it had been a ease of landlord and tenant they would have come
within the common term “trade fixtures,” which a tenant may
remove at any time during the term. If it had been a case of
mortgagee and mortgagor, the mortgagee, after tuking possession,
would have been able to claim them even as against lien-holders,
at least according to the decisions in Hobson v. Gorringe, [1897]
1 Ch. 182, and Reynolds v. Ashby, [1904] A.C'. 466. It will be
observed, however, that, in both of these cases, the fact that the
mortgagee had taken possession under his mortgage was considered
as o material point, and what the result would have been if there
had been no possession is not very clear. The matter was also
fully discussed by the English Court of Appeal in Ellis v. Glover &
Hobson, [1908] 1 K.B. 388. In that case, the mortgagee sueceeded
cven without having taken possession, but much reliance was
placed on a special covenant by the mortgagor not to remove
without consent. For myself, I would be inclined to share the
views there expressed by Fletcher Moulton, L.J., who hesitated
even in face of the special covenant. There does not appear to be
any recent decision on the general question beyond the Court of
Appeal except Reynolds v. Ashby, supra, and there possession had
been taken.

It was in this latter case that Lord Lindley used the following
language (p. 473):—

My lords, I do not profess to be able to reconcile ull the cases on fixtures,
still less all that has been said about them. In dealing with them attention
must be paid not only to the nature of the thing and to the mode of attachment,
but to the eircumstances under which it was attached, the purpose to be
served, and last, but not least, to the position of the rival claimants to the things
in dispute.

The last consideration, here mentioned, is that which has
appealed to me as deserving of very great attention, and it is for
this reason that I have entered into the foregoing discussion of
the facts of the case, and the possible result of the terns of the
agreement in different contingencies a8 applied o those facts.
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There is no doubt that the court has made exceptions to th
old rule, quicquid plantatur solo, solo cedit. See Re Hulse, [1905]
1 Ch. 406, at 411.  And in this case which is, so far as I ean discover,
quite new in its facts I think for the reasons I have given un
exception should also be made. This, of course, would only carry
us 80 far as to say that a covenant to re-convey the land without
more ought not to cover the machines in question. But, I think
also for the reasons given that, in interpreting the covenant even
with the words “buildings and fixtures,” the latter word ought 1
be read in the restricted sense of “landlord’s fixtures.”

The fact that this would not be giving the covenant any efice
which it would not have had if the word “fixtures' had not heen
there, should not, it seems to me, seriously concern us. In Bishop
v. Elliott (1855), 11 Exch. 113, at 122,156 E.R. 766, at 770, Coleridg
J., deliveriag a judgment for the Exchequer Chamber, said:

It may be that by so construing the covenant we reduce its operation (o
that merely which the general rule of law would have given the landlord with-
out it. But this is an argument of little weight. No modern lease probably
will be found which does not contain covenants merely to secure rights sub-
gisting at common law but perhaps more easily enforced by the help of au
express contract.

I have also found the same view expressed in a later casc to
which I am now unable to refer. So in the case of the present cove-
nant I think it is no objection to a restrictive interpretation of th
word that it leaves the meaning the same as it would have been
without it, because it may have been inserted simply to make it
clear that real fixtures, generally looked upon indeed as part of o
building, such as shafting or pipes or boilers built into or attached to
the walls and capable of being used in any kind of manufacturing,
but, with regard to which a possible doubt might arise, were in-
tended to be included. In the case of Lambourn v. MeLellan,
[1903] 2 Ch. 268, again, of course, a case of landlord and tenant,
there was a covenant by the tenant to yield up the premises
together with all doors . . . hearths . . . and all other erections
buildings, improvements, fixtures and things which are now or which at any
time during the said term hereby granted shall be fixed fastened or helong to
the demised premises. The word “machinery,” as the court
pointed out, was not used. The Court of Appeal held that certain
machines, which, for the purpose of his business, the tenant had
fastened to the floor by serews or nails, passed to the trustec in
bankruptey of the tenant and not to the landlord.
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It is worthy Qf observation, also, I think, that in the mortgage
cases the mortgagee held only a security for the repayment of a
debt, while here the property is claimed absolutely and finally as
the consequence of a default in performance of a covenant, not to
pay money, but to do certain acts.

U'pon the whole, therefore, I am of opinion that the machines
here in question should not be considered as being covered by the
word “fixtures” and that the defendant was not bound to sur-
render them. 1 prefer to place my judgment upon this ground,
although I am also much inclined to agree that there was no real
default in any case.

The appeal should, therefore, be allowed with costs and the
judgment below modified so as to direct a re-conveyance of the
land. Inasmuch as the defendant offered to do chis in its defence,
I think the plaintiff should have costs only up to that stage, and
that the defendant should have the subsequent costs, including
those of the trial.

Beck, J.:—This action is founded on a contract in writing.
It is dated January 16, 1915,

In consideration of covenants contained in the contract on the
part of the Harvester Company the Kokomo Company agreed to
convey to the Harvester Company a 10-acre plot of land in the
City of Medicine Hat, together with a partially constructed
building thereon.  In consideration of the transfer the Harvester
Company agreed: (1) To complete the building by March 26,
1915; (2) To equip the building as a factory for the manufacture of
farm machinery and municipal supplies; (3) To use the land for
idustrial purposes only; (4) To commence operating the factory
by May 1, 1915, and to continue operating continuously; (5) To
employ «t the commencement of operations at least 6 men and to
continue to employ at least 6 men for the remainder of the year
1915; (6) To employ continuously during the year 1916, at least
25 wen, provided that conditions are such as to warrant such
increase in the number of men employed; (7) To ereet all further
and other buildings in connection with the local branch of the
company on the said site.

Provided that in default in respect of any of the foregoing
seven items or in default of the Harvester Company being able to
sutisfy certain arbitrators, whose appointment was provided for
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in certain events, that on March 26, 1918, the factory is a gool
and substantial going concern, the Harvester Company agreed to
transfer the site free of incumbrance together with all buildings
and fixtures thereon to the Kokomo Company.

Provided that it shall not be deemed a breach of any of the
clauses or covenants in the agreement if the Harvester Compuny
can shew reasonable cause.

The Kokomo Company agreed that if the covenants on the prt
of the Harvester Company were performed it would, on March 26,
1918, cause to be withdrawn the caveat placed by it upon the land.

The caveat was not in fact placed against the land owing to
the Kokomo Company yielding to the representations of the
Harvester Company that its credit would be affected therely.
What the terms of the proposed caveat were, or were intended to
be, does not appear, but presumably it would in effect embody the
terms of the agreement and elaim an interest under it, whatever
that interest might turn out to be in the circumstances arising in
the future.

The clause relating to the caveat would seem to disclose an
intention that if the Harvester Company fulfilled the terms of the
agrecment up to March 26, 1918, that is, for 3 years following the
date fixed for the commencement of the completion of the sgrce-
ment, it would be discharged from all obligation in the future, its
business interests being thought to be a sufficient guaranty of its
continuing the operation of the factory under any eircumstances in
which it would be fair and reasonable to expect it to continue.

The building was completed, but, by mutual agreement
machinery for the mapufacture of shells was installed instead of
the class of machinery originally contemplated. The factory wos
put into operation, and, while being operated, a fire occurred —in
April, 1916—destroying, practically, the building and damaging
the machinery and appliances. No default had been made by the
Harvester Company up to the time of the fire.

Ultimately, a number of machines were taken from the debris,
repaired and placed in another building. I'rom the evidenee it
would appear that the cost of extricating and repairing was about
$2,500, the time occupied being about 6 weeks. The value put on
them was about $5,000. The trial judge fixed their net value at
£2,000, giving the plaintiff company judgment for that amount and
costs. The defendant appealed.
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In my view, the case is not one of non-compliance with the
agreement, but of an accident creating an impossibility of per-
formance and thus operating, by virtue of an implied condition,
a termination of the contract with respeet to both parties to it—
leaving them both in the position in which the accident found them;
with this addition, that the circumstances, including the contract
itself, shew that the consideration for the conveyance to the
defendant company has failed, entitling the plaintiffi company, on
the basis of a resulting trust, to a re-conveyance of the same property
as was the subject of the first conveyance, so far as it still remains.

The case, clearly to my mind, comes within the proposition
laid down in 7 Hals. tit. “Contract,” p. 430, and supported by
ample authority. “Where it appears from the nature of the
contract and the surrounding circumstances that the parties' have
contracted on the basis that some specified thing, without which
the contract eannot be fulfilled, will continue toexist . . . the
contract, though in terms absolute, is to be construed us being
subjeet to an implied condition, that if before breach performunce
becomes impossible without default of either party, and owing to
circunstances which were not contemplated when the contract
was made, the parties are to be excused from further performance.”

Appleby v. Myers (1867), L.R. 2 C.P. 651, is a suitable instance:
In this case the plaintiffs contracted to erect certain machinery
on the defendant’s premises at specified prices for particular por-
tions and to keep it in repair for two years—the price to be paid
upon completion of the whole. After some portions of the work
had been finished, and others were in the course of conpletion, the
premises, with all the machinery and materials thereon, were
destroyed by an accidental fire. It was held that both parties
were excused from the further performance of the contract; but
that the plaintiffs were not entitled to sue in respect of those
portions of the work which had been completed, whether the
materials used had become the property of the defendant or not.

Blackburn, J., in the course of giving the judgment of the
court, said: “We think that where, as in the present case, the
premises are destroyed by fire without fault on either side, it is a
misfortune equally affecting both parties; excusing both from
further performance of the contract but giving a cause of action
toneither.”
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I insert here a case which I have found since these reasons
were written, decided by the House of Lords, Metropolitan W uty
Board v. Dick, Kerr & Co., [1918] A.C. 119, which clarifies the lqw
upon the foregoing proposition and confirms the opinion I have
expressed.

For the propoesition that there is a resulting trust of the lund
because the purpose of the conveyance has failed there is, I think,
ample authority. I refer to the text and the cases cited in 13 Huls,
tit. “Equity,” 28 Hals. tit. “Trusts,” pp. 49, 52, 54. At p. 54 it
is said: “Where property is purchased in the name or transferred
into the possession of a person ostensibly for his own use, hut
really to effect or assist a purpose which is never carried out, there
is a resulting trust of it for the purchaser or transferor, and he can
make good his claim to it even if the purchase or transfer was made
for the fraudulent purpose of evading the law.”

The case of Wilson v. Church (1879), 13 Ch. D. 1, affirmed
by the House of Lords sub. nom. National Bolivian Navigation v.
Wilson (1880), 5 App. Cas. 176, lays down the same principle
The case is the one which was made the ground of decision in
Royal Bank v. The King, [1913] A.C. 283, 9 D.L.R. 337. In the

Iatter case the principle is stated as follows at p. 344:-

It is a well established principle of the English common law that when
money has been received by one person which in justice and equity belongs to
another under circumstances which render the receipt of it a receipt by the
defendant to the use of the plaintiff, the latter may recover as for money had
and received to his use.

The principle indicated cannot be confined to money. The
case is one of a particular application of the well settled principle
that failure of consideration entitles the grantor to a restitutio.

I see no reason why the exoneration of the parties from their
contract, by reason of the accident, should carry with it any
greater burden than to restore to the grantors so much of the
property received from the grantors as the accident has left
remaining. It is to that only that the resulting trust applies, see
Re Trusts of the Abbott Fund; Smith v. Abbott, [1900] 2 Ch. 326.
In this view, the plaintiff company was entitled to a re-conveyance
of the land. The defendant company by the statement of defence
offered to re-convey.

In the result, therefore, I would allow the defendants’ appeal
with costs and direct the defendants to give a re-conveyvance
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Sons of the land as it now stands free of incumbrance, but I would order
ater the defendant company to pay the costs of the action up to the
law statement of defence and the plaintiff to pay the costs subsequent Kosono
wuve thereto. INVEST-

R s 9 2 + MENT
Hy~xpman, J.:—This is an appeal from the decision of Walsh, J., Co.

Land who gave judgment in favour of the plaintiff for a re-conveyance of =

. DomiNioN
iink, the land in question and for the sum of $2,000 damages. llu«(x:mn:n
- . . . 0.
Tals. The essential facts are that the plaintiffs were the owners of a i
Mt certain parcel of land, 10 acres in area, being part of legal sub- yrdmand.

rred division 4 of section 19, tp. 12, r. 5, west of the 4th m., in or near
but the City of Medicine Hat. Upon the land there was a building
here partially constructed. On January 16, 1915, the parties entered
can into a properly executed agreement whereby, in consideration of

ade certain covenants, later referred to, to be performed by the defend-
ant company, the plaintiff agreed to convey in fee simple free from
ned encumbrances the said land together with the partially constructed

. building thereon.

ple As consideration for the agreement by the plaintiff to transfer
1in the lands in question the defendant company covenanted to do the
the following things: (See judgment of Beck, J.).

It was further provided that in default of any of the covenants
ihen under the said clauses 1 to 7 inclusive, or in default of the defendant
:;: company being able to satisfy the arbitrators thereinafter men-
had tioned that on March 26, 1918, the factory is a good and sub-

stantial going concern, the defendant covenanted and agreed to
I'he re-transfer the said lands free of encumbrances and all buildings
iple and fixtures thereon.
2 The building was duly completed and the title to the land was
weir transferred to the defendant in May, 1915.
wny Clause 2 of the agreement, above recited, is to the effect that
the the building was to be equipped as a factory for the manufacture of
left farm machinery and municipal supplies. However, about the time
see of the completion of the building the defendant company obtained
26. an order for the manufacture of munition shells and, in consequence,
nee with the knowledge and consent of the plaintiff company purchased

nee and installed a considerable quantity of machinery suitable for
such purposes and continued the manufacture of shells under
cal various contracts until the month of April, 1916, when the building

10e was destroyed by fire and the contents seriously damaged. The
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structure was not rebuilt, but the damaged machinery was remov|
from the ruins by the defendant who had it repaired and later «1
up in another building in Medicine Hat (not on the 10 acres iy
question), and about September 1, 1916, work was recommenced
on the shell contracts and continued there until about November 1,
following, when, as the result of some transactions, the machiner,
was transferred to and became the property of the Canadiun
Western Foundry and Machine Co. Ltd.

The trial judge found that
the defendant removed the remains of the machinery from the property witl,
1 think, the knowledge and consent of the plaintiff, and expended upon repuirs
upon it a very large sum of money. I think it was within the contemplation
of the parties when that was done that this stuff would not be returned to this
property and I do not think the plaintiff can recover more than the value of
this plant as it was left after the fire.

The plaintiff's claim is for, (1) reconveyance of the lund
question, and (2) delivery of the machinery thereon at the dute of
the fire, or, in the alternative, damages.

In view of the willingness of the defendant, expressed ot il
before the trial, to re-convey the lands to the plaintiff, it will not
be necessary to deal with that phase of the case and the judgnion
in that respect must stand.

The difficulty arises over the damages awarded in respect o the
mwachinery.

Whether or not the special shell-making machinery, under th
circumstances of this case, can be considered as fixtures is open to
much doubt, and I am inclined to agree with Stuart, J.. that 1t
should not be so considered.

But apart from that feature, the fact is clear that the plaintifi
knowingly permitted the defendant company to depart from the
strict performance of the contract, and took no exception, what-
ever, to what they did under it, but apparently were entirely
satisfied with what was done. The evidence of Frank Bending
president of the plaintiff company, is conclusive on thiz point.

His evidence is as follows:—

Q. And at the time of the fire they were manufacturing shells? A. Yes,
sir. Q. And the Kokomo Investment Co., Ltd., were quite satisfied with what
the defendant company was doing at that time? A. At that time, before the
fire, yes. Q. There had not been any breach of their contract at the time by
the fire? A. No, not that I can think of just now.

The plaintiff does not contend that the defendant was in any
way responsible for the fire which occurred, and hence I take it
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that this event cannot in any way be regarded as a breach of this
contract. Therefore, it seems to me that, in the absence of some
breach, the plaintiffs would have no right to demand the delivery
to them of the machinery. But even if I am incorrect in this
(assuming that the machinery in question were “fixtures” within
the meaning of the agreement) it seems to me their permission to
the defendant company to remove the damaged machinery would
operate as a waiver by them of any right to it. The agreement, if
strictly construed, I think, means that the defendant will re-convey
the lands and such buildings and machinery as may be thereon at
the time of the breach. 1t is clear that no breach had been declared or
charged up to the date of the fire or removal and if the fixtures were
removed, especially with the consent of the plaintiff, before default,
I am of opinion that the plaintiff cannot, under the circumstances
of this case, now properly claim them. In the absence of a pro-
vision to the contrary, I think, before any breach, the defendant
would undoubtedly have the absolute right to remove fixtures at
vill whether it was intended to substitute others for them or not,
and it cannot be said that on a subsequent breaeh plaintiffs could
claim any right in such removed articles.

That there was a waiver as to non-observance of the elauses
governing operations for the first year, I think there can be no
doubt. The plaintiffs were fully aware of everything which was
done, &

nd the president, in his evidence, soyvs there was no eause of
complaint up to the time of the fire.

In Darnley v. London, Chatham and Dover R. Co. (1867), L.R.2
H.L. 43, at 60, Lord Cranworth said:—

Wken parties who have bound themselves by a written agreement depart
from what has been so agreed on in writing and adopt some other line of
conduet it is incumbent on the party insisting on and endeavouring to enforce
a substituted verbal agreement to shew, not merely what he understood to be
the new terms on which the parties were proceeding, but also that the other
purty had the same understanding, that both parties were proceeding on a
new agreement, the terms of which they both understood.

| think the rule, in the circumstances of this case, is sub-
stantially complied with.

Being of opinion, therefore, that at the time of the removal of
the machinery in question, there was no breach of which the
plaintifis could, or at any rate did, take advantage, I think the
plaintiffs’ claim for damages must fail. I would, therefore, allow
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the appeal as to the verdict for $2,000 damages—the judgr oy
with regard to the land to stand. 1 agree with my brother D¢
as to the disposition of the costs. Appeal allowed,

EVANS v. CORPORATION OF RICHMOND.

British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., and Mo
McPhillips and Hf:rla JJ.A. Oclober 1, 1918.

1. JunGMENT (§ [-—30)—JOINT NEGLIGENCE CHARGED—ONE PARTY NOT LI 11}
—JUDGMENT AGAINST THE ONE REMAINING.

The fact that an action of j nt negligence has been brought uguinst
two defendants, and one has roven to be not liable is no reasor
why judgment cannot be munlu a8 against the one remaining.

2. NEGLIGENCE (§ 1 C—49)—DRAWBRIDGE—SITUATION DANGEROUS— | 11\isy
BARRIER ACROSS BRIDGE—LIABILITY OF CORPORATION FOR DAMAGES
Ntuua:m E OF DRIVER OF MOTOR—PASSENGER NOT CHARGEABLE

WITH DRIVER'S NEGLIGENCE.

A corporation which, by the situation of a drawbridge, the approach
thereto, and a flimsy barrier accross the bridge when open, maukes sucl
bridge a trap for the unwary and an invitation to accident is liable for
damages, due to a jitney breaking through the barrier and plunging into
the river, notwithstanding that the highway was known to the driver
and that he was reckless nnd disregarded tine danger.

The negligence of the driver was not chargeable to a passenger it
the car so as to prevent recovery although if the action had been brought
by the representatives of the driver the question of contributory negli-
gence would have arisen.

3. TriaL (§ 11 B—46)—NEGLIGENCE—EVIDENCE SUFFICIENT TO GO TO JUIy
DisTURBING VERDICT—ERROR IN LAW—FAMiLIES CoMPENSATION
Acr. (B.C.)

Ifin nnmuon under the Families Compensation Aet (B.C.), the finding
of the jury is that there was negligence, and if upon the facts there was
evidence sufficient to admit of the question being passed upon by it,
the verdict will not be disturbed unless some error in law hus faken

AprpEAL from the judgment of Clement, J.  Affirmed.

Joseph Martin, K.C'., for appellant.

A. D. Taylor, K. C., for respondent.

Macoonawp, C. J. A. (dissenting) :—1 am-of the opinion that
no negligence has been proven against the appellants, and that,
therefore, the appeal should be allowed.

This being so, it becomes unnecessary to consider the other
questions involved in the appeal. The driver of the car had driven
a jitney on the highway crossing this bridge daily for a period of
3 years. He was, therefore, well acquainted with the draw, the
light and the gates. The lantern suspended above the centre of
the bridge shed a red light down the highway when the bridge was
closed to highway traffic which could be seen, by persons approach-
ing the bridge, at a distance of 2 or 3 miles. The light wasa
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Lemt single light in a lantern having red and green lenses.  The lantern

Boe served for the highway as well as for navigation,

I When the bridge was swung open to navigation the red lenses  gyans
faced the highway and the green the water.  When the span was (,“n:',-um_
open o highway traffic the green lenses faced the highway and TION
the reds the water. In addition to the light there were gates on "“,l::c“'
the highway some distance back from the span which were closed .

Aot when the bridge was closed to highway traffic.

7 On the evening in question, the gates were closed. The

P span was open to navigation and the red light was shining

e down the highway. Some time before the jitney reached the

AGES bridge the red light faced the highway.  Notwithstanding

et this fact, the driver drove on heedlessly, crashed through the

‘*""':‘ closed gates, and plunged his car into the river, causing
ueh
Ny the death of the passenger whom the respondent represents.

l'\'l"‘ If the action had been brought by the representative of the driver,
who was also killed, contributory negligence would have been

;:L,f"; a complete defence. That may not be a defence to the action
regli- of this respondent, since the person whom he represents muy not
RY have been negligent or guilty of want of care inthe premises. But,
a0 be that as it may, unless it can be said that the defendants were
ding negligent, and that that negligence caused the disaster, the ques-

LW
vy,
uken

tion of contributory negligence does not arise.

It was argued that the system of warning adopted by the
lighting of the bridge in the manner above specified would not be
effective while the bridge was being swung open or was being
closed.  This may be quite true, and had the span been in course
of turning while the jitney was approaching the bridge, the jury
must have considered that circumstance, but when the evidence
is clear and uncontradicted that the jitney was a long distance
away when the span was being turned, and that the light was in

hat
hat,

her position for a considerable time before the vehicle eame to the
ven span, or even to the approach to the bridge, the defect suggested
Lol can have no bearing upon the case. To suceeed, the respondent
the

would have to prove, not a negligent system of warning under

all conditions, but that the system was negligently insufficient to
meet the eircumstances of this case. I would allow the appeal.
Mawtin, J. A., dismissed the appeal.

S .avn..‘wmwmﬁc
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McPuiuues, J. A.:—The action was one brought under tl
provisions of the Families Compensation Act. The deceased,
Anne Evans, who was a passenger in an automobile fell into tle
Fraser River and was drowned owing to the draw of the Frise
Avenue Bridge being open at the time the automobile reachol
the bridge, the driver thereof being evidently unable to check
the way of the automobile. The action was brought for 1}y
benefit of the husband and children of the deceased. The verdiet
of the special jury was a general verdict, finding the defendants,
a8 well as the driver of the automobile, negligent. The actioy
was not brought against the driver of the automobile, and tly
finding of negligence against him may be disregarded, unless it
can be said that his negligence disentitles the plaintiffs to succeed,
and no contention of that kind would appear to be advanced,
the point is not taken in the notice of appeal, nor is it tenable upon
the facts. The appellants must be held bound by the course of
the trial and when the jury brought in their verdict no exception
was taken that admits of any question arising upon this point
at this stage. The general verdict, as found by the special jury,
specifically finds that the defendants, both the corporations, were
guilty of negligence. Upon motion made for judgment by the
plaintiff upon the findings of the jury, the Corporation of the Dis
trict of South Vancouver was dismissed from the action, it appear-
ing that the bridge in question was not within its corporate juris-
diction, and the agreement as between the defendants for the cost
and maintenance of the bridge was of no force and effect. owing
to the necessary provisions for the change of boundaries us pro-
vided for in the South Vancouver City Incorporation Act (Statutes
of B.C'. 1910) not having in pursuance thereof been brought into
effect: and there is no cross-appeal upon the part of the plaintifis
asking judgment to be entered against the Corporation of the
District of South Vancouver. So that that corporation may be
dismissed from consideration, save that the appellants contend
that the action, as launched, was one of joint negligence as against
both corporations, and that no judgment can now be maintained
as against the one remaining, namely, the Corporation of the
Township of Richmond. Any such contention, in my opinion,
is without force. The negligence found is negligence ns against
both, and if sustainable as against the Corporation of the Town-
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ship of Richmond, that the Corporation of the District of South
Vancouver has escaped liability is no effective answer nor does
it dispose of the liability that the verdict imposes upon the Cor-
poration of the Township of Richmond. (8ee Bullock v. L.G.0. Co.,
(1907) 1 K.B.204.) Considerable argument has been addressed to
the point that it has not been sufficiently shown that the bridge
in question and the place of accident were within the corporate
limits or within the jurisdiction of the Corporation of the Township
of Richmond. In my opinion, this defence is not open upon the
pleadings, and if I were wrong in this, the evidence, in my opinion,
is sufficient to establish that the scene of the accident was within
the corporation limits.  Further, the course of the trial and the
defence generally throughout was not that the bridge was not
within the corporate limits, that it was not the bridge of the Cor-
poration of the Township of Richmond, but that it was main-
tained and operated in a proper manner and without negligence,
and that the negligence was the negligence of the plaintifis or the
negligence of the driver of the automobile, which negligence the
plaintifis were chargeable with and thereby were disentitled to
recover, that in any case the draw of the bridge was open at the
time, and open at a time with such safeguards as to lights and
barriers, that the Corporation of the Township of Richmond should
be excused from all liability, that the causation of the accident
was alone the negligence of the driver of the automobile, it being
driven at an immoderate rate of speed without proper and suffi-
cient brakes and without notice being taken of the red light and
gates, and the bridge tender’s signals. All these defences were
passe upon by the special jury, and evidence was led to support
the contention that the Corporation of the Township of Richmond
was without negligence, but notwithstanding this, the finding is
that negligence was present and if it be that upon the facts there
was evidence sufficient to admit of the question being passed upon
by the tribunal called upon to try the issues, the verdict must

stund, unless some error in law has taken place. Counsel for the
appellant has attempted to submit that it is a case of no evidence

whatever, and that it was not a case which reasonably should

have been submitted to a jury. With deference, no such'prope-

sition is capable of being established. The evidence is of cogent

nature, well demonstrating that the situation of the bridge, the
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approach thereto, and the flimsy barrier some 20 ft. only from tl,
draw, i.e., the open space was a veritable trap for the unwary, in
fact, it may reasonably be said that it was an invitation to accident,
In these days of modern conditions, and within a short distunc:
of the (“ity of New Westminster, it would not seem unreason: bl
to expect that better conditions should have existed to safeguar
the lives of the travelling public. It is impossible for the corpor:-
tion to shelter itself behind the fact that all this inadequacy o
provision against danger to the travelling public upon the high-
way was known to the driver of the automobile, well known to
him, and that he was reckless and regardless of the danger,
whether that be the fact or not. There is no evidence whatever
that the deceased lady was at all acquainted with the facts us
they are alleged to have been known to the driver of the automo-
bile. The extent of the knowledge of the deceased lady was apparent-
ly not more than could be gathered by a person of intelligence, o
passenger as she was in the automobile, and certainly there was no
apparent or reasonable warning that the automobile was approach-
ing a bridge swung out of its normal position, leaving a gap in the
highway.

It would appear that the lights in use were lights maintaine!
in respect to the marine regulations and for the guidance of muri-
ners, and cannot be held to be any guide or warning to users of the
highway. In short, it may, upon all the facts, be stated that
there was no reasonable or proper safeguard or warning to the
travelling public upon the highway, and the opening of the draw
without proper safeguards constituted misfeasance. Were it
merely non-repair of the bridge, unquestionably there would be
no right of action, (Pictou v. Geldert, [1893] A.C. 524: Maguire
v. Liverpool, [1905] 1 K.B. 767; see however City of Vancourer v.
McPhalen (1911), 45 Can. S.C.R. 194. The editor of the Cana-
dian Municipal Manual, Sir William R. Meredith, ('.J.0.,
said relative to the above case, at p. 603 of his monumental
work, that: “In the opinions of the Judges of the Supreme Court
all the most important cases bearing upon the question in issue
are collated and reviewed”—and 1 would in particular refer to
what Duff, J., said at pp. 209-11, 213-14), in that there is no
express provision in British Columbia imposing a liability upon
a municipality for negleet to keep its highways and bridges in
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repair and safe for the public in their rightful user of the same—
liahility is confined to such only as is imposed by the common law.
But when we have the active interference with the bridge, i.e.,
the swinging of the bridge, and the ereation of a dangerous chasm,
an open trap, unquestionably we have misfeasance proved.
Considerable argument was addressed to the question of
whether the Corporation of the Township of Richmond could be
said to have been legally responsible in any way in connection
with the bridge, whether it was a bridge within its municipal
houndaries, whether there had been the exercise of ownership or
management thereof, and with respect to all these questions, in
my opinion, the Corporation of the Township of Richmond is,
upon the facts, conclusively proved to have been in possession of
the bridge, exercised the rights of ownership thereof, and it is
situate within its municipal boundaries. No contention to the
contrary is open upon the pleadings, or capable of being success-
fully advanced upon the facts as proved at the trial.  In passing
upon this point, one fact alone demonstrates that this bridge is
the bridge of the Corporation of the Township of Richmond,
namely, the Richmond Loan by-law, 1907, whereby an arrange-
ment was made between the corporation and the government
of the Province of British Columbia to reconstruct the bridge in
question at the point where situate and where the aceident took
place—the total cost being $40,000—the government contributing
$20,000 and the corporation $20,000, the government engineer
supervising the work. The bridge was constructed, taken over by
the corporation, and its quota of the cost of construction was
duly paid, and thereafter the bridge was under the control and
management of the corporation, and that was the position of mat-
ters at the time of the accident. That the corporation was in
possession of the bridge is clear beyond question, and a bridge
tender was employed, and in charge of the bridge, an employee
of the corporation. The evidence of Stephen, the clerk of the cor-
poration, is conclusive upon this point. (And see s. 54 (186) and
8. 332, Municipal Act, c. 524, 4 Geo. V., B.C. (1914)). The facts
a8 proved in Vietoria Corporation v. Patterson, [1899] A.C'. 615,
68 LJ. P.C. 128, and the law as there defined, imposing liahility
upon the City of Vietoria, can be relied upon in the determination
16—43 p.L.R.
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of this appeal, and what the Earl of Halsbury, L.C., said, is par-
ticularly applicable to this present appeal:—

The headnote of the Patterson case, 68 L.J.P.C. 128, reads s
follows:—

Where a statute enacts that roads and bridges are originally vested in the
pmvmee, but may be ndop(ed by a municipality—no special form of adoption,

, being y—acts done and authority exercised by a corpor.tion
in mpect of such roads and bridges will, in the absence of evidence to the con-
trary, be taken as proof of adoption.

A bridge within the limits of the appellant corporation gave way and per-
sons were drowned. The jury found that the proximate cause of the accident
was the defective condition of a beam into which, some years previously, an
officer of the corporation had bored holes. There was evidence that for a
considerable time the corporation had undertaken the care and managenent
of the bridge: Held, as matter of legal inference from the facts found, that the
corporation had adopted the bridge, and were, therefore, liable for damages in
respect of the accident.

It is true that in The City of Vancowver v. Cummings (1912),
2 D.L.R. 253, 46 Can. 8.C.R. 457, the statute law there under
consideration imposed a duty to repair, but there was also con-
sidered the liability for misfeasance, and it was there held, as in
my opinion it can be rightly held in the present case, that upon
the evidence there was a proper case for submission to the jury.

There i8 no point in the confention that the negligence of the
driver of the automobile prevents the plaintiffi's recovery in this
action. That point was set at rest by the House of Lords in The
“‘Bernina’’ (1888), 13 App. Cas. 1; also see Matthews v. London
Street Tramways Co. (1888), 58 L.J.Q.B. 12; British Columbia
Elec. R. Co. v. Loach, [1916] 1 A.C. 719,23 D.L.R. 4; and Columbia
Bithulitic v. B.C. Elec. R. Co.(1917), 37 D.L.R. 64, 55 Can. S.C.R. I.
One consideration that gives me some hesitation is whether the
verdictisin such a form as renders it unnecessary to direct a new
trial, coupling as it does the negligence of the driver with that of
the other defendants—but after some anxious consideration, I
am of the opinion that the verdict is sufficiently definite, and cer-
tainly the facts make it clear that the deceased lady was in no
way chargeable with any negligence of the driver of the automo-
bile. Beven on Negligence (3rd ed., 1908), vol. 1, at 175
In the present ease, upon the facts, unquestionably the negligence
was that of the Corporation of the Township of Richmond; it was
the negligence of those in charge of the bridge. The headnote in
the Matthews case, supra, puts the point very precisely :-
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In an action by a passenger on an omnibus, against the owners of a tram-
way ear, for compensation for injuries sustained in a collision, the direction of
the jury since the decision of the House of Lords in Mills v. Armstrong, The
“Bernina,” 13 App. Cas. 1, should be, “Was there negligence on the part of
the tramway ear driver which caused the accident? If so, it is no answer to
say that there was negligence on the part of the omnibus driver”': the plaintiff
in such a case not being disentitled to recover by reason of the negligence of
the driver of the omnibus on which he was a passenger,

The verdict is a gencral one, and that being the case, it really
becomes unnecessary to point out specifically what may be said
to have been the negligence, but it is patent that there was not
present any manner of safeguard which modern conditions can
be reasonably said to require. Many could be suggested, but it is
profitless to speculate thereon, or intimate what they might have
been. The verdict is, in itself, sufficient, being founded upon
sufficient evidence. In Newberry v. Bristol Tramway and Carriage
Co. (1912), 29 T.L.R. 177 (C.A.), at p. 179, we read:—

Now if the jury had simply given a general verdict, his Lordship Cozens-
Hardy M.R., thought they could not have interfered. But they had told the
court what they meant by their verdict.

Here we have no definition upon the part of the jury of the
precise negligence, but it can be inferred—there may be said
to have been no proper safeguard. This is a case within the
language of Hamilton, L.J. (now Lord Sumner):—

His Lordship did not think that a jury could fix a defendant with liability
for want of care without proof given or error assigned, out of their own inner
consciousness and on their own notions of the fitness of things.

Here it is understandable, with all due and proper deference to
those who may hold a ‘contrary opinion, that many safeguards
could have been provided that would most assuredly have
prevented this very appalling accident and loss of life. That
the verdict of the jury must not be lightly overthrown is shewn
by what Lord Loreburn, L.C. said in Kleinwort, Sons, and Co. v.
Dunlop Rubber'Co. (1907), 23 T.L.R. 696, at 697,

Certainly the present case was not one which could have been
withdrawn from the jury, and we find Sir Arthur Channell in The
Toronto Power Co. v. Paskwan, [1915] A.C. 734, 22 D.L.R. 340
at 344, saying:—

1t is enough to say, as both the judge who tried the case and the judges on
uappeal in the Supreme Court have said, that there was a case which coula not
have been withdrawn from the jury, anc that the jury have found against the
defendants. The judge could not have ruled that as a matter of law the answer
of the defendants was necessarily conclusive in their favour. It is unnecessary
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10 go 8o fur us Middleton, J., did in the court below and say that the jury have
come to the right conclusion. It is enough that they have come to a con-
clusion, which on the evidence is not ble. Their Lordships will
humbly advise His Majesty that the appeal should be dismissed with costs

In my opinion, the negligence found was justifiably found,
and if T am right in this conclusion, and if the facts are such as 1o
warrant but that one view, that the Corporation of the Town-
ship of Richmond was guilty of negligence, then the ecase is one
entitling the Court of Appeal to sustain the verdict and the judg-
ment entered for the plaintiffs. Even if the verdict of the jury
was for the defendants or be wanting in completeness of form o
have involved therein, as in the present case, a finding of negli-
gence against the driver of the automobile as well, it matters not
if the Court of Appeal has all the facts before it, and no other
relevant facts can be suggested as being capable of proof which
would alter the case as made out, the province and authority of
the Court of Appeal extends to the full length to give judgment
for the plaintiffs. See McPhee v. Esquimalt and Nanaimo R. (‘o
(1913), 16 D.L.R. 756, 49 Can. S.C.R. 43; also Winterbotham
v. Sibthorp, (1918) 87 L.J.K.B. 527.

In my opinion, upon a review of all the facts of the present
case, and applying the law thereto, the proper course for this
eourt to adopt is to approve and sustain the entry of judgment
for the plaintiff, and, in my opinion, that would be the proper
judgment had the finding of the jury negatived negligence upon
the part of the Corporation of the Township of Richmond. The
case is one which comes completely within the language of Lord
Loreburn, L.C., in Pagquin v. Beauclerk (1906), 75 L.J.K.B. 395
at 401, 402.

I would dismiss the appeal.

With respect to the cross-appeal, it must, in my opinion, he
dismissed. There is no jurisdiction in British Columbia such as
was relied upon and supports the judgments in Bullock v. London
General Omnibus Co., [1907] 1 K.B. 204, and Besterman v. British
Motor Cab Co., [1914] 3 K.B. 181, viz: Judicature Act, 1890, . 5
giving discretion to the court or judge over costs.

Eserts, J. A, dismissed the appeal. Appeal dismissed.
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ZAISER v. JESSKE.

Saskatchewan Court of Appeal, Sir Frederick Haultain, C.J.8., and Newlands,
Lamont and Elwood, JJ.A. Oclober 31, 1918.

Sane (J1B—5)—CoNTRACT—(GOODS NOT SPECIFIED OR ASCERTAINED—NO
PROPERTY PASSES TO BUYER TILL GOODS ASCERTAINED—SALE OF
Goons Act (Sask).

A contract for the sale of 1,200 bushels of wheat, which may be com-
plied with by the delivery of any 1,200 bushels of wheat, is not a sale of
any specific or ascertained wheat; sec. 18 of the Sale of Goods Act (Sask)
applies, and no property in the goods is transferred to the buyer, unless
and until the goods are ascertained.

ApreAL by plaintiff from the judgment at the trial in an action
for damages for the conversion by the defendant of 1,200 bushels
of wheat, payable to the plaintiff. Affirmed.

(.. H. Barr. K.C. for appellant;, J. F. Frame, K.C', for re-
spondent.

Lamont, J.A.:—On March 27, 1917, the plaintiff and defendant
executed the following document :—

G. Zaiser, Prussia, Sask., Mar. 27, 1917,

To Simpson-Hepworth Co. Ltd.,
446 Grain Exchange,
Winnipeg, Man.

I have this day sold to you 1200/00 bushels of wheat at 1.66 per bushel,
basis No. 1 Northern in store Fort William or Port Arthur, or 1.66 per bushel
net to me at Prussia on track, lower grades to apply on this contract at existing
differences or spreads on day of inspection of the cars. If any dockage, freight
on same is charged to me, or if car should be loaded under capacity, and
minimum weight charged by railroad, I agree to pay such charge.

Delivery of this grain in this contract to be made by cars being shipped
to you and actually unloaded at Fort William or Port Arthur on or before
the 31st day of May 1917, or by terminal warehouse receipts covering grain
in store Fort William or Port Arthur delivered to your office at Winnipeg
Prussia by same date.

I agree to deliver to you the bills of lading of cars shipped on this contract
us soon a8 possible after each car is loaded.

I hereby acknowledge the receipt of one dollar to bind this contract.

Dated and signed at Prussia this 27th day of March 1917,

We hereby agree to accept the above contract and terms thereto.

Witness John Zaiser, Simpson-Hepworth Co. Ltd., Per G. Zaiser, agent.

Rudolf Jesske, seller.

[The words in “italies” were crossed out.]

The document was drawn up by the plaintiff’s son in presence
of both parties,

lImmediately after the document was executed the plaintiff and
defendant walked to the bin or granary in which the defendant had
4 quantity of wheat stored, and the plaintiff says that while there

the defendant gave him the key of the bin. At the time the
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document was signed, the plaintiff did not know what bin the
defendant had. The defendant, in his statement of defence,
denies that he sold or delivered any wheat to the plaintiff.

At the trial, the plaintiff testified that the writing above set
out was not the contract entered into with the defendant, but that
the contract was a verbal one, by which he bought the wheat out-
right and reccived the key of the bin in which it was stored. Ile
explains the document by saying that the defendant wanted son.e-
thing to shew that he had sold the wheat, and he (the plaintiff)
wanted something to shew that he had purchased it, so he got his
son to draw up the document, and having no blank forms of his
own they used one belonging to the Simpson-Hepworth Co. Ltd.
At the close of the plaintifi's case the trial judge dismissed the
plaintiff's action.

The questions to be determined are: (1) does the document
above set out truly represent the contract entered into between
the parties, and (2) if so, was the delivery of the key of the hin u
delivery of the wheat therein contained to the plaintiff?

In ny opinion, the document signed and the evidenge of the
plaintifis shew conclusively that the contract was in the terns of
the document above set out. In the document, the date of delivery
—May 31, 1917—was inserted by the plaintiff’s son. It was not
part of the form. He could only have got that date from the
parties. The fact that it was written into the agreement shows
that it must have been agreed upon at the time, as, otherwise, the
son would not have known what date to insert. Again, at p. 32
of the appeal book, I find the following in the plaintiff’s evidence -

Q. You say you made & contract with the defendant? A. Yes.

Q. And you drew up or your son drew up this document, ex. A? \. Yes

Q. Did this document, ex. A, contain all that was agreed to befween
yourself and the defendant? A. Yes, I think so.

His Lordship (to witness):—Does that contract have more in it than you
agreed to? A. No, not more.

These admissions on the part of the plaintiff establish that
the contract was in the terms of the document above set out. The
contract was for 1,200 bushels of wheat. It was not for all the
wheat which the defendant had in a particular bin, estimated at
1,200 bushels. The defendant could have complied with his con-
tract by delivering any 1,200 bushels of wheat. It was, thercfore,
not a sale of any specific or ascertained wheat. That being so,
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s. 18 of the Sale of Goods Act applies. That section reads as
follows:—
18. Where there is a contract for the sale of unascertained goods no

property in the goods is transferred to the buyer unless and until the goods are
ascertained.

In 25 Hals. 167, the following is laid down:—

In particular, where the individuality of the goods depends upon their
being separated, weighed, measured, tested, or counted, or upon some other
act or thing being done in relation thereto for their ascertainment, the goods
are not ascertained until such act or thing be done.

Goods are unascertained, notwithstanding that they are to be taken from
s specific larger bulk, if the identity of the portion so to be taken is unascer-
tained.

The ascertainment of the goods does not of itsell necessarily pass the
property. It is necessary that the parties should agree that the property in
the goods, when ascertained, should pass.

fce also R. v. Tideswell, [1905) 2 K.B. 273.

To pass the property in wheat covered by the contract, the
1,200 bushels therein referred to must have been ascertained and
unconditionally appropriated to the contract. 8. 20, r. 5: Was
this ever done? The plaintiffi contends that it was; by the de-
livery to him of the key of the bin the day the contract was signed.

I am of opinion that it should not be so held. There is no
evidence as to the quantity of wheat the defendant had in the bin.
and we cannot presume that it was just 1,200 bushels. If there
were more than 1,200 bushels there, the handing over the key
could not, in any event, pass the property until 1,200 bushels had
been separated from the bulk and appropriated to the contract,
which was never done. Moreover, under the circumstances of this
case, the handing over of the key cannot, in my opinion, be taken
as conclusive of an intention to pass the property in the wheat to
the plaintiff. It is equally consistent with an intention to retain
the property therein in the defendant.

The evidence discloses that the defendant was a busy man, and
the plaintiff says, that under the arrangement which they made,
he (the plaintiff) was to load the car.

Where under the terms of a contract of sale the property in the
grain sold remains in the vendor, but the purchaser agrees that he
will put the grain on the car, the handing over to the purchaser
of the key is just as consistent with an intention merely to enable
him to take 1,200 bushels out of the bin and put it in the car as it is

with an intention to pass the property in any wheat which may
be in the bin.
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It cannot, therefore, in wy opinion, be inferred that the L
was delivered to the plaintiff as a symbolical delivery of an ascer-
tained 1,200 bushels of wheat. That being so, the property in
‘he wheat when it was sold on May 10 was in the defendant.

The wheat being the defendant’s, no action for conversion lics
against him. 1 am, therefore, of the opinion that the trial judge
was right in dismissing the plaintiff’s action.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.

Havirawy, CJS., and Enwooo, J.A., concurred with
LamonT, J.A.

Newranps, J.A.:—The appellant brought an action for con-
version against the respondent. He alleges that respondent sold
him 1,200 bushels of wheat for $1.66 per bushel, on which he paid
him $1 to bind the bargain; that the grain was delivered to him
on the day of the purchase by the delivery to him by the respondent
of the key of the bin in which the grain was stored; that, after-
wards, the respondent wrongfully converted the grain to his own
use, and he asks for damages.

At the trial, a written contract for the sale of this grain from
the respondent to appellant signed by both parties was put in.

The appellant sought to give evidence that this contract wus
not the agreement made by the parties, but was only to shew that
the respondent had sold appellant 1,200 bushels of wheat for $1.66
per bushel. As this evidence would contradiet the terms of the
written contract, the trial judge held, and I think properly, he could
not do this. The written contract, on its face, is complete. The
appellant’s evidence was not to add a term to it, but to contradict
all of its terwcs.  His statement that the written contract was only
to shew the price of the wheat is not borne out by the writing itself,
because, in the copy which the appellant retained, the clause as to
delivery is filled in, fixing the delivery for May 31, 1917, and one
of the methods of delivery by delivering terminal warchouse
receipts to appellant at his office in Prussia. The word “ Prussia”
being written over the word “Winnipeg” in the printed form.
These particulars were not filled in in copy given to respondent.

As no time is fixed for payment, the date of delivery becomes
important, as appellant could refuse to accept unless delivered in
accordance with the terms of the contract, and he would not be
liable to pay for the same until the grain was delivered to him.
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Now, although the contract specifies that the delivery is to be
made in one of two ways on or before May 31, there is nothing to
prevent the appellant from actually accepting delivery of the
grain at Prussia. This he claims to have done. This delivery,
which he claims was made to him by the respondent handing him
the key of the binin which the grain was stored, he says in one part
of his evidence was before the written contract was made out
and signed, and later he says that it was afterwards. The trial
judge having dismissed the action, he must have found, on this
contradictory evidence, that the wheat was not delivered after the
written contract was made in performance of that contract.

It was also alleged that the appellant was not the purchaser of
this wheat, but that he purchased for the Simpson-Hepworth Co.
Ltd., as their agent. The fact that this company’s name was
struck out at the beginning of the contract and the appellant’s
name inserted in its place, leads to the belief that he omitted to
strike out that name and the word “agent " at the end thereof. It
is not, however, necessary to decide this point, in view of the opin-
ion I have already expressed.

I think the appeal should be dismissed with costs.

Appeal dismissed.

JUDSON v HAINES,

Ontario .\upn me Court, Appellate Division, Maclaren, Magee and Hodgins,
JJ.A alch/ord . and Ferguson, J.A. April 16, 1918.

Avromonires (§ I111—221)—CorLusioN—EoTH  PARTIES NEGLIGENT—RES-
PONDENT NOT GUILTY OF ULTIMATI NEGLIGENCE—DISMISSAL oF
ACTION.

An action for da for i mnme- causcd by a collision between motor
vehicles is properly :gmmd where the answers of the jury indicate
that each party was to blame and there is nothing to suggest that the
respondent was guilty of ultimate negligence.

[See annotations 3!’ D.L.R. 370, 39 D.L.R. s ]

Ax appeal by the plaintiff from the judgment of RiopeLy, J.,
upon the findings of a jury, in favour of the defendant, dismissing
the action, which was brought to recover damages for injury and
loss sustained by the plaintiff by reason of a collision of his motor-
cycle with the defendant’s automobile, upon a highway, by reason
of the defendant’s negligence, as the plaintiff alleged. The
findings of the jury were in the form of answers to questions
(set out below). The jury assessed the plaintifi’s damages at
$3,500.

Zaser

v,
JESSKE.

Newlands, J.A.
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J. P. MacGregor, for appellant.

H. H. Dewart, K.C., and G. W. Mason, for respondent.

Hopains, J.A.:—The occurrence giving rise to this action was
a collision between the appellant’s motor-cycle and the respond-

. ent’s motor-car, at the corner of Bernard avenue and Spadina

road, in Toronto.

The jury were directed by the learned trial Judge to answer
questions, which they did as follows:—

““1. Has the defendant satisfied you that the occurrence was
not caused by his negligence? A. No.

“2. Did the plaintiff contribute to the occurrence by his
negligence? A. Yes.

“3. If so, in what did that negligence consist? A. Excessive

“4, Could the plaintiff, by the exercise of reasonable care,
have avoided the accident? A. Yes.

“5. If so, how? A. Driving slower.

“6. Damages, if any? A. $3,500.

“7. If you find that the negligence of the defendant caused
this accident, state fully in what the negligence consisted? (Not
answered.)

“8. Notwithstanding the negligence of the plaintiff, could the
defendant, by the exercise of reasonable care, have avoided the
accident? A. Yes.

“9. If so, how? A. By stopping his car.

“10. Notwithstanding the negligence of the defendant, could
the plaintiff, by the exercise of ordinary care, have avoided the
accident? (Not answered.)

“11. If so, how? (Not answered.)”

The appellant was going east on Bernard avenue; and, when
25 feet west of Spadina road, saw the respondent’s motor about
35 feet north of Bernard avenue, travelling south. Under the
regulations in force at that time, the respondent had the right
of way. .

The appellant put on his brakes and reduced his speed, he
says, from 15 miles an hour to about 12 miles, but keot straight
on. and blew his horn. The respondent momentarily « 1ecked his
motor; but, concluding that if he stopped he would come to 8
standstill directly in front of the appellant, he went on, swerving to
the east, thinking to give more room. The result was a collision.
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The speed of the appellant was said by the respondent to be
about 35 miles an hour; that of the respondent 18 to 20 miles an
hour. The appellant says that he was only going 15 or perhaps
12 to 10 miles an hour, and cou'd have stopped in 15, 12, or 10
feet respectively. He did not do so, nor did he turn up or down
Spadina road. He ran 43 feet before the motors met, and this
throws doubt on the accuracy of his evid on the question of
speed. The respondent says he could not have turned east on
Bernard avenue except to its south side, owing to the narrowness
of that thoroughfare.

These matters were fully canvassed in the evidence and in the
charge of the learned trial Judge.

The findings of the jury summarised amount to this: that the
appellant’s speed was excessive, and that he could have avoided
the accident if he had maintained a slower speed; and that the

dent, notwithstanding that fact, could have avoided the
accident by stopping his car. In other words, both parties, by
taking the precautions stated, could have escaped a collision, the
one by going at a less speed and the other by stopping dead.

But for the form of the questions, no difficulty would have pre-
sented itself, as the answers of the jury indicate that each party
was to blame, and their comment seems to be that recklessness on
the one hand and want of prompt action on the other brought
about the resultant disaster.

The learned trial Judge announced that he intended to treat
the action as one of negligence against the respondent, and that
on him the statutory onus rested. As to the appellant the sole
question, he indicated, was that of contributory negligence, treat-
ing the statutory provision as inapplicable. He so charged the
jury, and hence the form in which their findings are expressed.

I can find nothing to suggest that the respondent was guilty
of ultimate negligence, nor anything to lead me to suppose that
the jury’s answer would have been different if the question of
onus had been expressly left to them. The respondent was coming
on fast, thought first of stopping, changed his mind, and went
ahead. 1In faet his car moved continuously just as did that of the
appellant, and each did, on the moment, what he thought would
be best to avoid trouble. There was only one point of time at
which the danger presented itself to both parties, that is, when

ONT.
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Hodgins, J.A.
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each became visible to the other, and their consequent action w:«
immediate, and hinged entirely upon their first perception of
peril.

At that time the fault of the appellant was excessive speed and
of the respondent in maintaining his course instead of stopping,
and the jury thought both to blame for not then doing something
to escape coming together.

The case is like Herron v. Toronto R. Co. (1913), 28 O.L.R.
59, 6 D.L.R. 215, 11 D.L.R. 697, where each negligence arose und
existed unchanged until the moment of collision, and was ““con-
current and simultaneous negligence of similar character by hoth
parties.”

It is unnecessary, in the view I take of the situation, to dis-
cuss the contention that the charge to the jury should have pointed
out that the statutory provision* applied to both and put each in
the wrong unless he could satisfy the jury that he was free from
blame. The answers really amount to such a finding, and the
appeal should therefore be dismissed.

This case is another melancholy example of the desire to go
fast, literally, at all hazards, and it is to be regretted that where
the findings implicate both parties the appellant should be com-
pelled to pay the costs of his iate in reckl

Macraren, J.A., and Latcurorp, J., agreed with Hopains,
JA.

FerausoN, J.A.:—This is an action for damages resulting frcm
a collision between the plaintiff's motor-cycle and the defendant's
motor-car. The damages (if any) were assessed at $3,500; but
Mr. Justice Riddell, who presided at the trial, interpreted the
jury’s answers to the questions submitted as meaning that the
accident was the result of concurrent negligence, and dismissed
the action.

The plaintiff appeals, and the result of the appeal turns on the
meaning of the jury’s answers. The appellant contends that they
mean that the defendant’s negligence was the ultimate cause of

* The Motor Vehicles Act, R.8.0. 1914, ch. 207, sec. 23: “‘When loss or

d is sustained by any person by reason of a motor-vehicle on a high-
way the onus of that such loss or damage did not arise through the
gli i duct of the owner or driver of the motor-vehicle

) or imprope!
shall be upon the owner or driver.”
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1 Was the accident; the respondent supports the view adopted by the O_NT
m of learned trial Judge. 8. C.

[The learned Judge then set out the questions put to the jury  jupson
| :.md and their answers, as above.) Hu’;lﬂ.
ping, The plaintifi’s negligence in driving too fast continued to the e
hing time of the accident; but the jury appear to have been of the ™74

opinion that, notwithstanding the fast driving of the plaintiff, the
L.R. defendant could have avoided the accident by stopping. The
and answers do not, however, make it clear at just what point of time
con- the defendant should have stopped or that he could have stopped

both after he became aware of the danger; neither do they make it
clear that the plaintiff, after he became aware of the danger,
dis- could not himself have slowed up and thus avoided the accident.
nted If he could, and did not do so, he is not in a position to complain.
hin The weight of evidence favours that view. The jury, however,
rom have not answered questions 10 and 11; and, to my mind, we are
the in consequence left in doubt as to the real meaning of their answers
to the other questions.
) B0 Under these circumstances, I would direct a new trial; the
tere costs of this appeal to be costs in the cause to the appellant; the
om- costs of the former trial to be costs in the cause to the successful

party.
MageE, J.A., agreed with Fercuson, J.A. Mugee, A

INS,
Appeal dismissed; MAGEE and FErGUSON, JJ.A., dissenting.

fcm
nt's GRAND TRUNK PACIFIC COAST STEAMSHIP Co. v. VICTORIA-
bat VANCOUVER STEVEDORING Co.
ul
Nupreme Court of Canada, Sir Charles Fitzpatrick, C.J., and Idington,
the Anglin and Brodeur, JJ., and Cassels, J. ad hoc. June 25, 1918.
the

R WA e AT Y v vk T TR (e

Contracts (§ 11D—152)—WorkMAN —INJURY TO—RECOVERY OF DAMAGES

sed INDEMNITY CLAUSE—ACTION TO RECOVER AMOUNT OF DAMAGES PAID,
The appellant having failed in its supply of what it had contracted

for, one of the men was sent to get it from the respondents’ warehouse.

the He met with an accident in doing so for which he had recourse agninst 4
the respondent and rightfully recovered damages. The court held that
hey the respondent was entitled to be indemnified by the appellant under a

clause in an agreement between the parties as follows: “‘that the 8.8.Co.

shall hold the Stevedoring Company entirely harmless from any and all

liability for personal injury to any of the Stevedoring Company's em-
- ployees while perfurgningwlulmur embraced within this agreement.’’

The workman at the time he was injured was performing labour embraced
in the agreement.

O - www-w

ArpeaL from the judgment of the Court of Appeal for British  Statement.
Columbia, 38 D.IL.R. 468, maintaining, upon an equal division
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of the court, the judgment of Murphy, J., at the trial, by which
the plaintifi’s action was maintained with costs.

Geo. F. Henderson, K.C., for appellant; Wallace Nesbitt, K.,
for respondent.

Frrzeariick, C.J.:—The case really depends upon the intei-
pretation of clause 5 of the agreement between the parties which
reads:—

5. That the 8.8, Co. shall hold the Stevedoring Company entirely harn.
less from any and all liability for peuon-.l injury to any of the Stevedoring
Company's employees while perf labour emb 1 in this agr nt,

It has been held, .'m(l 1 think rightly, that an vmplo_u-«- of the
respondents was injured while performing labour embraced in the
agreement.  If the workman’s employment compels him to he at
a particular place when the accident happens, the accident must
be taken to arise out of the employment, although it is not being
contributed to in any way by the nature of the employment. It
is not, I think, disputed that the accident was due to the respond-
ents’ negligence.

The trial judge held that clause 5 above quoted was intended
and the language used was sufficiently wide to cover the respond-
ents’ own negligence.

In the appeal court, where there was an equal division of
opinion, Macdonald, C.J., thought that the contract should he
construed only to relieve the respondent of the burden of muking
compensation to employees under the Workmen's Compensation
Act, which compensation is payable irrespective of the employec's
negligence. He relied in support of this view on the case of I’rice
& Co. v. Union Lighterage Co., [1904] 1 K.B. 412, but with all
respect I think he has failed to appreciate the principle on which
that decision is based. Walton, J., the trial judge whose judg-

ment was approved by the Court of Appeal, says:—

There is a well-established rule of construction applicable to the present
case. The law of England, unlike in this respect the law of the U.8. of Ameriea,
does not forbid the carrier to exempt himself by contract from liability for
the negligence of himself and his servants; but, if the carrier desires so to exempt
himself, it requires that he shall do so in express, plain, and unambiguous
terms.

And this is no arbitrary distinction of the case of carriers, but
depends on the fact that a carrier is liable not only for the duc con-
veyance of goods as he is of passengers, but is also liable as an
insurer of the goods. It is fallacious to say that the greater
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linbility of carriers than of other classes of contractors is “merely
a question of degree.”  Under his contract the carrier has a duty
of conveyance for the neglect of which he is liable, but as an
insurer he is liable irrespective of any negligence on his part and
this is a liability of a different kind. The rule of construction
established in the case of the contracts of carriers is that the
exemption clause refers to conveyance in contradistinetion to
insurance—that it limits the liability, not the duty.

But, in truth, these cases have nothing to do with the present
one, for in all contracts, even including those of carriers, it is a
question of what was the intention of the parties. Now, I think
nothing can be clearer than the intention of the parties to express
in clause 5 of the agreement under consideration that the respond-
ents should be relieved of all liability, however oceurring, to any
of their employees. MePhillips, J., says that to construe the
provision in accordance with the submission of the appellant would
be to render it wholly illusory: it certainly would restrict its
operation within very narrow bounds, for it cannot consistently
be held to apply even to all cases under the Workmen's Com-
pensation Act, since damages may of course be recovered under
this Act where the employer has been guilty of negligence as well
as when he has not.

The wording of this clause of the contract is as wide as possible,
and there is no reason for attributing to the parties any intention
of restricting its natural meaning. 1 do not think, therefore, the
rule of construction adopted for a totally different class of con-
tracts and for reasons which have no application here can be
involed to restrict such natural meaning.

In my opinion, the appeal should be dismissed with costs.

IvinaToN, J.:—The appellant having contracted with respond-
ent for services to be performed by its men, amongst other things,
agreed as follows:—

That the Steamship Company shall hold the Stevedoring Company
entirely harmless from any and all liability for personal injury to any of the

Stevedoring Company’s employees while performing labour embraced in this
agreement.

The appellant having failed in its supply of what it had con-
tracted for, one of the men was sent to get it from the respondent’s
warchouse. He met with an accident in doing so for which he
had recourse against the respondent and rightfully recovered
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damages.  The appellant claims this liability for a personal injun
did not fall within the meaning of what the contracting paitios
had in contemplation in the elause 1 have quoted.

I cannot so fritter away the very obvious purpose of such
contract of indemnity. It does not appear to me that the appel-
lant can be heard to say that its own default in making the servic
more onerous than it might have turned out ean thus cscipe
responsibility.

The very obvious purpose of such a contract as in question
was to free the respondent from that incidental loss that cvery
employer of labour may incur, and in all probability must incu
by reason of negligence, from time to time, in the course of exeeut-
ing what he has undertaken.

The cases relied upon do not seea to me to touch the question

If the accident had arisen from something wilful on the part of
respondent, then one could hardly say that it had fallen within the
scope of what, in reason, was within the contemplation of those
making such a contract.

Nor can I see how the contract, under which the partics hal
been operating beyond the period originally named, ean be said.
as argued for appellant, to have terminated when they, by mutual
consent, to be implied from their conduct, had extended its opera-
tion. All the terms of any such like time contracts are in law,
when 8o extended, presumed, so far as applicable, to govern those
s0 acting thereunder. .

I suspect, if the appellant had been sued for an inereased rate
of wages, it would have been able to see the point and understand
the law in the sense I refer to.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.

ANGLIN, J.: It is common ground that one Scott, an enplovee
of the plaintiffs, recovered judgment against thew in respect of a
personal injury sustained on July 31, 1915, which was caused by
negligence imputable to them either at common law or under the
Employers’ Liability Act. Rightly or wrongly, the defendants
have admitted that the finding of such liability is binding upon
them. The plaintiffs, on the other hand, do noi suggest that their
liability to Seott could have been based on anything other than
fault or negligence.

The chief defences to their claim to indemnity made in this
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action are that Scott at the time he was injured was not * perform-
ing labour embraced in (the) agreement” for stevedoring made
between the plaintifis and the defendants, and that injuries
ascribable to the plaintifis’ negligence are not within the pro-
visions for their indemnification, which reads as follows:

That the Steamship Compuny® shall hold the Stevedoring Company
entirely harmless from any and all liability for personal injury to any of the
Stevedoring Company’s employees while performing labour embraced in this
agreement.

It was also alleged that the stevedoring agreement had been
terminated before Seott was injured.

It recites that

The Stevedoring Company is desirous of undertaking the stevedoring
business of the Steamship Company at Vancouver, B.C., and Vietoria, B.C.,
and the Steamship Company is willing to accord this privilege upon terms and
conditions and at prices hereinbefore set forth,
and it provides that it shall
remuin in foree for a period of one year from the date hereof (20th Nov., 1911)
and if not then terminated, to remain in foree thereafter until either party
should give three months’ notice in writing terminating the same

Prima facie this agreement would continue in foree unless
some step were taken to bring it to an end ai the close of the first
year.  Action by one of the parties was required to terminate it
on November 20, 1912, No evidence of any such action or of any
subscquent notice to bring it to an end on the expiry of three
months was given.  The burden of proving termination was, in
my opinion, on the party alleging it.  The agreement must, there-
fore, be deemed to have been in foree when Seott was injured.

For the reasons assigned by the trial judge, 1 am also satisfied
that the work Scott was engaged on when injured was “labour
embraced in (the) agreement.” He was carrying out a lawful
dircction to bring from their place of housing or storage some
wheelbarrows belonging to the plaintiffs which were required for
unloading coal—part of the stevedoring work undertaken by the
plaintifis. The arrangement that the defendants were to supply
all necessary gear did not necessarily make it part of their obliga-
tion to bring such gear to the ship’s side. They appear to have
arranged to “borrow” these wheelbarrows from the plaintiffs.
Obtaining them from the place where they were ordinarily kept
in order to use them in unloading would seem to have been part of
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the stevedoring work for which the defendants undertook to supply
labour -and therefore to have been “labour embraced in (the)
agreement.”

Unless the plaintiffs were “undertakers” within the meaning
of that term as defined by s. 2 of the Workmen's Compensation
Act, RS.B.C., 1911, ¢. 244, they*would not be liable under that
Act for personal injuries sustained by their employees. =. 4
restricts its application to employment by ‘“undertakers” us
defined in the Act.

“Undertaker” (as defined) in the case of a railway means the railway
company; in the case of a factory, quarry, laundry, smelter or workhouse,
means the occupier or operator thereof, in the case of a mine, means the owner
thereof ; and in the case of an engineering work or other work specified within
this Act means the person undertaking the construction, alteration, repuir or
demolition.

I agree with Mr. Nesbitt’s contention that a person or com-
pany engaged in the work of stevedoring is not an undertaker
within this definition.

Apart from that established by the Workmen’s Compensation
Act in cases that fall within it, I know of no foundation for liability
of an employer to his employee for personal injuries sustained by

the latter in the course of his employment except fault or negli-
gence imputable to the employer either under the common law or
the Employers’ Liability Act. Under these circumstances, since
it was against liability of the plaintiffs to their employees for
personal injuries that the defendants engaged to indemnify them,
I think such liability arising from negligence must not only have
been within the contemplation of the parties but must have heen
the very thing in respect of which they were contracling. The
case of the City of Toronto v. Lambert (1916), 33 D.L.R. 176,
54. Can. 8.C.R. 200, relied upon by counsel for the appellants, is
clearly distinguishable on this ground. Had this view of the
matter presented itself to the Chief Justice of the Court of Appeal
of British Columbia, I incline to think he would have reached the
same conclusion. His citation of McCawley v. Furness It Co.
(1872), L.R. 8 Q.B. 57, appears to warrant this inference.

I express no opinion on the question whether injurics caused
by negligence of, or ascribable to, the Stevedoring Company
would or would not have been within the purview of the term
“any and all liability for personal injury,” were it not reasonably
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certain that such liability must have been, and that liability apart
from and without negligence or fault eannot have been, within
the contemplation of the, parties to the agreement under con-
sideration.
The appeal fails and should be dismissed with costs.
Bropeur, J.:—The liability of the appellant depends upon
the construction of an agreement between the parties by which

the appellant company undertook to hold the respondent company
entirely harmless from any and all liability for personal injury to any of the
Stevedoring Company’s employees while performing labour embraced in this
agreement.

In my opinion, there is no doubt that the man Scott was
injured when he was doing some stevedoring work contemplated
by the contract. Wheelbarrows were required for the unloading
of the ship and when he was bringing them he had an accident for
which he sued and obtained judgment against his employer, the
respondent company. The latter now seeks (o be indemnified by
the appellant under the above clause of the contract.

It is common ground that the accident was due to the Steve-
doring Company’s negligence.  Nobody would suggest, however,
that the negligence was wilful. But it is one of those accidents
inherent to the carrying out of work of that kind. The indemnity
clause is a very wide one. It is not restricted to liability arising
out of the Workmen's Compensation Act or Employers’ Liability
Act; but it is general “from any and all liability for personal
injury.”

One of the greatest risks the contractor for labour must incur
is his liability for damages for personal injury to his workmen.
The number of persons employed and the lack of eare on the part
of some of those employees render the undertaking a risky one.

In this case we have besides a provision in the contract that all
the gear and apparatus for performing the work should be supplied
by the Steamship Company.

The defective appliances are to a very large extent the cause
of those accidents to workmen. It was only natural for the parties
to agree that all those accidents, whether they were caused by the
ordinary neglect of the Steamship Company or of the Stevedoring
Company, should be provided for. It is not giving then to the
contract too wide an interpretation to declare that the liability of
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the appellant company covers a case similar to the one we have
before us.
The judgment that has declared the appellant company liahle
should be confirmed with costs.
Cassers, J., ad hoc:—I am of the opinion that this appeal
should be dismissed with costs.
Appeal dismissed.

STEVENSON v. DANDY.

Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Harvey, C.J., Stuart, Beck and
Hyndman, JJ. October 28, 1918.

Evipence (§ ITB—114)—JUDGMENT NOT BINDING UNTIL ACTUALLY ENTERED
MATERIAL FACTS DISCOVERED SUBSEQUENT TO HEARING MAY LE
REVIEWED,

A court or judge is not bound by any decision until the judgment
or order has actually been taken ou t and entered. If there are muterial
facts which were not brought to his attention at the trial, he should
hear them, and should consider affidavits as to further evidence suggested
or proposed to be given and the circumstances under which and when
it was discovered.

ArreAL by the defendant from the trial judgment in an action
on promissory notes. Reversed.

A. Stuart, K.C., for appellant. J. K. MacDonald, for respon-
ent.

Harvey, C.J.:—I agree with my brother Beck that the trial
judge was in error in thinking that he had no jurisdiction to hear
the new evidence and that the appeal from his order should he
allowed. The formal judgment should be set aside and the appli-
cation renewed before the judge. As the appellant did not ask,
except by way of alternative, for a reversal of the judgment, and a
judgment in his favour, I do not think it would be proper for us
to consider the correctness of the finding of the trial judge on any
of the matters on which he expressed an opinion.

I agree that the appellant should have the costs of the appeal.

Stuart, J:—I concur.

Beck, J:—This is an appeal by the defendant from the judg-
ment of His Honour Judge Morrison.

The plaintifi’s claim is on two “notes;” one a “note” for $508
dated May 1, 1914, due November 30, 1914, bearing interest at
89 and stated to have been given for seven cows (separately
described) and one heifer, the ownership to remain in the plaintiff
till payment; and the other, a “note” for $124.85 dated April 17,
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1912, bearing interest at 89 and stated to have been given for two
cows and one calf, the ownership to remain in the plaintiff till
payment.

The plaintiff gave credit for $362 as having been paid on March
15, 1915, on account of the first mentibned note, and shewed by his
particulars a balance of $301.81 owing on the first mentioned note
on April 17, 1916, when the action was commenced. The amount
shewn as then owing on the second mentioned note was $164.53,
making a total of $466.42, which the plaintiff claimed by his state-
ment of claim. He, however, attached to his statement of claim
a notice to the effect that he reduced his claim “by the sum of
£164.53, being the amount of the second note,” leaving the amount
claimed $301.81 with interest and costs.

Substantially the defence, which was directed only to the first
mentioned note, was that the plaintif” Lad delivered only four of
the cattle for which it was given and that these four head had been
paid for.

There was also a counterclaim. In sul stance it was as follows:
The plaintifi employed the defendant to o! tain a purchaser for a
farm belonging to the plaintiff, which the defendant succeeded in
doing, and the plaintiff agreed to yay #1400 for these services by
assigning a chattel mortgage for that sur n ade by one Walsh to
the plaintiff, accompanied by a pro ise that if the defendant
could not collect the amount the ylaintilt would himself pay it;
that the plaintiff did execute an assirnment of the chattel
mortgage; that the defendant realisec! under the mortgage only
§70, and is entitled to judgment for the | alance owing thereon
against the plaintiff.

In his reply the defendant denied all 1 aterial allegations and
alleged that the reason for the assizn' ent of the chattel mortgage
was as follows:—The plaintiff was al.out to leave Alberta; he was
not aware of the whereabouts of the catt'e described in the chattel
mortgage, which he proposed to realizc uy on: the defendant offered
to assist the sherifi’s bailiff in finding tl e cattle and, thereupon, as
a matter of convenience, the assigni ent v as » ade to the defendant
as a bare trustee for the plainti’; and the plaintiff claimed an
account and payment by the defendant of all nioneys collected
under the chattel mortgage.

At the trial, the plaintiff was allov ed to an end as so to claim
the 870,
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The plaintiff, in his evidence, said that the assignment of the
chattel mortgage was made simply for convenience, to enable the
defendant to realise on the mortgage for the benefit of the plaintifi;
that he went to the Fast immediately afterwards; that he returned
a year afterwards, having written to the bailiff and the defendant
twice or three times without getting an answer; that he had
copies of the letters, but hadn't them with him; that on asking
the defendant if he had realised anything under the mortgage tle
defendant said that he had not realised anything. The action
was commenced on April 17, 1916, that is, after the lapse of
another year. The counterclaim in which the defendant states
that he had realised $70 was filed in July, 1916. The plaintiff
intimates that this was the first knowledge that he had that the
defendant had realised anything. The plaintiff says nothing
about having looked up the bailiff.

Walsh, the mortgagor, was connected by marriage with the
plaintiff. He said that he always saw the plaintiff when he came
up from the East and that the plaintiff sometimes stayed with him.
He did not, however, see him in 1915 nor again until the trial,
Walsh being then in gaol on conviction for a criminal offence.
Walsh says that the defendant seized some of the animals covered
by the chattel mortgage and sold them, realising, so the defendant
told him, $85 or $86.

The defendant said that the assignment of the chattel mort-
gage, the consideration expressed being $1 and other considerations,
was given for introducing the purchaser of the plaintifi’s wife’s
land—the sale in fact was made—and for compensation for certain
damage done by the plaintiffl to the defendant’s house and for the
care of some of plaintifi’s stock. The defendant produces a
receipt from the solicitor of his bill for drawing the assignment,
which was drawn on the personal instructions of the plaintiff.

In accepting the plaintifi’s evidence as sufficient to overcome
the evidence of the assignment itself and of the defendant, it scems
to me that the judge had not in his mind the rule that in order to
contradict a written document or to make it subject to a trust not
expressed in it, where one party maintains on oath that the docu-
ment expresses the true agreement, the evidence adduced by the
other party must be so clear and convineing as to leave no room
for doubt of its truth. 17 Cye., tit. Evidence, pp. 774-5.
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In addition to this the judge gives in his reasons for judgment
as an additional ground for rejecting the defendant’s counterclaim
a reason which, I think, is quite untenable, namely, that the
defendant was, in any case, not entitled to a commission by reason
of ¢. 27 of 1906, which requires a written contract of agency; but
that provision would clearly have no application to a security
founded upon actual services.

Again, in his written reasons for judgment on April 8, the
judge says:—

Admittedly neither the plaintiff nor the defendant gives a wholly satis-
factory account of their transactions with cach other. Of the two the aefend-
ant is the brighter mind, the more alert, and more systematic man of affairs,

The evidence is, to my mind, so unconvincing that I think the
judge ought to have let the document speak for itself and con-
sequently have held the defendant not liable to pay the $70 he
realised, and on the other hand to have refused—as in fact he did-
to give the defendant any remedy against the plaintiff for any
balance of the face value of the mortgage, inasmuch as there was
no satisfactory evidence of any agreement nor a covenant on the
assignment to that effect.

1 refrain from going into the evidence with respect to the note
sued on because I think the defendant is entitled to succeed upon
that part of his appeal which relates to an application made by
hin: to the trial judge to receive further evidence in the action.

The trial took place on February 15, 1918, at Edmonton. The
judge reserved his decision until March 8, when he gave written
reasons. Comsel for both parties subsequently appeared before
the judge and again argued it to some extent. The judge then, on
April 6, gave further reasons for adhering to his first decision.
Then, on April 19, the defendant made an application to the trial
judge for permission to be allowed to adduce further evidence and
filed three affidavits, those of (1) the defendant, (2) McKeone, and
(3) Olmstead. The judge gave written reasons for refusiag this
application. He held that he had no jurisdiction to entertain the
application, and so far as appears did not consider the material

" contained in the affidavits.

I think he was wrong in holding that he had no jurisdiction.
It is quite clear on the authorities and in full accordance with
common sense and justice that a court or judge is not bound by
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any decision until the judgment or order has actually been talen
out and entered.

Miller's case (1876), 3 Ch. D. 661, is an instance. Re (iray
(1887), 36 Ch. D. 205. is another.

In Re St. Nazaire Co. (1879), 12 Ch. D. 88, at 91, Jessel, M .12,
said:—

In Miller's ease no order had been drawn up. A judge can always recon.
sider his decision until the order has been drawn up,

In Re Sufficld & Watls (1888), 20 Q.B.D. 693, at p. 697, Iry,
LJ., says:—

8o long as the order has not been perfected the judge has a power of
reconsidering the matter, but, when once the order has been completed, 1le
jurisdiction of the judge over it has come to an end.

The foregoing case was followed in Re Crown Bank (18001, 14
Ch. D. 634.

In Baden-Powell v. Wilson, [18904] W.N. 146, Kekewich, J., Lad
tried the case and given judgment refusing a rectifeation of a
settlement. The plaintifis moved, the judgment not having | een
drawn up, to have the action re-tried on the ground that at the trial
material facts had not been drawn to the judge’s attention.

Kekewich, J., said:—

As the order has not yet been drawn up, 1 have no doubt I way redear
the case. If there are material faets which were not brought to my attention
at the trial, then I ought to hear them. On the assurance of the plainiill's
counsel that there are waterial facts, and as the defendants do not ol el
1 will give the plaintifis an opportunity of having the case re-hear!. ‘Ihe
plaintifi’s counsel may apply on a future day to have the case restored 1o the
paper.
Obviously, the assurance of plaintifi’s counsel and the al ence
of objection by defendant’s counsel were taken as merely justif ing
the judge from refraining from examining the affidavits upon which
the motion was made.

It is a much sinipler and less inconvenient thing for a 1'i-trict
Court Judge to re-try a case or to continue a trial already Legun
before him by taking further evidence than it is for a judge of a
superior court holding eireuits. The judge having undoubtedly juris-
diction to hear further evidence in the case ought to have con-
sidered the affidavits as to the further evidence suggested or pro-
posed to be given and the « ircumstances under which and when
it was discovered. 1 e is the one in the best position to judge of
its bearing upon the case in the light of the evidence already given.
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In considering such material I think a judge dealing with such an
application is not bound by the same rule as is a court of appeal
on an application to hear further evidence or to grant a new trial
for the purpose of the further evidence being given upon a new trial,
whatever may be the exact rule in the latter case. See Riverside
Lumber Co. v. Calgary Water Power Co. (1915), 25 D.L.R. 818,
10 A.LLR. 128. The reasons for that rule do not apply with the
same foree to the case merely of the same judge hearing further
evidence,

I would reverse the trial judge with respect to the item of $70.

I think the order of the judge dismissing the application to
continue the hearing of the case should be set aside and the applica-
tion be remitted to him to consider the application upon its merits,
which it seems to me are such as night well induce him in the
exercise of a judicial discretion to grant the application. For the
purpose of leaving the judge free to proceed with the trial, the
judgment below already entered ought to be set aside.

I would give the appellant the costs of the appeal.

Hyxpman, J., concurred with Harvey, ('.J.,

Appeal allowed.

MONTREAL TRAMWAYS Co. v. HAMILTON.,

Quebee King's Bench, Sir Horace Archambeaull, C.J., Lavergne, Cross and
Carroll, JJ. April 27, 1918.

NeGLIGENCE (§ 11 B—86)—CONTRIBUTORY—ATTEMPT TO CROSS STREET CAR
TRACK—CAR TOO CLOSE TO BE STOPPED— DAMAGES,

A person who attemps to eross a street car track, when a car is too
close to him to make it practicable for the motorman to stop the car
or avoid striking him, eannot recover damages against the company.
Arrean by defendant from the judgment of the Superior

Court, in an action for damages for injuries caused by being struck
by a street car. Reversed.

Meredith, Macpherson & Co., for appellant.

Brodeur v. Bérard, for respondent.

Cross, J.:—The respondent, in continuance of suit, was a
young man 19 years of age at the time at which he was injured,
namely, on August 20, 1915.

On that day, about 11 o'clock in the forenoon, he had assisted
his sister-in-law and her child to take passage in an east-bound
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tramear at the west side of St. Patrick St. on Wellington St
That tramecar having started eastward, Hamilton went to cross
the car tracks to go to the north side of St. Patrick St. He noticed
a west-bound car coming towards him, but nevertheless made g
movement to cross in front of it, but was struck by the newrest
corner of the car, that is, the front left corner, and knocked down,
He fell clear of the wheels on the space between the tracks and was
picked up in an unconscious state at that place, the car having
come to a standstill at a point where its rear vestibule was opposite
the place where Hamilton was lying.

It is clear that Hamilton was negligent in trying to cross in
front of the car and the Superior Court so found, but the judge
also came to the conclusion that the motorman of the car was
negligent also, in that he ran the car faster than was prudent in
the particular circumstances. Judgment was, therefore, given
against the appellant for $1,000.

The decision of this appeal thus turns upon the question
whether negligence on the part of the motorman in running the
car too fast contributed to the accident or not. There is a wide
conflict between the statements or guesses of the witnesses about
the speed of the car.

In my opinion, the speed of the car was not a factor in bringing
about the accident. It might have been such a factor, if this had
been a case of a pedestrian incautiously crossing behind a tramcar,
and stepping in front of another on the next car-track. But here
the fact is that Hamilton looked and saw the car coming and,
nevertheless, tried to cross in front of it. Moreover, he was struck
by the corner of the car before he could even get in front of it.
In the circumstances, it cannot be said that the exercise of vigilance
by the motorman could be expected to be exercised in these last
seconds of the occurrence so as to avert the collision. The car was
in fact brought to a stand-still in less than its own length. The
pedestrian, who sees the danger and decides to take his chance
notwithstanding, is the author of the mishap.

1 would reverse the judgment and dismiss the action.

Judgment: Considering that the plaintiff-respondent (now
represented by Stephen Hamilton, plaintiff in continuance of suit),
has failed to prove his allegations of fault or negligence on the part
of the defendant-appellant;
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St Considering that the said Stephen Hamilton, on the occasion
TOSS on which he was injured by being struck by the appellant tramear,
iced imprudently attempted to cross the car-track in front of the said

MONTREAL

dea car after he has seen it coming in his direction; T""(‘,“‘)"""’
irest (onsidering that the movement of the said Stephen Hamilton, v
Wi, in attempting to cross in front of the said car, was made when 11*MILTON.
was the car was too near to him to have made it practicable for the  Cross.J.
ving motorman to stop the car or avoid striking the said Stephen

wite Hamilton who in fact did not have time to get upon the car track;
but was struck by the left corner of the front of the car;
s in Considering that there is error in the judgment so appealed
wlge from, in so far as it is therein set forth that the said motorman
was was in fault;
tin Doth maintain the appeal, doth reverse the said judgment
ven appealed from, to wit., the judgment pronounced by the Superior
Court at Montreal on October 4, 1916, and, now giving the judg-
tion ment which the said Superior Court ought to have pronounced,
the doth dismiss the present action with costs in the Superior Court
vide and those of the present appeal against the plaintifi-respondent
out continuance the suit. Appeal allowed.

ring MARSHALL v. HOLLIDAY.

had Oniario Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Mulock, C.J. Ex., Clue
car, Sulhr!an and Kelly, JJ. April 11, 1918,

ere Brarures (§ 11—104)—Diviston Counu Acr—S8uM IN DISPUTE—MEANING OF,
) The words ‘‘sum in dupute in 8. 125 of the Division Courts Act,
wnd, RS.0. 1914, c. 63 mean ‘‘sum in dispute in the action’’—‘the sum

uck sought to be recovered” mentioned in s. 106.

Fit Ax appeal by the defendant from the judgment of the First Statement.
ince Division Court of the County of Norfolk.

last The action was on a promissory note for $94.31, payable on
‘lfl‘“ demand, made by the defendant and endorsed over to the plaintiff.
e

The particulars given in the summons were:—

ok Principal

iit), At the trial, the Judge added a further sum of $1. 17 as interest,
by way of damages, and gave judgment for $100.19 and costs.
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T.J. Agar, for the plaintiff, respondent, raised the preliminary
objection that an appeal did not lie.

J. E. Jones, for the defendant, appellant, contra.

Sectivn 125 of the Division Courts Act, R.S.0. 1914, ch. 63,
provides that, “subject to the provisions of section 107 an appeul
shall lie to a Divisional Court from the decision of the Judge . . .
(a) in an action . . . where the sum in dispute exceeds $100,
exclusive of costs; . . "

Section 106 provides that the “clerk shall place all actions in
which the sum =ought to be recovered exceeds $100 at the foot of
the trial list, and the Judge shall, in such actions, unless an sgree-
ment not to appeal has been signed . . . take down the evidence
in writing. . . .”

Section 107 provides that “an appeal shall not lie if, before the
commencer ‘ent of the trial, there is filed . . . an agreement in
writing not to appeal. . . .”

The provision in the earlier Division Courts Act, R.S.0. 1807,
ch. 60, with regard to appeals, contained in sec. 154 (1), was: “In
case a party to a cause . . . wherein the sum in dispute upon the
appeal exceeds $100 exclusive of costs, is dissatisfied with the
decision of the Judge . . . he may appeal to a Divisional Court

On the argument of the preliminary objection, these statutory
provisions were referred to, and also see. 154 of R.8.0. 1014, ch. 63;
and the following cases: Foster v. Emory (1890), 14 P.R. (Ont.)1;
Hunt v. Taplin (1895), 24 Can. S.C.R. 36; Allan v. Pratt (1588),
13 App. Cas. 780; Petrie v. Machan (1897), 28 O.R. 501, 642;
Lambert v. Clarke (1904), 7 O.L.R. 130; Rathbone v. Michacl (1910),
20 O.1.R. 503; Re American Standard Jewelry Co. v. Gorth (1913),
5 0.W.N. 600,

Tur Courr allowed the objection, and quashed the appeal
with costs,

It was remarked that, had the language of the former statute
been retained, and an appeal been given when ““the sum in dispute
upon the appeal exceeds $100,” there might have been room for
argun ent that the appeal should be held to lie: Lambert v. Clarke,
7 O.L.R. 130. But the Legislature had deliberately omitted the
words “upon the appeal;” and the Court thought that in the
section which now governs, 125, the words “sum in di-pute”
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meant “sum in dispute in the action”—“the sum sought to be ~ ONT-

HI(I".\' ) g —_—
recovered”’ mentioned in sec. 106, 8. C.

Section 106 assists in the interpretation of sec. 125. By the Mapsmare

) former section, a special class of actions is to be set apart in a Hou..'mu

separate list; in the ordinary ecase the evidence in such actions is
L to be taken down in writing—clearly for the purposes of an appeal.
100, Here the “sum sought to be recovered” was §99.02; the de-

fendant could have put an end to the action by paying that sum
asia and costs; and the fact that the Judge gave an additional sum as
ot of interest, by way of damages, not at all necessarily following a
verdict for the plaintiff, could have no effect.

ppeal

gree-
lence
Appeal quashed with costs

 the SIS

nt in LETT v. GETTINS.

. Saskalchewan Court of Appeal, Sir Frederick Haultain,C.J.S., and New-
1897, lands, Lamont and Elwood, JJ.A. October 31, 1918,

‘In Laxp mirees (§ HHI--30) ~HoMeSTEAD ACT— AGREEMENT —VENDOK  UN-
1 the MARRIED—~LAND SOLD NOT HOVESTEAD —~ACT INAPPLICABLE—
AGREEMENT VALID,
the The objeet of the Act respeeting Homesteads (e, 20, 1915, Susk) was the
\ protection of the wife's interest in the homesteand of her husband. The
ourt amendment (8.5, ¢. 27) of 1916 was to meet the ease of a fulse certificate
or affidavit where the Act had been primd facie complied with,  Where
the land comprised in an agreement of sale and the vendor at the time of
tory signing the agreement is unmarried the agreement is not invalid because

63: it is not accompanied by the required aflidavit. The agreement is
ot valid a8 between the parties and may be enforeed upon completion of
3] H the affidavit necessary to enable it to be registered.

i88), . - e oy
Areear by defendant from a judgment of Brown, C.J.K.B., in Statement.

042; - :
10) an action to recover payment of an instalment due under an
il'i" agreement of sale.  Affirmed.

Hon. W. E. Knowles, K.C"., for appellant.; 7 D. Brown, K.C'.,
il for respondent.,
¥ Haviraiy, C.LS.:—By an agreement in writing dated August Haultais, CJ.8.
ke 14, 1917, the respopdent agreed to sell and the appellant agreed to
buy a eortain seetion of land for the sum of 813,440, puyable as

pute . " -
& follows: %200 on execution of agreement, $500 on October 1, 1917,
(

Lo and the balanee in erop payments as provided in the agreement

The appellant duly paid the $200, but made default in payment of
the $£500 due on October 1, 1917, and this action was brought for
the recovery of that amount.
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At the time the agreement was made, the land was not the
“homestead” of the respondent and the respondent was not g
marriedd man.  The respondent is the registered owner of the lnd
and is in a position to give good title to the appellant, and is ready,
willing and able to make the affidavit required by 8. 5 of un Aet

" respecting Homesteads, ¢. 29 of the statutes of 1915, as svended
by ¢. 27 of the statutes of 1916. At the trial of the action, the
whole case turned on a point raised by the statement of defence,
which reads as follows:—

The defendant says that the agreement referred to in the pluintifi’s
statement of claim never b valid and binding i h as the require
ments of the Act respecting Homesteads, being ¢. 20 of the statutes of the
Province of Saskatchewan for the year 1915, and the amendments t}ereto,
have not been complied with, inasmuch as neither has the wife of the pluntiff
executed the same nor was the said agreement accompanied by affidavit of
the plaintiff either to the effect that the land referred to therein wus not lis
homestead or that he had no wife.

The Chief Justice of the King’s Bench, who tried the action,
found against this contention and gave judgment in favour of the
plaintifi.  The defendant now appeals.

The object of the 1915 Act respecting Homesteads wus to
protect “the rights” of a wife “in the homestead” of her hushand,
and, for that purpose, to prevent the encumbering or ulicnation of
the homestead without her consent. The Act dealt prinarily
and—except for 8. 5—exclusively with “homesteads.”  The effec-
tiveness of a transfer, ete., and the validity of a mortgage or
incunibrance of the land of an unmarried man or of the land other
than the homestead of a married man were not affected, but, in
order to safeguard any possible rights of a wife, certain con litions
were attached to the registration of a transfer in these cascs.

If we only had to deal with the original Act of 1915 in regard to
the present transaction, there can be no question that the affidavit
preseribed by 8. 5 would only have been necessary, after the pur-
chaser had completed his agreement and was entitled to a transfer.
The absence of the affidavit at an carlier stage would not have
affected the transaction at all, and the Act would not have applied,
because the vendor was an unmarried man.  We have, however,
to consider the meaning and effect of the amendments of 19016,
By the amending Act of that year, s. 5 of the original Act was
repealed and the following substituted therefor:—

5. Every transfer, agreement of sale, lease or other instrument intended
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to convey or transfer an interest in land, and every mortgage or incumbrance,
which does not comply with the provisions of the last two preceding sections,
shall be accompanied by an affidavit of the maker in form C in the schedule to
this Act, eithes that the land described in such instrument is not his homestead,
or that he has no wife.

(2) If the party executing such instrument is acting under a power of

240

SASK.
C.A.
Lerr

v. .
Gerrins.

attorney, he may, if acquainted with the facts, male the said affidavit in lieu Haultais, CJ 8.

of his principal.

(3) No transferee, mortgagee, incumbrancee, lessc» or other person
acquiring an interest under any such instrument shall be boun to make inquiry
as to the truthfulness of the facts alleged in the affidavit hecein provided to
be made or in the certificate of examination in form B, and upon delivery of an
instrument purporting to be comp'sted in accordance with this Act the same
shall become valid and binding a. _ording to its tenor save as in s. 7 hereinafter
provided.

The agreement in this case does not comply with the pro-
visions of the “preceding sections,” and is not accompanied by an
affidavit of the vendor that he has no wife. It is, therefore,
argued on behalf of the appellant that the agreement never became
valid and binding as agains¢ him. I cannot agree with this con-
tention. Looking at the main object of the Act, the protection of
the wife's interest, I think that the purpose of this amendment
was to meet the case of a false certificate or affidavit, and that it
goes no farther than to say that in such a case the maxim omnia
pracsumuntur rite et solemniter esse acta applies and the agreement
i valid and binding as against the wife, if there is a wife, subject to
the provisions of s. 7.

I do not think that the purpose of these enactments was to
alter or affect the legal relations of the parties themselves. The
object of the amendment seems to be rather to give purchaser or
mortgagee 1 good faith protection against the possible interest
of a possible wife when there has been a primd facie compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

The appeal must, therefore, be dismissed with costs.

Erwoon, JLA.:—On August 14, 1917, the plaintiff sold to the
defendant under an agreement of sale see. 13 in township 23 in
range 8, west of the 3rd meridian in the Province of Sagkatchewan,
for 813,440, payable $200 in cash, $500 on October 1, 1917, and
the bulance in erop payments. The defendant made default in
the instalment falling due October 1, 1917, and this action was
brought for recovery of that amount.

The defendant defended, contending that the agreement in
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question never became valid or binding, inasmuch as the wif. of
the plaintiff has not executed said agreement, nor was the suid
agreement accompanied by an affidavit of the plaintiff to the fleet
either that the land referred to therein was not his homesteu| o
that he had no wife.

8s. 2 and 5 of e. 29 of the statutes of Saskatchewan for 1015—
as amended by ¢, 27 of the statutes of 1916—as material to the
case, are as follows:—

2. Every transfe:, agreement of sale, lease or other instrument intended
to convey or transfer any interest in a homestead, and every mortgige or
incumbrance intended to charge a homestead with the payment of u <un of
money, shall be signed by the owner and his wife, if he has a wife, 11l she
#hall appear before a Distriet Court Judge, local registrar of the Supreme Court,
registrar of land titles or their respective deputies or any justice of the peace,
and, upon being examined separate and apart from her husband, she shall
acknowledge that she understands her rights in the homestead and sigis the
said instrument of her own free will and consent and without compulsion on
the part of her husband.

5. Every transfer, agreement of sale, lease or other instrument intended
to convey or transfer an interest in land, and every mortgage or incumbrance,
which does not comply with the provisions of the last two preceding stions
shall be accompanied by an affidavit of the maker in form C in the schedule to
this Act, either that the land described in such instrument is not Lis Lome
stead, or that Le has no wife.

(3) No transferee, mortgagee, incumbrancee, lessee or other persin
aequiring an interest under any such instrument shall be bound to walke inquir,
a8 to the truthfulness of the facts alleged in the affidavit herein provided 1o be
made or in the certificate of examination in form B, ana upon delivery of an
instrument purporting to be completed in accordance with this Act the same
shall become valid and binding according to its tenor save as in 5. 7 herein
after provided.

The Chief Justice of the King's Bench, before whom the
action was tried, concluded that the omission to furnish the
affidavit under the circumstances of this case did not invalidate
the agreement of sale, and ordered that, upon the plaintifi filing
the required affidavit within 60 days, there should be judgment
for the plaintifi for the amount claimed, with costs. o this
judgment, the defendant appeals.

The Act in question, in my opinion, had for its object the pro-

_ tection of the wife's interest in the homestead of the hushand.
In the case at bar, it appears that the plaintiff is not married. and
that the land is not his homestead, and, as a matter of fuct, an
affidavit to this effect has been made since the trial of the setion
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by the plaintiff and is part of the appeal book herein.  No request
for the affidavit was ever made by the defendant, and the question
of an affidavit was only raised after the defendant had made
default in the payment of October, 1917, and suit had been com-
menced for the same

It seews to we that the wife of a homesteader could so con-
duct hersell toward an intending purchaser of her husband's
homestead that she could preclude herself from taking any objec-
tion to a sale. The object of the statute is not one of general
publie policy, but is for the benefit of a particular class of persons,
and, therefore, in my opinion, the provision in the statute requiring
v offidavit is one which renders a contract with respect to which

there has been a failure to provide the required affidavit merely
voidable, and not void.

If I s correet in this conclusion, then it seems to we abund-
antly elear that there are no werits in the defendant’s appeal.  As
I have stated above, there wag no request for an affidavit snd no
objection raised until some wonths after the contract had been
entered into and default had been made.  The plaintiff is unmar-
ried, and the land wag not his honestead.  The plaintiff is the
only person interested in the land.  Under these eireunstances it
would be, in my opinion, most inequitable that the contract should
be declared void.

In my opinion, therefore, the appeal should be dismissed with
CO8sts,

Newranns, J.A.:-—This action is to recover an instalment of
£500 due under an agreement for the sale of land.  The defence
i8 that the said agreement never becane valid and binding on
defendant, beeause the requirements of the Act respecting Home-
steads, ¢. 20 of act of 1915 and amendments, had not been com-
plied with.

This Act was passed to prevent a married man from disposing
of or nortgaging his homestead without the consent of his wife.
The Act of 1915 provides for her signature and its scknowledgn ent
before certain officers, separate and apart from her husband.

8.5 of that Aet, as amwended by ¢, 27 of the Acts of 1916, pro-
vides for an affidavit by the vendor or mortgagor where the land is
not his homestead, or, if it is his homestead, where he has no wife.

1843 p.L.R.

Newlands, J.A.
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Sub-s. 3 of this section provides that the purchaser or mori-
gagee is not bound to enquire into the truth of the facts deposed 1o
in the affidavit, but that, upon the delivery of the instrument pur-
porting to be completed in accordance with that Act, “the same
shall become valid and binding according to its tenor save us iy
8. 7 hereinafter provided.”

8. 7 provides that it is a fraud upon a wife to take a transfer,
ete., without her signature, knowing either that the land in ques-
tion is & homestead or that the party making the same has a wife,
and it allows the wife to have the same set aside for such fraud.

The land in question was neither the homestead of the plaintiff
nor had he a wife.

This Act was undoubtedly passed for the purpose of preventing
a married man from disposing of or mortgaging his homestead
without the consent of his wife. Where he had no wife, or where
the land was not his homestead, evidence of those facts would be
necessary before the registrar could register a transfer and to pro-
tect a mortgagee. For this reason the affidavit was provided for
where there was no signature of his wife to the instrument. The
awendment was undoubtedly passed to protect a purchuser or
mortgagee who took the instrument relying upon facts stated in
the affidavit from the fraud of a married wan, and, where the
purchaser or mortgagee acted bond fide, the instrument was to
beconce effective without the signature of the wife.

In my opinion, the Act never intended to apply to a case where
the land in question was not a homestead, or the instrument was
made by a man who had no wife. Under our system of registra-
tion, evidence of this fact was necessary in order for the registrar
to give effect to the instrument by registration, just as it is neces-
sary to have an affidavit of execution for the same purpose. The
language of the Land Titles Act as to an affidavit of execution is
the same as that requiring an affidavit in this case. In both cases
it says the instrument “shall be accompanied by an affidavit.”
The only effect of the want of an affidavit of execution on an
instrument is that it cannot be registered; the instrument is per-
feetly good for the purposes for which it is made, and can be
completed by the swearing of the affidavit at any time.

This, in my opinion, is the effect of the Act respecting Howe-
steads.  An instrument cannot be registered without the aflidavit
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required by 8. 5, where there is no signature of a wife, but the
instrument is otherwise effective, unless the vendor or mortgagor
has a wife, and where he has a wife it becomes effective if the
affidavit is made and accepted in good faith by the purchaser or
the mortgagee.

In this case, the vendor not having a wife, the instrument was
effective between the parties, and the affidavit required by s. 5
would only be required when some instrument executed by the
vendor required to be registered.

1 am, therefore, of the opinion that the appeal should be dis-
missed with costs.

LamonT, J.A., concurred with Newranps, J.A,

Appeal dismissed.

THE KING v. FLAHERTY and MALEPART.

Quebee King's Bench, Sir Horace Archambeault, C'.J., Lavergne, Cross,
Carroll, and Désy, ad hoc, JJ. June 21, 1918.

Haneas corrvs (§ 1 C—120)—~WARRANT OF COMMITMENT DEFECTIVE—
INDICTMENT PROPER AND CONVICTION VALIDLY MADE—AMENDMENT
OF WARRANT.

The fact that a warrant of commitment is defective is not a ground
for an application by way of habeas corpus for the release of the
prisoner, if the conviction was validly made under a proper indictment ;
the warrant may be amended or replaced by another in due form.

Arrrication by way of habeas corpus for the release of a prisoner
on the ground that the warrant of commitment is irregular. Appli-
cation refused.

L. Houle, for petitioner; Walsh & Lafortune, for the Crown.

Cross, J.:—By return to writ of habeas corpus, the respondent,
warden of St. Vincent de Paul penitentiary, certifies that the
petitioner Flaherty is detained by him by virtue of a commitment
issued out of the Crown side of this court in the district of Terre-
bonne, signed by the clerk of the Crown, in that district, in which
commitment it is recited that Flaherty was convicted d'qvoir
illegalement déchargé une arme d feu sur Albert Elliott. ,

Counsel for the petitioner says that that recital discloses no
criminal offence and that there is consequently no lawful ground of
detainer.

At the hearing, counsel for the Crown intimated that, un-
fortunately, they had not had time to look into the matter, but
contented themselves with the submission that, after trial and
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conviétion in a court of record, it was not for this court, on habeas
corpus, to look into the legality of the trial proceedings. While
that is true, it is nevertheless to be observed that it does not meet
the objection that, whether the trial and conviction have been legal
or otherwise, the keeper of the prison should have something in
his hands to warrant the custody.

At the hearing, counsel for the petitioner admitted that his
client had been tried upon indictment, and it was intimated to the
parties that the indictment should be put before us, and I take it
that that is a proper course, in such circumstances (R. v. Taylor
(1826), 7 D.& R. 622), though it is for the prosecutor to see that it
is carried out if he wishes to rely on a conviction instead of the
commitment.

As it happens that the petitioner was indicted and tried Ly
jury in the Crown side of this court at Ste. Scholastique, we have
looked at the indictment and it is shewn by it that the petitioner
was therein charged with having shot at one Elliott, with a loaded
gun with intent thereby to murder Elliott, and it also appears that
he was tried, and that a verdict of guilty was given against hinm,
upon which sentence was pronounced.

In these circumstances, it is clear that there is nothing of sul-
stance in the petitioner's pretensions. The warrant to the
respondent, though important machinery, is mere machinery, and,
if defective, it can easily be replaced by another in due form.
If this were a case of a warrant of commitment issued by a magis-
trate, or court of limited jurisdiction, we might appropriately
proceed under s. 1120 of the Code to make an order for further
detention and direct the issue of a better warrant to the respondent.

Is such a course necessary, in view of the fact of the petitioner
having been tried and convicted in this court? The writ does not,
in general, lie when the party is in execution on a criminal charge
after judgment on an indictment according to the course of com-
mon law : Ex parte Lees (1860), El. Bl. & El 827, 120 E.R. 718,

In such a case, the right to hold the prisoner is founded on the
fact of a sentence having been passed by a court of record having
general jurisdiction of the offence charged: See Sproule (1886),
12 Can. S.C.R. 140. .

I consider that, while it is open for us to make an order for
further detention and to direct the issue of a warrant in hetter
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form reciting all the ingredients of the offence charged in the Q_‘E
indictment, that course is unnecessary and would serve no useful K. B.

purpose. Tue Kina
Seeing the proof that there has been a valid conviction on P
indictment in the King's Bench in the ordinary course of law, “AND

and that sentence has been pronounced by that court, I would MALEPART,
quash the habeas corpus and remand the petitioner into respondent’s ~ Crom.J
custody.
Judgment: Having heard the said Tom Flaherty by his counsel
upon the return herein made by the warden of the penitentiary
to the writ of habeas corpus issued out of this court on May 16,
1918, in obedience to which the body of the said Tom Flaherty was
brought before this court; having also heard what was said by
counsel appearing on behalf of the Attorney-General; having seen
the indictment upon which the said petitioner was convicted in
the Crown side of this court; and upon the whole duly deliberated:
It is, by the court now here considered that the said Tom
Flaherty ought not, by reason of anything set forth on his behalf,
to be discharged out of the custody in which he is held, by virtue
of the warrant of commitment mentioned in the said return, and
it is, in consequence, now finally adjudged that the said writ of
habeas corpus be and the same is quashed and the said Tom
Flaherty is remanded into the said custody wherein he has been
held as aforesaid.

ANDERSON v. CANADIAN NORTHERN R. Co.

Supreme Court of Canada, Sir Charles Fitzpatrick, C.J., and Davies, Idington,
Anglin and Brodewr, JJ.  June 25, 1918.

CAN.

y

n

Ramways (§ 11 D —-70)—INJURY TO ANIMALS ATL snae—Nearigence—Wit-
ruL acr—Ranway Acr, R.S.C. 1906, c. 204.

Section 294 of the Railway Aet, R.S.C. 1906, ¢. 37, 5. 204, as amended
by 9-10 Edw. VIL ¢. 50, 8. 8, means that if animals are allowed by their
owner to be at large within une-lmlf mile of the intersection of the ruil-
way and o highway at level, the owner takes the risk upon himself of
uny damages which may be caused to or by them upon the intersection,

and if such dami are caused to the animals, not upon the intersection
but upon the railway property beyond it, the unnlmuy would be liable
unless it established that the Is got at large through the negligence

or wilful act or omission of the owner or his agent.
[See annotations 32 D.L.R. 397, 33 D.L.R. 418, 35 D.L.R. 481

Arrear from the judgment of the Supreme Court of Sas-  Statement,
katchewan en bane (1917), 35 D.L.R. 473, 10 8.L.R. 325, at p.
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Fitapatrick,CJ.

Davies, J.
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334, affirming the judgment of Elwood, J., at the trial, (1917), 33
D.LR. 418, 10 S.L.R. 325, at p. 326, which dismissed the
plaintiffs’ action for damages for horses killed on the railway
tracks of the defendant company. Affirmed.

Chrysler, K.C., for appellant.

Frrzeatrick, C.J.:—1 am of opinion that this appeal should
be diswissed with costs.

Davirs, J.-—This is an appeal from the unaninous judgn.ont
of the Supreme Court of Saskatchewan en bane, confirming the
judgment of the trial judge dismissing plaintifi’s action.

The action was brought to recover damages for the loss or
injury eaused to the plaintifi’s herd of ponies which were killed
upon the railway track either at the intersection of the railway and
the highway at level or upon the track somewhat beyond that
intersection.

The right of the plaintifi.to recover depends in my judgment
upon the copstruction given to s. 204 of the Railway Act of Canady,
as amended in 1910.

A suggestion was made that the section was ultra vires of the
Parliament of Canada and was in conflict with provineial legis-
lation which permitted animals to go at large unless restricted Iy
municipal regulations. 1 cannot for a moment entertain the sug-
gestion of the section being ultra vires nor do I think that it s
necessarily in conflict with the provincial legislation. It simply
means that if animals are allowed by their owner ta be at large
within one-half a mile of the intersection of the railway and «
highway at level the owner takes the risk upon himself of any
damages which may be caused to or by them upon the interscetion,
and if such damages are caused to the animals not upon the inter-
section, but upon the railway property beyond it, the compuny
would be liable for them, unless it established that the animals
got at large through the negligence or wilful act or omission of the owner or
his agent, ete

In the case before us I am strongly inclined to think the
evidence shewed the animals to have been killed at the inter
section of the' railway and the highway. 1f so, the animals being
at large contrary to the provisions of the section, the plaintiff by
the express words of the sub-s. 3 was deprived of any right of
action for their loss.
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If, on the contrary, the animals were killed not at the intersec-
tion but on the railway track beyond it, then the plaintiffs would
have a right of action under the 4th sub-section for damages
caused by their loss, unless the company proved that they were
“at large” by “the negligence or wilful act or omission” of the
owner.

That this was proved is beyond doubt. The plaintiffs admitted
that they allowed the ponies to be at large on a section adjoining
that through which the railway track ran and that they must have
wandered or strayed away till they had got upon the highway and
then on to the intersection of the railway. The trial judge found
these facts on satisfactory evidence to have been proved. In my
judgmwent the animals were beyond doubt at large by the plaintiffs’
“wilful act.” It was not “negligence” on the plaintifis' part
which allowed the animals to get “at large” but the intentional,
ent deliberate act of the plaintifis who allowed them to go at large.
That was the plaintifis’ “wilful act” which when proved by the
con pany deprived them under sub-s. 4 of a right to recover dam-
the uges for the loss of the animals. The result, therefore, in my opinion
is that, if the animals being at large within half a mile of the rail-
way and the highway erossing at level wandered or strayed on to
the railway track and were killed on the intersection, the plaintifis
were deprived by sub-s. 3 of their right of action and if killed
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k‘_l; beyond the intersection on the railway track were also deprived of
”“'« his right of action by sub-s. 4 for their loss, once it was established )
s that the animals were at large by their “wilful act.”

any It was contended that as the cattle-guards had not been main-
ion tained at the intersection as required by s. 254, the company was
- liable whether the animals were killed on the intersection or not,

any und whether they were at large by the plaintifis’ wilful act or not.
nals But I think clearly this is not so. 8. 204 is, in my opinion, a code
ror in itself, with respect to the rights and obligations of the railway

conpany and of the owners of animals killed upon the company’s
track, whether at the intersection of the railway and the highway
level or on other railway property beyond it. 8. 254 is of general
application, but it cannot control or alter the operation of s. 204,
which deals with the particular case now before us and defines
with particularity and care the respective obligations and rights
of the company and the owners of animals at large in the neighbour-
hood of level crossings of railways and highways.
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IpinaToN, J.:—The decision of this appeal ought to turn upon
the effect to be given to s. 204 (5). The whole section reads, s
amended by 9 & 10 Edw. VIL, ¢. 50, s. 8, as follows:—

204. No horses, sheep, swine or other cattle shall be permitted to be u
large upon any highway, within half a mile of the intersection of such highwy
with any railway at rail level, unless they are in charge of some competen
person or persons, to prevent their loitering or gtopping on such highway «
such intersection, or straying upon the railway.

2. All horses, sheey,, swine or other cattle found at large contray to the
provisions of this section may, by any person who finds them at large, 1o
impounded in the pound nearest to the place where they are so found, and the
poundkeeper with whom the same are impounded shall detain them in like
manner, and subjeet to like regulations as to the care and disposal thereof, i
in the case of cuttle impounded for trespass on private property.

3. If the horses, sheep, swine or other cattle of any person, which are o
large contrary to the provisions of this section, are killed or injured by wny
train, at such point of intersection, he shall not have rny right of action against
any company in respect of the same being so killed or injured.

4. When any horses, sheep, swine or other cattle at large, whether upon
the highway or not, get upon the property of the company, and by reason
thereof damage is caused to or by such animal, the party suffering such damuge
shall, except in the cases otherwise provided for by the next following section,
be entitled to recover the amount of such damage against the company iv an
action in any court of competent jurisdiction, unless the company establishes
that such animal got at large through the negligence or wilful act or omission
of the owner or his agent, or of the custodian of such animal or his agent;
Provided, however, that nothing herein shall be taken or construed as relieving
any person from the penalties imposed by s. 407 of this Act (9 & 10 Fdw
VIL, ¢. 50, 8. 8).

5. The fact that any such animal was not in charge of some competent
person or persons shall not, if the animal was killed or injured upon the
property of the company, and not at the point of intersection with the higl
way, deprive the owner of his right to recover.

The owner is given by s. 4, a right of action unless the company
prove that the animal got at large through negligence or wilful ac(
or omcission of the owner or his agent.

Does sub-s. 5 dispense with this right of the company when its
default causes the accident? Or is it only limited in its operation
to the requirements of sub-s. 1, imposing the duty of providing
some competent person to be in charge?

The common sense of sub-s. 5 in depriving the company of 2
defence, when animals not killed on the highway but on the railway
track by reason of the company’s default in not observing the luw,
suggests it ought to have been made to apply to all such cases.

I incline, however, to think parliament has failed to so express
itself and that the latter or second class is only what is covered,
and not the former.
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That would not prevent the operation of the exception in sub-s.
4 in favour of the company.

The case of Canadian Pacific R. Co. v. Eggleston (1905), 36 Can.
S.C.R. 641, wherein it was decided that the owner of a band of
horses, though in a sense in charge, which, in 1902, strayed upon an
unfenced railway track, had no remedy for their slaughter by the
defendant’s train, I imogine led to this attempt to bring the law in
harmony with due regard by railway companies for the rights of
others.

I regret that the effort at amendment seen s to have partially
wiscarried,

I eannot say the court below is wrong in the holding that an
awner leaving his horses at large on an unfenced section of land
falls within sance.

I agree the legislation of the local legislature cannot invade the
express declaration of parlian ent in a railway Act such as that in
question.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.

ANGLIN, J.:—T agree with Davies, J.

Broveur, J.:—1 agree with Idington, J.

Appeal dismissed.

McKINLAY v. MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE Co.

British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., and Martin,
MecPhillips and Eberts, JJ.A. October 1, 1918.

MonicipAL CORPORATIONS (§ 11 C—50)—By-LAW-—PROTECTION AGAINST FIRE
—INTERPRETATION—NOT APPLICABLE TO OTHER ACCIDENT,

A by-law of the city of \un(uu\vr and the legislative authority to
make it ‘‘for all lands, buildi and yards to be put in other
respects in a safe condition to guard against fire and other dangerous
risk and accident” (Vancouver Incorporation Act. (1886), ¢. 328, 142,
8.8, 54 as amended by statutes of 1887, ¢. 37, 8. 17) and by-law 941, s. 37,
in part as follows: “Shall have all puhlu halls stairways and passagew! ays
properly lighted,” must be considered only with reference to fire protec-
tion fmnl cannot be invoked in case of an accident not being referable
to a fire.

ArreaL by plaintiff from judgment of Cayley, Co. J.

Craig, for appellant; Robert Smith, for respondent.

MacponaLp, C.J.A.:—I agree with the County Court Judge
in his reasons for judgment.

Apart from the by-law there can be no doubt that the action
was not maintainable. I think the by-law was meant to protect
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the occupants of such a building as the one in question from person-
al injury by fire, by requiring the owner to provide fire escapes
with indicating lights and with other lights in the halls and cor-
ridors to assist the occupants to find the exits. It was not intended,
if indeed the municipality had the power to so legislate, to cast on Bawx
the owner a burden for the protection or convenience of either Hart
occupants or strangers in finding their way about the halls, cor- ]
ridors and stairways when a fire was not threatened nor in progress. expr

I would, therefore, dismiss the appeal. of wl
MagriN, J.A., dismissed the appeal. appn
McPuiLuirs, J.A. (dissenting) :—The trial judge in the Mier
language of Darling, J., in Lewis v. Ronald (1909), 26 T.L.R. 30, great

at 31, “has given most careful consideration to this case,” but | conti
am unable with respect to arrive at the same conclusion at which unde
he did when he refused to enter judgment for the appellant upon what
the jury’s general verdict in favour of the plaintiffi. The verdict coun
of the jury was in the following terms:— assis

The jury find that plaintiff is entitled to dainages on account of injuries build
received through falling down an improperly lighted staircase.

Damages: operation, $100; hospital fees, $100, approximately; truss £3; Fh(‘ A
time lost, $90; inconvenience, ete., $307 equal $600. ing, |
The respondent acquiring the reversion, the Order of the Elks and
became tenants upon the same terms with the respondent, and the wher

no lig

const

plaintiff was a member of the Order entitled and invited to go upon,
the premises (see Foa (5th ed., 1914); Brydges v. Lewis, (1842) 3
Q.B. 603 114 E.R. 639).

The trial judge, in a considered judgment, has reviewed the
law bearing upon the question for consideration and has very suffe
elaborately referred to and distinguished cases of a like or analogous upon
nature, and it cannot be said that the law is at all clear when the upon
special facts of the present case are considered. The judge con- for
cluded his judgment by saying:— Open

For the reasons given and on the authority of the cases cited, more par- appe

ticularly the case of Lewis v. Ronald, I think I must grant the non-suit and coulc
enter judgment for the defendant. light

Leuns v. Ronald was a decision of the King's Bench Division requi
(Darling and Bucknill, JJ.) and with unfeigned respect to the court,
that decision, in my opinion, cannot be held to detract from or
affect the decision of the Court of Appeal in England in Miller v.
Hancock, [1893] 2 Q.B. 177, a case which has received a very great

unaw
was \

the s
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deal of consideration in the following amongst other cases: Har-
groves v. Hartopp, [1905] 1 K.B. 472; Williams v. Gabriel, [1906]
1 ' K.B. 155; Cavalier v. Pope, [1906] A.C. 428; Malone v. Laskey,
[1907] 2 K.B. 141; Huggett v. Miers, [1908] 2 K.B. 278; Lucy v.
Bawden, [1914] 2 K.B. 318; Dobson v. Horsley, [1915] 1 K.B. 634;
Hart v. Rogers, [1916] 1 K.B. 646.

In the present case unquestionably the respondent, *‘either
expressly or by implication,” undertook with the tenants, the Elks,
of which Order the plaintiff was a member, “to keep in repairan
approach to the demised premises.”” (Farwell, L.J., in Huggett v.
Miers, [1908] 2 K.B. 278.) The counsel for the respondent relied
greatly on Cavalier v. Pope, [1906] A.C. 428; here there was the
control of the staircase by the landlord and the lighting of it was
undertaken by and as 1 consider obligatory on the landlord—see
what Lord Atkinson said at p.433. With reference to the learned
counsel, I eannot see any forcefulness in that case in the way of
assisting the respondent—rather it assists the appellant. The
building is a very large modern and up-to-date office building in
the city of Vancouver. It is true there is an elevator in the build-
ing, but there is also a staircase, and the respondent is in control
and charge of the staircase, and lights the same, and at the floor
where the accident took place, at the time of the accident, there was
no light. At that point in the staircase, the stairs were differently
constructed. The appellant in coming down from the floor above,
unaware of the difference of construction at this last floor which
was unlighted, the other floor being lighted, stepped into space and
suffered personal injuries. Can it be said that there is no liability
upon these facts? In my opinion if there was no obligation
upon the appellant to take the elevator, and there is evidence that
for some reason it was either not in commission, that is being
operated at the time, or there was some undue delay, and the
appellant, quite within his rights, proceeded down the staircase, and
could reasonably have expected that the staircase would have been
lighted, and at all hours of the night. This is not an unreasonable
requirement in these modern days, considering modern conditions,
the stamp of building and the size and importance of the city of
Vancouver. Then the by-law is not to be overlooked, and the
legislative authority to make the same which reads: “54. For
causing all lands, buildings and yards to be put in other respects in
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i a safe condition to guard against fire and other dangerous risk and Gen'l
C. A, accident.” (Vancouver lucorporation Act B.C. (1886), c. 32, adapl
MJ\-KL“ 8. 142, sub-s. 54, as amended by statutes of 1887, ¢. 37, 8. 17) and 1
Ml'z"ru. by-law 941, s. 37, in part reads: ““Shall have all public halls, stair- E
Lare ways and passageways properly lighted.”
. ASSURANCE . g g
Co. I cannot agree that this by-law must be considered only with
MecPhillips, 5.4, Teference to fire prevention, and that the accident, not being refer Onte
able to a fire, cannot be invoked. In my opinion, there was here
a breach of a statutory condition, and its breach imports negligen e, Mo~y

and gives a cause of action. See Groves v. Wimborne, [1898] 2 ().
402; Britannic M. Coal Co. v. David, [1910] A.C. 74; Butler . I'ifi

Coal Co., [1912] A.C. 149; Watkins v. Naval Coll. Co., [1912] \ (', by
693; Jones v. C.P.R. (1913), 13 D.L.R. 900, 30 O.L.R. 331; Holborn p
Union Co. v. St. Leonard (1876), 2 Q.B. 145, 27 Hals. Laws of :‘l'
England, p. 174. C

There was, upon the facts of the present case, a concealed dan- {:‘
ger. It is not necessary to, in detail, refer to the decided cases at :‘r
any great length. It would appear to me that there has heen T
established a legal responsibility for the unfortunate happening. lli
The appellant was the sufferer by reason of the neglect of the \,
respondent. There was, in effect, a concealed danger, and there C

was a duty to warn and to have proper safeguards. These

were not provided, and there was a breach of what, in effect, 3 :
was a statutory duty. (See Hayward v. Drury Lane, [1917] 2 = _“
K.B. 899; Maclenan v. Segar, [1917] 2 K.B. 325.) 1 would refer A
to the very recent case of Kimber v. Gas Light and Coke Co., [1918] M
1 K.B. 439. N

And I would refer in particular to the language of Bankes, 1..J., od it
at p. 445, and Serutton, L.J., at pp. 446, 447. Further, the general which
verdict of the jury is not to be lightly overthrown, unless there mvic‘
be some error in law, and I do not find that there is any error in with |
law. See Lord Loreburn in the Kleinwort case (1907), 23 T.L.R. i
696. at p. 697. ‘Tl

In these modern days, staircases, elevators and other modern e d
conveniences must be kept safe. They are virtual highways. o
Thousands are housed in the skyscrapers of the modern city, and fall w
huge rents are derived from tenants. It is justice and right that S
there should be liability upon the landlord. Lord Shaw in A/l's- T

Engli:




A N 43 D.LR. DominioNn Law Reports.

and Gen'l v. Nigeria, [1915] A.C. 599, said at p. 617: “The law must

32, adapt itself to the conditions of modern society and trade o

and I would allow the appeal. McPhillips, JA.
air- Eserts J.A., dismissed the appeal. Appeal dismissed. Eberts, I.A.
ith MACKAY v. CITY OF TORONTO.

fer Ontario Supreme Court, A ppellate Division, Maclaren, Magee and Hodgins,

\ere JJ.A., Riddell, J., and Ferguson, J.A. Aprid 26, 1918.

10 Mon1ciPAL CORPORATIONS (§ TTI-—286)—INSTRUCTIONS GIVEN BY MAYOR TO
DO CERTAIN WORK—COUNCIL'S REFUSAL TO PAY—NO EXECUTED CON-
L. TRACT — RATIFICATION BY BY-LAW —MISCONCEPTION OF WORK RE-
it QUIRED. ‘
J The plaintiff, an accountant, was instructed by the Mayor of Toronto
: by letter to examine the books of the Toronto Electrie Light Company
“‘and give me a report of the company as an accountant shewing the
orn pmbnl')"e financial results if the city takes over the company’s business
and operates at the present load of about 30,000 h. p.’’ These instrue-
tions were afterwards extended to include also the Toronto Railway
Company. Nosum was agreed upon as remuneration. The negotiations
for purchase having failed, the plaintiff sent in a bill for $42,546.50
- which the council refused to pay, and the plaintiff then brought action
to recover this sum. The court held that there was no executed con-
tract in the sense that the council, knowing the facts, had accepted or
en ratified the act of the Mayor, such ratification would have to be by by-
law, upon full knowledge of the facts. The plaintifi had misconceived
the nature of the work required to be done and could not recover.
[Waterous Engine Works Co. v. Town of Palmerston (1892), 21 Can.
S.C.R. 556, followed; Pim v. Municipal Council of Ontario (1855), 9 U.
C.C.P. 304, distinguished.|

A~ appeal by the plaintiff from the judgment of MippLETON, J.,  Statement.
39 O.L.R. 34. Affirmed.

A. W. Anglin, K.C., and Glyn Osler, for appellant.

A. C. McMaster and C. M. Colquhoun, for respondent.

MacrareNn, J.A.:—This is an appeal by the plaintiff from
a decision of Middleton, J., of the 26th February, 1917, report-
ed in full in 39 O.L.R. 34, dismissing the plaintifi’s action,
which had been brought to recover $42,546.50 for professional
services as an accountant and for disbursements in connection
with a proposed purchase by the defendants of the Toronto Rail-
way Company and the Toronto Electric Light Company.

The broad ground on which the judgment was based was, that
the defendants had never contracted with the plaintiff under seal
or as required by the Municipal Act, and that the case did not
fall within the class of cases in which such a formality might be
dispensed with.

The trial Judge has carefully reviewed the leading recent
English and Canadian cases which bear upon the points involved,
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and I quite agree with the conclusions at which he has arrived, as
to the general result of the authorities and as to the effect of the
evidence.

It was strongly urged upon us by Mr. Anglin that the case of other
Pim v. Municipal Council of Ontario (1855), 9 U.C.C.P. 302, 304, matt

. which was not considered or referred to by the trial Judge, was matt
applicable to the present case, and is binding upon us as an in th
authority. It is perhaps a sufficient answer to say that our previ
statute-law on the subject differs widely from that in forece when been

the Pim case arose, and that we are bound by the decision of the prope
Supreme Court of Canada in the case of Waterous Engine Works maki
Co. v. Town of Palmerston (1892), 21 Can. 8.C.R. 556, determined accep
under a statute practically similar to that in force when the present mend
case arose. to th

It was also argued that this case comes within the class of cases
in which it has been held that, where a contract has been entered
into by or on behalf of a corporation, without being under seal or the ¢i
without the observance of some other required formality, the plain- the fe
tiff would nevertheless be entitled to recover if it had been fully
carried out and the corporation had benefited by it. Mr. Anglin tion v
cited a number of cases to establish this proposition, and to shew plain
the distinction made in the cases between those that were fully
executed and those that were merely executory. An examination positi
of these cases shews that, where the plaintiff succeeded, the con- Maya
tracts under consideration had been made either with the govern-
ing body of the corporation, such as the council or board, or by convil
its duly authorised agent or agents, or had been duly ratified. In inap
the present case it cannot be said that the council had any know-

ledge that any such contract had been made with the plaintifi as At
he now claims, and the testimony of the Mayor, of which the trial his vl
Judge expresses his “full and unqualified acceptance,” shews that receiv
he had no idea that he was entering into any such contract in his such r

dealings and communications with the plaintiff; and, even if he opinig
had, it had not been fully carried out and could by no means be
called an executed contract. The only report made by the
plaintiff was designated by him an “interim report,” and the final
report had not been made even at the time of the trial. Nor can judgm
it be said that the defendants had in any way benefited by it. The Th
only part of the work or material by which the defendants might detail,
ultimately have benefited was the information derived from the take ¢
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as books of the companies, and that he received under a promise of
secrecy, and no part of it was communicated to the defendants.
In a number of the cases the requirement of a seal or some
other formality was held dispensed with on account of the subject-
matter of the contract being comparatively unimportant, or a
a8 matter of routine or of frequent occurrence. There is no evidence
in this case nor is it at all probable that the plaintiff had ever
previously been called to advise where the sum of $30,000,000 had
been even thought of or mentioned as the possible value of the
property in question, or that he had ever previously thought of
making a charge of $100,000 in the event of his advice being
accepted and the campaign in favour of the purchase recom-
mended resulting favourably; and it was probably equally novel
to the city council.

s He was asked and urged by the Mayor, at the outset, to give
an estimate of what his work would cost, and was informed that
the city council had first voted $5,000 and afterwards $10,000 for
the fees and disbursement of the other experts, Ross and Arnold;
and the inference is, that the Mayor expected that his remunera-
tion would be somewhat on the same scale, and apparently the
plaintiff did nothing to remove this impression.

I am of opinion that the plaintiff entirely misconceived his
n position and what was required of him. He was requested by the
Mayor practically to furnish him with the material which from the
point of view of a financial business and man would be useful in
convincing the city council, the electors, and others to be influenced
in a prospective campaign in favour of the purchase by the defend-
e ants of the two companies in question.

At the trial, the Judge was requested by both parties to express
his view as to the amount which the plaintiff would be entitled to
receive, in the event of his right to recover being established. No
such request was made to us, so that I refrain from expressing any
opinion respecting the sum named by the trial Judge.

In my opinion, the appeal should be dismissed.

Maceg, J.A., agreed with MAcLAREN, J.A.

Riopewy, J.:—This is an appeal by the plaintiff from the
judgment of Mr. Justice Middleton at the trial, 39 O.L.R. 34.
The facts are set out in the reasons for judgment in some
detail, and most of them are not in dispute. In the view which I
take of the case, it is not necessary to disbelieve or discredit the
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plaintiff, or even to discount his statements; he seems to me to
disprove his own case.
It must be obvious that the employment of the plaintiff was
not of that trivial or everyday character which the cases enable
us to hold sufficient without a formal contract or by-law.
The plaintiff (assuming as I do his perfect honesty) clearly

as on
be be
the p
which
well «

a reas

understood that he was being employed to give an opinion of the Hi
advisability, from a practical and business point of view, of a pur- Fi
chase involving $30,000,000; that it was his opinion that would learne
prevail with the Mayor, and, through the Mayor and other means, sued 1
with the council responsible for the policy of the city. It is quite 21Ca
clear that he expected to be better paid if the scheme should go as de
through thanif it should fail; and it is equally clear that he, very condi
early and before he could possibly have examined into the situation (Onta
with any degree of fullness, began to prepare for an aceeptance of rightl;
the scheme. Couns

He was convineed (and reminded the Mayor) of “the import- of Ca
ance and necessity of convineing the Provincial Commission and essent
the public of the wisdom and advantages of the proposed purchuse.” tract,
Indeed from the very beginning he assumed his employment to be Counce
to find reasons why the scheme should go through. Whether it of Otta
was within the powers of the council to employ any one for these cases:
purposes—and I am inclined to think it was not—the employment Error
was of such an extraordinary nature that it called for the utmost Court
formality. appea

I do not think it necessary to go into the distinetion (if any) and t]
between executed and executory contracts in this connection. autho|
The law cannot be said to be in a perfectly satisfactory state, and See th
probably-the last word has not been said. There was no exccuted Munic
contract in the sense that the council, knowing the facts, accepted Wimb,
the results of the plaintifi’s labours. He had not even furnished of Lea
what he set out to do—his “final report” was never delivered. Distrit
Any acceptance there was, was without a knowledge of the facts— As
and any so-called ratification was in the same condition. No 1014,
council would pay the slightest attention to the argument of an Court
expert, however able or eminent, who expected $100,000 if his counse
advice were followed, but only $37,500 if it were rejected. overry

I would dismiss the appeal. In

I should add that the amount fixed by Mr. Justice Middleton attent

19-
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as on a quantum meruit, i.e., $7,500, seems reasonable, and I should
be better satisfied if the defendants would pay that sum. While
the plaintiff certainly magnified his office and took a position to
which he was not rightfuily entitled, his work seems to have been
well done; and it would not be unfair to consider payment of
a reasonable fee.

Hobains, J.A., agreed with RippeLy, J.

Fereuson, J.A.:—Counsel for the appellant urged that the
learned trial Judge, having failed to appreciate that the contract
sued upon in Waterous Engine Works Co. v. Town of Palmerston,
21 Can.8.C.R. 556, was executory, erroncously interpreted that case
as deciding that a by-law and contract under seal were essential
conditions precedent to the validity of every municipal contract
(Ontario), whether executed or executory, whereas that decision,
rightly understood, must be limited to executory contracts.
Counsel conceded that there are no decisions in the Supreme Court
of Canada holding that a by-law and sealed document are not
essential conditions precedent to recovery on an executed con-
tract, but urged that it had been so decided in Pim v. Municipal
Council of Ontario, 9 U.C.C.P. 304, followed in Perry v. Corporation
of Ottawa (1864), 23 U.C.Q.B.391,and in a number of other Ontario
cases: that the Pim judgment, being an opinion of the Court of
Error and Appeal, was binding upon the trial Judge, and upon this
Court, and should be followed, even though that decision might
appear to be in conflict with the provisions of the Municipal Act
and the weight of judicial opinion in England, as shewn by the
authorities referred to and quoted by the learned trial Judge.
See the Interpretation Act, R.8.0. 1914, ch. 1, sec 27 (a); the
Municipal Act, R.8.0. 1914, ch. 192, secs. 8, 10, 249; Hunt v.
Wimbledon Local Board (1878), 4 C.P.D. 48; Young v. Corporation
of Leamington (1883), 8 App. Cas. 517; Hoare v. Kingsbury Urban
District Council, [1912] 2 Ch. 452.

As I understand the provisions of the Judicature Act, R.8.0.
1914, ch. 56, this Court is bound by the decisions of the former
Court of Error and Appeal; and, if the Pim case decided what
counsel elaims for it, and is not distinguishable or has not been
overruled, we must follow it.

In Silsby v. Village of Dunnville (1883), 8 A.R. (Ont.) 524, 529,
attention is called to a statement contained in the opinion of
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Hagarty, J., in the Pim case, where (9 U.C.C.P. at p. 311) he
says:—

“The defendants’ (the Provisional Municipal Council of the
County of Ontario) “were incorporated for the express purpose of
erecting a gaol and court house, and were declared ‘to have 4l
corporate powers necessary for the purpose of carrying into effect
the object of their erection under such provisional municipal
council, and none other.” Nothing is said in the statutes as to
their having a corporate seal, or how they are to contract.”

A perusal of the opinions in the Pim case shews that the
transactions there in question took place in 1852 and 1853, und
therefore several years before the passing of the Municipal Insti-
tutions Act of 1858, 22 Vict. ch. 99; and, though the case is not
reported until 1860, none of the learned Judges who took part in
the judgment upon the appeal treated that case as being in any
way governed or affected by sec. 186 of 22 Viet. ch. 99, which in
its provisions is similar to, though not identical with, the sections
of our present Municipal Act, R.S.0. 1914, ch. 192, sec. 249 (1)
of which reads as follows:—

“Except where otherwise provided, the jurisdiction of every
council shall be confined to the municipality which it represents
and its powers shall be exercised by by-law.”

The opinion in the Pim case appears to have been based
upon an Act authorising, among other things, the creation of
corporate bodies known as Provisional Municipal Councils,
enacted in 1849, and being 12 Viet. ch. 78. Section 13 of that
Act reads:—

“And be it enacted, that e¢vory such Provisional Municipal
Council shall be a body corpo by the name of the Provisional
Municipal Council of the Couiiy of , and assuch, shall
have all corporate powers necessary for the purpose of carrving
into effect the object of their erection into such Provisional
Municipal Council as herein provided, and none other.”

A perusal of the Act confirms the statement of Hagarty,J.,
““that nothing is said in the statutes as to their having a corporate
seal, or how they are to contract,” from which it follows that only
the common law requirement of a seal would be neceszary to
evidence corporate action.

Under these circumstances, it seems to me that the Pim case
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must be classed with those cases in which there is said to be no
express statutory provision requiring corporate action to be
evidenced either by by-law or seal: South of Ireland Colliery Co. v.
Waddle (1868), L.R. 3 C.P. 463; Douglass v. Rhyl Urban District
Council, [1913] 2 Ch. 407; Lawford v. Billericay Rural District
Council, [1903] 1 K.B. 772,

In the case at bar we are dealing with the effect of express
statutory provisions; and, therefore, it seems to me the Pim case
cannot be considered as deciding the question in issue, which
is, do these statutory requirements bring the case at bar
within the principles enunciated in Huntv. Wimbledon Local Board,
Young v. Corporation of Leamington, and Hoare v. Kingsbury
Urban Distriet Council (supra)?

As the contract in the Waterous case was declared to be execu-
tory, any statements in the reasons for judgment in reference to
executed contracts should, I think, be treated as not necessary to
the decision and as mere obiter dicta; but I do not think that we
may, for that reason alone, disregard that judgment, or the opinions
therein expressed.

The authorities are so well collected in the reasons of the trial
Judge and in the judgments delivered in the Supreme Court of
Canada in Bernardin v. Municipality of North Dufferin (1891),
19 Can. 8.C.R. 581, and in the Waterous case, that it would be a
waste of time and effort for me to attempt to review them. I will
content myself with saying that, as I read these opinions and the
citations therein, they establish that where there are no express
statutory provisions requiring a seal or by-law the Court may and
does dispense with the common law formality of a seal in respect
to corporation contracts which have been fully executed, and are,
in the opinion of the Court, within the power of the corporation
to enter into as being for work or material necessary or proper
for the conduct of the business for which the corporation was
created; but that the Court cannot dispense with a seal or by-law,
if such requirement is statutory, and such statutory requirement
is, in the opinion of the Court, imperative, and not merely per-
missive or directory, that the proof of compliance with such a
statutory provision is as essential in an action to enforce payment
of the consideration for an executed contract as it is to the
establishment or enforcement of an executory contract.
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All the learned Judges who wrote opinions in the Waterous
case were of the opinion that the provisions of the Ontario
Municipal Act requiring a by-law under seal were imperative;
but Gwynne, J., was of the opinion that they only applied when
the municipal corporation was exercising its legislative or statutory
powers, and did not apply when the corporation was exercising
its administrative or common law powers.

The learned authors of Meredith’s Municipal Manual, 1917,
at p. 15 of their work, express the opinion that the reasoning of
Mr. Justice Gwynne in his dissenting opinion in the Waterous case
is unanswerable; while I think the adoption of the view
there expressed would render the Municipal Aet more workalle
than the result at which I am arriving, yet it seems to me
that the majority of the Court expressly rejected that view, and
decided that these statutory requirements were essential pre-
requisites to the exercise by the municipal corporation of both
its legislative and administrative powers; and, if that be the
correct view of the opinion of the Supreme Court of Canada, we
are, I take it, not concerned with whether the result is reasonable
or unreasonable, wise or unwise. We should follow that in-
terpretation till the opinion is overruled by a higher Court or the
Act is amended by the Legislature. See the opinion of Lennox,
J., in Bradshaw v. Conlin (1917), 40 O.L.R. 494, at p. 499, 39
D.L.R. 86, at p. 90.

In the Bernardin case, the statutory requirements of the
Manitoba Act-were held to be permissive or directory, while in
the Waterous case the requirements of the Ontario statute were,
in my view, held to be imperative; and that difference seems to
meto determine, in favour of the respondents, the erucial point in the
case at bar, and necessitates our affirming, on this question of
law, the opinion of the learned trial Judge. See Manning v. City
of Winnipeg (1911), 21 Man. L.R. 203.

I am also of the opinion that the plaintiff has not made out a
case of adoption or ratification by the city council sufficient to
establish a contract to pay.

A perusal of the correspondence, whereby the scope of the
plaintiff’s retainer by the Mayor was enlarged, convinces me that
the Mayor and the plaintiff had entirely different views as to the
real nature and extent of the work and services which the plaintiff
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would undertake and the remuneration he would seek or receive
therefor, and that the Mayor did not appreciate the extent of the
retainer which the plaintiff in this correspondence sought to obtain
from him. That such is the case appears to justify what has
been stated as the reason for enacting and maintaining as impera-
tive even in executed contracts these statutory prerequisites to
the contracts of certain corporate bodies. See the opinion of
Lord Bramwell in Young v. Corporation of Leamington, 8 App. Cas.
at p. 528, quoted by the learned trial Judge as follows:—

“The Legislature has made provisions for the protection of
ratepayers, shareholders, and others, who must act through the
agency of a representative body, by requiring the observance of
certain solemnities and formalities which involve deliberation and
reflection. That is the importance of the seal. It is idle to say
there is no magic in a wafer. It continually happens that care-
lessness and indifference on the one side, and the greed of gain on
the other, cause a disregard of these safeguards, and improvident
engagements are entered into.”

It is also clear from the evidence of the Mayor that he intended
that the services to be rendered by the plaintiff should be limited
s0 as to bring the cost thereof to the defendants in the neighbour-
hood of $5,000. It is equally clear that the plaintiff coutemplated
the earning of a much larger fee, and intended that his remunera-
tion should be much more in case the defendants entered into the
proposed purchase than it would be if the purchase was not com-
pleted. By assuming this attitude, the plaintiff, to my mind,
placed himself in a position where his interest must necessarily
conflict with his duty. It is not asserted that the plaintiff dis-
closed his intention to the city council, and it seems to me that,
before the plaintiff can succeed or we can say that the city council
was satisfied to and did receive, ratify, and adopt the plaintiff's
work and report as the work and report of a trustworthy, com-
petent, unbiased adviser, it must be established that they had
knowledge that the plaintiff did the work and prepared the report
with the intention of making a larger claim in the event of the
completion of the proposed purchase than he would make in case
the council and the ratepayers of the municipality refused to
exercise their option. I do not wish to be understood as saying
that the plaintifi’s opinion was necessarily or actually biased by
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the views he admits he entertained as to the manner in which the
amount of his remuneration should or would be fixed. It may
not have been influenced in the least; but whether it was or was
not must be, I think, a question on which the members of the city
council have a right to exercise their judgment and form un
opinion before we can say that they have ratified, adopted, or
knowingly received and enjoyed the benefit of the plaintifi’s
labours and advice, so that we may presume, as against them and
the city corporation, an agreement to pay.

It is not necessary for me to deal exhaustively with the sum
mentioned by the learned trial Judge as a proper remuneration
for the plaintifi’s work in case he is found entitled to succeed. I
am not impressed, however, with the view that the fee or remunera-
tion of a competent, trustworthy, unbiased expert as to
whether or not a municipal corporation should enter into a
transaction involving such a large amount of money as was
involved in the proposed purchase of the properties and franchises
of the Toronto Electric Light Company and the Toronto Railway
Company, should be fixed by considering the amount of time he
expended in preparing the opinion or in the length of the opinion
prepared. Once it is established that the employers were satisfied
that the adviser had the proper qualifications to advise and did
advise in such a transaction, not as an advocate, but as an unbiased
expert, then the fee or remuneration allowed him should be on a
liberal scale.

I would dismiss the appeal with costs.

Appeal dismissed.

GREEN v. HENNEGHAN,
Alberta Supreme Court, Walsh, J. November 8, 1918.

Summary convicTIONS (§ VI—65)—CoMMON ASSAULT—TRIAL BY JUSTICE—
PROTECTION FROM SUBSEQUENT CIVIL PROCEEDINGS—OCRIMINAL
Copg, src. 734,

Sec. 734 of the Criminal Code applies only to summary convictions,
therefore it is only one who has been tried by a justice upon a clurge
of common assault—which is the only kind of assault punishable on
summary convietion—who can claim protection from subsequent civil

roceedings.

One who has been tried summarily for one of the indictable offences
!Ylwiﬁed in sec. 773(c) is entitled to immunity under sec. 792 *‘[rom
all further or other criminal proceedings for the same cause,’’ but not
from civil proceedings.

[Nevills v. Ballard (1897), 28 O.R. 588, followed.]

43D

A
|l
dant
‘l
assat
pleac
his b
ceedi
was |
jurisc
fine ¢
and |
posec
by n
the (
thus
givin
ignor
that
any |
the q
and d
agree
solicit
has b
sayin|
contel
they 1
Tl
enabl
a que
before
tion &
find i
was p
justiee
from t
matiol
to the
offenes




43 DLR)] DominioN Law Reports.

Actiox for damages for an assault.

Watt & Watt, for plaintiff, Corey, Locke & Thomas, for defen-
dant.

WaisH, J.:—The plaintifi’s action is for damages for an
assault committed upon him by the defendant. The defendant
pleads, inter alia, that the plaintiff ‘‘laid or caused to be laid on
his behalf an information against the defendant in eriminal pro-
ceedings with respect to the assault complained of,’’ and that he
was tried for said offence before two justices of the peace having
jurisdiction therein and convicted thereof and ordered to pay a
fine and costs and to enter into a recognizance to keep the peace
and be of good behaviour, and that he has paid the fine so im-
posed and the costs and has entered into the said recognizance
by reason whereof the plaintifi’s claim is barred by s. 734 of
the Criminal Code. The plaintiff, by his reply, admits the facts
thus alleged except the payment of the fine and costs and the
giving of the said recognizance, as to the truth whereof he pleads
ignorance, and puts the defendant to proof thereof, and avers
that such conviction and payment do not constitute, at law,
any bar to the action. The order for directions provides that
the question of law thus raised shall be set down for argument
and determination before a judge, and the solicitors subsequently
agreed that I should dispose of it on written arguments. The
solicitors for the plaintiff have sent me their argument but none
has been sent in for the defendant. Instead, they have written
saying that they do not intend filing any, and that they are quite
content to leave the matter for my decision upon the pleadings as
they now stand.

The pleadings, unfortunately, are not in such a shape as to
enable me to properly dispose of the question as it is raised. When
a question of law arising upon the pleadings is to be determined
before the trial, all of the facts necessary for its proper determina-
tion should be set out in them. That is not the case here. I
find it quite impossible from the pleadings to say what charge
was preferred by the plaintiff against the defendant before these
justices or what offence he was convicted of. All that I can gather
from them is that he was convicted of the chargeset out in the infor-
mation, and that it was laid ‘‘in eriminal proceedings with respect
to the assault complained of.”” It is admitted that it was for an
offence over which the justices had jurisdiction and it must,
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therefore, have been either one punishable on summary convic-
tion, or an indictable offence which they had power to summarily
try. The question which I have to dispose of stands to be deter-
mined according to my-view of it by the character of the offence
with which he was so charged, and of which he was so convicted
and for this reason I think it should have been set out in the
defence with some degree of care. A copy of the notes of the
proceedings before the justices has been sent to me by the plain-
tifi’s solicitors, and a statement of the facts in this connection
appears in their argument, but upon such a motion as this I cannot
look elsewhere than at the pleadings themsc|ves for the facts upon
which the question of law is to be determinc.

I think, however, that I can deal with the question in another
way which will enable me to dispose of it. 'This defence is sct
up in bar to the action, and to make it a good defence it should
disclose such facts as are necessary to shew that, in the face of
them, the plaintiffi cannot maintain his action. If it fails to do
that, it is not a good plea. And so, if, as a matter of law, a con-
viction of the defendant by justices having jurisdiction *‘with
respect to the assault complained of’’ followed by the payiient
of the whole amount adjudged to be paid releases the defendant
from civil liability regardless of the exact character of the offence
with which he was charged and of which he was convicted, the
plea is well pleaded. But if, on the other hand, such a defence
is only available when the offence is of a certain specified character,
then the plea is bad for not shewing upon its face that the defend-
ant was charged with and convicted of such an offence.

8. 734 of the Code enacts that

If the person against whom any such information has been laid by or on
behalf of the person aggrieved . . . having been convicted pays the whole

amount adjudged to be paid . . . he shall be released from all further
or other proceedings, civil or eriminal, for the same cause.

The information mentioned in this section obviously refers to the
information spoken of in the immediately preceding s. 733, namely,
one laid by or on behalf of the party aggrieved in ‘‘any case of
assault or battery.”’ It is to be found in Part XV. of the Code,
which deals only with summary convictions. Part XVI. deals
with the summary trial of indictable offences. 8. 773 (¢), con-
tained in this part, confers jurisdiction upon a magistrate (which
term in this province includes any two justices) to hear and deter-
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mine, subject to the subsequent provisions of Part XVI., a charge
of unlawful wounding or inflicting grievous bodily harm upon
any other person either with or without a weapon or instrument.

8. 792, which is also one of the sections of Part XVI., provides that
every person who obtains a certificate of dismissal or is convieted under the
provisions of this part shall be released from all further or other criminal
proceedings for the same eause.

I am of the opinion that s. 734 only applies to summary con-
victions and, therefore, that it is only one who has heen tried by
a justice upon a charge of common assault, which is the only kind
of assault punishable on summary conviction, who can claim its
protection from subsequent civil proceedings. If that is the case
here, the defendant is entitled to the benefit of this section. One
who has been tried summarily for one of the indictable offences
specified in s, 773 (e) is entitled to immunity under s. 792 “‘from
all further or other criminal proceedings for the same cause,”’
but that is all.  1f, therefore, the accused was charged and con-
victed under s. 773 (¢), his only release is from further criminal
proceedings. This is apparently the view taken of it by the
Divisional Court in Ontario in Nevills v. Ballard, (1897) 28 0.R. 588,
and it is to my mind the only view to which it is open.

I think, therefore, that this paragraph, as it stands, is not well
pleaded because it does not shew that the information was for an
assanlt punishable on summary conviction and that the convietion
was a summary one. I might, perhaps, be justified in assuming
that this was not a summary conviction, for the maximum fine for
a common assault on summary conviction is $20 and here, accords
ing to this plea, the defendant was fined $100, but I prefer not
to do so. The parties of course know what the facts are and can
adjust this opinion to them. If the defendant can bring the
conviction within s. 734, as I construe it, he should have the chance.

The order will be that par. 4 of the statement of defence be
struck out, unless within 4 days of the service of the same upon
the defendant’s solicitors he amends it so as to allege that he
was charged by the plaintiff with and convicted of an assault
punishable on summary conviction.

The costs of this application will be to the plaintiff in any event
of the cause. Judgment accordingly.

v.
HENNEGHAN,

Walsh, J




Galliber, J.A.

Neli'lips. 1A,
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GIBBS v. NORTHERN CONSTRUCTION Co.

British (‘ol'umbm Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., Galliher, McPhil!:
and Eberts, JJ.A. Oclober 1,1918.

New TriAL (§III B—19)—FAILURE OF JURY TO ANSWER NECESSARY QUi-
TION SUBMITTED.

A new trial will be ordered where the jury has fuiled to answer a ues-
tion of fact submitted to them, the answer to which is necessary to the
proper determination of the case.

[McPhee v. Esquimalt & Nanaimo R. Co, 16 D.L.R. 756, referred 10|
ArreaL by defendants from judgment of Murphy, J.  Now

trial ordered.

R. L. Reid, K.C., for appellant; R. Cassidy, K.C., and Baill,
for respondent.

Macponarp, C.J.A.:—1 think there must be a new trial. Tl
jury’s answers are incomplete. Their finding that a contract wus
entered into between the parties on August 8 may refer to a verlal
contract of which evidence was given. That verbal contract
included a term that the plaintiffs should furnish security for the
due performance of their obligations. A verbal contract is not
enforceable in the absence of a memorandum in writing. The
memorandum in writing which is relied upon is the document
which is put forward alternatively as a written contract and a
memorandum in writing of a verbal contract.

This document was handed to the plaintiffs by Cummings,
who, it is admitted, was agent for both defendants, but the ques-
tion is, was it handed to the plaintiffs as the signed contract or s
only the proposed contract to be formally executed when the
security aforesaid should have been perfected? When Cumimings
said “There is your contract,” what did he mean? That was a
question of fact to be decided by the jury, and question No. 8, the
answer to which would have decided it, was left unanswered.
Had the document been deliveréd as the signed contract, then
evidence of some omitted stipulation could not have been given
in this action as framed. On the other hand, if it ean be relied on
merely as evidence of the verbal agreement, it does not contain all
the terms of it.

GALLIHER, J.A.:—1 am, though not without some hesitation,
concurring in the granting of a new trial owing to the failure of the
jury to answer the 8th question.

McPuiLues, J.A. (dissenting):—This appeal involves the
determination as to whether, upon the facts as led at the trial, o
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contract has been established within the meaning of s. 11 (1) of
the Sales of Goods Act (e. 203, R.8.B.C. (1911), the Sale of Goods
Act (1893) Imp. is in like terws, see s. 4 and sub-sections thereto).
*The jury has failed to find, as a fact, whether the writing which is
claimed to be a sufficient “mwemorandum in writing of the con-
tract was made and signed by the party to be charged or his agent

in that behalf.” Two questions were put to the jury which were
not answered which went to the question of fact whether there
was a signature within the statute, being Nos. 6 and 8, and in the
absence of any answer or finding of the jury upon this crucial
point, in fact, the crux of the ease, the trial judge has undertaken
to find the question of fact. With great respect to the trial judge,
this was without his jurisdietion. The tribunal, the constitu-
tional tribunal, in the case was the jury. It is only the Court of
Appeal that can exercise any such jurisdiction. McPhee v.
Esquimalt and Nanaimo R. Co. (1913), 16 D.L.R. 756, 49 Can.
S.C.R. 43.

Very recently, in fact, in February of this year (1918), the
Court of Appeal in England had the same point up for considera-
tion in Winterbotham v. Sibthorp, [1918] 87 L.J.K.B. 527.

Now, the situation in the present case is this, unless it is a case
in which it is right and proper to enter judgnent, there must be
a new trial. In my opinion, but with great respect to contrary
opinion, the case is one in which judgment should be entered for
the defendants, and the action dismissed; that is, 1t 18 a cuse in
which this Court is entitled to so decide, namely, within the
anguage of Duff, J., in the McPhee case, 16 D.L.R. 756, at 762:—

In the absence of a finding of a jury or against such a finding where the
evidence is of such a character that only one view can be taken of the effect of
that evidence—
and the language of Swinfen Eady, L.J. (now Master of the Rolls),
in the Winterbotham case, at p. 520:— '

But where the evidence is such that only one conclusion can properly be

drawn, then, in my opinion, this court is bound to draw that conclusion and
to enter judgment accordingly.

We find this statement in Chalmers’ Sale of Goods, Tth ed., 1910,
under the heading “ Formalities of the Contract,” at pp. 23-24:—

Signature is the writing of a person’s name on a document for the purpose
of authenticating it. If the name appears in an unusual place, it is a question
of fact whether it was intended as a signature. (Johnson v. Dodgson (1837),
2M. & W. 653, at p. 659, 150 E.R. 918; Caton v. Caton (1867), L.R. 2 H.L.
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127.) Rignature by mark, initials or stamp is sufficient (Benjamin on Sule,
4thed, at p. 232). The signature to a telegram form suffices (Godw:n
Francis (1870), L.R. 5 C.P. 205), 8o, too, does the signature of an agent in his
own name, for then evidence is admissible to charge the principal, though not
to discharge the agent (White v. Proctor (1811), 4 Taunt. 209, 128 E.R. 300
¢f. Newell v. Radford (1867), L.R. 3 C.P. 52). The authority of the agent is 1o
be determined according to the ordinary rules of agency; but it seems that one
party cannot be the agent of the ‘other to sign for him  Sharman v. Brondt
(1871), L.R. 6 Q.B. 720; ¢f. Farebrother v. Simmons (1822), 5 B. & Ald. 333,
106 E.R. 1213. A letter written by an agent which refers to and recognises
an unsigned document containing the terms of the contract, may satis(y the
statute. John Griffiths Cycle Co. v. Humber & Co., [1899] 2 Q.B. 414 (veversed
on another point, [1901] W.N., p. 110), decided on s. 4. It is obvious that 4
person may be an agent to sign, though he may not have authority to setile
the terms of the contract between the parties. The two questions are distinct,
The counsel for the respondents in his, if I may be permitte | to
say so, very ingenious argument, did not contend that the rubbr
stamped document was a solemn and duly executed contract with
all the formalities that are required when corporations are partics,
but that it was a sufficient “memorandum in writing of the con-
tract” to satisfy s. 11 (1) of the Sales of Goods Act (c. 203, R.S.B.C",
1911).  The alleged sufficiency of signature to the document in
writing it in the following form, the word “and” between the
names of the two companies (the names of the companies heing
rubber stamped thereon) being inserted in the handwriting of
Cummings, the agent for both companies:—
In witness whereof the parties hereto have caused these presents to be
executed.
NORTHERN CONSTRUCTION CO. LIMITED
In the presence of and
CARTER-HALLS-ALDINGER CO. LIMITED
Witness . : . S .. (Seal)
President and 1

. " ERy- (Seal)
Secretary-treasurer.
(Sub-contractor) (Seal
Witness o . : %3 : (Seal)
It is patent to me that there is no signature here, the very writing
importing the requirement that execution thereof shall be in the
one case by the president and general manager with the seal of the
company and in the other the execution to be by the secretary-
treasurer with the seal of the company, all of which is absent.
Then there was evidence which, I think, was conclusive, that
there should be a bond before contract, and that was admittedly
not existent at the time.
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In my opinion, quite apart from the insufficiency of signature

under the Sales of Goods Act and its requirement upon the evi- C. A,
dence, which 1 do not think it necessary to canvass in detail, con- Chsbiss
gidering the view at which I have arrived, there was no concluded N(m}r’h““
contract, and in this connection it is instructive to read what Coxstruc-
Lord Loreburn said in Love and Stewart v. S. Instone and Co. (1917), 1&2"

5 A = : . MecPhillips, J.A.
Again, and with great respect, the trial judge was in error in

assuming to pass upon this further question of fact, which if an
essential fact to be found, was the provinee of the jury, not that
of the judge. See judgment of Lord Moulton in Rickards v.
Lothian, [1913] A.C. 263, at p. 274.

See also Hubert v. Treherne (1842), 3 M. & G. 743, 133 E.R.
1338; Saunderson v. Jackson (1800), 2 Bos. & Pul. 238, 126
E.R. 1257.

These casesindicate in apt language, when the facts are consider-
ed in this case, that there was not “some note or memorandum in
writing of the contract . . . signed by the party to be charged,
or his agent in that behalf.” T would particularly refer to that
portion of the judgment which reads:—

Applying one's common sense to the matter, it is impossible not to see

not only that this instrument does not purport to be signed, but that it does
purport to be intended to be signed by the contracting parties.

I do not propose to set forth here in detail a reference to the
numerous cases referred to in the able argument delivered by
counsel on behalf of the respective parties to this appeal, but it
has been established to my satisfaction that the judgment appealed
from, with great respect to the trial judge, is wrong and cannot
be upheld. Ewen were I wrong in my view that the case is a
proper one for entry of judgment for the defendants, and dis-
missal of the action, then, at best, all that could, in my opinion,
be directed would be a new trial. Further, if that even should
not be the necessary result, the evidence shews that the respond-
ents contracted, recklessly undertaking to supply stone of which
there is no evidence whatever, that it was in place, and eapable of
being quarried and delivered, so that if it can be said that there
was a contract, the damages are excessive. In fact, no damages
whatever have been proved, and upon this phase of matters, all
that could be done by this court would be to direct that, for the
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breach thereof, nominal damages only be allowed. Parker, J ;|
(afterwards Lord Parker of Waddington), I remember, in a cas tifies
before him, allowed 20 shillings as nominal damages. Tord oW
Atkinson in United Shoe Manufacturing Co. of Canada v. Brund, illeg:
[1909] A.C. 330, said at p. 345:— enfo

As the respondents have broken their contract, the appellants st to e

despite the finding of the jury that they sustained no damage, be entitled 1 @3
nominal damages, but to nothing more. ,
g,

In my opinion, the appeal should be allowed and the judgmnt A
of the court below set aside and the action dismissed with costs "eﬂf
the appellants to have the costs of the appeal, it being the statutory corth
result. othe

KBERTS, J.A., concurred in granting a new trial. and

New trial ordered. 1
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SUTHERLAND v. RUR. MUN. of SPRUCE GROVE, y

Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Harvey, C.J., Stuart, Beck and Title
Hyndman, JJ. October 25, 1918.

to th
1. Lano miries (§ V—&))-—Acnon TO ESTABLISH TITLE ONLY—NOT AN “ACTI0N T
FOR RECOVERY OF LAND''—CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NOT A BAR 10 THE 5
ACTION. 3
An uuun for the establishment of title 0nl), not elaiming possession, which
is not an ‘‘action for the recovery of land’’ and the certificates of title
are not a bar to such action under sec. 104 of the Land Titles Act. (Alta).
2. Taxes (§V D—205)-—~ARREARS OF—ADJUDICATION OF—NOT DATED—N0 excey
FOUNDATION FOR SUBSEQUENT PROCEEDINGS—COPY OF ADJUDICATION or en
TO BE MAILED—MAILING OF ho'nu: OF.
An adjudication as to arrears of taxes and confirmation of tax sales branc
under s. 316 of the Rural Municipalities Act (Alta. stats. 1011-12, ¢.3

owner

M:;ch bears m; dnls on |tsfftu~e.hhul no-date such as the Act comel;u I' lll'! and t
and is not a foundation for the lublequenl. pmeeedx prescribed by 4
the Act to enable the ~ sk owner. ki
Sec. 316 (¢) of the Act req a copf of the nd]udlcatmn to be mailed of the

i8 not cnmplled \ulh y mailing a notice of such adjudication,
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[Mun ;)f Bow Valley v. MeLean, 26 D.L.R. 716, distinguished.

ArpeAL from the judgment of Ives, J., in an action for cancel-
lation of a certificate of title. Judgment varied.

A. M. Sinclair, and P. G. Thomson, for appellants.

E. B. Edwards, K.C., for respondent.

The judgment of the court was delivered by

Harvey, CJ.:—The defendants took forfeiture proceedings
for tax enforcement in respect of certain subdivided lands registered
in the name of the plaintiff, and obtained an adjudication which
was registered, and subsequently certificates of title in the name
of the municipality.
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This action was begun apparently before the issue of the cér-
tificates of title and the plaintiff alleges that he is the registered
owner and claims: (1), a declaration that the assessments are
illegal and the taxes not a charge, (2) a declaration that the tax
enforcement proceedings are illegal, (3) a direction to the registrar
to cancel the registration made in respect of the proceedings,
(4) an injunction restraining the defendants from further proceed-
ing, (5) other relief, (6) costs, and by later amendment after the
certificates of title had been issued, (7) an order cancelling the
certificates of title and vesting the land in the plaintiff and the
other parties interested in accordance with their former estates
and interests.

The trial judge gave judgment in the plaintifi’s favour in
accordance with the prayer of paragraphs (1), (2), (3), (7), and (6),
and from that judgment the defendants now appeal.

The defendants contend that by virtue of s. 104 of the Land
Titles Act their certificates of title are an absolute bar and estoppel
to the plaintifi’s action.

That section provides, under thc caption “Ejectment,” that

No action of ejectment or other action for the recovery of any land for
which a certificate of title has been granted shall lie or be sustained against the
owner under this Act in respect thereof,

except in the specified cases. The exceptions include a mortgagee
or encumbrancee or lessor upon default of the mortgagor, encum-
brancer, or lessee; also the case of a certificate obtained by fraud,
and the cases of mis-description and double registration. Sub-s. 2
provides that in any other case than these specified the production
of the certificate of title “shall be an absolute bar and estoppel to
any such action against the person named in such certificate of
title as owner.”

Is this an action for the recovery of land within the meaning
of the section? I think not. It is to be noted that when it was
begun the plaintiff supposed he was the registered owner, but even
then he makes no claim for recovery of the land, but only for its
discharge from taxes. Later, when it is found that the certificates
of title have been issued to the defendants, he asks for their
cancellation. If the certificate of title is to be a bar to any action
to set it aside we would have a somewhat anomalous situation.
Any one who had become registered as owner through any error
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in the office or otherwise, or in any of many other ways which
occur to me, would thereby become entitled to hold land to which
he has no right. The certificate of title is primd facie evidence of
ownership, and, generally, only the rightful owner is entitled to
possession, therefore, usually only the holder of a certificate could
maintain an action for possession.

The term “action for recovery of land” is a well-recognized
term, and has been used in the English Judicature Act and Rules
since they were passed nearly half a century ago, and over a
generation ago Jessel, M.R., declared its meaning in Gledhill .
Hunter (1880), 14 Ch. D. 492. At p. 495, he says: “In my opinion
an action for the establishment of title only, not claiming posses.
sion, is not an action for the recovery of land under the rules,”
and again, at p. 500, he says: “Now, what does an ‘action for the
recovery of land’ mean? It means the recovery of possession.’
1 think it is clear, therefore, that this is not such an action as comes
within the section, and that the certificates of title do not stand in
the plaintifi’s way.

Another objection taken by the defendants is that the plaintif:
has no cause of action because he has given a transfer of the land.
The answer I would make is that the evidence does not shew that
he has no interest, and when the defendants became registered as
owners it was by the cancellation of a certificate of title standing
in the plaintiff’s name. Even if he had given a transfer it may well
be that he would be bound to give a title, and he may have, not
merely a right, but a duty, to establish that title.

As I have already indicated, the trial judge found that the
assessments were illegal and the taxes not a valid charge on the
land. He came to this conclusion upon facts adduced before him
which were not before the judge who made the adjudication
under the Rural Municipalities Act (Alta. 1911-12, ¢. 3).

8. 311 of that Act provides that,

The said return . . . shall for all purposes be primd facie evidence
of the validity of the assessment and imposition of the taxes us shewn
therein, and that all steps and formalities prescribed by the Act have been
taken and observed.

As far as appears from the evidence in this case, His Honour
Judge Noel, who confirmed the return had no other evidence
before him than the return on these points, and s. 316 provides
that he shall hear any objecting parties and the evidence adduced
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before him under oath and then adjudge and determine whether
the taxes are wholly or in part in default.

I do not consider to what extent his adjudication would be
conclusive because both at the trial and on the uppml it has heen
gone behind without objection.

The ground upon which the trial judge based his conclusion
that the assessment was illegal was that each individual lot of the

several hundred in the subdivision assessed to the plaintiff was
assessed separately and a tax imposed upon it which he considered
the decision of this division in Mun. of Bow Valley v. McLean,
(1916) 26 D.L.R. 716, held to be improper and illegal.

In that case the section of the statute in question provided
that “in the event of the tax payable on any lot or portion of land
under this section for the purposes of the municipality being less
than $1, the tax to be entered on the roll as payable for such
purposes shall be $1.”

The decision of the court in that case was that the word *“lot”
was to be interpreted as meaning the sume as “portion of land,”
that is, any integral parcel owned by the party assessed, and not as
a lot as shewn on a plan or paper subdivision. The court was
helped to that conclusion by the fact that at the time of the
decision the section in question had been changed to read:-

In the event of the tax payable on any lot in any subdivision or plan
being less than twenty-five cents, the tax to be entered on the roll
shall be twenty-five cents,

The taxes in question here, though shewn on a return by a
rural municipality, were in fact imposed by local improvement and
school districts, the municipality having been formed only in the
preceding year.

By s. 52 of the Local Improvement Act and s. 13 of the School
Assessment Ordinance the minimum tax is in respect not of any
lot or portion of land less than an acre but “any lot containing
less than one acre in any subdivision or plan.”

The trial judge’s attention was apparently not drawn to this
difference in the statutory provision, for there seems no room for
argument questioning the view that on this reading each lot shewn
on the plan of subdivision is liable for the minimum tax. No other
ground is urged in support of that portion of the judgment declaring

2043 p.L.R.
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invalid the assessment and taxes and 1 am of opinion that as this
ground cannot be supported the judgment is wrong in that respect

The trial judge did not, however, base his conclusion that the
certificates of title should be cancelled and the title re-vested in the
former owners subject to the former charges upon the ground of the
invalidity of the assessment alone, but he held that the proceedings
for confirmation and consequent thereon were, in part at least,
irregular and invalid.

As the Act stood at the time the confirmation proceedings were
begun it was necessary for the treasurer to apply to the District
Court Judge for an appointment of which 2 months’ notice was
required to be given (ss. 313-4). Before the 2 months had expired
new provisions were substituted and the confirmation was required
to be made at a sittings of the District Court. So far as appears,
no attempt was made to apply the substituted provisions, and [ do
not find it necessary to consider the effect of the amendment upon
these proceedings. Judge Noel, after giving the appointment,
appeared at the time and place appointed and heard the evidence
given to prove (-umpliun(‘-o with the statutory requirements, and
said he would take all the papers with him to his chambers in
Edmonton and check them over. Before leaving. counsel for the
plaintiff and others appeared and asked to be heard. As they were
Edmonton barristers he said he would hear them at his chambers
in Edmonton. At some time later, apparently, he did hear their
objections, though the evidence gives no indication of what they
were.

Neither on the occasion of the date oi the appointment, which
was May 30, 1916, nor at any later time, so far as can be gathered
from the evidence, did the judge make any declaration of his
decision upon the application for confirmation. On July 7, how-
ever, he signed what has been treated as his adjudication.

S. 316 provides that a copy of the adjudication shall be sent to
the registrar of land titles who shall register it, and that a copy
shall also be sent to the persons who are interested. The section
also provides that the owners may redeem the lands within 1 vear
from the date of the adjudication and that between 10 and 11
months after its date a notice shall be published, giving the date
of the expiration of the period of redemption, and that a copy of
such notice shall be sent to the persons interested not less than 30
days nor more than 60 days before the date of such expiration.
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It is evident from these provisions and the very great par-
ticularity of them that the date of the adjudication is a most
important matter.

It is also apparent that the adjudication referred to is not some
mental decision or even some oral announcement of such decision,
but some documentary declaration of such decision which can be
copied and registered.

The document which was signed by Judge Noel bears no date,
but states that he attended on May 30, at the time and place
appointed,.and recites the proof of compliance with the provisions
of the Act and that no one appeared to object, except the barrister
named “whose objections are dismissed.” It then states that he
“thereupon did adjust and determine the amount of taxes
in default and did confirm the said tax enforcement return.”

The defendants treated this adjudication as being of the date
of May 30, and the notices were published and sent in the month
of March following, although the certificates of title were not
actually issued until more than a year after July 7.

No copy of the adjudication was sent to the plaintiff or to any
other interested person, but a notice was sent to the plaintiff on
September 7, advising him that the return had been confirmed on
May 30, 1916, and that unless the lands were redeemed before
May 30, 1917, they would be absolutely forfeited.

It is urged that this is a substantial compliance with the
provision requiring a copy of the adjudication.

As far as the time of sending the notice is concerned, it may be
noted that when it was sent more than one-quarter of the period of
redemption mentioned in the nctice had expired. It is true the
Act fixes no time within which the copy of adjudication shall be
sent, but inasmuch as it is to give the person interested notice of
how his rights are affected it seems reasonable to suppose that it is
intended to be sent as soon as conveniently may be. Then I find
nothing in the Act which even suggests that it intends that muni-
cipalities shall have the discretion to comply with its provisions
or at their option do something else which they think as good.
Moreover, the notice, in this case, certainly did not give the infor-
mation which a copy of the adjudication would have given.

Then I quite agree with the trial judge when he says that the
adjudication was certainly not made on May 30. The objections
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which were heard and are declared to have been dismissed were
certainly not made till some time after that date.

The adjudication bears no date on its face and, in my opinion,
it has no date such as the Act contemplates and, therefore, is not a
foundation for the subsequent proceedings prescribed by the Act
to enable the municipality to become the registered owner.

The certificates of title, therefore, should never have been
issued to the defendants and ought to be set aside and the title
restored to its former condition.

The trial judge dealt also with a question as to the correctness
of the school taxes shewn on the return as the arrears for one of
the years. There seems no necessity to consider this point or the
doubt which was suggested in the argument of the municipality’s trai
right to collect any school taxes imposed by the school district,
prior to the erection of the municipality.

I would, therefore, allow the appel and vary the judgment by
striking out the whole of the first two paragraphs declaring the
illegality and invalidity of the assessment and taxes and the tax
enforcement proceedings, part of which at least were legal.

While I have indicated that, in my opinion, part of the proceed-
ings are invalid, no good purpose would be served by a declaration
of the exact extent of the invalidity. The third paragraph of the
judgment directs the cancellation by the registrar of the registra-
tion which gives the plaintiffi the benefit he requires, and this
should be, because, even if the registration was authorised, no
proceedings could be taken consequent thereon to the benefit of
the defendants, and the registration would be a cloud on the
plaintifi’s title, which he is entitled now at least to have removed.

As the defendants have succeeded on a very material point
which was indeed the substance of the action as originally brought
I would give them the costs of the appeal, which may be set off
against the costs of the action. If they are greater, the defendants
will be entitled to execution for the difference; if they are less, they
should be entitled to apply the difference in reduction of the
plaintiff’s taxes. Appeal allowed, judgment varied.
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WORSLEY v. CANADIAN NORTHERN R. Co.

Saskatchewan Court of Appeal, Sir Frederick Haultain, C.J 8., Newlands,
Lamont and Elwood, JJ.A. October 31, 1918.

Evipence (§ VII J—643)—SuuNriNG  1RAIN-SUDDEN sTOP—BREAKING
COUPLING PIN—INJURY T0 EMPLOYEE —NEGLIGENCE
The undisputed evidence that an employee of a railway company
who was employed to heat the ears in the railway yard, while attending
to his duties, was going from a second-class car to the baggage car for
coal, that as he was reaching for the door of the baggage car the train
nuddenl,\' stopped, the baggage car and the second class ear parted from
the breaking of a knuckle pin, the employee being thrown to the ground
and injured by the wheels of the buggage car, is sufficient evidence to
justify the jury in finding that the irjuries were the resuit of the negli-
gence of the company in stopping the train too suddenly, when wir brukes
and safety chains were not in use,

Arpeal by defendant fron the trinl judge cnt in an action for
damages for injuries received, dve to the sudden stopping of a
train, brealing a coupling pin and cansing pleintiff to fall Fotaeen
the cars.  Affirn od.

J. N. Fish, K.C'., for appellant: D. Campbell, for respondent.
Havvrain, CUJ.8., concurred with Lamont, J.A.

Newranps, J.A.:—This is an action brought by plaintiff
against the defendants for negligence causing injury to him.  The
action was tried by a jury, who found that the plaintifi’s injuries
were caused by the negligence of the defendants, and that such
negligence consisted

In the stopping of the train in question too suddenly eausing the breaking
of the knuckle pin between the baggage ear and the second class coach, and
in not exercising more care in stopping a train of this size and description when
the air brakes and safety chains were not in operation or use.

The trial judge on this finding entered judgment for the
plaintiff.  From this judgment the defendants appeal on the
ground that there is no evidence to support this finding.

The undisputed evidence is, that the plaintiff, who was
employed by the defendants to heat their cars in the railway
vard at North Battleford, while attending to his duties, was going
from the second-class car to the baggage car for coal, that, as he
was reaching for the door of the baggage car, the train sudden!v
stopped, the baggage car and the second class car parted from
the breaking of a knuckle pin, the plaintiff was thrown to the
ground and the wheels of the baggege car injured him.

I am of the opinion that this evidence is sufficient to support
the finding of the jury. The negligence they find is the sudden
stopping of a ear. It is a well-known fact that the sudden stop-
ping of a train, or any other vehiele in 1w otion, will upset a person

287

SASK.
C.A.

Statement,

Haultain, CJ.8.
Newlands, J.A,

gy -

seeeee

T T —

="

e

[ —

| - oo memas



i
4

i

i
|
|

e e e e SO e

SASK.

C. A

WoRrsLEY
0.
CANADIAN
NORTHERN
R. Co.

Lamont, J.A.

Dominion Law REepoRrTS, (43 D.LR.

who is standing unsupported, and particularly one taken by sur-
prise, and where the stop is so sudden as to throw a person down,
I think the jury is justified in finding it to be negligence. The
plaintiff was on the platform of the baggage car, it was not, there-
fore, the parting of the cars from the breaking of the knuckle pin
that threw him down, but the “stopping of the train too sud-

 denly.” The cars having parted, he fell farther than he other-

wise would have done. If they had not parted just where they
did he would have fallen to the floor of the ear: having parted
he fell to the ground and was run over.

The negligence found by the jury “consists in the stopping of
the train in question too suddenly': the breaking of the pin,
which they mention, is but an inference they draw from the sudden
stopping, and, whether there is evidence or not to support that
inference wakes no difference, as the evidence shews that the
train parted at that instant, and 1 think we are entitled to draw
the inference that~the parting of the train was caused by the
sudden stoppage, whether it broke the pin in question or not

The jury having found that the sudden stopping of the traim
was negligence, and the evidence shewing that this negligence
threw the plaintifi down and that he was injured, T think saffi-
ciently supports the finding of the jury that the plaintiff was
injured by the negligenee of the defendants.

Lamont, J.A.:~This is an action for damages for personal
injuries received by the plaintiff, by reason of the breaking in two
of one of the defendants’ trains.

The plaintiff was employed by the defendants in the capacity
of coach heater.  On the morning of Noven ber 27, 1916, while in
the act of passing from the coach to the baggage ear to get a supply
of coal for the licater in the coach, the train, which was being
shunted from the west end switch to the station at North Battle-
ford, broke in two at the coupling between the coach and the
baggage car, with the result that the plaintiff was violently pre-
cipitated to the ground between these two cars, and the truck of
the baggage car ran over his right hand, crushing it so badly that
it had to be amputated. The train, which consisted of 15 loaded
box cars, 3 empty box cars, a baggage car and two coaches, was
being shunted without the safety chains between the cars being
coupled or the air being attached to the air brakes on the cars.
The plaintiff alleges that the accident happened by reason of the
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